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Chairman Owens: Opened the hearing on HB 1461 
 
Rep. Strinden, District 41:   Introduced HB 1461 (Attachment 1) 1:20-6:34 
 
Chairman Owens: Any questions from the committee?  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   That statistic you quoted, I did not realize 1 in 5 students experience 
dyslexia, can you email the link to the site with the research. 6:50 
 
Rep. Strinden:   Yes I will.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: In the teacher training programs for our specialist 
that work in this area, what is the training provided, any special programs?  7:30 
 
Rep. Strinden:  Yes.  I have asked Alicia who is coming to us from Inspiring minds to expand 
on the training process.  Extensive training in methodology is most beneficial when trying to 
address the dyslexic child’s specific reading needs.  There is a one year program and some 
other training also.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   At our colleges that are providing teacher 
education is there course work.  
 
Rep. Strinden:   I do not believe so.  
 
Rep. Pamela Anderson, District 41: I am here in support of HB 1461.  Told about grandson 
having trouble going to school and hated school.   At the end of his first grade his parents 
paid for the testing and found out he was really dyslexic.  He spent the summer at the Orton 
Gillingham camp for about $1700 dollars.  He was making progress.  He went back to second 
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grade and the same thing all over again.  They did not know how to handle this situation.  In 
their school has no special teaching.  I wonder how many of our children that are acting up 
might be dyslexic.  Every child should be able to get the training they need.  I urge a Do Pass 
on HB 1461   11:30 
 
Kirsten Baesler, Department of Public Instruction:  In support for HB 1461. (Attachment 
2).  12:30-17:25 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Are there any of the teacher training institutions 
that are teaching anything in this arena? 
 
Kirsten Baesler:  I do believe there are.  There are some dyslexia specialists in our state 
already.  I could get that information to you.  
 
Vice Chairman- Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Thank you that would help.  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  The reading credentials in college, doesn’t that give you the 
training in dyslexia and is there a distinction between a reading credential and a dyslexia 
credential? 
 
Kirsten Baesler:   Yes there is a distinction.  I can give you my best guess, when you become 
a reading specialist I would imaging you would have some training on dyslexia and many 
other areas.  18:30-19:15 
 
Chairman Owens:  In Section 2,  each public elementary school shall administer a dyslexia 
screening to each student by the end of the second grade.  In section 3 at least once a year 
each student district shall provide elementary school teachers and administrators a minimum 
of one hour of professional development.  That’s max of the fiscal note, cause I can hear the 
locals say you want us to spend on that?  So where is the money?  But there is no fiscal note 
in here.  Why isn’t there one for those two requirements? 
 
Kirsten Baesler:  We there would be expenses in training but you would not need to hire an 
additional teacher. I’m not sure this dyslexia specialist has only that one specific role. 
 
Chairman Owens:   About Title 1 reading, in that case credentials for title 1 reading basically 
has changed where anybody can teach reading and no longer requires a certification for Title 
1 even those with Title 1 credentials haven’t been discounted it just never expires.  Does that 
effect happen even with this?  end  21:25 
 
Kirsten Baesler:  The Title 1 reading credential was part of No Child Left Behind.  North 
Dakota chose to have that through their administrative rules.  The requirement of additional 
training to become credentialed title one that was an administrative rules process and this 
would be a law.   
 
Chairman Owens:   It is just that credentials for teachers with Title 1 was listed here as well 
as us adding dyslexia so I was wondering if that makes it fall in the same place then?  
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Kirsten Baesler: 22:20-22:40 No it wouldn’t we actually need to go through the 
administrative rules process and remove it.  We can provide a credential but it is no longer 
required.  This section 2 of this law requires that every school district have a dyslexia 
credentialed specialist.  There is no other section of law that would have a Title 1 credentialed 
reading teacher. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Would DPI or ASPB bringing administrative rules to the Administrative 
rules committee?   
 
Kirsten Baesler:  DPI would issue this credential.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further questions?  
 
 Rep. Pat D. Heinert:   Is it every school district will require a dyslexic required?  
 
Kirsten Baesler:  No I misspoke on that.  They can get that through an REA or through a 
consortium. 
 
Phone call testimony from Dawn Lentini Brookhart, Director of Curriculum Instruction 
and Technology in Pennsylvania:  In support of HB 1461.  (See Attachment 3) Inaudible 
recording. 24:05- 43:10 
 
Chairman Owens: Any questions? 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Is there anything done at the college level that 
do train teachers in this area of dyslexia?  
 
Ms. Brookhart:  Yes. There are. Inaudible recording from (47:00-52:18) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further questions?  Seeing none.  Anyone in support of HB 1461. 
 
Alysia Budd, Pediatric Occupational Therapist:  In support of HB 1461.  (See Attachment 
4)   53:00-1:11:35 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Who do you go about getting a dyslexia specialist in the school?  
How might one go about that? 
 
Alysia Budd:  I do see the challenge.  The problem with dyslexia is that it is not a licensed 
profession.  There is not one set way.  North Dakota has a unique opportunity now to define 
what would this look like in the best interest of our students and our teachers.  This is not a 
quick process and it is very important to use science and research based define this and not 
opinion.   1:13:00 
 
Rep. Longmuir:  I see you have a certificate in dyslexia.  Is there a type of course that could 
be designed so every teacher would have a basic class? 
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Alysia Budd:  My graduate certificate in dyslexia took about 1 ½ years to do that.  We do 
have a person here that is an instructor for the Dickinson State University in the teacher 
education department and she might be able to answer that for you. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Have you looked at this bill and can you provide 
any information on how you should be redesigning curriculum? 
 
Alysia Budd:    I think it would be realistic that we make sure time for schools so as this 
would unroll they would be able to get the dyslexia specialist in.  There are some specialists 
already here.  We could use a consultative process over the phone even.  This is a great first 
step with this bill. end 1:15:00 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  As I was thinking of providing access to specialists across the 
state, we have access in Bismarck and through your clinic.  I thought maybe a Regional 
Educational Association (REA).  We have 8 across the state.  If we could employee a 
credential specialist within each of our REA’s it seems it might be a place to start.  
 
Alysia Budd:  I also think online tutoring for the students, which we already are doing.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  You are contracted with that particular district or 
how does that work? 
 
Alysia Budd: The parents are private paying. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further questions?  Seeing none.   
 
Kari Bucholz, Founder and Executive Director of Haley’s Hope:  In support of HB 1461. 
(See Attachment 5)  1:19:00-1:32:40 
 
Rep. Longmuir:  I like were you consider the one hour training for teachers to recognize 
early warning signs are you going to different universities and doing training.  Could this be 
done in our 178 school districts with the use of technology to get this out to more teachers?  
 
Kari Bucholz:  Absolutely.    I have been doing that for the last 8 years.  I go in to school 
districts if they allow me to come in and teach them in a one or three hour presentation of 
what the signs and what dyslexia really is.  I have done that across the state and I am always 
happy to do that for any school district that would want it.  
 
Chairman Owens:   Any other questions? Any others in support? 
 
Haley Bucholz, Senior in Fargo, North Dakota:  In support HB 1461.  I have dyslexia.  I 
remember the frustration I had as a young child.  My feelings were disappointment, fear, 
anger and sadness as a child.  The signs were noticeable in kindergarten but most of all in 
first grade.   Looking back at elementary school many nights I came home crying and I felt 
like I was different and I felt like I was a disappointment.  My third grade year I was a terrible 
speller and I asked her how to spell the word of.  She stood up and asked the whole class 
how to spell of.  The whole class spelled it and laughed at me.  That really impacted me very 
hard with my self- confidence.  Continued on story of his childhood and how his mother called 
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him in to the office one day and made a commitment to help him get through this. They looked 
at many different schools to find one that could help me.  He changed schools.   That day 
made the most impact on what he is today.  1:34:00  1:43:25 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  What are your plans now besides helping with 
this?   
 
Haley Bucholz:  I am currently enrolled at University of North Dakota and I am going to play 
football for the next five years and maybe be a Paramedic or a degree in Medical sales. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further questions? Any other support of HB 1461? 
 
Mrs. Amber Huez:  In support of HB1461.  (See Attachment 6) 1:44:14 -1:53:31 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  We are hearing this testimony but you also need 
to speak to the legislators from your districts.  To bring this forward we need you to spread 
the word to your own representatives and senators.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further support?  
 
Natalie Van Valkenburg, resident of Fargo: In support of HB 1461.  (See Attachment 7)  
1:55:18-  2:01:00 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions?  Seeing none.   Others in support? 
 
Ava Kane, 5th Grade Student:  I have dyslexia.  In support of HB 1461.   (See Attachment 
8)   2:01:10-2:03:00 
 
Rachel Kane, Parent of Ava:   Very emotionally in support of HB 1461.  (See Attachment 
9)   2:03:57- 2:07:45 
 
Jaime Hauge:  In favor of HB 1461. Maybe how we have been trying to teach previously is 
wrong and we need to use our money on things like this.  (See Attachment 10)  2:08:00-
2:18:30  
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions?  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  Could you tell about the screening processes that you and 
your family went through before you ended up in Fargo for I therapy? 
 
Jaime and Deb Hauge:  We were really lucky when our children were at the first school that 
she was a special educator and she knew Jaime and I were the kind of parents that could 
think out of the box and were willing to anything to help.  She found I Therapy by accident.  
We went down there and it made a lot of sense to us.  Our school was very open to even 
trying some of the I therapy at the school because it was an hour bus ride for our sons to get 
to the I therapy.  They were screened in first grade because they were falling so far behind.  
The screening just said they needed additional services in reading and math.  Which our kids 
excel in math as long as it is not a word problem. I think we need to go back to straight 
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arithmetic so these kids can flourish in school.  We just kept taking it farther.  A mind of a 
person with dyslexia runs a thousand miles an hour and still to this day I will be writing 
something down and the word of I can’t get it from my head to a piece of paper. We even 
tried taking them to a chiropractor and it didn’t work.   We don’t know the answer but we know 
we need your help to make this work for everyone. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  Did you try the Orton-Gillingham approach?  
 
Jaime/Deb Hauge:  We are now.  There isn’t proper training in this and I can’t waste any 
more time so now we run to Bismarck twice a week which is 1 ½ hour away.  We need help 
now.  
 
Chairman Owens:  Any other support? 
 
Nicole Leininger, parent:  In support of HB1461.   (See Attachment 11)   2:24:34 – 2:44:50 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions?  What I have seen in this even with the struggles that 
they have the children and the parents don’t allow it to keep them down from the stories we 
have heard.  The bill is about three things credentialing, testing, and training.  That is the only 
thing we are working on now.   
 
Jennifer Dockter, Parent:  In support of HB 1461.  Very emotional support, she is a parent 
of a child with dyslexia.    (See Attachment 12)   2:47:00-2:52:35 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any other questions?  Seeing none.  Any other support?  
 
Ruth Bergstrom, K-6 Elementary Teacher:   In support of HB 1461.  Please give this a Do 
Pass recommendation.   (See Attachment 13)   2:53:00-3:05:10 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any other support?  
 
Krista Erovick, Parent:  In support of HB 1461.  I have a learning disability but the current 
processes we have in our schools never caught me.  I was a 4.0 student but I cannot read. 
Please give this a Do Pass recommendation.  (See Attachment 14)   3:06:00- 3:11:00 
 
Pam Krueger, Instructor in Teacher Education program in Dickinson State 
University(DSU): In support of HB 1461.  (See attachment 15)   3:11:00- 3:15:30. 
  
Chairman Owens:  Any questions? 
 
Rep. Longmuir:  You do teacher training for DSU.  Do you have dyslexia as part of your 
teacher training program?  
 
Pam Krueger: I teach a class called Exceptionalities for children and that is the one class 
that teachers are required to take where they learn about all exceptionalities from giftedness, 
dyslexia to all intellectual disabilities.  We meet 3 hours a week for 16 weeks.   I do spend a 
lot of time on dyslexia when I teach the course but I think very little time is spent normally.  
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They are required to take 2 reading courses in North Dakota and I highly doubt that they 
have instruction in Orton-Gillingham 3:17:40 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I there a possibility that this teacher training could 
be incorporated into our higher ed system and what would it take?  
 
Pam Krueger:  I am so happy in this bill we are talking about professional development for 
the ones that have already gone through.  I think a major difficulty with teachers that are 
being trained now is that the faculty are not trained in Orton-Guillingham or dyslexia.  They 
can’t teach what they don’t know.  I don’t know what the process is to have that added.   There 
is so much added that teachers are expected to be specialists in many areas. There is online 
training also.  
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Where did you receive you Orton-Guillingham training? 
 
Pam Krueger:  I am from Canada and it was very hard to find training there and I researched 
and found a school in Vermont.  I took the training for two weeks and then you practice.  I 
followed up in Toronto and then since I moved here I have met people in Minnesota and we 
have come here to Bismarck sometimes to train.  I am now under the person in Minnesota 
so I can start training myself.   
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:   So there is some training available and do you know the name of 
that in Minnesota? 
 
Pam Krueger:  Rochester has a very good training and they started doing the first part online.  
More and more is becoming available. 3:20:00 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any other  
 
Mistie Boully, Family Support Specialist.:  In support for HB 1461.  (See Attachment 16) 
3:20:10-3:25:40 
 
Holden Boully, 6th Grader with Dyslexia:  In support of HB 1461.  (See Attachment 17)  
3:25:47-3:27:10 
 
Chairman Owens:  Your mother said you have to rely on spell check and grammar 
programs.  I think spell check was invented for me.  I am a terrible speller so we both need it 
then.  Closed the hearing for lunch break.   We will reconvene after afternoon session. 
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Chairman Owens:  Reopened the hearing on HB 1461.  Afternoon testimony continuing on 
HB 146, is there any other support?  
 
Testimony in support submitted but did not give oral testimony:  
 
Susan Longwell-Gietzen, Reading specialist in Bismarck Public: (Attachment 1) 
 
Leanne Schmidt:  State employee.  (Attachment 2). 
 
Justine Gibbon, Elementary Reading Teacher in North Dakota.  (Attachment 3) 
 
Susan Longwell, Reading Specialist in Bismarck Public Schools. (Attachment 4) 
 
Meg Lindholm, Parent.  (Attachment 5) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Is there any other support for HB 1461?   Is there any opposition?  Any 
neutral testimony? 
 
Russ Ziegler, North Dakota Council for Educational Leaders:  Presented neutral 
testimony for HB 1461.  (Attachment 6)   6:02 
 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  You mentioned the screening and the professional development, 
with regard to the credential do you have a position on the credential? 
 
Russ Ziegler: Yes, we do have, on what is it going to take.  The credentials shouldn’t be 
something that can be done in a day or two.  We want to give the schools time so we get the 
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right people in the right positions with the right training behind them.  With only 8 REAs in the 
state I am not sure they would have enough staff to cover all the schools and have a qualified 
person. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  If those people were trained independently on their own merit and 
finances, would you be opposed to them serving at an REA in that capacity.  That is what 
the credential would provide, a way for DPI to put someone in the building with a credential. 
8:30 
 
Russ Ziegler:  No we would not be opposed.  Talked about personal family disability.  Our 
position would be to have a task force and work this out, it is a large problem. 9:00 – 10:50 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  How many screenings do schools do and for what? 
 
Russ Ziegler:  I will defer that question to Tracy Klein. 
  
Chairman Owens:  I would like to mention Section 1 in the bill, it is just DPI you will provide 
credentials so that will not affect the schools or the districts.  Section 2 you mentioned 
screening and professional development as the cost, what about paragraph 2 and 4 on page 
2.  The school board may contract and employ…It says may so they don’t have to. 
 
Russ Ziegler: Schools currently contract with outside agencies at times.  Such as 
occupational or speech therapy.  It could be a cost issue if the child qualifies for special 
education.  Then that cost could possibly be covered and would be a cost on the district.  
Under paragraph 4 in section 2 where every student would have to receive instruction 
whether they so choose.   
 
Chairman Owens:   Then the training I already figured out the 1 hour was a $1 million.  You 
confirmed my math.  Is there any further questions?  Seeing none.  Anyone else here in 
neutral position? 
 
Tracy Klein, Student Services Director, Morton-Sioux Special Education Unit: (See 
Attachment 7)   I have changed my position to neutral on HB 1461.  (14:40-20:30) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions?  
 
Rep. Longmuir:  You heard the testimony that schools avoid the word dyslexia, is that what 
you see? 
 
Tracy Klein:  In the staff I work with if we talk about dyslexia we talk about it as a reading 
disability and what is the issue we need to try to remediate.  Is it decoding, processing or 
comprehension.   It is a reading associated disability what are we going to do for intervention. 
21:00 – 21:30 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson: You say both the assessment process and reading difficulties 
associated with dyslexia are encompassed in the code of Federal Regulations.  What does 
that mean?  Evaluation is one thing but does the code provide for specialized education for 
dyslexia or recommendation or requirement? 21:40 -  22:20. 
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Tracy Klein:   In the regulations dyslexia is specifically listed as one of the reading disability 
areas.   Just as with any area of need there is a process that assesses that area. You would 
first need parental consent.  Then you do a profile, that would lead to a broader assessment 
tool.  Then within that test there would be some standardized scores to compare with from 
across the nation.  Then you could find where they come up to.  If the scores are low then 
we go on further to do more diagnostic testing so we can identify the area and can develop 
and Individual education plan to get at the problem. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   So the code does not prescribe any special education for these 
individual assessments? 
 
Tracy Klein:  No, as soon as you pick one curriculum or one approach you are then 
discarding the broader issue of the problem you are trying to resolve.  One size does not fit 
all.  end 25:20 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  In your experience is there a lot of children that are not identified and 
helped?   
 
Tracy Klein:  Yes as not identified as having dyslexia but are identified as having a reading 
disability.  
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:   It is clear there is an issue.  Help us understand about children 
that have above average intelligence who may not need an IEP.  How could this fit into just 
regular education relating to 504 services and also just a credential.  A credential could be 
helpful to provide reading specialty for dyslexic students apart from IEP’s.  25:50-26:55 
 
Tracy Klein:  If we are screening all kids before the 2nd grade.  That is a primary function we 
are going to identify those kids that have some kind of reading difficulty which may not be 
dyslexia.  We pretty much do that already with our testing.   The problem is getting at the 
specific of dyslexia.  It impacts general Ed by they need to be trained on the Orton-
Guillingham methodology that is being promoted by this bill.  27:00-28:00 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Would that be helped by providing a code within DPI so they could 
provide that, the credential? 
 
Tracy Klein:  No, because I want to represent all kids that have needs.  Unless we can write 
a century code for each different disability it wouldn’t work.  My biggest apprehension on of 
this bill is we are beginning to write individual codes for individual needs and individual 
disability areas.  I fully support we need to have more training and be better equipped to help 
the dyslexic students. U of Mary does have 5 different reading classes for training for reading 
disabilities.    end 30:10 
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall:  Who has determined dyslexia is primarily a reading disorder 
because as one who is dyslexic, it is more than just reading.   It is more remembering certain 
things.  
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Tracy Klein:  Yes there are all different varieties of processing disorders.  Dyslexia falls 
under a learning disability and it could be a disability in the area of reading or math.  When I 
am talking about Federal codes that is where dyslexia fits.   
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall:  So it is not just reading?  
 
Tracy Klein:  Yes it can be different areas.  Reading has the higher incidence than the other 
areas.  We need to move away from remediation and start looking at accommodation 
because we hear about low self-esteem.  We need to help them find their strengths as well.   
end 33:00 
 
Chairman Owens:  It was mentioned about existing testing of the children early on.  To what 
end does it get you close to reading problems or dyslexia problems? 
  
Tracy Klein:    It is fairly broad based so it looks at all academic areas.  They map problems 
and strengths and weaknesses.  Most districts are doing progress monitoring.  We want to 
get to the problem early to get the help the student needs.  34:45 
 
Chairman Owens:   
With credentialing under Every Child Succeeds reading specialist doesn’t’ have to be 
credentialed anymore?  If you are an elementary teacher,  you qualify to teach reading which 
surprises be.  I haven’t seen that an elementary teacher has been trained to identify the 
specific problems and know what to do about these problems. Do you see this as a problem?  
We are getting away from Title 1 trained teachers. 
 
Tracy Klein:  Yes.  The reason why we are moving away from those, is because we are 
functioning with vacancies.  It is better to have someone that is generally trained and give 
them addition al training on the job then have no one there.  36:30 
 
Chairman Owens:  I understand the shortage of staff.  Any questions?    Any other neutral 
testimony?  Seeing none.  Closed  the hearing. 
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Chairman Owen:  Opened the hearing on HB 1461. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Explained the amendment.  After talking with Kirsten Baesler DPI 
want to leave in all the screening for dyslexia.   (Attachment 1) 
 
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  On page 3 line 26 would it be possible to add “trained teacher employed 
or contracted”.  I went back and talked to our superintendent and they contract with Haley’s 
Hope for some of their help.  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  Is there any other programs where the school is contracting out on 
autism?   Is it the school fiscal responsibility to be contracting out?  
 
Rep. Longmuir:  We contracted out a lot of services.  Especially the special education 
services simply because most school districts can’t afford to high those specialists.  
  
Rep. Hoverson:  I love everything about this bill, but at the end where it says “if public school 
personnel identify a student as having dyslexia a trained teacher employed by the school 
shall provide”.   Are we saying that they have to?  I am not understanding why there was no 
fiscal note with this then?  I wonder if we are asking the school to do this and we don’t have 
any idea this would cost.  
  
Chairman Owens: Yes, it is an unfunded mandate.   
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Rep. Denton Zubke:  That would be my concern is the unfunded mandate in line 26.  I am 
assuming even if the REA’s have the staff to service the schools they would still charge for 
them. 
  
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: I wonder if there shouldn’t be a date put in here 
and it is known it cannot be implemented tomorrow. 
  
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  We did talk about that this is ongoing and we are lacking this 
training.  As a result of that first hearing Dickinson State University is going to start a training 
program.  
UND is also trying to get this training started.  The amount of time is the issue. 
  
Rep. Andrew Marschall:   If we do have children with dyslexia they may already be in some 
kind of a program already, this may help to get the correct help to aid them with their 
problems?   It will be hard to ascertain a fiscal note. 
 
Rep.  Denton Zubke:  Does anyone know what it costs to have a child go to Inspiring Minds 
for a month?   
  
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  It is a lot.   
 
Rep. Denton Zubke:  Say after the testing we find 15 children are going to have some kind 
of intervention services.  Couldn’t that be quite expensive?  
   
Chairman Owens:  Yes. Originally the amendment was designed to take out the fiscal note 
and that sentence put it back in unless you change “shall” to “may”. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg: It is expensive but not as expensive as not giving them the training.  
They will have to spend a lot more time to teach the student and not knowing how.  
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I would think dyslexia is a disability therefore it needs to be 
accommodated.  
  
Chairman Owens:  I would remind you of the special Education that testified that this is 
basically covered under Special Ed which would require an Individual Education Plan(IEP) 
once you are identified. 
  
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  The problem is it is not identified. 
  
Rep. Mary Johnson:  I think the success of this program will be both good and bad.  It is 
sad to see we missed so many dyslexic children and we will see the success of this if we 
pass this bill.  Maybe the state will start funding it.  
 
Chairman Owens:  If it goes to the floor and passes it still will have to make it through the 
Senate.  
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Should we take the word “shall” out of line 26 and put “may”. 
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Chairman Owens:  We would need a motion to have a motion to adopt the amendment 
before we can change it.  To me the most important thing here is each public school shall 
offer… and there is no start date.  This won’t go into effect until August 1.  They have until 
then to get it do.  If we believe it will be identified in special Ed we wouldn’t have to worry 
about the “shall” to “may”. 
  
Representative Denton Zubke:  Didn’t we say to have an IEP they had to be severe enough 
and a lot of them weren’t.   18:50 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  That is where the screening comes into play because they are 
bright and they know how to provide the teacher wants and that is why they are missed. 
  
Rep. Denton Zubke:  I understand that and he was talking about the Federal register, the 
IEP’s and how they qualify for that through the Federal government.  
 
Chairman Owens:  I am just talking about how Special Ed is paid for in the formula and how 
that is identified. 
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  My concern with this is this will be in the special Ed, allowing for the 
testing and I am fine with this and if every school district will have to provide training this 
could be quite expensive and it may fall back on the schools.  
  
Chairman Owens:  I so think that Special Ed teachers know about dyslexia and have at 
least some knowledge on it. 
  
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  I think August 1st would be a great start date so we wouldn’t have to do 
anything. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  When do they normally do teacher professional development?  
 
Chairman Owens:  From my understanding it is done at various times throughout the year.  
They do have days to hours so they can do 4 hours sometimes.  
 
Rep. Longmuir:   An example is in some school districts they do every Wednesday afternoon 
is an early dismissal and it gives a 2 hour in service for the teachers throughout the whole 
year.  There is also 2 days of training before the start of school.  It is good to have the flexibility 
to do that. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  This bill will not get passed in the senate as is we will have some 
amendments.  
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I would move the amendment to HB 1461 on page 2 line 22 After 
school district, strike “must” add “may” and  to insert in line 26 “employed or contracted by 
the school” strike the word “shall” and add the word “may”  provide dyslexia intervention 
services to the student.” 
 
Rep. Zubke:  Seconded.  
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Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion?    
 
Rep.  Pyle:  I will support the amendments.  I think this type of teaching might be a great way 
for every learner.  We also offer eye testing every year and I am not sure if that is mandated.  
I am excited about the screening part, let’s catch it first.  
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:   If the children come from a socioeconomic background that can’t 
afford to do anything even if they are screened they will fall through the cracks.  
 
 
Chairman Owens:  That is why it is good with the Special Ed part of this because of the IEP 
it would help them.  
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  We need to look at this carefully.  On line 4 and 
lines 23-28.  This is under the screening portion, if I am understanding it this is beyond the 
screening portion and putting in the service.  Which is redundant when you go to page 3 and 
look at training teachers, administrators and ancillary interventions.  I think that should not 
be under the screening item.  It should only be on page 3.  One is screening and one is 
training.  We really need to look at that. 30:00  
 
Chairman Owens:  But both of them refer to providing dyslexia intervention services to the 
student.   
  
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I will explain my amendment again.  I would move the amendment 
to HB 1461 to remove on page 2 section 2 lines 22-28 and renumber accordingly and to 
insert in line 26 “employed or contracted by the school” strike the word “shall” and add the 
word “may” provide dyslexia intervention services to the student”  and removing in Page 2 
section 2 lines 23-28 and renumber accordingly.  
 
Rep. Zubke:  Seconded.   
 
Chairman Owens:  We have the same motion and second.  Any further discussion?   Seeing 
none. 
 
Voice vote:  Motion carried to amend HB 1461. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  The second grade on page 2 line 11.  Is that the end point are we 
going to be identifiable by second grade.  Is that long enough and if it shows up in fourth 
grade what do they do?  Do we want by or through the second grade?     33:30 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  It is through the second grade. 
 
Chairman Owens:  We have the amended bill before us what are your wishes? 
 
Rep. Pyle:  I make a motion for a Do Pass HB 1461 as amended. 
 
Rep. Marschall:  Seconded. 
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Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion?   Seeing none.  The clerk will call the roll for a 
Do pass as amended for HB 1461.  
 
Roll call vote taken:  Yes    13   No     0   Absent 1.   Motion carried. 
 
Rep. Pyle:  Will carry the bill.   
 
Hearing closed.  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1461 

Page 2, line 10, after "shall" insert "offer to" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "each" with "any" 

Page 2, line 11, replace the first "Q.y" with "through" 

Page 2, line 11, after the underscored period insert "A parent or legal guardian of a student may 
refuse a dyslexia screening offered by the school." 

Page 2, line 16, remove ", such as the" 

Page 2, line 17, remove "institute for multi-sensory education's comprehensive 
Orton-Gillingham training" 

Page 2, line 22, remove " A  school district must provide a student identified as having dyslexia 
with education" 

Page 2, remove lines 23 through 27 

Page 2, line 28, remove "5." 

Page 3, line 1, replace "6." with "5." 

Page 3, line 7, after "staff' insert"- Intervention" 

Page 3, remove lines 8 through 20 

Page 3, line 21, remove "3." 

Page 3, line 23, after "schools" insert "regarding dyslexia identification and intervention. If 
public school personnel identify a student as having dyslexia, a trained teacher 
employed or contracted by the school may provide dyslexia intervention services to the 
student" 

Renumber accordingly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1461: Education Committee (Rep. Owens, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1461 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 2, line 10, after "shall" insert "offer to" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "each" with "any" 

Page 2, line 11, replace the first "�" with "through" 

Page 2, line 11, after the underscored period insert "A parent or legal guardian of a student 
may refuse a dyslexia screening offered by the school." 

Page 2, line 16, remove ", such as the" 

Page 2, line 17, remove "institute for multi-sensory education's comprehensive 
Orton-Gillingham training" 

Page 2, line 22, remove " A school district must provide a student identified as having 
dyslexia with education" 

Page 2, remove lines 23 through 27 

Page 2, line 28, remove "5." 

Page 3, line 1, replace "6." with "5." 

Page 3, line 7, after "staff' insert "- Intervention" 

Page 3, remove lines 8 through 20 

Page 3, line 21, remove "3." 

Page 3, line 23, after "schools" insert "regarding dyslexia identification and intervention. If 
public school personnel identify a student as having dyslexia, a trained teacher 
employed or contracted by the school may provide dyslexia intervention services to 
the student" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to dyslexia screenings and training for teachers and other staff; relating to 
credentials for dyslexia specialists; and to provide for a report to the legislative management. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att.#1-Strinden; Att. #2-Krueger; Att. #3-Baesler; Att. #4-Baesler; 
Att. #5-Bucholz; Att. #6-Robinson; Att. #7-R. Kane; Att. #8.-Kane; 
Att. #9-Huez; Att. #10- Att. #11-Leininger; Att. #12-Budd; Att. #13-
Kraljic; Att. #14-Norby-Jahner; Att. #15-Elijah; Att. #16-Peterson; 
Att. #17-Mosset; Att. #18-Dockter; Att. #19-Klein; Att. #20-
Dockter-Krueger; Att. #21-Pletan; Att. #22-Prussing; Att. #23-
Copas; Att. #24-Baxley. 

 
Chairman Schaible: We will come back to order and the clerk will take the roll. We will open 
the hearing for HB 1461. 
 
(0:01:04) Representative Michelle Strinden, Dist. 41 See Att. # 1: 
 
Senator Rust: We all know people – some pretty prominent people that have dyslexia and I 
understand what a barrier it must be to reading. You have each public school shall and I was 
wondering if you consider an appropriation to help schools get those people? The thing I 
hear most often from schools is you keep putting things on us – mandates for us to do – but 
you don’t provide the money for us to do it. I was wondering if you had considered an 
appropriation for this? 
 
Michelle Strinden: Yes, one of the concerns that was brought up as well in the House 
committee, was that very question. One of the things when visiting with Department of Public 
Instruction Superintendent Baseler, the method of providing a specialist’s credential would 
be similar to providing that credential that would – I’m a school counselor by training and that 
was training that I obtained individually on my own behalf because that was my interest area. 
It didn’t cost the state any money for me to go and get my credential. It could be, however, if 
it was needed and perhaps it could be funded federally for those schools that would need 
that specific specialty credential. That would not come as a cost. As a part of the screening 
portion of the legislation, that is could simply be provided – I could take my phone right now 
and print off at your computer the screening. It is a very basic screening. It is something that 
would not cost a fee. It is just finding the proper screening for dyslexia that needs to be 
addressed. Professional Development (PD) – we have plenty of opportunities throughout our 
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state that we could bring in. Dyslexia specialists to educate our professionals. One of the 
things that I think is most concerning to me is that we do have reading – Title I – we have 
reading specialists, but what is interesting is they are not addressing these students properly. 
That is what this legislation needs to help and assist with.  
 
Senator Oban: I want to start the I completely admire your goal of trying to improve literacy 
across the state. I think all of us can agree that is a worthy goal and that unfortunately it is 
harder to do than we think it is. I appreciate that you are trying address that. My question was 
a little bit on singling out dyslexia as the only disability that we are going to focus on in making 
these requirements. There are many other disabilities that can affect a child’s ability to be 
literate especially by that second grade level. Why limit it to dyslexia? You mentioned that 
there are many screenings you can print off your phone, this doesn’t address what is the 
proper screening.  
 
Michelle Strinden: No, it doesn’t and in the original legislation, I actually had more specific 
language within the bill. That has been amended out by the House committee. I would 
encourage the committee to look at the language that was amended out that would be a bit 
more specific bring in some of the proper training and policy that might assist in that in the 
state. What was the first part of your question – I apologize –  
 
Senator Oban: That is okay. Why we are limiting this level of detail to dyslexia only? 
 
Michelle Strinden: Dyslexia is unique. I have some experts that can testify to the fact that 
dyslexia as a reading disability needs to be remediated in a proper way, however, much of 
the things we do with a dyslexic student – an average, normal reader or even a reader who 
is behind, could benefit from the very similar practices. These practices for instance, I did a 
lot of research in what was going on in Pennsylvania. They have a public school that has a 
reading academy. Their public schools using curriculum that was basically made for the 
dyslexic student population and they are applying it to the entire public school. Because what 
they found is they’re improving all of their readers by using these techniques. One of the 
things is that the problem in starting for instance whole language approach is not effective 
for a dyslexia student. Research has shown it is not as effective for all readers when they are 
beginning reading. What phonics is the approach that research is showing is very, very solid 
and helping all readers, but beyond that for dyslexic reader the phonetic awareness is below 
the phonics level and that is where we need to start with the dyslexic student. That is the 
fundamental difference for the dyslexic child as I have learned to understand it.  
 
(0:14:11) Pam Anderson, Dist. 41: I want to tell you about my grandson Charlie. When he 
was little, the two things he liked to do was being read to and by age of three, he could 
download games on my phone. He didn’t really care about baseball and throwing a football. 
He is outgoing gregarious little kid. Kindergarten was fine. He goes to a public school in 
Minneapolis. But, first grade was terrible. He wouldn’t get on the bus, he wouldn’t get off the 
bus, he wouldn’t go in the room, he spent a lot of time in the principal’s office and their lockers 
were those open lockers and he would just go sit in there until lunch time. Everyone was 
frustrated – the school, the parents. Working with the pediatrician, he had some testing done 
in February of his first grade. We found out he was dyslexic and not a little dyslexic. Well, it 
all made sense because the two things Charlie loved to was math and free time. Because he 
couldn’t read very well, they were taking him out of math and free time to go to class to read 
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that was never going to teach him how to read. He was six years old, he didn’t know what 
was going on. Once he started to describe it, he said, “the letters just swim on the page.” He 
had no idea that they should be in a straight line. Now we have a diagnosis so he goes to 
summer camp to Orton Gillingham summer camp and code camp – because he loves coding. 
And he says to me at the end of the summer – “Grandma Pam, I am dyslexic. I am going to 
figure out the code. The code to read.” I just wonder how many other Charlies there are out 
there that are acting out because no one has diagnosed them because they cannot read and 
it terribly frustrating. If one in five children are dyslexic, this bill will help us find the Charlies 
and help them find the code. I hope you vote for HB 1461.  
 
 (0:16:57) Pam Krueger: See Att. #2: 
 
(25:45) Senator Oban: You are currently teaching on the Bismarck State College campus 
for Dickinson State University in the teacher prep program – is that right? What if anything 
have you done to try to make sure that our teacher prep programs are adjusting to this 
information? Have you approached the State Board of Higher Education (SBHE) to try to 
make sure that – especially those elementary teachers are better trained in this? I always 
think about – we try to catch teachers after they are all done being trained rather than trying 
to make sure that our new teachers are coming in with more information when we have that. 
Have you approached the SBHE or teacher prep programs at all to try to make sure that this 
is also being addressed in those college courses? 
 
Pam Krueger: The good thing that has happened because of this bill is the conversation has 
started. The ND Association of Colleges for Teacher Education (NDACTE) – we are starting 
to talk about it in our meetings. I am not sure where that will go, but at least the conversation 
has started.  
 
Senator Fors: In your testimony, there are 33 bills in Texas dealing with dyslexia. Why 33? 
 
Pam Krueger: Yes, that is interesting. I was going to look and see why there are so many, 
but I think that sometimes – you know you get a bill and not too much happens. It takes a 
long time to get things moving, so I am not sure if has taken them that long – I didn’t look at 
the specific ones to see what they0 were about. They have done quite a bit there. They have 
a handbook on dyslexia for their districts and I think each step of the way, they have had 
different bills passed.  
 
(0:28:00) Kirsten Baesler, Superintendent, Department of Public Instruction: See Att. 
#3, See Att. #4: 
 
(0:30:09) Senator Oban: How does one go about getting a credential?  
 
Kirsten Baesler: When the legislature provides the authority to the ND Department of Public 
Instruction, we begin the process of writing administrative rules. Generally, what we do is 
bring together a group of people that experts in the areas like something like reading needs 
and the reading challenges, we write a first draft and send it out to the field for comments to 
the people that it will impacting most. We collect and solicit information and then we apply to 
approved by an administrative rules committee comprised of legislators. We have a public 
hearing to approve those administrative rules.  
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Senator Oban: I have a broad question because I think it has a big impact on this issue and 
issues that are completely related to the statewide vision. Do you think we do a good job as 
a state on early intervention generally? 
 
Kirsten Baesler: No, I don’t. I think we could do a better job.  
 
Senator Oban: Do you think that has a significant impact on the issues we see later in life 
with students? 
 
Kirsten Baesler: I absolutely do.  
 
Senator Oban: Do you think the best investment we could make is an early intervention to 
be sure that every child is more successful in school. 
 
Senator Rust: Who do you think needs this training? Who would need more advanced 
training? I am looking at certain grade levels – is it K12 – who should get this training and 
who would be the people that would need more advanced training? 
 
Kirsten Baesler: I will tell you that it is my practice to bring people smarter than me together 
to make those decisions. I certainly am not an expert – I have a teaching credential, I have 
master’s degree, I have gone through leadership training in education, but I am certainly not 
a special education – not a reading specialist, not a special education provider, and I think 
my first task as the state superintendent of public instruction is to bring those people together 
that have committed to know this issue inside and out to provide that guidance. That would 
be inclusive of any type of implementation and credentialing process that would take place. 
I do thing – reverting back to Senator Oban’s question, I think we do have pockets of the 
state that do an excellent job of early intervention. They do a fabulous, phenomenal – have 
a framework in place that is doing an incredible job. My job as a state superintendent with 
470+ buildings, 178 school disricts is to make sure that every student in every zip code has 
that same kind of framework. That is where we can do better and it will take the experts that 
have committed their life and their careers to this work to make a difference. 
 
Senator Rust: It would seem to me, the sooner the better. If you have an early childhood 
program, probably person, if you don’t, probably a kindergarten teacher and probably the 
other people that might be the reading stratigists that have that grade level because I guess 
we don’t want to be an eleventh grader and find out – Wow – that person has dyslexia. It 
might be a little bit late in the process. So, probably it has to be at that very, very early stages 
and yet, the bill says each public elementary school shall – okay, I didn’t know if it said all 
teachers – I forgot that.  
 
(0:34:04) Kirsten Baesler: Absolutely, the earlier the better. We have trained reading 
specialists and special education providers and skilled kindergarten, first, second grade 
teachers that are trained and receive PD on identifying a multitude reading challenges. This 
is an opportunity to really focus on that as well as making sure we are identifying dyslexia as 
well as a multitude of reading challenges that, again, I am not an expert in, but reading 
specialists and special education providers are. I would also say, that it is very important to 
engage our parents in what they are seeing at home and I think the link between parents and 
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school districts needs to be strengthened as well so they become true partners in the course 
that they are going to take for their students.  
 
Senator Rust: I am convinced that one’s school program – curriculum – can all be tied to 
money. If it is important, you need some money to pay for it, because if you don’t have the 
money to pay for it, it is not going to happen. That is pretty clear to me in managing a school 
that that is true. Do you know if something like this – could you use Title I funds on something 
like this? This might be a way to use some dollars or maybe some PD dollars to fund this.  
 
Kirsten Baesler: Yes, we have Title I dollars for students, we have Title II dollars for PD, we 
have a multitude of – the days of supplant vs. supplement are gone. The US Department of 
Education has said there is much, much more opportunity to braid funding from the federal 
level and the supplement vs. supplant – we are still working hard to get that communication 
out to our local school districts, but yes, there is a multitude of funds that can be used and 
should be used to esure that we are meeting the state’s goal of increased students that 
demonstrate reading proficiency by third grade. To your overall point, of everything that is 
important takes money and I would ask again the legislature to remember that as these six 
goals go forward that all of these goals – if we are truly going to move the needle on all of 
them, we are going to need to take support from the state. 
 
Senator Oban: You brought up parents at the end of the previous question from Senator 
Rust and I was a little concerned about the language we have in here about a parent of a 
student in here being able to refuse a screening. I know in education we are always balancing 
parental rights with as trained people, what we know is best for kids. What do we do in a 
situation where we think a kid needs that screening, but a parent refuses?  
 
Kirsten Baesler: You have hit on one of the biggest challenges that an educator faces in 
their everyday life. As an educator, you have been one, you know, you do everything you 
can to create that partnership and find a path forward that is in the best interests – the parent, 
the teacher and the school leader have that common goal in mind. They have different 
perspectives sometimes, but they both – everyone involved wants the best thing for that child 
and so, you nurture those skills, that relationship to find the path forward that is in the best 
interest of that child, but you do have to balance it. 
 
(0:38:16) Kari Bucholz, Exec Director, Haley’s Hope: See Att. #5: 
 
(0:51:16) Sarah Robinson, Associate Clinical Professor, Communication Sciences and 
Disorders, UND: See Att. #6 
 
(1:04:45) Senator Oban: Just for purposes of when you are anticipating opposition I think it 
is also important sometimes to think about that we vote on the words on the paper, so it is 
not the idea that we are opposed to, but it might be the way the bill is drafted, so it might take 
some work, but I bet there is nobody sitting at this table that doesn’t support making sure that 
every child with dyslexia is given the services that they need.  
 
Sarah Robinson: I didn’t mean to suggest that, I was thinking for people that may follow and 
present their opposition – I am sort of anticipating what they may say.  
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Senator Oban: But, that is an important one to include – just so you are aware. I would ask 
you the same question as I asked somebody else who is in higher ed. She was teaching 
teachers how to teach. Have you done anything to go to the SBHE or to UND specifically to 
try to incorporate these kind of things in teacher prep programs 
 
Sara Robinson: So, I do guest lecturing when asked in different courses and there are some 
who are more open to that. I have also – in October of this past year we had John Alexander 
who is a graduate of Harvard and runs the Grove Academy in the cities which is a specialized 
school for those with dyslexia. I invited everyone to come from the Teaching and Learning 
and they didn’t. 
 
Senator Oban: Can you give me your feedback on the dichotomy we are in of trying to 
address a lot of issues in schools that maybe aren’t being addressed at home. It might be a 
lack of training in both areas. If teachers are lacking training specifically in dyslexia, lord 
knows that a working family is going to be lacking in that. How can we better create that 
partnership when we are trying to address something that has such impacts on a child’s 
ability to learn? To do early screenings when we live in a state where people feel like - there 
is an attitude that what happens in a home is entirely up to a family – keep the government 
out of it. It is not the government’s job. When we could be catching this stuff a little bit earlier.  
 
Sarah Robinson: Based on my experience, I worked in the birth to three program for years 
which is – we go into people’s homes in that program. It is relationship building and I do think 
that then at that point where there are kids getting to school, I don’t think that it is a necessarily 
a lack of education of parents, but I just think that parents assume that the schools know 
better and I just think we need to build a better partnership I think because I don’t think it is 
that parents don’t know or want the best, but sometimes we defer to the schools because we 
think that they are the experts. I think we need to do a better job overall with teaching literacy.  
 
(1:08:20) Rachelel Kane, Parent: See Att. #7 
 
Senator Oban: Where did you take Ava where she got the screening that you were – that 
led to her diagnosis? 
 
Sarah Robinson: Through a friend we found Pam Krueger who happened to be a reading 
tutor and that is all I knew at the time. She was partnering up with Alicia at Inspiring Minds 
and so that where we did that. 
 
Senator Oban: Can you tell us a little bit about what that screening was like? 
 
Sarah Robinson: Yes, for Ava, I believe it was a two and a half hour testing period where 
they tested her – and Alicia can tell you more about that.  
 
Senator Rust: Where was Pam working at the time?  
 
Sarah Robinson: She works with Alicia at Inspiring Minds.  
 
Senator Rust: It wasn’t through the school – it was outside of school?  
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Sarah Robinson: Yes, that is correct.  
 
(1:14:42) Ava Kane: See Att. #8 
 
(1:17:04) Amber Huez, Parent: See Att. #9:  
 
(1:25:51) Chontelle Hansen, Director of the Reading Therapy Center, Inc: See Att. #10: 
 
Senator Rust: I am from the northwestern part of the state and as I hear the testimony, I 
hear the various places that can help you outside of the school. I am wondering a little bit 
about and I am envious about that – I am envious about some of the things that I hear some 
of the schools are doing. We suffer a little bit from being a more remote section of the county. 
I am wondering about the reading therapy center. I am wondering is this part of a school, part 
of an REA, is it nonprofit or profit organization? Can you tell me a little about the Reading 
Therapy Center? 
 
Chontelle Hansen: The Reading Therapy Center is a private organization. It is not affiliated 
with any school. 
 
Senator Rust: For profit – nonprofit? 
 
Chontelle Hansen: It is for profit, yes, I am the director of it. It is for profit right now. We work 
with area schools within Fargo and then just on the other side of Minnesota as well.  
 
Senator Rust: I wasn’t trying to be derogatory and asking about private or profit rather. I was 
just wondering about your funding. I am a recovering administrator and as such, I have a 
tendancy to focus a little bit on that because I truly believe that one’s educational objectives 
and goals are met by dollars and cents. I mean, if it is something that is important in your 
school, there is some dollars that are in the school’s budget for it.  
 
Chontelle Hansen: I should say that we are more towards probably a medical facility as well, 
so many of our backgrounds are speech and language pathology as well, so we work with 
students in speech and language. 
 
Senator Rust: Does any of that get paid through insurance then? 
 
Chontelle Hansen: Yes. For certain areas and for a certain part of it. Dyslexia in and of itself 
is under the blanket of speech and language pathology as well. Not saying that all of our 
students are covered under medical insurance – that is not the case, however, some of our 
students have more than just what we would call some classic dyslexia that there are more 
things wrapped around within it.  
 
(1:34:12) Nicole Leininger, parent: See Att. #11: 
 
(1:56:32) Alysia Budd, Pediatric Occupational Therapist: See Att. #12: 
 
Steven Kraljic, Parent: See Att. #13:  
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KrisAnn Norby-Jahner: See Att. #14: 
 
Lisa Elijah, Parent: See Att. #15:  
 
(2:17:56) Krisanna Peterson, Parent: See Att. #16: 
 
(2:21:08) Kerry Mosset, Parent, 3rd Grade Teacher: See Att. #17: 
 
Senator Oban: Why do you think a teacher would be so afraid to approach a parent and tell 
them that I think your child might have dyslexia? 
 
Kerry Mosset: I don’t know. I am so confused on the whole thing. Even after I am still 
muddling my own path. I don’t know how to answer that question.  
 
Senator Oban: I find it curious – everybody that has gotten up has made that statement.  
 
Kerry Mosset: I don’t know if it is just because as a whole there is such a whole big 
misunderstanding of what it is and if – honestly, I don’t know how to answer that question.  
 
Senator Oban: Because I don’t get it either. It doesn’t sound any scarier to me than – you 
know. When you were describing this, I noticed that the bill does not include adding dyslexia 
as a student – specifically dyslexia and again that is my problem with the language in the bill 
– the intent of the bill. But I think it is missing pieces and I don’t know that it was a 
comprehensive – there were specific things detailed in the way it was introduced, but that is 
not my complaint. It is that maybe that this has been as thorough as it needs to be to make 
sure we do this right. You pointing out that, led me to go and look at the definitions that we 
list for special ed – make sure I say it right – student with a disability. It is not listed and I think 
it should be if this is where we are going, then I think it needs to be added to that list.  
 
(2:29:30) Jennifer Dockter, Parent: See Att. #18: 
 
(2:32:49) Tracy Klein, Director, Morton-Sioux Special Education Unit: See Att. #19: 
 
Chairman Schaible: What do we tell the parents with the process we have in place – 
dyslexia is definable and it is something that you can do something about. Then we have 
misdiagnosis of what we have had and kids that have gone through the system without being 
placed in the direction they needed to go. Whether it is parents, schools teachers have failed 
these kids – what do we say to that about how we are not making improvements to this? 
 
Tracy Klein: I believe there are symptoms and exceptionalities are identified early. They are 
misclassified, they are identified as a reading disability which is accurate, it is the intervention 
that needs to be adjusted accordingly. In my unit and in my districts, when there is a reading 
disability we don’t ascribe to one approach fits all. If we are seeing symptoms of decoding or 
symptoms of dyslexia, then we try to find the research based intervention that matches that 
need. What I would tell them is it is accounted for and they need to continue to promote the 
need for specific intervention within that reading disability.  
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Chairman Schaible: But even if we would offer the dyslexia testing, which seems it is not 
the – initially not the full blown one, but the screening, is that not that pervasive that we need 
to do. Even with that, it could correctly diagnosis a student with that. Wouldn’t that be a big 
help alone? 
 
Tracy Klein: Yes it would help direct what type of intervention. 
 
Chairman Schaible: That what it seems like – we are misdiagnosing these students that are 
not getting the help they need, but if we correctly diagnose that, it seems to me, we would 
get them on track much faster and much more productive.  
 
Tracy Klein: If – I am going to go back to my example again – if there are certain 
symptomology – whether you call it green – white – or blue – that symptomology addresses 
what direction your intervention should go. In this case, you are calling dyslexia that 
symptomology should prescribe what direction your intervention should go.  
 
Chairman Schaible: To Senator Oban’s question earlier, that we are picking out one caveat 
of educational trouble that these students are having and maybe we need to broad that, but 
even if you used just this one and if the information of 20% of our kids are having this, doing 
that alone would be of great help for those students at least. Would it not? 
 
Tracy Klein: You are assuming that the students aren’t already identified as having reading 
difficulty. As one of the prior practitioners mentioned, they are being identified as having 
reading difficulties early on though kindergarten readiness, AIMS Web, NWEA. The piece 
that is lacking is the education piece on appropriate interventions. Rather than investing your 
time in the screening and some of the other components, I would ask that we invest time in 
a broader based reading curriculum that supports all readers including kids with decoding, 
comprehension, dyslexia, etc. The ten components that are the final page – that can apply 
to all reading curriculum or all reading interventions. My caution is not to too narrowly focus 
on one intervention or one categorization under the reading disabilities.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I get that part on that, but it seems to me like – you know – we want to 
get them all – we want to screen them all regardless which abnormality that this student has. 
So we want to screen for all of that and if there’s a magic screening out there that exists, I 
agree, but by making this screening available doesn’t seem that it would be that onerous to 
special ed districts or schools.  
 
Tracy Klien: I agree if it is incorporated to screens that are already taking place and there 
are plenty of those that are going on in regards to school readiness – academic readiness, 
reading, math. So if it is a subcomponent of a broader screening, that would make sense to 
me.  
 
Deanna Dockter Krueger, Reading Specialist, Bismarck Public Schools: See Att. #20:  
 
Tina Pletan, Bismarck Public Schools Literacy Staff Developer: See Att. #21: 
 
Jaylia Prussing, ND Association of Colleges for Teacher Education (NDACTE): See 
Att. #22: 
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(2:46:25) Amiee Copas, Exec. Director, ND Council of School Leaders (NDCEL): See 
Att. #23:  
 
Alexis Baxley, Exec. Director, ND School Boards Association: See Att. #24:  
 
Senator Rust: Mr. Chairman, we have about 2 to 3 minutes to get to the floor session.  
 
Chairman Schaible: We will reopen the hearing after the floor session this afternoon in this 
room.  
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Chairman Schaible: We will continue with our hearing on HB 1461. We are in the opposition 
testimony part of the hearing. Is there any more testimony in opposition to the bill? Are there 
any other questions for Amiee Copas? 
 
Senator Rust: You testified about two thirds of the way through your earlier testimony, you 
started listing a plethora of specialized things that might be in the special ed. law or other 
places. You obviously see – I know you empathize with the people that were here – I know 
that we sympathize with the people that were here. I apologize to the people who haven’t 
been in a school that may not have identified someone as being dyslexic, but at the same 
time, you list a whole plethora of things – could you see anyone of those coming in and asking 
for similar legislation? 
 
Amiee Copas, Exec. Director, ND Council of School Administrators: I could see every 
one of them coming in; and I only listed for you the thirteen major categories of specific 
learning disabilities as recognized by the federal government. There are multitude of 
subcategories underneath that. I most certainly think they could which is exactly why I made 
the recommendation of – if we feel we are not addressing early intervention of reading 
disabilities well enough, then perhaps, we need to look at a taskforce for what we are doing, 
where the gaps are, where the gaps exist, are they in every school, is it in relation to school 
size. Identify the problem before we attempt to propose what the adequate solution would 
be.  
 
Senator Rust: My next question was exactly that – you addressed it. I am not a real fan a 
lot of time of studies, a lot of times, a study is a nice way to kill a bill without – you know – 
watching it jerk on the floor or something, you know, but I think you are right. Maybe a task 
force seems to be something beyond a study. Maybe that is what we need to do. Thank you. 
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Amiee Copas: Which is exactly why I referenced SB 2250 where it talks about the 
Coordination Council, as a member of that, at least as the bill stands in its current ideration, 
there is a special ed. director on that – that could be just that person to trigger such a 
taskforce, perhaps, and then look to get the right people together – or it could be State 
Superintendent Baesler to do a similar type of thing. She is wonderful at pulling good people 
together and running taskforces and trying to identify what the problems are so we can come 
up with recommendations of how to fill gaps.  
 
Senator Oban: Moving this to a taskforce, and we agree that we want to do this right, I think 
that is probably the best move, however, it does highlight one of the downfalls in our system 
that we won’t be able to try to address it in law if we felt it was necessary to address in law 
for another two years. Is there anything that comes to mind in the meantime that we could 
try to do to make sure we are not having more kids slip through the cracks. It is clear that 
there are.  
 
Amiee Copas: Most certainly there are. I think that kids slipping through the cracks are due 
to a multitude of reasons. Some kiddos go to some of our private institutions that don’t have 
all of the resources and help to receive the adequate screenings and the right kinds of 
interventions. Some of our kiddos truly do present themselves – I will speak for Russ, where 
he would say that his son didn’t necessarily present himself as showing as much of a 
disability, it took more uncovering. He was really good at hiding it. But, it is through some of 
those earlier assessments that we are doing in our schools more often. One of the things 
that is in law right now as we talk about the mandated interim assessments each year. One 
of the most effective ones that we have out there is called the STARS assessment. That one 
receives almost instant feedback to the educator showing them where the gaps are in 
application to the standards that we are learning. Rather than some of our other assessments 
where we assess a kid and we don’t hear about it for six-eight months, these are immediate 
pieces where they get feedback giving glaring advice about this student is off track in reading, 
so then we can do that further assessment. Those things are happening. In some other areas, 
it is NWEA MAP (Northwest Evaluation Association Measures of Academic Progress), in 
kindergarten, we have DIBELS (Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills) 
Assessments, we have assessments going on all the time. Perhaps it is in the piece of the 
right resources and that is where I think the gaps could be. Do I know if all of our small 
schools have all the resources they need on hand to do all the appropriate interventions or 
do they even know who to ask for – I don’t have the answer for that. I would need to 
investigate that and find out if that is a gap. Is the gap that we don’t have enough dyslexia 
training in the early times as our special ed. folks are going through, I would tell you that in 
the House side, I was emailing with the University of Mary professor Jayla Pressing, she runs 
the special education master of education out at the University of Mary and we were talking 
about in their newly created master of education in specific learning disabilities, they have 
integrated five different courses that  have intense training on multitudes of ways to address 
dyslexia. That is a master’s degree that is only two years old. So, we have a number of 
practitioners that don’t necessarily have that same level of training. Identifying were the gaps 
exist, what exactly are they and how do we intervene rather than a blanket intervention that 
we are not really sure would address the need at all.  
 
Senator Oban: I will apologize before if this doesn’t turn into a question, but, listening to the 
testimony, especially from Alicia, who said she is a pediatric occupational therapist, I am 
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always in my mind asking myself – is this a medical thing or is it an educational thing? We 
keep expecting educators to deal with things that might require a medical – then she talked 
about developmental dyslexia, and it is proven to be genetic and it a neurological difference 
– I am concerned that this is not something that teachers can do even with pretty significant 
training.  
 
Amiee Copas: You are absolutely right. If you look to that meta-analysis, that I handed you, 
that had the trees on the front (attachment # 23, pp,6-10), - one of the things that those 
researchers found was even looking at the OG (Orton Gillingham) method – approach that 
is used at Inspiring Minds as their premiere way of addressing this is not actually shown to 
be completely effective for students with dyslexia. It is a singular faceted approach and what 
the meta-analysis shows it that that particular learning disability takes a multifaceted 
approach. You are right, it is a significant amount of training and to assume that our general 
education classroom teacher could do this is an enormous request. It is an enormous request 
for a general special education person. Something that they can get to – a person like Tracy 
Klein that has his master’s and is well versed – absolutely – some of our newer folks would 
probably need additional training as new things develop. I would tell you that probably ten 
years ago when Russ’ son was not diagnosed early enough – interventions and diagnosis’ 
are far better today than they were ten years ago. I would venture to say that they will be fair 
better five years from now than they are right now. That is advancement in education. I would 
always just caution how deep in the weeds we want to intervene at the Century Code level. 
I think it is worthy of having this conversation about the bill because – definitely, we are 
uncovering there is a problem, but what is the right approach to do the right thing for the kid? 
If the right approach in the estimation of this committee, then I as I have said in multiple 
venues – I trust you. You guys spend a ton of time studying and trying to do the best thing 
for North Dakotans. But, if you think that a different approach might be the approach that 
some of us from the school side have suggested, perhaps a taskforce, then maybe we could 
investigate that approach.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other questions? 
 
Senator Marcellais: Do you think that some of the medical staff should be on this taskforce 
– being it is a medical issue also? 
 
Amiee Copas: I would not rule out that option. If you recall, last session, and maybe you 
weren’t very integrated into that bill, we were just having discussions about including autism 
as being something that is reimbursable through Blue Cross/Blue Shield. We couldn’t even 
get that piece through – for a lot of the same reasons that we are talking about today. As we 
continue to talk about the gaps in our school system, we talk about community and wrap-
around services and what loco parentis and what should our schools do and our schools not 
be doing. It gets to the whole heart of our statewide vision and all these things. What can we 
do realistically? To do a taskforce, on something like this where Alicia’s testimony was 
indicating all of those medical needs – to assume that some of our general instructors would 
have that data – I think would be unwise, I think it would be a wise recommendation to have 
folks with that kind of medical background to be a part of that. Just as we have been 
communicating with DHS extensively about seclusion and restraint and about all these other 
things. Breaking down these silos and talking about what is best for kids is the best possible 
thing we could do. 
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Senator Marcellais: Do you know if all the schools have nurses or don’t they? 
 
Amiee Copas: Not all do. We are seeing more and more getting there – for example, Kindred 
picked up a school nurse a few years ago and they did it at their own fruition through what 
started out be a matching grant. Now, it has become such a part of that community – having 
that nurse there – the community would rather lay over train tracks than see that nurse go. It 
is just getting us over some of those humps and often times we say that they are just fiscal, 
but they are bigger than that. It is also getting those folks getting to want to work within our 
school systems. It is a different environment for a nurse to leave the clinical setting and enter 
the educational setting. No, not everywhere. More and more, but not everywhere. 
 
Senator Fors: This is probably more a statement than anything, but, I think you are right, we 
can’t make laws because in this testimony, Texas has 33 bills on dyslexia, according to the 
testimony – whether that is right or wrong, I do not know. But, we are on a long, long path 
here in my opinion.  
 
Amiee Copas: I would agree. I do think that a legislative push to get us to keep working on 
these things is never a bad thing. I just worry a little bit when we want to get into the minutia 
of all these pieces in Century Code. Do we lose the intent of doing best by the student by 
then having that narrow band of what we are going to do because you know what happens 
when it gets to Code, that we will do the minimum intent of the law and that is unfortunate, 
too?  
 
Chairman Schaible: Seeing no other questions, thank you. Is there any other testimony in 
opposition to the bill? I don’t see any state agency testimony. With that, we will close the 
hearing on HB 1461.  
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Chairman Schaible: See Att. #1 & #2. Committee, I have an amendment for HB 1461 that 
I am passing around – both the plain version as well as the Christmas tree version. The 
amendment removes the specific reference in the statue to a specific intervention and a 
specific learning problem. The intent was to still provide the students with the help that is 
needed, but not to specifically identify specifically dyslexia or any other certain cause of 
special need. There is one thing that we made sure that we added in the amendment – that 
a teacher or a parent may request a reading screening. I think that provides a little more teeth 
in what we are doing. Is there any other discussion? 
 
Senator Rust: I move a Do Pass on amendment 19.0557.06001.  
 
Senator Marcellais: Second. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 6 Yeas; 1 Nay; 0 Absent. 
 
Amendment 19.0557.06001 is adopted.  
 
Chairman Schaible: We have before us amended bill HB 1461. Discussion? 
 
Senator Rust: I move a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1461. 
 
Senator Oban: Second. 
 
Senator Rust: As we listened to the testimony, you couldn’t help but get emotional as well 
as the people who presented because as they talked about their children and having gone 
through school and the issues that they had, I do think that this bill will raise more awareness 
of the issues. Obviously, it probably needs to raised.  
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Chairman Schaible: Other discussion? Seeing no other discussion, clerk take the roll. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 5 Yeas; 2 Nays; 0 Absent. 
 
Senator Schaible will carry the bill.  
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Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "a" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "sections" with "section" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "chapters" with "chapter" 

Page 1, line 1, remove "and 15.1-34" 
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Page 1, line 2, remove "and training for teachers and other staff' 

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "and" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "dyslexia" with "reading" 

Page 1, line 4, remove "; and to provide for a report to the legislative management" 

Page 2, line 4, replace "dyslexia" with "reading" 

Page 2, remove lines 9 through 31 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 6 with: 

"Reading screening. 

1.:. Each public elementary school shall include in the developing and 
processing of assessments and screening of reading, the core 
components of phonetic awareness, decoding, and spelling. The screening 
also must be offered if requested by a parent, legal guardian, or teacher. 

2. The board of a school district may contract with, employ, and compensate 
reading specialists, credentialed by the superintendent of public instruction 
under section 15.1-02-16, to educate and train district teachers in 
appropriate reading screening methods, identification, and intervention. A 
reading specialist hired by the board of a school district must be trained in 
proven reading remediation strategies." 

Renumber accordingly 
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A bill relating to dyslexia screenings and trainings for teachers and other staff; to credentials 
for dyslexia specialists; and to provide for a report to the legislative management 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3 

 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: The Senate received HB 1461 and modified it.  There are 
amendments that were distributed and they are the .06003 version. (Attachment 1) There has been 
a lot of work done on this to move the bill forward.  There is a Christmas tree version (Attachment 2) 
and actual amendments.  Rep. Strinden was working on these along with Sen. Davison.  If we could 
review this, then we can move forward. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I worked with Sen. Davison on this along with discussion with Sen. Schaible 
about the Senate amendments.   I do understand the purpose of the Senate amendment as is 
described here.  In my amended version, the difference is in the description that adds the dyslexia 
pilot program, which I think is a wonderful opportunity to further study the original intent of the bill. 
This was basically three sections – developing a dyslexia specialist within the Department of Public 
Instruction.  In section two under reading screening we did add a difference in wording.  The Senate 
had come forward with the wording ‘reading specialist’ and what I offer for your consideration is to 
consider a dyslexia specialist or a specialist trained in dyslexia.  The reason for that change is that 
professionals that are trained in dyslexia can be from a variety of backgrounds.  When having the 
wording ‘reading specialists’ I worry that the impression is that only a teacher would be able to receive 
this type of training when many different specialties can receive the training in addition to occupational 
therapy or speech pathology.  
 
The pilot program Sen. Davison had found that was developed in Ohio comes in from their program. 
There are no school districts in North Dakota that are doing this program.  There are private agencies 
that are doing a wonderful job in remediation, but they are not within the public schools. 
 
Sen. Davison:  This pilot program is in a rough draft form.  There are a number of edits that need to 
happen but we didn’t want to go too far until we have had discussion with leadership in the Senate in 
regard to funding and there is strong potential for us to receive funding for it.  We have that opportunity 
on the Senate side for funding, but we want feedback on the draft that we are currently holding.  This 
is not the last draft (.06003), all questions are welcome after we adjourn today.  My suggestion would 
be to meet again with further amending.   The funding amount we are asking for is $250,000.  It isn’t 
in here yet but that is the amount we are asking for. 
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Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Any questions or comments? 
 
Sen. Schaible:  On page 3, subsection 2 - the board and school district may contract with the 
employee – can’t they do that now if they wanted to?  If they can do it anyway, why do we need it in 
law? 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I don’t disagree with your comment. 
 
Sen. Schaible:  I understand what we are trying to do and by putting it in law it might be a board, it 
might be a co-op, it could be an REA, it could be several opportunities.   I am just questioning that 
they may do it anyway.  Why would we restrict it? 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any other comments?  
 
Sen. Oban:  Sen. Davison brought up adding some dollars to this because that was my other note.  
These things will not happen for free or it will be done poorly. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional comments? 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I handed out one other paper (Attachment 3) which is just for your 
background knowledge as we contemplate the training involved in what a specialist would need to be 
working towards.  It is a structured literacy workshop that is going to be offered here in Bismarck.  
This is just one opportunity in the state that is offered for our specialists who would want to obtain this 
type of training. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional comments? If not, we can close the meeting with 
the homework to go over. 
 
Sen. Oban:  I would like to bring up one other thought I had in that we develop the K-12 coordinating 
council.  I think this is going to be a long-term discussion, which it should be.  This is a part of that 
and would be a good conversation for the coordinating council to be involved in.  This is a worthy 
project for them. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any further comments?  I would think our interim committees 
would want to hear it too, or a policy interim committee.   
 
We can do our homework and call another meeting this week.   We will close the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to dyslexia screenings and trainings for teachers and other staff; to credentials 
for dyslexia specialists; and to provide for a report to the legislative management 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 

 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  We have another version before us – it is the .06004 
version and Sen. Davison, you had that worked out? 
 
Sen. Davison:  On page 2, line 6, credentials for a specialist trained in dyslexia and we took 
out from a prior version in .06003 – there was a paragraph that said the board of school 
district may contract with employee specialist, etc. – and Sen. Schaible suggested to remove 
that and I agreed.  We just left number 1 in there.  We didn’t do anything differently.   
 
We changed some dates – on page 4, we changed the dates, you said 2024 and 2025 and 
we changed them to 2022 and 2023.   
 
To be eligible for the program, we added a school district, a regional education association 
or a special education unit and the biggest changes that we made is on the back in the blue 
section – Section 4 - and that would give us up to $250,000 from the ending fund balance in 
the 2017-2019 biennium. 
 
Sen. Schaible:   The reason for this is when I was talking to leadership about the money and 
where it should come from, they wanted it to come out of this biennium’s money and not to 
be into next years.  This language did not look correct, but I did check it and it is what we 
want. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  You are talking about the ending fund balance from 
DPI, correct?   Does anyone know how many fingers are in that ending fund balance right 
now?   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Sen. Schaible, is there anything that the 
appropriations bill for DPI or the formula that is using some of those funds.    
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Sen. Schaible:  There are a lot of moving parts on that.  My intent with the current version 
of this was I don’t care where it comes from as long as we get it.  I’m leaving it in their hands, 
to me it’s just a high priority.  I’m not sure of all the ‘wants’ out of what is left.  That’s where 
leadership told me they wanted it.   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Would it be a consideration leaving it in this bill and 
going through appropriations or putting it on SB 2265? 
 
Sen. Schaible:  I don’t mind where it goes; my intent was to make it a priority.  I was assured 
by the Senate Majority Leader that it doesn’t matter, it is going to be a priority. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I’m just thinking about the ease of getting it 
accomplished.   
 
Sen. Schaible:  I don’t know what is going to happen with negotiations with this bill or other 
bills, but my intent was that we are serious about this and think that it is the best way to go.  
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   Any further questions on changes we have seen on 
this version? 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I have a question for Supt. Baesler.  On line 18, credentials for 
specialists trained in dyslexia.  Are those in existence at this point and what the credentials 
may be? 
 
Kirsten Baesler:  No, we do not currently have an existing credential for specialists trained 
in dyslexia.  It would be very similar to the process we use to create the computer science 
cybersecurity credential that was just added to our authority this session as well.   
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I did think that with this cybersecurity, there were credentials. 
 
Kirsten Baesler:  This session we came to the legislature to ask for the authority.  Up until 
August 1, we will not have had the authority to create a computer or cybersecurity credential.  
We will go through the process of creating those.     
  
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I thought there was a news release that said they did exist.   
 
Kirsten Baesler:  The announcement of the news release was about the creation of our 
computer and cybersecurity standards.   
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  When we have a listing here for credentials for specialists trained 
in dyslexia, will that person actually have an educational background and be previously a 
credentialed teacher? 
 
Kirsten Baesler:  Correct.  The process for adding a credential is that we coordinate with 
the teacher licensing bureau of the Education Standards and Practices Board (ESPB).  So, 
then the ESPB license and we add credentials stacked on top, similar to a school counselor 
or library media specialist or a principal.   
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Sen. Davison:  Part of what we are trying to do and why we worded it this way is because 
many times there are people that are occupational therapists or other types of professionals 
outside of teaching that are able to get a credential.  That is why the wording is such that it 
is. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Also, speech pathology is also a field that is going to be 
spearheading a certificate.  Perhaps it would be offered at the University of North Dakota.  
Sen. Robinson is a Ph.D. there and she is in the process of developing a three-course 
offering that would allow for certification in dyslexia.  One class would be in an overview of 
dyslexia; the second would be the differential diagnosis piece of dyslexia as it relates to other 
reading disabilities and help in identifying the differences and the third course would be the 
treatment.    
  
Kirsten Baesler:  There are a number of people that work within our school systems that are 
not licensed by the ESPB board.  Speech language pathologists are one, occupational 
therapists are another.   They have their own licensing board.  School counselors often go 
through a bachelor’s degree of counseling and then they get their masters in school 
counseling services at which time we add a credential to it. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  But the school counselor does have to have some education. 
 
Kirsten Baesler:  Some of our school counselors do not have a bachelor’s degree or 
teaching license.  What they have is a bachelor’s degree in counseling services and then go 
on to get their master’s degree in school counseling. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  The state does not have a reading specialist credential and I think 
that when the broader category here isn’t included in credentialing.  The earlier Senate bill 
was talking about a reading specialist and not we have gotten to a subcomponent of students 
who struggle and need assistance in learning to read.   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Additional questions or any comments? 
 
Sen. Davison:  I didn’t have any comments on the credentialing.  I am concerned with a 
couple things we need to discuss within the bill yet. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  We have a concern about the reading specialist not 
being listed in the credentialing. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:     My concern was that that language be removed.  We have many 
reading specialists currently within our school systems and we are missing 20% of our 
students who are dyslexic.  They are receiving remediation; it is just not effective for 20% of 
our population.  The reason why that is is that the approach with the structured literacy 
programming or teaching that is Orton-Gillingham Methodology is the type of remediation 
that we need to provide this large group of people. 
 
In the public sectors we are remediating it quite well, not just in education.  Occupational 
therapists, speech pathologists and the like are getting trained in the Orton-Gillingham 
Methodology.  The way the services could be provided could be in different specialty areas. 
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Sen. Oban:  Why can’t we do both?  If dyslexia is one part of a broader reading, but not all 
of . . . 
 
Sen. Davison:  One of the reasons we changed this was this bill was focused on dyslexia.  
It is not focused on all readers, so when removing subsection 2 from page 3, there was no 
need to have a credential as a reading specialist in this bill.  There is a need to identify within 
the pilot project what a specialist trained in dyslexia is so that we can identify within that pilot 
project the direction that we are going specifically for dyslexia.   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Sen. Davison, are you opposed to adding reading 
specialist in this bill?  I’m looking at line 3 on page 1 – relating to reading screenings and 
continues on to line 3 – and a dyslexia screening pilot program.  I think as this bill passed out 
of our committees, reading was considered very important and on SB 2265 there is some 
funding related to that very topic.  You might want to put that back in there. 
 
Sen. Davison:  I am not opposed to a reading specialist, but we haven’t had discussion or a 
hearing on why there would need to be a credentialed reading specialist.  If you are referring 
to the reading core bill, that is a research based program that has very strict ways on how 
you run the program.  You don’t have to be credentialed to do that work. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  In HB 2265, there was an added amendment by Rep. Owens – it 
was section 1.   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: I know you had additional comments, Sen. Davison. 
 
Sen. Davison:  We don’t need to adopt this today.  We would like some feedback on page 
4, line 25, subsection 5, I think the Senate is leaning toward eliminating that section totally.  
That would be a consideration for our next meeting and will probably come back with an 
amendment on that.   
 
On number 6 on page 5, line 3, I need to change a date on that.   It should say July 1, 2021, 
not 2022.    
 
I believe the Senate is comfortable with all other aspects underneath Section 3. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  What is the first step before the cart doesn’t go before 
the horse here.  Is it having people trained, obviously some training, etc.? 
 
Sen. Davison:  Rep. Strinden provided training opportunity coming in August.  If there is no 
emergency clause on this, the staff at DPI won’t receive this until August 1.  They will need 
to create an RFP based on creating some rules and understandings.  They could probably 
have that out by the middle of September or October 1.  The grant probably wouldn’t be 
awarded until the middle of October.   The grantee could decide to do some assessments 
and you would have approximately six months to do some interventions about what they 
found from their assessments. 
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Rep. Michelle Strinden:  We did discuss adding language in addition to the report to 
legislative management.  Sen. Oban and Sen. Davison had mentioned this as well about 
adding a report back to the coordinating council.  That would be something we would be 
interested in as well.  
 
Sen. Davison:  On page 5, at the top on number 6, it does say that the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction will compile information and report to legislative management.  That 
information might not be as much as we want to based on the time frame, but she or he will 
have some data to report back.  The goal would be to continue this for two more years and 
have a good understanding after the 2022-2023 school year.   
 
Sen. Schaible:  Just because it isn’t listed here doesn’t mean they can’t do it.  I don’t think 
we have to put everything in there. 
 
Sen. Davison:  If we start to identify what we have found then we should take it to the K-12 
coordinating council. 
 
Sen. Oban:  We don’t have to but sometime legislative management is not the most 
appropriate place to take it.   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  The interim committees might want to know even 
though we don’t have it in writing. 
 
Sen. Davison: We want the coordinating council to be successful.  Every goal will be made 
to be as transparent in bringing things to that group as possible to understand how that group 
should evolve and where it is going to go. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Working up to the end all date, do you think $250,000 
is enough? 
 
Sen. Davison:   I think it is what we are comfortable with.  Is more money better?  Sure, but 
we’ll be able to develop what we want with this money. 
 
Sen. Schaible: To come in and say we need more is irresponsible.   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I’m just asking the question.  
 
Sen. Davison:  It is a good question.  There is no money that is going to be spent the first 
quarter of the biennium, so it is eighteen months for $250,000.   
 
Sen. Oban:  I would like to engage on the reading specialist issue.  There is a way to do both 
and to make sure we are not just laser focused on one thing, that certainly is an issue that 
deserves to be addressed.  We have a much larger issue that I think this has helped to move 
the ball forward and we shouldn’t be limiting it to just one specific disability but to the larger 
problem that we all know needs to be better assessed. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  That comes back to our discussion on another bill 
yesterday that it was a very important aspect to that other bill. 
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Rep. Michelle Strinden:  Just for clarification, as long as the word dyslexia is specific in the 
credential offering I would be fine with adding reading as well.   
 
Sen. Oban:  I think that message has been heard loud and clear. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:   Any other comments?  I can schedule another 
meeting – possibly Monday.  We’ll close the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to dyslexia screenings and training for teachers and other staff; to credentials 
for dyslexia students; and to provide for a report to the legislative management 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Call the conference committee to order with roll call 
taken.  We will be looking at a handout from Sen. Davison (.06005 version) 
 
Sen. Davison:  One of the bigger discussions we had after last week’s meeting was the 
credentialing part of it.  Rep. Strinden, Sen. Oban, NDCEL and myself had a conversation 
and at the end of the day in order to run our dyslexia screening pilot program we don’t need 
to change any credentialing or add any credentialing.  We can just let that happen organically 
depending on what the needs are.  When you eliminate any credentialing language from the 
bill it shortens it up quite a bit.   
 
On page 3 of the Christmas tree version, we left the reading screening in but that had been 
on a previous amendment to that where we took out the unnecessary language below that.   
 
On page 4 previously it was July 1, 2022, and we changed that to July 1, 2021.  The biggest 
thing is that we took out the credentialing piece of it.     
  
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Could you check that date again?  Which section were 
you in?  
 
Sen. Davison:  I was on page 4, line 25.       
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  That’s the report by the superintendent?  
 
Sen. Davison:  Previously it had been 2022. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I believe you also took out the long term sustainability 
plan for the program which would be item 5 and in Section 3 there was – under 1b – number 
4 that was taken out.  The credentialing is out. 
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Sen. Davison:  Where we changed the school districts to grantee, we added the REA’s. 
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Additional consideration that anyone has at this point? 
 
Sen. Davison:  We took out section 5 also from .06004.   
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  We had a discussion and on the current one, page 4, 
under 5, with who to report to and this one is to report to legislative management.  I think 
Sen. Oban had a comment on the last meeting and whether or not that is a consideration to 
report to legislative management or a different entity.  I’ll offer it up for discussion. 
 
Sen. Oban:  Over the course of the interim this discussion will be happening within the 
coordinating council and we had referenced the coordinating council. Either way, whether 
the recommendations of continuing something or to create a credential or something like 
that, whether that recommendation is coming from the coordinating council or directly from 
the Superintendent of Public Instruction would have to go to the legislators to introduce 
something anyway.    
 
Sen. Davison: The coordinating council is new and to throw all these things at it – some 
things will come to it organically.  If they are big issues and we are looking to expand 
statewide, then as we learn more about the dyslexia pilot program, that should be a place 
where there is some conversation about how to improve our reading. 
 
Rep. Strinden:   Could we talk a bit about the reading screening portion on page 3, Section 
1 currently?  I was able to talk with Chairman Schaible a bit about that but it is the portion of 
the bill that remains from the Senate amendments.   The pilot program is going to look at a 
dyslexia screener and we are adding the language to add an additional reading screening 
into the code.  Could you help me understand the background on that? 
 
Sen. Schaible:  This was original language that was in the bill and we were doing something 
for all schools at the time and looked at the compromise.  You have Section 2, which is the 
pilot program and it is going to be a specific area, REA, school district, etc.  Section 1 will 
cover the rest of the state in the interim.  You have teachers/parents who suspect a reading 
problem and this still gives them the authority to request a screening and allow that to help 
them.  
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  I believe that this did not have any negative 
component from DPI because it has been in the bill prior. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  I think the sentence structure on the reading screening is 
confusing.  It would get the point across better switched around.    
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Any comments? 
 
Sen. Schaible:  I don’t it would matter as to draft another amendment would take another 
day. 
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Sen. Oban:  I don’t disagree that the was that Rep. Hager read is more clear, but welcome 
to the world of Century Code. 
 
Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I’m curious about the wording on the funding.  It says appropriation 
for integrated formula payments – where is that coming from? 
 
Sen. Schaible:  The wording that it says here is coming out of turn back money from DPI 
and with my visits with appropriations and leadership, this is what they suggested.   I told 
them it was a priority and we were serious about this.  By taking their advice, that is the way 
it came out. 
 
Sen. Davison:  I would move that we would recede from Senate amendments and amend 
as follows with the .06005 version. 
 
Sen. Oban:  Seconded it.    
 
Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  A Roll Call Vote was taken:  Yes  6, No  0, Absent 
0.  A Do Pass on HB 1461 carries.   
 
House Carrier:  Rep. Strinden 
Senate Carrier:  Sen. Davison 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1461 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1459 of the House Journal 
and pages 1217 and 1218 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1461 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "two" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "chapters" with "chapter" 

Page 1, line 1, remove "and 15.1-34" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "dyslexia" with "reading" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "and training for teachers and other staff'' with "and a dyslexia screening 
pilot program" 

Page 1, remove line 3 

Page 1, line 4, remove "credentials for dyslexia specialists; and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "management" insert "; and to provide for an exemption" 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 24 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 6 

Page 2, replace lines 9 through 29 with: 

"Reading screening. 

Each public elementary school shall include in the developing and processing of 
assessments and screening of reading, the core components of phonetic awareness, 
decoding, and spelling. The screening also must be offered if requested by a parent, 
legal guardian, or teacher." 

Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 6 with: 

"SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 15.1-32 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Dyslexia screening - Pilot program - Report to legislative management -
Professional development. 

1.,. For purposes of this section: 

g_,_ "Dyslexia" means a specific learning disability that is neurological in 
origin and characterized by difficulties with accurate or fluent 
recognition of words and poor spelling and decoding abilities, 
independent of the individual's general intelligence level. 

b. "Specialist trained in dyslexia" means an individual who: 
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ill Has expertise providing training in phonological and phonemic 
awareness, sound and symbol relationships, alphabet 
knowledge, rapid naming skills, and encoding and decoding 
skills: 

@ Is fluent in the dyslexia intervention process: and 

Ql Has training in identifying dyslexia. 

2. Beginning with the 2019-20 school year and continuing through the 
2022-23 school year, the superintendent of public instruction shall 
establish and operate a pilot program to provide early screening and 
intervention services for children with risk factors for dyslexia, including low 
phonemic awareness. 

� To be eligible to participate in the program, a school district, regional 
education association, or special education unit must submit an application 
to the superintendent which: 

� Identifies a method of screening children for low phonemic awareness 
and other risk factors for dyslexia: 

b. Provides for the enrollment of children identified as having risk factors 
for dyslexia in a reading program staffed by specialists trained in 
dyslexia and multisensory structured language programs: and 

c. Includes a methodology for evaluating the effects of the reading 
program on the identified risk factors of the child. 

4. Each grantee selected to participate in the program shall: 

a. Provide low phonemic awareness and other dyslexia risk factor 
screenings for children under seven years of age through a reading 
program established under subsection 3: 

b. Provide reading intervention services to students identified as having 
dyslexia: 

c. Administer assessments, approved by the superintendent of public 
instruction, to determine the effectiveness of the program in improving 
the reading and learning skills of children enrolled in the program: and 

� Provide professional development on dyslexia identification and 
interventions to grant participants. 

5. The board of each participating grantee shall report annually to the 
superintendent of public instruction regarding the operation, results, and 
effectiveness of the pilot program in a manner prescribed by the 
superintendent. Before July 1, 2021, the superintendent of public 
instruction shall compile the information and report to the legislative 
management with a recommendation whether to continue the pilot 
program beyond the 2022-23 school year. 

SECTION 3. EXEMPTION - DYSLEXIA SCREENING PILOT PROGRAM. Up 
to $250,000 of the unexpended amount remaining from the appropriation for integrated 
formula payments, as authorized in subdivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 12 of the 2017 
Session Laws, is not subject to the provisions of section 54-44.1-11 at the end of the 
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2017-19 biennium, and may be continued into the 2019-21 biennium for the purpose of 
providing a dyslexia screening pilot program." 

Renumber accordingly 
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2019 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1461 as (re) engrossed 

House Education Committee 
Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments 

Date: 4/22/2019 
Roll Call Vote #: 1 

D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
� SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: Sen. K. Davison 

Representatives 4-16 4-18 

Chair. C. Schreiber-Beck X X 
Rep. M. Strinden X X 
Rep. L.B. Hager X X 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes: 6 

4-22 

X 
X 
X 

House Carrier Rep. M. Strinden 

LC Number 19.0557 

Yes No 

X 
X 
X 

3 0 

Seconded by: Sen. E. Oban ------------
Senators 4-16 4-18 

Sen. K. Davison X X 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1461, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Davison, Schaible, Oban and 

Reps. Schreiber-Beck, Strinden, Hager) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE 
from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1217-1218, adopt 
amendments as follows, and place HB 1461 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1459 of the House Journal 
and pages 1217 and 1218 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1461 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "two" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "chapters" with "chapter" 

Page 1, line 1, remove "and 15.1-34" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "dyslexia" with "reading" 

Page 1, line 2, replace "and training for teachers and other staff' with "and a dyslexia 
screening pilot program" 

Page 1, remove line 3 

Page 1, line 4, remove "credentials for dyslexia specialists; and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "management" insert "; and to provide for an exemption" 

Page 1, remove lines 6 through 24 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 6 

Page 2, replace lines 9 through 29 with: 

"Reading screening. 

Each public elementary school shall include in the developing and processing 
of assessments and screening of reading, the core components of phonetic 
awareness, decoding, and spelling. The screening also must be offered if requested 
by a parent, legal guardian, or teacher." 

Page 2, remove lines 30 and 31 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 6 with: 

"SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 15.1-32 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Dyslexia screening - Pilot program - Report to legislative management -
Professional development . 

.1. For purposes of this section: 

a. "Dyslexia" means a specific learning disability that is neurological in 
origin and characterized by difficulties with accurate or fluent 
recognition of words and poor spelling and decoding abilities, 
independent of the individual's general intelligence level. 

Q.. "Specialist trained in dyslexia" means an individual who: 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_73_001 
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ill Has expertise provid ing tra in ing in  phonological and phonem ic 
awareness. sound and symbol relationsh ips. a lphabet 
knowledge. rapid naming ski l ls. and encod i ng and decod ing 
ski l ls: 

m Is fluent i n  the dyslexia intervention process: and 

ru Has tra in ing in  identifying dyslexia .  

2.:, Beginn i ng with the 201 9-20 school year and continu i ng through the 
2022-23 school year. the superintendent of publ ic instruction sha l l  
establ ish and operate a pi lot program to provide early screen i ng and  
in tervention services for ch i ldren with risk factors for dys lexia. inc lud ing 
low phonemic awareness. 

� To be el igib le to partic ipate in  the program. a school d istrict. regiona l  
education association. or special education un i t  m ust submit  an  
appl ication to the superintendent wh ich : 

a .  I dentifies a method of screening ch i ldren for low phonemic 
awareness and other risk factors for dyslexia: 

Q,, Provides for the enrol lment of chi ldren identified as having risk 
factors for dyslexia i n  a readi ng program staffed by specia l ists 
tra ined in dyslexia and multisensory structu red language programs: 
and 

c. I ncl udes a methodology for evaluating the effects of the read ing 
program on the identified risk factors of the ch i ld .  

4 .  Each grantee selected to participate in  the program sha l l :  

a .  Provide low phonemic awareness and other dyslexia risk factor 
screen ings for ch i ldren under seven years of age through a read ing 
program establ ished under subsection 3: 

b .  Provide read ing intervention services to students identified as having 
dyslex ia: 

c .  Adm in ister assessments. approved by the superintendent of publ ic 
instruction. to determine the effectiveness of the program i n  
improving the read ing and learn ing ski l ls of ch i l d ren enrol led i n  the 
program: and 

g,. Provide professional development on dyslex ia identification and 
interventions to grant participants . 

.Q.. The board of each participating grantee sha l l  report annua l ly to the 
superintendent of publ ic instruction regard ing the operation. resul ts. and 
effectiveness of the pi lot program in a manner prescribed by the 
superintendent. Before Ju ly 1 .  202 1 .  the superintendent of publ ic 
instruction sha l l  compi le the information and report to the legislative 
management with a recommendation whether to cont i nue the pi lot 
program beyond the 2022-23 school year. 

SECTION 3. EXEMPTION - DYSLEXIA SCREENING PILOT PROGRAM. 
Up to $250 . 000 of the unexpended amount remain ing from the appropriation for 
integrated formula payments, as authorized in  subd ivision 1 of section 1 of 
chapter 1 2  of the 201 7 Session Laws . is not subject to the provis ions of 
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section 54-44.1-11 at the end of the 2017-19 biennium, and may be continued into 
the 2019-21 biennium for the purpose of providing a dyslexia screening pilot 
program." 

Renumber accordingly 

Engrossed HS 1461 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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Representative M ichel le Strinden 
North Dakota District 41 
Testimony HB 1461 
February 6th, 2019 

Good Morning Chairman Owens and members of the committee. For the record my nale is 
Miche l le Strinden, and I represent the people of South Fargo's District 41. I have the privi lege 
to introduce to you H B  1461 on behalf of thousands of students and fami l ies who are affected 
by Dyslexia across our great state. Today, you wil l have the opportunity to hear from 
amazing students, parents, dyslexia special ists and curricu lum experts who have a been 
touched by this learn ing difference. Dyslexia affects twenty percent of the population and 
knows no socio economic, racia l or ethnic boundary. It is defined as a specific learning 
disabil ity that is neurological in origin and is characterized by d ifficu lties with accurate or 
fluent recognition of words and poor spel l ing and decoding abi l ities, independent of an 
individua l's general intel l igence levels. Secondary consequences may include difficulty in 
reading comprehension and vocabulary acquisition. Research shows that Structured Literacy 
programs that are phonetica l ly based, multi sensory and systematic a re not only effective for 
students with Dyslexia, but benefit a l l  early readers ( Internationa l  Dyslexia Association). 

Our fami ly has been personal ly touched because our wonderfu l son Joseph has Dyslexia. As a 
result of this I have developed a passion for l iteracy and finding answers and help for our son 
and other ch i ldren  and fami l ies who suffer from Dyslexia. When Joseph was about three, I 
noticed there was something d ifferent about the way he learned. Joseph was a bright child 
who socia l ly exce l led, but was struggl ing with learning basic reading ski l ls . Even though I was 
a l icensed secondary education teacher with a Masters degree in school counsel ing, and was 
working in a publ ic school at the time, I struggled to find him the appropriate tutoring and 
diagnosis. After years of tears, tutoring, praying and searching for answers, The Reading 
Therapy Center opened in Moorhead MN and changed our l ives. When he was in 2nd grade 
he was tested for Dyslexia and we were able to begin intensive reading therapy for two hours 
a day. The therapy was working and he was final ly making amazing ga ins ! However, going to 
school and fitting in  two hours of reading therapy a day left Joseph emotional ly and mental ly 
exhausted. I f  he m issed school for therapy, he would have even more homework in the 
evenings to make up which created high anxiety for a l l  of us. We decided that in order for 
him to have a hea lthy and ba lanced childhood, I needed to homeschool h im. After four years 
of intensive reading therapy and thousands of dol lars, our son wanted to go back to 
school .. . .and we knew he was ready because he could read ! Since 7th grade, Joseph has been 
able to find success in private school with a 504 accommodation that a l lows for modifications 
in extra t ime, written notes and a scribe when needed for tests and quizzes. Today, he is a 
happy and wel l  adjusted junior at Oak Grove Lutheran School where he is thriving! 

During my campaign for the state legislature, I stated that my main pol icy goa l was to 
strengthen education by improving l iteracy for students in 041 and across the state of ND. 
Our ND Department of Publ ic Instruction's dashboard shows that less than half of our 



students are reading proficiently, and research has found that one in five students 
experiences dys lexia. Early identification and remediation are essential to ensure success for 
these and other students with learning disabil ities. 

HB 1461 is a result of consultation with Dyslexic Special ists tra ined in Orton Gi l l ingham 
approaches and national and state organizations l ike the International Dys lexia Association 
and Decoding Dyslexia. House Bill 1461 is also modeled after M innesota legislation that has 
been passed in the last three years. 

The bi l l  wil l  provide for a Dyslexia Special ist Credential in ND Century Code. Dyslexia 
Specia l ists cou ld then  work in public school districts and/or Regional Education Association's 
(REA's) to provide regional access to Dyslexia Specia l ists trained in researched based 
methodology l ike Orton Gi l l ingham. Next, it requires publ ic e lementary schools to administer 
screenings to each chi ld by the end of the 2nd grade and for a report by the superintendent of 
publ ic schools to the legislative management. Th is wil l provide for early intervention and 
remediation education services that are researched and phonetica l ly based, multi sensory 
and systemic. And fina l ly, HB 1461 wil l  empower teachers by providing professional 
development for teachers, admin istrators and staff by providing one hour of annual 
professional development for dyslexia identification and tra ining that incl udes phonological 
awareness, sound symbol recognition, alphabet knowledge, rapid naming ski l ls and encoding. 

I urge your support of HB 1461 so that all students can be successfu l readers and be provided 
with a h igh qua l ity of education for a bright future. Thank you for you your consideration and 
I wi l l  answer any questions you may have. 
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Wednesday, Feb. 6, 2019 
By: Kirsten Baesler, Superintendent of Public Instruction 

701-328-4570 
North Dakota Department of Public Instruction 

Good morning, Chairman Owens and members of the House Education 

Committee .  My name is Kirsten Baesler. I am the North Dakota superintendent of 

public instruction. I am here to testify in support of House Bill 1 46 1 .  I am asking for 

your "do-pass" recommendation on this legislation. 

House Bill 1 46 1  would require public elementary schools to screen students for 

dyslexia by the second grade. It requires training for elementary school teachers and 

administrators about dyslexia identification and intervention. And it establishes a 

credential for dyslexia specialists . This credential would be issued by the 

superintendent of public instruction. 

I would like to give you some important context for this bill. Two years ago, 

our state ' s  education stakeholders came together and drafted a strategic vision 

framework for prekindergarten through 1 2  education in North Dakota. This 

framework helps all of our education agencies work toward the same goals .  

Page@ 



House Bill 1 46 1  will help us accomplish one of the goals of our strategic 

vision. That is to increase the number of students who demonstrate reading 

proficiency in the third grade. Third-grade reading proficiency is an important 

indicator of future success .  

If we 're going to commit to these goals, we must do things differently. House 

Bill 1 46 1  is expecting we do things differently. Too often our students who are 

challenged with dyslexia are not identified until they struggle and begin to lag behind 

their peers . We can't wait for our students to fall behind before we offer them help. 

Early detection and early intervention are necessary. 

It is intentional that I am testifying today and not our department' s  special 

education director. This is a general education bill . It applies to all students . Students 

with dyslexia process information differently. Their brains work differently. There is 

much we still don't know about dyslexia. What we do know is not all students who 

have dyslexia qualify for a special education Individual Education Plan. Yet, they 

have a challenge. But, we need to help them identify that challenge and address it, so 

they can learn better. 
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We have baseline data about reading proficiency. Every year, third graders are 

given a state reading assessment. In the 20 1 6- 1 7  and 20 1 7- 1 8 school years, the third­

grade proficiency in the English language arts assessment was 45 percent. 

Our ND PK- 1 2  Vision commits to raising that number. Early identification and 

assistance for young students with dyslexia will help do that. With this bill we will be 

able to determine if these early screenings and interventions will help us increase 

reading proficiency. 

I have copies of a one-page handout for you. It describes our strategic vision 

framework and shows the six goals. I also have a short Department of Public 

Instruction informational paper about dyslexia for your background. 

In closing, I would like to say this .  Reading does not happen naturally. It 

requires explicit and systematic instruction, and not all strategies work for all reading 

challenges .  Early identification of dyslexia is essential for the student to reach his or 

her reading potential . With the assistance of this bill, our schools can intervene earlier 

and help students with dyslexia succeed. 

Thank you, and I again ask for your "do pass" recommendation on House Bill 

1 46 1 . I would be happy to take any questions you may have. 

··r>- � 
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North Dakota PK-12 Education Strategic Vision Framework 

This framework was deve loped by the Pk-12 Educat ion Vis ion Steeri ng Com m ittee th rough severa l 
months of rev iew of student ach ievement data, a nd stakeholder engagement i n c l u d i ng i nterviews, 
su rveys and  reg ion a l  d iscuss ions .  This strateg ic  framework: 

a. Is student-focused, centered on what is best for the ch i l d ren  of North  Da kota 
b. Was created th rough a co l l aborat ive effort 
c. I s  based on shared va l ues 
d .  A l lows state orga n i zat ions t o  have a greater im pact a s  a who le t h an  i n d ivid u a l ly 
e .  Esta b l ishes mutua l  accou ntab i l ity for student outcomes 
f. Represents a mora l  im perative 
g. Provides a c lea r d i rect ion to make decis ions and choices 
h. Leads to orga n ized su pport for schools 
i .  Creates effic iencies 
j .  Re inforces resou rces 
k. Gu ides ongoing work together. 

This strateg ic framework is not des igned to be :  

a .  Regu latory 
b .  A school d ist r ict or  school ma ndate 
c. A track ing or report ing system 
d .  J u st a piece o f  paper or  a yea rly report .  
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egan Amundson 

Levi Bachmeier 

Kirsten Baesler 

Marc B luestone 

Elroy Bu rkle 

Aimee Copas 

Lisa Feldner 

Lynda Ferquson 

J im Johnson 

Rosi Kloberdanz 

Chad Oban 

Erin Oban 

I O lson 

Mark Owens 

Rebecca P itk in ,  PhD 

Pam Sagness 

Luke Schaefer 

Donald Schaible 

Strategic  Vision for PK-12 Education Steering Committee Members 
As of 1 2-20-18 

State Superintendent Student Rich land High School 
Cabinet Member 

Pol icy Advisor Office of the Governor 

N D  State Superi ntendent of North Dakota Department of Publ ic  
Schools I nstruction 

S u peri ntendent ND I nd ian Education Advisory Counci l  

Executive Officer North Dakota Smal l  Organ ized Schools 

North Dakota Counci l  of Educational 
Executive Di rector Leaders 

Education Consu ltant 

Education Services Associate Prair ie Publ ic Broadcasting 

Past President North Dakota School Boards Association 

Education Technology Counci l  
Executive Di rector Edutech 

Executive Di rector North  Dakota U n ited 

Senator North Dakota State Senate 
North Dakota Association of Col lege of 

President Teacher Educators 

Representative North Dakota House of Representat ives 

Executive Di rector Education Standards & Practices Board 

Behaviora l Health Division 
Director Department of Human Services 

Director REAs/M id-Dakota Education Cooperative & 
Missouri River Education Cooperative 

Chair , Senate 
Education Committee North Dakota State Senate 

Cynthia Schre iber-Beck Representative North Dakota House of Representat ives 

North Dakota Parents & Teachers 
Mary Schu ltz President Association 

Wayde Sick Di rector & Executive Officer North Dakota Career & Techn ical Education 

Tom Ternes Education Market Manager Bank of North Dakota 

Ph i l  Wisecup I nterim Vice Chancel lor North Dakota Un iversity System 
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North Da 

PK-12 Educatio 

"Stakeholder" 

tegic Plan Summary 

Our  v is ion is that a l l  students wi l l  grad uate cho ice ready, with the knowledge, ski l l s a nd d isposit ion to be successfu l 

Strategic Theme #1 Objectives Strategic In itiatives 

LONG TERM 
Qua l ity early OUTCOMES 

chi ldhopd education 
•Increase students 
who enter 
k inderga rten  
prepared to  learn Objectives Strategic Initiatives 

•Increase students Support for safe and 
who demonstrate hea lthy behaviors 
read i ng profic iency 
in 3 rd grade 

•Increase students 
who meet Objectives Strategic Initiatives 
expected l ea rn i ng 
ga ins each yea r Ca reer  exploration 

•Increase students 
who engage i n  
learn i ng 

•Increase students Objectives Strategic Initiatives 
who graduate 
choice ready Qua l ity education 

• Reduce the personne l  
d i spa rity in 
ach ievement for 
students i n  poverty 
and  for Native 
American students 

Strategic Theme #5 Objectives Strategic Initiatives 

� 



Department of Pub l ic 
I n struction 

Center for Distance 
Education 

EDUTECH 

Career and Technica l  
Education 
Education Standards and 
Practices Board 

Governor's Office 

ND Un ited 

1 .  Effectively imp lement a qua l ity rat ing and improvement 
system (QRIS) 

2 .  Expand qua l ity ea rly ch i ld hood education opportun ities 

1 .  I ncrease the number of k indergarteners that can read i n  
ND  

2 .  Expand opportun ities for young learners to  partic i pate 
in activities that result in deve lopment of the executive 
function 

1. Provide educat iona l  technology i nfrastructu re & too ls to 
support qua l ity early ch i ld hood education 

2 .  Del iver educat iona l  technology profess iona l  
development and resou rces to educators that elevate 
the impact of Pre-K2 education 

1 .  Expand and support qua l ity early ch i ldhood education 
opportun ities 

1 .  Provide qua l ity pre-service experiences i n  b i rth-grade 3 
sett i ngs 

2 .  Col laborate across agencies 
1 .  Work with appropriate stakeholders to d iscuss strategy 

for budget/legislative session for ECE 
2 .  Opt imize distr ibution of ECE/ch i ld  ca re related 

oversight/regu lation between DHS and DP I  

2 

la .  Enhance the QRIS with key components for a l l  ea rly ch i ld hood 
education programs (ECEs) 

lb. I ncrease partic ipation i n  the QR IS 
2a. Develop a sta rt-u p toolkit for new qua l ity ECEs 
2b .  Design and imp lement a state level advocacy p lan for h igh qua l ity ea rly 

ch i ld hood education 
la .  I ncrease access to read ing programs by partnering with Waterford 

Institute to implement the ir U PSTART model in N D  
l b .  Provide program support for pa rents a n d  their learner 
2a .  Procure Smartlab  components that support PK-2 learning (Pr imary 

Layer) 
2b. Provide age appropriate tra i n i ng to PK-2 fac i l itators 
1 .  Provide col l aboration/commun ication technology tools and services for 

early ch i ldhood educators i n  order to share best practices and 
curricu la 

2a .  Del iver workshops on 1:1 device app l ications that engage young 
learners 

2b .  Promote and fac i l itate statewide i n itiatives, such as i ntegrated 
Computer and Cyber Science fou ndations 

la .  Promote early ch i ldhood career exploration through workplace 
learn i ng opportun it ies 

la .  Change ESPB early ch i ld hood standard to reflect stakeholder defi n it ion 
of qua l ity early ch i ldhood pre-service teach ing experience (completed 
5/2018) 

la .  Re-energize ECE counc i l  orig ina l ly estab l i shed by governor's office 
lb. Engage Ed legislative leadersh ip to d iscuss strategy for ECE in '19 

session 
2a .  Explore and promote statutory changes that better support the 

missions of both organ izations 
la .  Cont inue to advocate for fund ing that assu res al l ch i ldren  have access 

to Pre-K if pa rents choose 
lb. Cont inue to lobby at the legis latu re and a lso engage members on 

importa nce of Pre-K 



N DSBA 

N DACTE 

N DCEL 

1 .  I ncrease the number of ch i ldren read ing at grade level 
by the end of 3 rd grade 

1 .  I ncrease awareness of the co l l aborative partnersh ips 
teacher preparation programs have with state agencies 
and early ch i ld hood programs throughout North Dakota 

1. Po l icy / legis lative support 

la .  Support legislative efforts that make PreK more ava i l ab le  and 
affordab le for more fami l ies i n  North Dakota without supp lant ing 
funds from K-12 education 

1 .  Share N DACTE meeting i nformation and in itiatives with the ND ECE 
H igher Ed Consort ium to support potentia l opportun ities to further 
partnersh i ps between H igher Ed Institutions and ECE agencies 

1 .  Represent school leaders by monitori ng legislative/state agency 
i n itiatives, pol icy shifts, and fund ing sh ifts and advocate for or aga inst 
such p ieces on the basis of what is best for students 



Strategic Theme: Support for Safe and Healthy Behaviors 

Depa rtment of 

Pub l i c  I nstruction 

Center for Distance 

Education 

EDUTECH 

Ca reer and 

Techn ica l  

Education 

Education 

Standards and 

Practices Board 

Sma l l  Organ ized 

Schools 

1 .  Enhance co l l aborat ion and partnersh ips to 

support students and fami l i es 

1. D istri bution and i nstruction of on l i ne  

curricu l um i n  a l l  instruct iona l  a reas that 

focus on hea lthy behaviors 

2. Reengineer ing of the classroom with 

Smartlab  imp lementation a l lowing for a 

teacher fac i l itation model 

l . Provide  gu idance on technology tools, 

resou rces, and on l ine best practices 

2 . Partner with state agencies by provid ing 

technology tools and  learn ing opportun ities 

to support statewide behaviora l  health 

programs 

1 .  Expand and support Ca reer and Techn ica l 

Education Student Organ izations (CTSO) 

1 .  Al l  teacher education col l eges wil l  provide  

menta l health competency tra i n i ng (requ i red 

8/2016} 

Regiona l  Education l . Faci l itate professiona l  learn ing a l igned with 

Agencies Promotion and  Prevention for schools 

2 .Support DPl's i n itiatives la & lb 

Governor's Office l . l ncrease focus on needs of students and 

schools facing behaviora l  hea l th  cha l lenges 

2 .  Better leverage state do l lars in behaviora l 

hea lth to support schools 

la .  Faci l itate partner co l la borat ion to i n itiate a cu ltura l  change with i n  the student body and 

educat iona l  commun ity 

lb .  Create a fra mework and provide resou rces for a l l  students to succeed academica l ly and  

behaviora l ly 

le. Co l l aborate with stakeholders to ensure fu l l  imp lementation of pol icies in the area of safe 

& hea lthy behavior 

la. Conti nued development and engagement of courses for teachers and students in the area 

of mental health 

2a .  30-hour tra in ing program for c lassroom teachers with a Smartla b  to he lp them redesign 

trad it iona l  pedagogica l models to fac i l itate learn ing environments that a l low them to 

bu i ld  hea lthy relationsh ips with lea rners 

la .  Provide web fi lter ing/gu idance to schools to m in imize access to object ionable mater ia l  

lb .  Provide resources to ensure safe and  secure teacher/student onl ine behaviors 

2. Provide professiona l  development and resources for educators, i nc lud ing Behavioral 

Hea lth Service resou rces, GIS crowdsourcing tools, d igita l storytel l i ng tra i n i ng, and 

commun ity i nteractions 

la .  I ncrease awareness of leadersh ip  opportun it ies to support healthy behaviors 

la .  Col l aborat ion with DP I  for resou rces for H igher Education (completed) 

lb .  Ana lyze data to determine where tra i n ing is g iven and provide support as needed 

(ongoing} 

la .  N DSOS can assist by provid i ng access to on l i ne  bus d river tra in i ng  ( I N F IN IT- 1 ) ;  promoting 

mental hea lth/suic ide tra i n ing ( i .e .  Tom N itschke's ' I  Am Res i l ient' Program} ;  and 

resou rces for d rug (opioid} prevent ion. 

la .  Conti nue to identify evidence-based opportun ities that can be imp lemented i n  an 

educat iona l  commun ity 

lb .  Assist schools in the imp lementation of selected practices/progra ms 

le. Promote appropriate data uti l ization to evidence progress towards strategic theme 

la .  Expand Recovery Reinvented i n itiat ive to inc lude behaviora l  hea lth 

2a .  Work with DHS to make pub l ic  services related to behavioral health more school -fac ing 

2b .  Work to i ncrease awareness a mong school leaders of behavioral health resources 

ava i l a b le local ly, reg iona l ly 



ND  Un ited 

N DSBA 

N DACTE 

N DCEL 

1 .  I ncrease the amount of qua l ity learn ing t ime 
for a l l  students 

1 .  Faci l itate awareness of the effectiveness of 
teacher cand idate tra i n i ng 

2. Provide menta l hea lth tra i n i ng for teacher 
cand idates 

1 .  Support Department of Human 
Service/Depa rtment of  Pub l i c  I n struction 
i n itiatives that support K12 schools 

2 .  Provide opportun ities for coord inated PD for 
school staff 

la. Provide members and non-members with access to "Mi ndfu l Me, M indfu l  You" tra i n ing 
lb .  Provide members and non-members access to book stud ies th is fa l l  for credit through 

UND  
le. Focus on u nderstand ing ch i ld hood trauma a nd  teacher self-care a t  the a n n u a l  summer 

"Professiona l  Growth Institute" 
la. Provide "Best P ractices" pol ic ies regard i ng student behavior, d iscip l i ne, and  school safety 
lb .  Support the Governor's office i n it iative to education school board members and d istrict 

staff on behavior health resou rces that a re ava i lab le 
1. Provide data on fi rst-year teacher ski l l s  related to support ing safe and hea lthy behaviors :  

Graduate data of  fi rst-year teachers' perception of  read i ness and the Supervisors' 
assessment of the teachers' read iness to support safe and hea lthy behaviors in Pre-K 12 
schoo ls wi l l  be ana lyzed for data-based decis ion making in educator prepa ration programs 
and shared with ND agencies and stakeholders 

2. Each Teacher Preparation program developed p lans to meet ESPB state standards for 
menta l health tra i n ing and increase teacher cand idate preparation 

la .  Pursue fund ing, pol icy a l ignment, and coord inat ion of services that can better provide 
support to K12 schools i n  the a rea of safe and hea lthy behaviors 

lb .  Active supportive work representing school leaders with legis lature and state agencies to 
he lp pu rsue positive strides toward support toward programs 
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ND Un ited 

1. Ensure K-12 students have access to qua l ity 

career cou nsel ing and  education 

2 .  I ncrease exposure and engagement i n  hands­

on ca reer exploration 

1 .  I ncrease the number of on l i ne  and b lended 

career exploration opportun ities for lea rners 

2. Design certificate programs for learners that 

produce cred its and prepare them for the 

work force 

1. P rovide educationa l  technology 

i nfrastructu re, tools and programs that 

i ncrease access to and i nformation on 

careers, and he lp students compete and 

succeed 

l .  I ncrease exposu re and  engagement in hands­

on career exploration through the expansion 

of i ndustry partnersh ips 

1 .  Support for an  "education ca reers" pathway 

with CTE, h igher ed, and B ismarck Pub l i c  

Schools 

1 .  Advocate for a progressive ca reer exploration 

continuum for students K-12 

2 .  Support 2b 

1 .  Better promote ca reer ready practices 

2 .  Support expansion of Computer Science and 

Cyber Security Education 

3 .  Better i ntegrate CTE i nto other state 

government K-12 departments 

la. Faci l itate creation of p i l l a rs of qua l ity ca reer cou nse l ing and education 

lb. Expand and enhance qua l ity ca reer counsel i ng and education practices 

2a .  Ensure ca reer exploration opportun ities a re mean ingfu l and tied to student four-year rol l i ng 

p lans 

2b .  Work with partners to foster working relationsh i ps between bus iness, commun ity, schools 

across the state, and other state partners 

la . Conti nue to seek partnersh ips with cu rricu l um designers that produce re levant content for 

tomorrow's workforce 

2a. Implementation of co l l aborative, rea l world, development projects, conducted and  supported 

by va rious lea rners i n  Smartla bs a round N D  

2 b .  Provis ion for certifications i n  cyber security techn ic ian a n d  UAS p i lot's l icense 

la .  Expand AskMe program throughout the state 

lb .  Promote ND I nsights porta l  for access to i nformation on programs / pathways to h igh demand 

careers and Job Service's ND  Workforce I nte l l igence 

le. Coord inate the ND "K-20W" in itiative, a co l la borative effort a l ign ing K-20 cyber education, 

workforce priorities, and operat iona l  security 

la. Expand and support qua l ity ca reer and  techn ical education programming 

2b .  Ma inta in  advisory com mittee commun ication to i ncrease partnersh ips between bus i ness and 

commun ity sta keholders 

la .  Spoke before BPS school board 

la .  Promote Rura l  Schools Col laborative p lace-based education and  continue to support state­

wide career exploration such as N DCDE in add it ion to support ing regiona l  (REAs) and state 

(N DCTE and N DDP I )  efforts 

la .  Connect schools with appropriate industry and bus i ness representatives to a l ign i n itiat ives 

lb .  Promote appropriate data uti l ization to evidence progress towards strategic theme 

2a .  Col laborate with CTE Centers 

la . Leverage commun ications team to explore opportun it ies to better raise CRP awareness 

2a. Consider recommendations of K-20W work group i n  budget and pol icy recommendations for 

2019 legislative session 

3a. Hol istic CTE as one focus of K-12 Governance Working Group  

la .  Engage i n  partnersh ip  with the  N EA Foundation to  fi nd a way to  br ing more CTE options to 

Native American students in  the state 



N DSBA 

N DACTE 

N DCEL 

1 . Secu re adequate funds for a l l  d istricts to 
provide a r ich curricu l um that inc ludes 
expanded CTE options 

1. I ncrease apprenticesh ip  opportun ities that 
can be l i n ked to h igh school coursework for 
credit 

1. Support of CTE Di rectors and Ed Leaders i n  
po l icy / professiona l  development 

la. Advocate for adequate and susta inab le  K-12 fund ing to a l low for add itiona l  staff and 
curricu l um to provide mean ingfu l CTE cou rses, especia l ly i n  sma l le r  school d istricts 

la. Each Teacher Preparation program can explore col la borations with state agencies and schools 
to imp lement a strategic approach to i ncrease apprenticesh ip  opportun ities with mutua l  
benefit to bus inesses/organ izations and students 

la. Work with CTE Di rectors and a l l  Educationa l  Leaders to assist in fi l l i ng professiona l  
development and coord inat ion gaps that  can enhance student career exploration 
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l . l ncrease rigor and relevance of educator 
enhancement and performance management 
systems 

2. Reduce vacancies i n  hard to staff a reas with 
effective educators 

1 .  Development of teachers that provides a 
process for student learn ing 

2 .  Tra in ing opportun ities for educators that 
i ncrease their profic iency i n  on l i ne and 
blended teach ing a long with the 
imp lementation of  competency based learn ing 

1 .  Provide profess iona l  learn ing opportun ities 
and outreach to fac i l itate statewide computer 
and cyber science education 

2 .  Provide technology infrastructure, tools, and 
professiona l  development opportun ities to 
i ncrease the impact of statewide i n itiatives 

3 .  Provide professiona l  development 
opportun ities on data-d riven decision making 

l . lmprove Career and Techn ica l  Education 
programs through eva luation 

1 .  Ma inta in  qua l ificat ions for a lternate access 
l icensure 

1. Support school uti l i zat ion of eva luation 
systems 

t+ S  / t lo f 
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la .  Partner i n  estab l ish i ng new and support ing exist ing h igh qua l ity coach ing, mentori ng and 
professiona l  deve lopment for educators 

lb. I ncrease support for fidel ity of educator eva luation and continuous improvement systems 
le. Co l l a boration with educator preparation stakeholders to design qua l ity cou rsework 
2a .  Conti nue to secu re and promote incentives 
2b. Continue col l aborat ions and develop partnersh ips to expand pathways to l i cens ing and 

credenti a l i ng 
la .  Refi nement of a "Teacher Process" which a l l ows for a methodology that focuses on app lying 

teach ing and learning that data has proven works 
lb. Development and support of an LMS and SIS that a l l ows for teachers to manage 

i ntervention strategies with relevant data 
2a. Provide b lended learn i ng, col lege credit bearing tra i n i ng opportu n ities i n  an "On l i ne 

Teach ing Certification" program and with a 30-hour Smartlab fac i l itator tra i n ing program 
la .  Uti l i ze N ICERC, code.org, M icrosoft certifications with in EduTech staff to fac i l itate statewide 

cyber education i n it iatives for K-12 educators 
2a. Del iver an annua l  educat iona l  technology conference to a l low educators to more effectively 

ut i l ize state resou rces; present at other statewide confe rences 
2b. Provide technology coach ing in support of qua l ity instruction 
3a .  I ntroduce educators to student data i n  the SLDS to access/ana lyze contin uous improvement 

of student learn i ng; provide ongoing professiona l  deve lopment for on l i ne  cu rricu l um 
"Deve lop Your  Data M indset" 

3b .  Conti nua l ly improve too ls with i n  PowerSchool, SLDS , eTranscript 
la .  Expand strong support for CTE instructors through site-based comprehensive eva l uat ions 

inc luding curricu l um, instructiona l  strategies, data ana lysis and program specific 
profess iona l  deve lopment 

lb .  Verify appropriate industry/teach ing certifications 
la .  Provide opportun ities for a "na rrow" l icense as a component of a lternate access l icensure 
lb.  Work with higher education to develop a "boot camp" for Alternate Access l i cense 

ind ividua ls  
le .  HB  1098 enab les i nd ividua ls  to teach with a minor and expanded the grade band fo r both 

e lementary and secondary 
la .  Identify education personnel  needs on a regiona l  basis 
lb .  Provide growth opportun ities a l igned with evidence-based i nstructiona l  framework 
le. Promote appropriate data uti l ization to evidence progress towards strategic theme 



Governor's 
Office 

ND Un ited 

N DSBA 

N DACTE 

NDCEL 

1 .  Explore pol icy levers to fi nanc ia l ly and 
positiona l ly recogn ize educators taking 
leadersh ip  roles to improve student learn ing 

2. Address workforce issue of teacher l icensure 

1. Encou rage more young people to consider a 
ca reer in pub l ic education 

1 .  Use qua l ity data to continuously eva l uate and  
improve on l i ne and  on-campus teacher qua l ity 

2 .  Co l l aborate with PK-12 schools to identify 
current i n itiatives and practices 

3 .  Work with the Education Standards and  
Practices Board (ESPB) to  p rovide a lternate 
access options that mainta i n  teacher qua l ity 

4. Co l l aborate with PK-12 to he lp  meet the ir 
employment and profess iona l  development 
needs 

1 .  Leadersh ip  Development of a l l  schoo l leaders 
2. Coord ination of statewide PD with a l l  

sta keholders and PD providers 
3 .Admin i strator Mentorsh ip 

la .  Study s imi lar  i n itiat ives, such as Iowa's TLC; work with legis l ative leadersh ip  and reflect 
priority in 2019 executive budget recommendation as part of broader education budget 

2a. Inc lude teacher l icensu re as part of broader l icensu re study now underway as resu lt of US 
Department of Labor grant 

la. Use videos, soc ia l  media, our magaz ine and award-win n ing podcast to promote the 
incred ib le  work teachers do every day 

lb. Barga i n  and lobby to make sure teachers a re paid the sa lary and benefits they deserve 
whi le a l so assur ing a safe work environment 

le. Provide scho larsh ips to co l l ege students and grants to current teachers 
ld .  I ncrease the n umber of Nationa l ly Board-Certified teachers i n  N D  
le. Provide PD t o  he lp teachers achieve success i n  the c lassroom 
la.  Explore methods to cost effectively promote the va lue of education careers to high school 

students throughout the state 
1. I ncreased va l id ity and re l i ab i l ity of student teacher, completer and employer assessment 

instruments that provide mean ingfu l data to be combined with stakeholder feedback to 
i nform data d riven decis ions for conti nuous improvement 

2 . Continue  to col l a borate with PK-12 schools to ensure teacher prepa ration programs are 
inc lud ing the practices and ski l l s  needed i n  today's schools 

3. Communication among institutions, ESPB, and PK-12 schoo ls to improve plan of study 
opt ions and meet the state's needs for educators 

4. Col l a borate with REAs and d istricts to identify professiona l  development needs and  design 
conti nu i ng education and graduate coursework options to meet those needs; N DACTE 
schools w i l l  work with PK-12 school partners and other groups such as the Rura l  Teacher 
Corps to determine employment needs 

la .  Support of NDLEAD Center and admin istrator profess iona l  development 
lb .  Cont inue to be key provider of profess iona l  development for educationa l  leaders whi le 

actively coord inat ing with other service providers such as REA's, Learn ing Forward, 
EduTech, N DDPI ,  N DCTE, and others to ensure de l ivery and coord ination of appropriate 
statewide profess iona l  development in a l l  a reas of need 

le. Cont inue to provide h igh l evel statewide professiona l  development for al l  educat iona l  
leader subgroups then subsequently assist ing i n  coord inat ing supplementa l deep d ive PD 

ld .  Work to coord i nate with a l l  PD providers i n  a n  attempt to conso l idate a l l  PD offeri ngs into 
one statewide location whi le provid ing beh ind-the-scenes coord ination, event p l ann ing, 
and host ing of on l i ne and  a rchived work for a l l  groups whi le  provid ing potentia l  graduate 
credit and poss ib le micro credentia l  opportun ity through th is consol idated effort 

le. Coord ination and pu l l  through of Academic Leadersh ip  Academy with various strands and 
ab i l ity to ach ieve graduate certificate u pon ach ievement and  poss ib le m icro-badge work 
for partia l  attendance 
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Strategic Theme: Qual ity Instruction for Personal ized Learning 

1 .  Research and define persona l ized learn ing 

methods and tools  

2 .  Bu i ld  capacity for d istricts and schools to 

implement persona l ized learn i ng 

1. I ncrease use of persona l ized learn ing technologies. 

2 .  Provide schools with learn ing laboratories that 

focus on persona l i zation 

1 .  Del iver technology, tools, and profess iona l  

development to bu i ld  statewide capacity for 

educators 

2. Engage in and  support DPl 's Persona l i zed Learn ing 

Action Tea m 

1. Support CTE i nstructors in provid ing persona l ized 

learn i ng to al l  students 

1. Ass ist and support schools in ut i l i z ing appropriate 

persona l ized learn ing strategies/too ls/methods 

1 .  Support the adoption of persona l ized learn ing in 

North Dakota schools 

1 .  Integrate cu rricu l um to support theories and 

practices support ing persona l ized learn ing i n  

teacher preparation programs 

1 .  Leadersh ip  development and  PD i n  the a rea of 

I n novative I nstruction 

la .  Understand cu rrent landscape of persona l ized learn ing i n  education and  

promis ing instructiona l  models and too ls 

lb. Co l l aborate with sta keholders to identify or create a framework to bu i ld  a 

common understand ing for personal ized learn ing 

la .  Conti nue p i lots and implementation programs with Knewton adaptive 

software and my fou ndations lab 

2a .  I nsta l l ation, tra i n i ng, and  support of a SmartLab for  every school d i strict i n  

t he  state o f  N D  

l a .  Assist schools i n  ensur ing on l i ne  content i s  inc lusive a n d  meets federa l  

access ib i l ity requ i rements (ADA) 

lb. Partner to bu i ld  knowledge capacity for persona l ized learn ing 

2a .  Provide infrastructu re, expertise to the DP I  Persona l ized Learn ing Action 

Team 

la .  Provide student access to  appropriate i nd ustry certificat ion through CTE 

lb .  Support and expand CTSO leadersh i p  and competitive activities in school 

d i stricts 

la. I ncrease access to ongoing, job-embedded professiona l  learn ing uti l i z ing 

identified persona l ized learn i ng strategies/tools/methods 

lb .  Promote appropriate data ut i l ization to evidence progress towards strategic 

theme 

la .  Champion recommendations of I nnovative Education Task Force, focused on 

competency based, persona l ized learn ing .  I n it iatives inc lude both pol icy and  

budgeting considerat ions 

la .  The Cutt ing Ed Podcast :  focus on the i n novation taking p lace i n  schools 

lb .  Provide panels on " innovation" at a l l  PD conferences 

le. Secure fund ing to resea rch what is ho ld ing back educators from fu l ly 

embracing Persona l ized Learn ing 

la .  V is i t  and work with PK-12 persona l ized learn ing schools to i ncrease faculty 

and  teacher cand idate i nvolvement. Continue  to i ncorporate research-based 

practices i n  teacher education curricu l um 

1 .  ND  I nnovat ion Academy partnersh ip with Ted Dintersmith (currently) with 

ongoi ng development of futu re cohorts led by ND profess iona ls 
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What  i s  Dys l ex ia ? 

The North  Dakota Department of Public I nstruction Guidelines for Serving Students with 
Specific Leaming Disabilities in the Education Setting recognizes that dys lexia is associated 
with a specific lea rning disability in the a rea of basic reading skil l s .  Students with dyslexia may 
have difficu lty not on ly with reading ,  but a lso with spe l l ing a nd performing othe r  skil ls re lated to 
the use of printed language (National Center for Leaming Disabilities) . Many students with 
dyslexia have d ifficu lties identifying sepa rate speech sounds  within a word and  lea rning how 
individua l  letters represent sounds.  A student  with dyslexia does not lack inte l ligence or the 
desire to lea rn . (Adapted from /DA: Dyslexia Basics) 

The I nternationa l  Dyslexia Association ( I DA) , a long with the Nationa l  I nstitute of Chi ld Health , 
define dyslexia as :  

" . . .  a specific learning disability that is neurobio/ogical in origin. I t  is characterized by 
difficulties with accurate and/or fluent word recognition and by poor spelling and 
decoding abilities. These difficulties typically result from a deficit in the phonological 
component of language that is often unexpected in relation to other cognitive abilities 
and the provision of effective classroom instruction. Secondary consequences may 
include problems in reading comprehension and reduced reading experience that can 
impede growth of vocabulary and background knowledge. "  

-I n ternationa l  Dyslexia Association Board of Directors , November  1 2 , 2002 . 

The exact causes of dyslexia a re not complete ly clear .  However, brain-imaging studies show 
sig nificant  d ifferences in the way the brain of a child with dyslexia develops and  functions 
(Shaywitz , et .  Al , 200 1 ) .  The neurologic d ifferences that a re evident  in a student  with dyslexia 
a re usua l ly genetic , a nd beca use they are neurologica l in nature ,  a person with dyslexia wil l 
probab ly experience difficu l ties his/her entire l ife . 

The Nationa l  Center for Lea rning Disabilities ( NCLD) projects that one in five , or  1 5-20% of the 
popu latio n ,  has a specific lea rning d isability . Of those students, 70-80% have deficits in reading ,  
with symptom s  ranging from mild to  severe .  According to  Dyslexia Help a t  the University of 
Michigan, the preva lence rate of dyslexia is compa rab le between boys a nd girls .  The difference 
exists in the freq uency of testing ,  which is hig her  for ma les . 



Cha ra cte r ist i cs of Stu de nts w i th  Dys l ex i a  

Dyslexia along with other read ing d isab il it ies seem to be strongly determined by genetic 
pred isposit ions .  Chances are that if a student is exhi b it i ng characteristics of dyslexia , he/she 
may have a fami ly member that has some of the same d ifficult ies.  

Students with dyslexia may possess common areas of strength ,  which may include , but are not 
l im ited to : 

• May have strong visual ab il it ies 
• May have talents i n  the areas of mechan ical skills , m usic,  art ,  drama ,  sports , and 

creative writ ing 
• May be curious with great imaginat ions 
• May have the a bi lity to "fig ure things out" 
• May seem more mature than the ir same age peers 

Many students have one or even two of the following characteristics associated with dyslexia , 
but a student with dyslexia typically has many of the characteristics that present themselves 
over t ime and s ign ificantly impact learn ing i n  the academic environment .  

Some of the more common characterist ics of  dyslexia include:  

• D ifficulty learn ing to speak 
• Difficulty learn ing letters and sounds (phonemic awareness) 
• Difficulty remembering letters and sounds (phonological memory) 
• Difficulty organ iz ing written and spoken language 
• Difficulty memoriz ing number facts 
• Difficulty read ing at a rate that enables comprehension 
• Difficulty rapidly recalli ng the names of objects , colors or letters 
• Difficulty in  keeping up with and understand ing what was read when longer assignments 

are g iven 
• Difficulty with spelli ng 
• Difficulty with ha ndwrit ing 
• Difficulty learn ing foreign  languages 
• Difficulty completing math operat ions correctly 
• Difficulty in u ndersta nd ing the d ifference between "left" and "r ight" 
• Difficulty mak ing friends or learn ing social skills 

(Adapted from I nternational Dyslexia Association ,  Dyslexia in the Classroom What Every 
Teacher Needs to Know) 



• 

• 

• 

Poss i b l e  I n d i cators of Dys lex i a  a t  D i ffe ren t  Ages :  

There are va rious  ind icators exh ib ited by students at d ifferent ages that may suggest a possib le 
read ing  Specific Learn ing Disab i l ity (SLD) l i ke dyslexia .  ( I nformation adapted from the Un ivers ity 
of M ich igan 's  Clues to Dyslexia and the Yale Center for Dyslexia & Creativity 's Signs of 
Dyslexia . )  

Preschool  

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Delay i n  ta lk ing  
S peech may be d ifficu lt to  understand and may sound l i ke "baby talk" 
May not have a favorite book 
May not s it a lone and look at books , may not turn the page one at a t ime, and may not 
know how to open and hold books 
Difficu lty reca l l i ng  the right word (word retrieva l )  
Difficu lty recogn iz ing letters i n  own name 
Difficu lty learn ing and remembering names of letters 
Difficu lty learn ing common nursery rhymes (aud itory memory) 
D ifficu lty understand ing words are read from left to right 
D ifficu lty l i sten ing to someone else read for extended periods of t ime 
Difficu lty with remembering a nd fo l lowing d i rect ions 

Ki ndergarten and Fi rst Grade 

• Re l ies o n  p ictu res when read ing 
• Read ing  errors show no connection  to the word written on the page (may substitute 

"k itten for the written word "cat") 
• May state he/she does not l ike to read and compla ins a bout how d ifficu lt read ing  is 
• Avo ids read ing 
• Difficu lty associati ng letters with sounds 
• Difficu lty remembering basic s ight words 
• Difficu lty sound i ng out s imple words 
• Difficu lty separat ing words i nto parts ( butterfly is butter and fly) 

Second and  Th i rd G rade 

• May omit  end ings of words 
• May have i ne l i g i b le handwrit ing 
• Extra t ime needed when speaking to others 
• D ifficu lty remembering spe l l i ng words and ru les 
• Difficu lty remembering words ;  may submit words l i ke "th ings" for the proper term 
• D ifficu lty sound ing out words 



• Difficu lty with pronouncing long , compl icated words 
• Difficu lty te l l i ng  a story i n  seq uentia l order 

Fou rth through Eighth Grade 

• Pauses,  hesitates or may freq uently use words l ike "um" when speak ing 
• Confuses words that sound a l ike when speak ing (tornado for volcano) 
• May need extra t ime to answer when asked a q uest ion 
• May incorrectly read common sight words  
• May have d ifficu lt ies with comprehension due  to d ifficu lty with sound ing out words 
• May not be fl uent when read ing a loud and may avoid read ing out loud 
• May not l i ke to read for enjoyment 
• May perform better on ora l  tests 
• When read ing out loud , read ing may be monotone with no attent ion paid to punctuation 
• Difficulty remembering th ings l i ke dates, names, te lephone numbers 
• D ifficu lty with spel l i ng  and learn ing new vocabu la ry 
• D ifficu lty organ iz ing ideas for writ ing 
• Difficu lty read ing words with mu lt i -sy l lab les 
• Difficu lty understand ing word structure (prefix ,  root, suffix) 

H igh  School 

• Read ing rate may be slower than same age peers (may not keep up  with read ing 
dema nds of  mu lt ip le courses) 

• Difficu lty with automatic word recognition , which i n  turn ,  impacts the acq u isit ion of 
knowledge through read ing 

• Difficu lty with spe l l i ng  and writ ing 
• Difficu lty with vocabu lary ,  both written and verba l 
• Difficulty tak ing notes i n  class 
• Difficu lty remembering mathematica l or  scientific formulas 
• Difficu lty organ iz ing projects and may strugg le with completion of ass ignments on t ime 
• Difficulty lea rn ing a foreign language 



• 

• 

• 

Refe rra l a n d  Eva l u at ion  P l a n n i ng 

The prov is ion of interventions beg ins  with in  the student's general education classroom . If the 
student is  successfu l and making adeq uate prog ress after the i ntervent ions are provided , no 
add it iona l  changes may be needed . If the student is not successfu l ,  more i ntensive i nterventions 
may be suggested a nd/or imp lemented by the school team.  

When ind iv idua l  student data col lected shows that a student is unab le  to  make satisfactory 
prog ress,  i n  sp ite of ind ivid ua l ized , evidence-based classroom i nterventions implemented with 
fide l ity ,  the school team may propose cond uct ing an eva l uat ion to determine whether or not the 
student may have a learn ing d isab i l ity l i ke dyslexia . I n  add it ion to the school making a proposa l 
for testi ng ,  parents of the student may req uest an  eva luat ion at any t ime.  

Du ri ng  the eva luat ion ,  add itiona l  data/information is col lected and  used to determine if the 
stud ent has a specific lea rn ing d isab i l ity and whether the student is  i n  need of specia l ly  
des ig ned i nstruct ion .  The data co l lected must support both the presence of  a d isa b i l ity and the 
need for specia l ly designed instruction i n  order for the student to be e l i g i b le for specia l 
educat ion serv ices . 

Sometimes a student has been eva luated outside of the school  sett ing which led to a d iagnosis 
of dyslexia . I nformat ion from an outs ide eva l uation(s)  shou ld be considered by the school team 
as part of the eva l uat ion conducted through the assessment process with in  the school sett ing . 
Aga i n ,  i n  order  for the student to q ua l ify as a student with a specific learn ing d isab i l ity , he/she 
must be i n  need of specia l ly  designed instruction .  I f  the student has been d iagnosed with 
dyslexia but  the need for specia l ly designed instruct ion is not there ,  the student wi l l  not q ua l ify 
for specia l education  serv ices under the category of SLD .  

*Add it iona l  information for Determin ing SLD and E l i g ib i l ity for Specia l Educat ion is ava i lab le 
i n  the Guidelines for Serving Students with Specific Learning Disabilities in Educational 
Settings on the NDDP I  website . 



Exa m p l es  of I nte rve nt i o n s  a nd Accom modat i o n s  

Early i ntervent ion for students with lea rn ing cha l lenges, inc lud ing dyslexia , ca n esta b l i sh  a 
foundat ion for learn i ng and  i ncrease the proba bi l ity of later academic success .  For students who 
may be at r isk of having a specific learn ing d isabi l ity, l i ke dyslexia , p roactive and preventative 
practices can a lter the cou rse of the i r  academic ca reers .  

The Nationa l  Read ing  Pane l  ( N RP)  i n  its report , Teaching Children to Read: An Evidence­
Based Assessment of the Scientific Research Literature on Reading and Its Implications for 
Reading Instruction, i dentified a l i st of i nterventions under four  major  a reas centra l to read ing : 
Alphabetics , F luency, Comprehens ion ,  and Teacher Education and Read ing  I nstruct ion . 
I nterventions and/or accommodations u nder each a rea may include :  

Al phabetics : 

• Phonemic Awareness - the ab i l ity to identify and ma n ipu late phonemes (the smal lest 
sound u n its that make up  language) in spoken words .  Phonemes a re comb ined to form 
syl lab les and  words .  

• Phon ics I nstruction - contributes to learn ing to read by teach ing readers to use the 
a l phabet system ,  which is  needed to decode words ,  to reta i n  s ig ht words i n  memory ,  
and  to  ca l l  on s ig ht word memory to  read words by  ana logy (access ing words that have 
been learned and us ing pa rts of the spe l l i ng  to read new words with s im i la r  spe l l i ng ) .  
Word pred iction  becomes more accurate when readers ca n comb ine  context c l ues  with 
letter-sound cues when fig ur ing out u nfami l ia r  words in  text. 

Fl uency - read ing with speed , accuracy, and proper expression :  

• Students benefit by read ing passages a loud with gu ida nce and feed back . 
• May include :  repeated read ing , pa i red read ing , sha red read ing , and  ass isted read ing . 

Comprehension - "essence of read ing , " not on ly to academic learn ing , but l ife long l iv ing : 

• Vocabu lary lea rn ing and instruct ion - d i rect instruction of voca bu la ry req u i red for specific 
texts . 

• Text comprehens ion - intentiona l  th i nking of the reader engaged i n  the text throug h 
which mean i ng is made.  

• Teacher preparation - assists i n  fac i l itati ng in the deve lopment of read i ng 
comprehension .  

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

Teacher E d u cat ion and Read ing  Instructi on : 

• Evidence based core read ing prog ram - provides a scope and sequence of sk i l ls  to be 
ta ught  and strateg ies to effective ly teach read ing  ski l ls to maxim ize student learn ing . 

• School  wide implementation with a common u nderstand ing and consistency i n  practice -
provid i ng  expl icit instruct ion in phonemic awareness , phon ics , fl uency ,  vocabu lary, a nd 
comprehension . 

• MTSS - framework to provide a l l  students with the best opportun it ies to succeed , which 
focuses on  high q ua l ity instruction and i nterventions  matched to student need , prog ress 
is mon itored freq uently to make decis ions a bout changes in instruct ion or goa ls ,  and 
data is  used to a l locate resources to improve student learn ing and to support staff 
imp lementat ion of effective pract ices. 

*Add it iona l  i nformation on evidence based read i ng progra ms and MTSS is ava i la ble in 
the Guidelines for Serving Students with Specific Learning Disabilities in Educational 
Settings on the NDDP I  website. 

School teams may choose accommodat ions to he lp  students with learn i ng  d ifficu lt ies in both 
the genera l  ed ucation and special ed ucat ion classrooms. The l ist of examp les is not 
exhaustive , nor is every accommodat ion l isted in tended to be effective or  appropriate for 
every student .  Accommodations chosen shou ld be based u pon the needs of the i nd iv idua l  
student and  determ ined by the school team .  Accommodat ions may inc lude :  

• Sample  Accommodations Involving Materia ls :  

o C larify or s imp l ify written d i rections 
o Present a sma l l  amount of work at a t ime 
o Block out extraneous stimu l i  
o H igh l ig ht essentia l i nformation 
o Provide add it iona l  practice activit ies 
o Provide a g lossary in content a reas 
o Ut i l ize aud io record ing devices 
o Ut i l ize assistive technology (ta blets, electron ic readers/d ict iona ries/spel lers ,  text 

to speech programs,  audio books, etc . )  

• Sample  Accommodations Involvi n g  Interactive Instruction : 

o Repeat d i rect ions 
o Ma in ta i n  da i ly rout ines 
o Provide a copy of lesson notes 
o Use step-by-step instruction 
o Comb ine  verbal  and visual informat ion together 
o Write key points on wh iteboa rd 
o Pa i r  o ra l  presentat ions with v isua l  i nformation and part ici patory activit ies 
o Review da i ly 



o Utilize explicit teaching proced u res (advanced organizers , g uided p ractice , 
demonstrate the skill , offer corrective feedback, monitor p ractice , review, set up  
independent practice) 

o Utilize mnemonic devices 

• Sample Accommodations Involvi n g  Student Performance:  

o Change the student 's response mode 
o Priority seating 
o Desig n worksheets from easiest to hardest (h iera rchical) 
o Allow extra time 
o Provide a n  outline of the lesson 
o Provide work samples 
o Provide additional  p ractice 
o Utilize g ra phic organizers 
o Utilize assig nment books or calendars 
o Utilize cues to denote important items 
o Utilize peer mediated learning 

* I nformation was adapted from The I nternational Dyslexia Association document 
entitled Dyslexia in the Classroom What Every Teacher Needs to Know (20 1 7) .  

• 

• 

• 
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M isco n ce pt ions  of Dys l ex i a  

The U n ivers ity of Michiga n ,  Dyslexia He lp  website l i sts common myths re lat ing to dyslexia . 
Some of the misconceptions regard ing dyslexia a re l i sted below. 

• Dys lexia can be outgrown .  

Dys lexia is  l ife long . Yearly mon itori ng o f  phonolog ica l sk i l l s  from fi rst through twe lfth 
g rade shows that the d isab i l ity pers ists i nto adu lthood . Although many students with 
dys lexia learn to read accurately, they may conti nue to read s lowly and not 
a utomatica l ly .  

• Dys lexia is innate, incurable ,  and  permanent. 

• 

• 

Whi le  dyslexia is a l ife long learn ing d isab i l ity , ea rly, intensive , and systematic 
i ntervent ion can help a student keep up  and reta i n  h is/her g rade level i n  schoo l ,  as wel l  
as m in imize t he  negative effects dyslexia can have,  such as low self-esteem and poor 
self-concept as a learner. 

Dys lexia can n ot be diagnosed u nti l third grade . 

Profess iona ls  can make a defin it ive d iagnosis as soon as the ch i ld  beg ins  to strugg le 
with learn ing  to read ,  spe l l ,  and write . The sooner a d iagnosis is made,  the q u icker the 
ch i ld  ca n g et he lp .  A combination of a fami ly  h istory of dyslexia and  symptoms of 
d ifficu lt ies i n  spoken language ca n he lp  identify a ch i ld  with a specific d isab i l ity that 
i nc ludes dyslexia . 

People with dyslexia cannot read . 

Most ch i ld ren  and adu lts with dyslexia a re ab le  to read ,  even if it is at a basic leve l .  
Spe l l i ng  is  one of the classic red flags a lerting pa rents a nd teachers o f  a serious 
underlyi ng  p rob lem.  The student may be unab le to understand the basic code of the 
Eng l ish language and cannot break down or reconstruct (with spel l i ng )  words  
us i ng  codes ( letters) .  

• C hi ld ren  with dys lexia wil l  never read wel l ,  so it's best to teach them to 
compensate. 

• 

I nd iv idua ls  with dyslexia can become terrific readers with the appropriate i ntervention .  It 
is  important to test a student early in order to identify any prob lems and attempt to 
prevent major read ing d ifficu lties before they even start .  

Only chi ldre n  with an IEP or 504 plan can receive classroom accommodations . 

Genera l  ed ucation teachers ca n provide classroom accommodat ions to any student, 
rega rd less of whether or not that student has an  I E P  or  a 504 plan . 



• If a ch i l d  with dys lexia reads a loud for 20 m i nutes per day, it wi l l  improve h is/her 
read ing .  

Read ing a loud w i l l  not he lp a ch i l d  sound out  unknown words .  I nstead , instruct ion that 
centers on understand ing sounds of ind ivid ua l  letters and how they b lend to create 
words wi l l  ass ist the student to improve h is/her read ing ab i l it ies. When the student is 
expected to read unknown words ,  he/she may try to memorize the sha pe of a word a nd 
use pictures and context c lues to guess the word , which may lead to frustration .  

• Students with dys lexia see th i ngs backwards. 

Students with dyslexia do not see th ings backwards because dyslexia is not a prob lem 
with the eyes.  Whi le new research has demonstrated that letter reversa ls of k indergarten 
ch i ldren  predicted spe l l i ng  at 2nd g rade ,  typica l  learners may reverse letters when 
i n it ia l ly  lea rn ing .  

• Ch i l d ren  with dys lexia are just lazy; they shou ld  try harder. 

Resea rch has shown , with the technology of functiona l  magnetic resonance imag ing 
(MR I ) ,  that students with dyslexia use a d ifferent part of the i r  b ra in  when read ing and 
work ing with language.  Students with dyslexia show a d ifferent pattern of bra in  function 
when read ing ; underactivity i n  some reg ions,  over activity i n  others which , accord i ng to 
resea rch ,  accounts for the d ifficu lty students have i n  extract ing mean ing from the pri nted 
word . If students with dyslexia do not receive the right type of i ntervention and/or 
classroom accommodations ,  they often strugg le  i n  schoo l ,  despite being bright ,  
motivated , and spending hours on homework ass ignments. 

• Gifted ch i ld ren  cannot have dys lexia or  a learn i n g  d isabi l ity. 

Many people with dyslexia a re a lso considered g ifted or ta lented and have gone on to 
accompl ish outstand ing th ings in the ir  l ives. Many famous authors ,  researchers ,  actors 
and actresses, pol it icians,  ath letes, and others from d ifferent professions have dyslexia . 

• Reta i n i ng  a ch i ld  w i l l  improve h is/her academ ic  struggles.  

Accord ing to severa l  institut ions ( U . S .  Department of Ed ucation ,  America n Federation of 
Teachers, Nationa l  Associat ion of School Psycholog ists) ,  there is no benefit to retention 
because it may not improve a student's academic strugg les .  These students do not need 
another year  of the same instruct ion - they need d ifferentiated intervention that is 
resea rch-based , systematic, and expl ic it .  



• 

• 

• 

• If a ch i l d  is not e l i g ib le  for s pecia l  education  services ,  that ch i ld  doesn ' t  have 
dys lexia .  

Dys lexia comes in  many degrees from mi ld to severe . Most ch i ld ren with dyslexia wi l l  not 
receive specia l education serv ices un less they score very poorly ( 1 0  percent i le or below) 
when comparing their level of performance to the ir  peers or to the expected leve l of 
performance on grade level sta ndards .  

• There i s  a test to determine  if an  i ndividua l  has dys lexia .  

There is  no s ing le test for dyslexia . A comprehensive eva l uat ion must be admin istered to 
support the conclusion of a SLD that can i nc lude dyslexia . Areas of assessment, 
determ ined by the mu lt id iscip l ina ry team ,  may inc lude phono log ica l process ing and ora l  
l anguage ,  a lphabet knowledge, decod ing , word recogn it ion ,  read ing fl uency,  read ing 
comprehens ion ,  spel l i ng ,  written expression ,  and cog n it ive funct ion ing .  

• Dys lexia i s  a condit ion that only medica l  p rofess iona ls  can d iagnose .  

Even though  dyslexia may be d iagnosed by a physician ,  it becomes a n  ed ucationa l  
issue when it s ign ificantly affects the student's performance i n  the school setti ng . Even 
when dyslexia is  d iagnosed by someone outside the school system ,  the school d istrict is 
req u i red to conduct a comprehensive eva luat ion to determ ine if the ch i ld  is e l ig ib le  for 
specia l education and re lated serv ices . 

A comprehens ive eva luat ion may inc lude the i nformation obta ined from sources outside 
the schoo l sett ing as pa rt of the process ;  however, the majority of assessments and 
tests a re admin istered by educators who a re tra ined i n ,  and knowledgeable of, the 
i nstruments and procedures to successfu l ly  identify SLD in  the a rea of read ing , which 
may inc lude dyslexia .  To be e l ig ib le  for specia l education serv ices u nder  the I nd iv idua ls 
with Disab i l it ies Ed ucation Act ( I DEA) , assessment resu lts must demonstrate that the 
d isab i l ity has a sig n ificant impact on the ch i ld 's  learn ing and the student is in need of 
specia l ly  des igned instruct ion . 



Resou rces 

• Center for Parent I nformat ion and Resources (CP I R) 
• Counc i l  for Except ion Ch i l d ren  (CEC) ,  Divis ion for Learn ing D isab i l it ies 
• I nternationa l  Dyslexia Association ( I DA) 
• I n stitute of Education Sciences ( I ES )  
• LD On l i ne  
• North Dakota Department of Publ ic  I nstruct ion (NDDP I )  
• Un ivers ity of Mich iga n ,  Dys lexia He lp  
• Learn ing  Disab i l it ies Associat ion of America (LDAA) 
• Nationa l  Center for Learn ing  Disab i l it ies (NCLD) 
• Teach ing LD 
• Understood for Learn ing and Attention I ssues 
• What Works Clearinghouse (WWC) 
• The Ya le Center for Dyslexia and Creativity 

• 

• 

• 
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Testimony of Dawn-Lentini Brookhart 

S ixty-sixth Legislative Assembly of North Dakota 

TestimonY- for the Legislative AssemhlY- of North Dakota fo1· House Bill 1461 
Thank you, Chairman Owens and members of the committee. It is an honor to testify this 

morning regarding House Bill 1 46 1 .  I am Dawn Lentini-Brookhart and I am in favor of the bill. 
I am currently the Director of Curriculum, Instruction and Technology in the Danville Area 
School District in Pennsylvania and a Board Member of the Pennsylvania Branch of the 
International Dyslexia Association. At Danville, we recently established a Reading and Dyslexia 
Academy, where we train teachers throughout our state in instructional strategies designed to 
help students with dyslexia and other reading difficulties. We are the only public school district 
in Pennsylvania to provide this type of professional development to teachers. 

The teaching of reading should not be left to chance. Unfortunately, statistics show that 
the majority of school districts across the United States are taking a mixed bag approach to the 
way they teach and assess reading. According to the most recent federal data, more than 60 
percent of fourth graders in the United States are not reading at grade level. 

Research shows that the teaching of reading is a science. We have the ability to rewire a 
child's brain to enhance his or her ability to read. This is critical for all students, especially 
Dyslexic students . Learning how to read is not a natural process for about 25% of students. It 
requires a research-based approach to applying the science of teaching reading. According to Dr. 
Sally Shaywitz, who serves as the Co-Director of the Yale Center for Dyslexia and Creativity and 
is the author of Overcoming Dyslexia, most students who are diagnosed with dyslexia are not 
identified until at least third grade. This results in a significant gap within the most crucial 
window of language acquisition in students, as reading deficiencies become apparent at the age 
of 4 and increase rapidly by third grade. 

Here are a few other facts to keep in mind as we look to remedy this nationwide epidemic : 

• Dyslexia is the most common learning disability. 

• Dyslexia is hereditary. 

• The United States Department of Health and Human Services estimates that 1 5% of the 
U. S .  population is dyslexic . Approximately 43 . 5  million Americans suffer from some 
form of dyslexia. 

• According to The International Dyslexia Association, approximately 85% of all students 
in special education are dyslexic, although they are invariably being treated for 
another disability and rarely for dyslexia. 

• One Texas study showed that more than 50% of incarcerated adults were dyslexic. 

Knowing all of this, why are our schools not doing more to intervene in an area where the 
research and knowledge exist to remedy this problem? Some of the major reasons include the 
Jack of expertise, limited professional development, and recognizing dyslexia as its own specific 
learning disability. 

In today 's world of advanced medicine, we are able to prescribe based upon one 's 
individual test results . Why should education be any different? Why is it acceptable to not be 
held to the same standard as medicine? All too often students experience numerous interventions 
that are not targeted based upon their areas of need. Due to the research and technology, we have 
the ability to assess, diagnose, and provide prescriptive instruction to each student's need. 
Unfortunately, our students do not receive the appropriate instruction or interventions because 
we fail to use data or apply research due to a Jack of in-house expertise. Having trained Dyslexia 
Specialists in North Dakota would result in districts being able to intervene to meet the students' 
needs on an individualized basis .  

These Dyslexia Specialists would also be able to provide professional development in 
reading to regular education teachers. Most elementary certified teachers had one to two classes 



in reading as part of their undergraduate programs. 1n Pennsylvarua, our elementary cert1tied 
teachers are required to take only one reading class. We often find that the majority of our 
candidates who interview for elementary teaching positions possess very little knowledge about 
reading. In 20 16 ,  the National Council on Teacher Quality analyzed syllabi from undergraduate 
elementary teacher preparation programs and found that fewer than 40% covered all the 
components of effective reading instruction. This is an increase from 20 1 4  when the NCTQ 
found only 1 7% of the programs taught all areas. 

Unfortunately, legislation has trailed research and dyslexia is often viewed as a medical 
disability and does not fall within traditional disabilities addressed with a student's Individual 
Educational Plan (IEP) .  Many states are enacting or have enacted legislation pertaining to 
dyslexia. It is our sincere hope that North Dakota will be next following the testimony you hear 
in this session. 

For twenty-two years, I have worked in education and during that time, I have served as a 
teacher, principal, Director of Special Education, and Director of Curriculum, Instruction, and 
Technology as well as a Fiscal Assistant for an intermediate unit. My credentials include an 
undergraduate degree in Economics and Japanese Studies, two Masters Degrees in Education, 
doctoral level work and Pennsylvania Certifications as a Reading Specialist, Japanese Teacher, 
K- 1 2  Principal, and Supervisor of Curriculum and Instruction. I am also accredited as an Orton­
Gillingham teacher through IMSLEC (International Multisensory Structured Language 
Education Council) . Orton-Gillingham is a multi-sensory methodology for teaching reading. It 
has been primarily used with individuals who have difficulty with reading, spelling, and writing. 

Without a doubt, the most life changing work I have had the pleasure of experiencing is 
my work in the area of literacy. Despite my experience in education, I was also making the same 
errors with the teaching of reading. As an administrator, I often faced making decisions that 
impacted thousands of students without having the proper training or expertise. At that time, I 
felt I was making well-informed decisions . It was not until I became familiar with and was 
trained in Orton-Gillingham instruction that I realized that I was also exacerbating the problem. 

In 2009, I took a position in the Danville Area School District as Director of Curriculum, 
Instruction, and Technology. At that time, Danville provided numerous interventions for 
students, but lacked a core curriculum in literacy. I learned about one of our students who was 
receiving tutoring after school. The family was paying a high hourly fee for this type of 
intervention. Upon further investigation, I learned the student was being tutored in Orton­
Gillingham in a neighboring town at a Dyslexia Center, the only one in our region. I was 
perplexed that despite providing numerous interventions to students, one of our own parents had 
to pay for reading instruction elsewhere . Our district owes where we are today to this parent, 
Dawn Koons-Gill, for opening our eyes to Orton-Gillingham and our poor approach to teaching 
reading. Mrs . Koons-Gill's passion and tireless efforts resulted in an evolution of change in 
literacy in the Danville Area School District. 

After researching the practices at the Children's Dyslexia Center, we felt it was 
imperative to begin training our teachers in Orton-Gillighham. In 20 10 ,  our first cohort of 
teachers participated in an extensive one-year training program, which consisted of lecture hours 
and one-to-one tutoring training with the supervisor and two students. The students' results from 
the first year surpassed the district's expectations for progress. No other intervention program 
produced results of this type. We decided to further invest in training our teachers in this type of 
methodology. 

Because Orton-Gillingham is designed as a one-to-one intervention, we struggled with 
the thought of only some of our students being able to receive this type of instruction. We 
decided to pilot Orton-Gillingham in two regular education classrooms. The students in these 
two classrooms were taught phonics instruction with classroom strategies based on the Orton­
Gillingham methodology. The Guided Reading Levels and other reading data spoke volumes 
about the success of implementing this type of multi-sensory approach in the core curriculum. 
Students with diverse learning levels from learning support to gifted were benefitting from our 

new approach to teaching reading. As a result, the district expanded the program in Kindergarten 
through second grade by developing an explicit phonics curriculum that was aligned to the 
methodology of Orton-Gillingham. The following year we expanded the program into grades 3 
and 4 and later Head Start. 

At Danville Area School District, all students benefit from having trained Reading 
Specialists teach them how to read. Reading is not left to chance. We recently started a Reading 
and Dyslexia Academy to offer our expertise to other teachers in our state . We feel it is 
imperative to grow our profession by teaching teachers how to teach Reading. 

You have the opportunity to change the trajectory for students in North Dakota as well as 



potentially change the landscape of reading in education. I sincerely hope the success at 
Danville Area School District can be replicated in other districts across the country. The passage 
of House Bill 1 46 1  in North Dakota would be a monumental step in that direction. Thank you 
for the opportunity to offer my testimony. 

1 



To the North Dakota House of Representatives :  

I am honored to  provide you testimony regarding dyslexia and my story. 

While in a private preschool in 200 1 ,  my son, Brandyn, was unable to grasp information 
while using the "Letter People" to learn letters and sounds. He also had difficulty with 
rhyming words. 

The following year, while enrolled in the half-day kindergarten program at the same 
school, Brandyn still was unable to grasp information. His teacher recommended we 
enroll him in their full-day program as she felt the reinforcement would be a benefit to 
him. We agreed to enroll him. Although he received additional instruction, Brandyn 
continued to struggle. 

Brandyn attended first grade at our local public school. On the first test he brought home, 
he scored a "D". I immediately phoned his teacher who assured me the school would be 
doing testing and if Title One services were warranted, he would be placed in the 
program. Testing was completed shortly there after and he was entered into the Title One 
program. None of the additional reinforcement seemed to make a difference. 

He continued to receive Title One reading interventions. In addition, we tried every 
program offered by the school as well as our local university. He completed two rounds 
of the 2004 Surnrner Reading Program. In the fall of 2004 and spring of 2005,  he was 
also enrolled in after-school tutoring, 

In January of 2005, Brandyn's second grade teacher suggested we seek further testing for 
him because of his difficulty with the class despite having an educational aide to assist 
him. The Child Study Team also recommended further testing. The teacher referred him 
to Instructional Support for further data collection. Following this referral, he was 
evaluated because of his low achievement in reading despite having Title One reading 
services and adaptations, which he had been receiving since first grade. In this 
evaluation, the following academic areas of concern were noted: poor test results and the 
ability to understand what is read. 

Notations from his teachers included: 



• Low overall reading ability 
• Distractibility 
• Substitutions of one word for another 
• Difficulty working independently 
• Wants a lot of help 
• Difficulty tracking while reading 
• Becomes frustrated very quickly in reading comprehension 
• Letter reversals in spelling 
• More frequent letter/word reversals in reading 
• Lack of background knowledge 
• Takes longer to decode words 
• Acts silly likely to "hide" that he does not understand material 
• Inconsistent when paying attention to visual information 

Following this evaluation, Brandyn was referred to the school psychologist for further 
testing. The results of this testing concluded that he was not a child with a disability. 
Noted at this time was his relative weakness in "working memory". It was 
recommended for him to continue to receive Title One services and tutoring in reading, 
and attend a summer reading camp. In addition, the following accommodations were 
noted: seating near the teacher to alleviate distractions, use of cues to help him focus, 
books on tape, a quiet place for homework at home as well as a regular time for 
homework, and continued participation in extracurricular activities. 

In speaking with Brandyn's cousin, he asked if Brandyn was tested for dyslexia as he had 
been tested and diagnosed some 20+ years ago while in the military. At this point, I 
started doing my own research. The signs were loud and clear. I phoned the school 
psychologist asking if she had done testing for dyslexia and was told, "No, but we look 
for signs". I immediately sought an independent evaluation. 

I contacted our nearby Masonic Reading Center after finding that they offered tutoring 
for children with dyslexia and spoke with Director, Cathy Clements. I was asked to send 
the results of the Brandyn's testing to her. Mrs. Clements planned to gather information 
from the report that would allow her to enter Brandyn into their Orton-Gillingham 
program. From this evaluation, Brandyn was placed on their waiting list. 

In the meantime, as directed by the school psychologist, we continued tutoring. In the 
summer of 2005, Brandyn was enrolled in the university Summer Reading Clinic that ran 
Monday through Thursday. In September of 2005, Brandyn attended the university 's 
reading tutoring program which was held every Tuesday from 5 : 30-6 : 15 PM and was a 
one-on-one program. In fall of 2005, he was entered into a Fast ForWord program at 
school. . .  NOTHING was helping and he continued to fall further behind. 

Finally, in September of 2005, I was able to get the independent evaluation completed on 
Brandyn. It was at this time Brandyn was diagnosed with a Reading Disorder (Probably 
Dyslexia). Recommendations included Brandyn being placed in an Orton-Gillingham 
based program, be given extended time in testing, and continue to receive Title One 
services during school. 

In October of 2005, we met with the school to review the results of the above 
independent evaluation. It was at this time, Brandyn was entered into the Wilson 
Reading Program. It was also noted that Brandyn was making progress in Title One. 
Although it was slight, his comprehension skills were not strong, fluency was slow, he 
did a lot of rereading and word endings threw him off. 
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In January of 2006, I received the results of Brandyn's Stanford Achievement test. This 
test revealed weaknesses in both Reading comprehension and language. 

In February of 2006, a conference was held to discuss Brandyn's expectations. 
Brandyn's continued difficulty with comprehension and length of time to complete 

homework was noted. Brandyn's reluctance to start assignments independently was also 
noted as was his difficulty to find evidence with fact/opinion in a reading selection. In 
addition, Brandyn's behavior was becoming out of control and math. Math was 
Brandyn's strength, but, it was beginning to falter as his math had gone from traditional 
arithmetic to literacy based. 

Also in March of 2006, I voluntarily removed Brandyn from the Wilson Reading 
Program offered by the district. The reason for this was the lack of training of teachers in 
multisensory learning. I phoned the Wilson program to find out the level of training of 
the teacher administering the intervention after being told by her that "Dyslexia is 
nothing but a catch-all". I discovered the instructors in the district had a two-day 
overview in Wilson despite the recommendation of having Wilson certified teachers. We 
paid for the services of a tutor who had been certified in the Orton-Gillingham 
methodology. This tutoring continued until June. 

In October 2006, Brandyn was enrolled in the Masonic Learning Center's Orton­
Gillingham Program. By the end of the school year, HUGE gains were made. By huge, I 
don't mean growing a year after a year because that still puts him behind his peers a year. 
The gains were MULTIPLE grade levels in a year. His grades were doing better, his 

morale was increasing, but we had a long way to go since he was so far behind. 
Interestingly, one of his tutors was employed by the State of PA Her job was to teach 

INMATES to read at a local state facility ! The inability to read is the most common 
shared characteristic of juvenile justice offenders . 

In January of 2007, I contacted an educational advocate to help me get our son a plan in 
place for his educational needs since the district was unwilling to do so. She suggested 
for a re-evaluation to be done; one that would be that more thorough. We were finally 
able get an appointment in May of that year. 

Results of the evaluation were reading disorder, dyslexia and other specific learning 
difficulties . The following weaknesses were included. 

Cognitive weaknesses in: 
• Long term retrieval 
• Perceptual speed 
• Working memory 
• Auditory memory span 

Academic weaknesses in: 
• Reading decoding, fluency, comprehension 
• Math fluency 
• Handwriting 
• Spelling 

Finally, after the school RE-EVALUATED Brandyn in October of 2007 a plan was put 
into place that provided learning support, small group testing, and eventually books on 
tape. 

Brand�n continued with tutoring with the Masonic Learning Center through May of 
2009. By that time, with some minor accommodations such as small group and extended 
time for testing, he was doing amazing in school. 
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At this point in time, I finally knew that my son was going to be ok; however, there were 
MANY kids who would not be. I was not ok with that. I knew what worked. I knew 
Danville Area School District did not have it. After I completed my research and saw the 
amazing progress my son was FINALLY making after all of the wasted time with the 
school tutoring, I approached our school board attempting to get them to understand what 
we had in place for this population (1 in 5) was not effective. My concerns fell on deaf 
ears . I was basically hushed in a schoolboard meeting in 2006. The following day, I 
visited our courthouse inquiring how to run for the School Board. I was elected to the 
Board that fall and began my first term in 2008. 

In 2009, our district hired Mrs . Dawn Brookhart as our curriculum director. I asked 
Dawn if she would be willing to meet with me about the Orton-Gillingham methodology . 
After all, no one else wanted to hear me because I was "just a morn" with no education 
in the education of our children. Mrs. Brookhart was beyond willing to listen to our 
story. She listened about how for years the education of our school district failed my son. 
She listened to how it was likely failing many others. She learned about the program 

that saved my son's life. She was very engaged in our conversation and clearly 
impressed with everything I had to say. She then began researching it for herself. 

Mrs. Brookhart later approached the Board with a proposal to get our reading specialists 
properly trained by the Masonic Learning Center 's Director, Cathy Clements. Not only 
did we receive unanimous Board buy-in, but, we also received the teachers to buy-in. We 
started with training a cohort of reading specialists. 

Today, Danville Area School District has since grown this program into something more 
than I ever dreamed it would be. Our results are staggering. With the outcomes being so 
overwhelming and believing in the program, Mrs. Brookhart took her personal time to 
become an Orton-Gillingham tutor as well ! We not only have an intensive program for 
the severely struggling students but, also, EVERY student in our district is being taught 
using the methodology in Pre-Kindergarten through fourth grade ! In addition, we opened 
an academy to allow other districts to send their teachers to us to learn the methodology . 
Just beyond my expectations ! Danville is a model for PA 

Danville Area School District is saving lives. I encourage North Dakota to do the same. 

In his 8t11 grade year, Brandyn was inducted into the National Jr. Honor Society. At the 
age of 1 5 ,  he became an American Heart Association CPR instructor, and at age 1 7, 
became a Pennsylvania State Certified Emergency Medical Technician. In 20 1 9, 
Brandyn is a Senior BSN Nursing student at Mansfield University. None of this would 
have been possible without the Orton-Gillingham methodology. 
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Testimony in  Favor of House B ill 1 461  
Sixty-sixth Leg islative Assembly of North Dakota 

Submitted By : Alysia Budd 

Thank you ,  Chai rman Owens and members of the committee.  It is an honor to be 
present th is morn i ng .  My name is Alys ia Budd and I am i n  favor of House B i l l  1 461 . I am 
provid ing a doub le testimony and am testify ing both professional ly and personal ly. 

My professional background is that I am a ped iatric occupational therapist with a 
g raduate certif icate i n  Dyslexia and Language-Based Learn ing Disab i l i t ies. I am a certif ied 
handwrit ing specia l ist ,  a certif ied Barton tutor, a dyslexia screener, and I cu rrently have over 
1 00 hours of formal Orton-G i l l i ngham trai n i ng and add it ional practicums with the Academy of 
Orton-G i l l i ng ham P ractitioners and Educators . I have 20 years of exper ience working with , and 
eva luat ing ch i ld ren  with various developmental and learn ing concerns. I am also the founder 
and d i rector of a center for dyslexia in  B ismarck where we offer special ized assessment and 
tutor ing for dyslexia and l iteracy concerns for ind ividuals rang ing in age from preschool through 
adu lthood . 

Most importantly, I am an incred ibly proud mother of th ree sons with dyslexia and a wife 
of a husband who also has dyslexia. They are al l present here th is morn ing in support of 
House B i l l  1 46 1 . 

As you l isten to testimon ies this morn ing ,  you w i l l  l i kely hear a common th read of the 
emotional  aspects that come with having this learn ing d ifference when i t  is not understood 
correctly. Dyslexia is not someth ing that you see , as it is a neurolog ical d ifference , a d ifference 
in the way the bra in  processes information .  Because of it being neurolog ical rather than 
physica l , often the s igns and symptoms are missed and students are thought of as lazy, less 
i nte l l igent than they real ly are , and parents are often blamed for not read ing to their ch i ldren 
enough .  We go through a lot of kleenex at our  center because parents are frustrated , angry, 
and sad that no one l i stened to them as they asked if it cou ld be dyslexia ,  as wel l  as for 
students who are emotional ly broken by the time they come to us. It does not need to be l i ke 
th is .  

Research is  ongo ing ,  but developmental dys lex ia has been proven to be genetic, and in  
our fam i ly we are 3 for  3 with 1 00% of our  sons having th is wonderfu l  brai n d ifference that 
makes language tasks, read ing ,  written expression ,  and spe l l i ng d ifficu lt .  I am able to say 
wonderfu l  b rai n d ifference because dyslexia is not a bad th i ng unless it is not correctly 
identif ied , cal led what i t  is ,  and if correct supports and i nterventions/instruction are not 
provided . In those cases ,  dyslexia can be i ncred ibly cr ippl i ng .  Although dyslexia is reported to 
be the most com mon learn ing d isabi l ity, it is widely misunderstood . 

Dyslexia most often occurs in  ind ividuals with average to above average IQs. There are 
amazing strength areas that are also often present with dyslexia .  Th is is a brai n that I tru ly 
be l ieve was created on purpose , and our world is more beautifu l  because of dyslexia. Just look 
around you ,  and you wi l l  d iscover al l  of the i nventions,  art ,  music ,  l iterature ,  and 
entrepreneur ia l  ventures that are al l  i n  existence because of someone with dyslexia. 

However, scientif ic research using functional M R l 's has proven just how d iff icu lt it is for 
those with dyslexia to activate the areas in  the bra in needed for profic iency i n  read ing and 
spe l l i ng .  Dr. Sal ly Shaywitz ,  from the Yale Center of Dyslexia and Creativity, has shown that 
there are d ifferences i n  wh ich areas of the brai n activate i n  a dyslexic brai n du ring read ing 
versus a non-dyslexic brai n dur ing read ing .  This research has shown that areas i n  the left 
hemisphere needed for read ing are not properly activat ing i n  a dyslexic brai n .  Research has 
also shown that with i ntensive ,  expl icit , systematic, and mu lt isensory instruction (also known 

Pag 1 1  



M-8 1'-1  w ( 
P-j'l q 

as the Orton-G i l l i ngham approach) ,  these areas do beg i n  to activate over t ime al lowing for "'1 
i ncreased read ing proficiency (Shaywitz , 2003) .  Dyslexia is not a vis ion problem.  I nd ividuals 
with dyslexia do not see th i ngs backward as many of us were to ld throughout the years . 
Although v is ion issues can co-exist with dyslexia, those issues are separate . Dyslexia exists 
along a spectrum as other neurolog ical d ifferences often do .  We see students with a wide 
variety of symptoms and severity at our center, but al l with the common underly ing featu res of 
d ifficu lt ies i n  the foundations of phonemic and phonolog ical awareness u l t imately resu lt ing i n  
d iff icu lt ies with read ing ,  spel l ing , and written expression .  The good news is th is - we know what 
dyslexia is ,  we know what to do about it ,  and it can be identif ied early. 

I have a un ique perspective in  that I have seen what happens when an ind ividual does 
not receive supports and i nterventions during school years with my husband , what happens 
when i t  is identif ied late ( in th i rd grade with our twins) , and when it is identif ied early ( in  
preschool with our  youngest) . What I can te l l  you is that the importance of  early identification 
and i ntervention cannot be stressed enough .  

By the t ime ou r  twins were identif ied , they were i n  th i rd g rade .  We had gone through a 
coup le of years of supplemental reading i nterventions at the i r  pub l ic  school without any real 
resu lts .  I was to ld th ings such as "he's the smartest kid I 've worked with in a long t ime, the day 
he decides to read , he wi l l  read" .  I remember th inking "they th ink  my sweet boy is  lazy?" 
Teachers wou ld ask me if my boys were go ing to bed early enough because they seemed so 
ti red and worked so s lowly that they were sett ing t imers on the i r  desks to make them work 
faster. The creative , Lego bu i ld ing protege boys of ours started to have frequent accidents at 
school d ue to anxiety, but no one noticed . They began withdrawing , th rowing books across the 
room at home,  and cryi ng every s ing le day after school from pure exhaustion from working so 
hard al l day. They also began to notice that they weren 't able to read l i ke thei r  fr iends, and no 
matter how hard we stud ied for spe l l i ng tests , the tests wou ld come back marked up i n  red 
saying "study harder, I know you can do it" .  It was a devastat ing t ime for us ,  yet a l l  I was to ld 
was to keep read i ng with them,  that it wou ld come on its own . 

As a therapist , that d idn 't make sense to me.  I wanted to know why our smart boys were 
unexpectedly strugg l i ng ,  and what to do about. The teachers who loved my boys , and did a l l  
they knew to do ,  d id not know and understand dyslexia ,  and i f  any of them d id ,  they d id not tel l  
u s .  And  besides,  i t  wasn 't that they cou ldn 't read at al l ,  they cou ld . But why cou ldn 't they sound 
out unknown words ,  why d id the i r  words get j umbled when they spoke , why cou ldn 't they spel l 
with hours and hours of practice , and why d id my boys , who had been read to s ince the day 
they were born , suddenly hate books and read ing ?  I d idn 't know the s igns ,  our teachers d idn 't ,  
no one cou ld  help me. I had to seek out help separate from the schools whom I had put my 
trust i n ,  and fo l low my i nsti nct as a mother and as an occupational therapist .  I had them 
screened for dyslex ia ,  and after spend ing a day crying that I hadn 't caught it sooner, I pu l led 
myself together  and began learn ing how to he lp them and teach them myself . 

The day dyslexia was confi rmed with the twins was a day that was so freeing for a l l  of 
us .  Now we knew WHY our  twins were strugg l i ng .  Now we had clear d i rection of what to do to 
he lp them . I ' l l  never forget the day I cal led my mom , a former educator who had questioned 
dyslexia when the twins were in k indergarten , who said to me, "now, Alysia ,  you aren 't going to 
te l l  anyone about thei r  dyslexia, are you?" Wel l ,  we can al l see how wel l  I l i stened to that .  I 
understand why she asked that as for many years dyslexia has not been talked about, people 
have been made to fee l  shamefu l and looked down upon . Because of widely bel ieved 
m isconceptions about dyslexia, people have h id the i r  learn ing d ifferences, and we have not 
moved forward . S ince that day of learn ing it was dyslexia, I have never stopped tal k i ng about 
dyslexia ,  read ing and learn ing the science of read ing ,  trai n i ng ,  advocat ing for every ind iv idual 
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with dyslexia ,  and advancing my education i n  the f ie ld of dys lexia and language-based 
learn ing d isabi l i t ies. I knew that if my boys were dyslexic ,  there were many others who also 
were , and that someth ing needed to change . 

S ince 20 1 5 , I have had the honor and privi lege of working with several North Dakota 
pub l ic  and private schools .  Our North Dakota teachers are some of the best there are . What I 
have learned is  that there is a g reat deg ree of variance i n  how our  schools are respond ing to 
dyslexia .  Some have welcomed our outside expertise i n  dyslexia ,  a l lowing us to supplement 
i nstruct ion when parents have requested us to do Orton-G i l l ingham based instruction during 
the school  day, and co l laborated with us as outs ide professionals creat ing an atmosphere of 
learn ing and support that has resu lted in students f lou r ish ing .  Some school professionals ,  
inc lud i ng c lassroom teachers, read ing specia l ists , speech language patholog ists, occupational 
therapists , school psycholog ists , and pri ncipals have even recommended our center for further 
eva luat ion and tutor ing , col laborati ng together to do what is i n  the best i nterest of the student. 
Unfortunate ly this has not been the response from al l  schools .  

Many teachers are eager to learn a l l  they can about dyslexia. Some schools support 
th is and wi l l  say dyslexia, others do not. I have exper ienced s ign if icant d ifferences even with in  
a school such as from a teacher one year to a teacher the next year, from a change in  
leadersh ip  with i n  a school from one year to  another, as  wel l  as  from one school to  another 
school , or  from one d istr ict to another d istr ict .  Th is is not fair to our students ,  to our teachers ,  
or to our  parents . Being a parent of  a dys lexic ch i ld is exhausti ng i n  our  North Dakota schools .  

There are many teachers who want to learn about how they can best support students 
with dyslexia ,  but they are not always supported in do ing so. There were educators who 
wanted to be here today to testify in support of HB  1 46 1  who shared with me that they could 
not ,  for fear of ramifications from thei r  school d istr icts . I bel ieve that shows what an issue th is 
is ,  and why after a l l  of these years , we are sti l l  not consistently and effectively add ressing 
dyslexia i n  ou r  school systems. 

From my exper ience ,  resistance has been based on personal op in ions about dyslexia 
and read i ng i nterventions rather than on what is  best for students and fami l ies ,  and on what 
science has taught us .  I missed the warn ing s igns of dyslexia not on ly i n  my twins i n it ial ly, but 
in so many students I had worked with as an OT in the pub l ic school systems.  I d id not know 
what I d id not know. When teachers and admin istrators don 't have the correct i nformation 
about dyslexia ,  they can 't change the trajectory of instruction .  There is a d iscord that exists 
between the science of dyslexia and educational theories about dyslexia. House Bi l l  1 46 1  aims 
to improve that d iscord i n  North Dakota. 

Schools have been increas ing their  efforts i n  addressing the social-emotional learn ing 
needs of the i r  students and I applaud these efforts . I would also l i ke to touch on the fact that 
dyslexia is  one of the reasons why some of our  students are exper iencing social-emotional 
d i ff icult ies, yet in most cases, dyslexia isn 't even be ing recogn ized . If we don 't identify why a 
student is  acti ng out ,  depressed , experiencing anxiety, or exh ibit ing symptoms of ADHD which 
may be wrong ly d iag nosed , our efforts with social-emotional prog ramming are futi le .  The 
emotional  damage that resu lts when dyslexia is not identified , supported , and correctly 
remed iated is staggering . 

• 1 i n  6 ch i l d ren who are not read ing prof iciently i n  th i rd g rade do not g raduate from 
h igh  school on time, four  times the rate for ch i ld ren with prof ic ient th i rd g rade 
read ing ski l l s  (Hernadez, 20 1 1 )  
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• Approximately 80% of prison inmates are functional ly i l l iterate , 48% of them being 

dys lex ic (Moody, et.a l . ,  2000) 

• U .S .  Senator B i l l  Cassidy incl uded a provis ion for screen i ng inmates for dyslexia in 
the new version of the Fi rst Step Act (S .3649) 

• Accord ing to Dr. Nad ine Gaab, PhD ,  a "late d iagnosis of dyslexia often leads to 
low self-esteem , depression ,  and antisocial behavior" (F l ies ler, 20 1 7) .  

I t  i s  a myth that dyslexia can 't be  identif ied early, as  i t  is poss ib le to  identify early 
warn ing s igns as young as ages 3-4, particu larly when there is  a fami ly h istory of language­
based learn ing d i sabi l it ies. Dr. Nad ine Gaab, PhD of Boston Ch i ldren 's ,  along with her 
col leagues ,  stud ied the brains of i nfants with and without a fam i ly h istory of dys lexia. They 
d iscovered the fo l l owi ng : 

• "Atypical brain development associated with Developmental Dyslexia is al ready 
present with in  the fi rst 1 8  months of l ife" (Gaab, et. al , 20 1 5) 

• Dyslexia is  genetic, and those brain d i fferences are present i n  i nfancy. 

• Ch i ld ren are enteri ng Kindergarten with a bra in " less opt im ized to learn to 
read" (Gaab, 20 1 7) .  

• A wait-to-fai l  approach resu lts i n  "considerable psycholog ical damage and 
stigma" ( Fl iesler, 20 1 7) 

I am so thankfu l that I was able to identify the early warn ing s igns i n  our  youngest son 
as he does not have the emotional damage that we had to work very hard to repai r in our older 
boys . He  has been receiving Orton-G i l l ingham based instruction s i nce he was 4 years old and 
although he wi l l  always be dyslexic, he has not exper ienced the emotional damage and se lf­
esteem and self-efficacy d ifficu lt ies that our o lder boys had to endure .  It has been the greatest 
joy of my l ife to see my boys now exce l l i ng in schoo l .  We are thankfu l for a school that has 
a l lowed them to be tutored duri ng the school day, and for the i ncred ib ly supportive and loving 
teachers who have provided them with recommended accommodations and support without 
any hesitation .  They now attend a private school that has been open to learn ing about 
dyslexia .  The preschool at the i r  school has also been trai ned in the early warn ing s igns of 
dyslexia ,  and has begun  identifying and referri ng preschoolers for early intervent ion who are at 
r isk ,  s imply through the i r  dai ly observations and use of progress mon itor ing tools that were 
al ready i n  p lace . 

As we cons ider necessary leg is lation addressing dyslexia i n  our  North Dakota schools ,  
one of the chal lenges I foresee with HB  1 461  is with regards to screen i ng al l students before 
second g rade .  It i s  vita l ly i mportant that a screen be correctly defi ned . A screen by defi n it ion 
shou ld be qu ick ,  yet effective . It does not need to be time i ntensive as the sole i ntent of a 
screen i s  identify ing warn i ng s igns of dyslexia early. A screen i n  th is  matter is very d ifferent 
from a fu l l  dyslexia screen i ng evaluation which is 2-3 hours of testi ng that is completed after 
warn ing s igns have al ready been flagged , or dys lexia test ing from a qua l if ied psycholog ist or 
neuropsycholog ist .  Teachers are al ready very overwhelmed with demands placed upon them 
in the classroom . I t  is  poss ib le that too ls that are al ready in p lace and being used in  our  
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schools  cou ld  be identifying warn ing signs of dyslexia if teachers knew how to i nterpret the 
data specif ical ly with regards to dyslexia .  If not, it may be worthy of consideration to examine 
whether o r  not the too ls being used by our  schools are the best for identify ing at r isk students, 
or if there is  an alternative . 

House B i l l  1 46 1  cal ls for annual train i ng on dyslexia for a l l  teachers. Because dyslexia 
affects students in every single subject area, th is is essential . A l l  educators shou ld be 
knowledgeable about how students with dyslexia learn . As al l educators become more 
knowledgeable about what dyslexia is ,  and how it is exhibited i n  a classroom setti ng ,  
screen i ngs wi l l  become an automatic part of the i r  assessment of the i r  students and they wi l l  
beg i n  to  recogn ize those warn ing signs on a dai ly bas is .  Some educators al ready do see 
warn ing s igns ,  but I have been to ld by them that they are not al lowed to vo ice the i r  concerns, 
or to say dys lexia .  Parents have the r ight to know if the i r  ch i ld cou ld have dyslexia ,  and parents 
re ly on the expert ise of those i n  education to catch it and to te l l  them early. 

Another  chal lenge I foresee with HB  1 46 1  is  with regards to the credent ia l i ng of dyslexia 
special ists . I t  w i l l  be vital to def ine the qual if ications carefu l ly in order to ensure proper train ing 
and expert ise are both ach ieved , and that schools are g iven time to develop these resources 
as it is not a q u ick process . 

It is  also i mportant that as a commun ity, we rea l ize that the respons ib i l ity of fu l l  
remed iat ion of  dyslexia does not fal l  so lely on our  schools who are a lso educati ng hundreds of 
students with various learn ing and emotional d ifficult ies. What is the respons ib i l i ty of the 
schools  is  to acknowledge dyslexia, provide a learn ing envi ronment, emotional support ,  and 
curr icu l um that is  effective for al l learners ,  and to be knowledgeable rather than resistant to 
learn about up to 20% of the i r  student popu lation .  H B  1 46 1  provides the steps necessary to 
ach ieve th is i n  a l l  schools .  I personal ly love working with schools and teachers ,  it is a passion 
of mine as I have a profound respect for al l that our  educators do day i n  and day out. With th is 
b i l l ,  we need to provide schools with the resources and support that they need i n  order to be 
successfu l .  

No longer can w e  sit back and conti nue to ignore the fact that a s  many as 1 in  5 ,  up to 
20% of each and every classroom is dyslexic. As a therapist and as a mother, I apolog ize to 
every ind iv idual  and fam i ly who has been treated poorly, who has been told dyslexia isn 't real , 
who be l ieves they are less than they are because of our  ignorance .  We d id not know, and I am 
so sorry for all you have been through .  But now we do know. We have read the science ,  we 
have seen the incred ible effectiveness of correct instruction ,  and we can do better. North 
Dakota has an opportun ity to what is r ight for our students with dyslexia ,  and I ask that you 
vote yes on House Bi l l  1 46 1 . Vote yes and say dyslexia for the 1 in 5. 
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Written Testimony in Support of HB146 1  
20 1 9  Legislative Session - Committee Hearing, February 6 ,  20 1 9  at 8 :30  a .m. 

Submitted By: KrisAnn Norby-Jahner 

Dyslexia does not know sex, race, national ity, soc ioeconomics, or any other factor. It does not have "one 
face ." It is not recognizable or unique to a spec ific class. It does not care how educated your parents are 
or how good of a reader your s ibl ings are . It is s i lent, it is prevalent, and it goes largely undetected 
before 3 rd grade in the State of North Dakota. I am a lawyer and an adjunct Engl ish professor. I have a 
Juris Doctorate ; I have a Ph.D .  in Engl ish and American Literature ; I have an M.A.  in English; I have a 
B .A.  in Engl ish and Mass Communications . . .  and I have a 6-year-old daughter who is showing early 
warning signs of dyslexia and struggles to receive serv ices in North Dakota ' s  publ ic school system. 

We are attentive parents. We read to our chi ldren, we enro l l  them in preschoo l ,  and we want to make 
sure they are ready for the ever-increasing demands of Kindergarten before they even step foot in our 
state ' s  publ ic school system. But all of our attentiveness and all of our preparation cannot change who 
our daughter Kaurie is and what Kaurie needs in order to learn to read and write . She was born this  way. 
She is smart, kind, and empathetic and was eager to race out the door to preschool and learn l ike her 
o lder brother who began reading before he even entered those same preschool doors . But his path is not 
her path . Within a month of starting preschool ,  Kaurie became withdrawn, wouldn 't  talk about 
preschool ,  and feigned numerous stomachaches in attempts to avoid attendance . This was not the same 
l ittle girl ,  eager to learn her letters and bring home early-reader books l ike her brother before her had 
done. She wouldn 't  speak in c lass. She froze when cal led on to answer questions about letters or 
numbers. She couldn 't  draw a straight l ine in her handwriting book, let alone form any of the letters that 
her peers were working on. Whi le she watched peers around her excel ,  recite letter sounds, and, some, 
begin to read, Kaurie felt left behind. By October, shortly before her 5 th birthday, her preschool teachers 
expressed concern that Kaurie needed to be tested for what they perceived may be cognitive and 
sensory-related delays as compared to her peers . Whi le we knew Kaurie could sing the alphabet and 
count out loud to ten, we were hoping that preschool would help her final ly start to visual ly recognize 
letters, identify letter sounds, and write her letters and numbers . But despite repeated teaching three days 
a week in preschool and numerous one-on-one lessons at home, she could not perform these tasks . We 
would show Kaurie the letter "A" and te l l  her th i s  letter is cal led "A." We would put it down and pul l  it 
out I O  seconds later, and she sti l l  could not recognize that the shape before her was a letter, let alone the 
letter "A." 

Upon the recommendation of her preschoo l teachers, we began our own early intervention and sought 
out any and al l  serv ices we could find. Unfortunately, we learned very quickly (and were repeatedly to ld 
by professionals in education) that "dyslexia" cannot be diagnosed or tested before 3 rd grade. Nothing 
could be done . Give it time. She would come around. Had we thought about simply "holding her back?" 
These answers were unacceptable .  We were appal led. What does it accompl ish to wait for a chi ld 
showing early warning s igns of dyslexia to advance into Kindergarten, 1 st , and 2nd grades a l l  the while 
struggl ing to keep up with peers? What does it accompl ish to let a chi ld fail  before final ly giving her 
help? What does it accompl i sh to let a chi ld' s self-esteem deteriorate to the po int that she bel ieves she ' s  
a failure before she ever even has a fair chance to advance? Before our chi ld, our Kaurie, even set foot in 
the North Dakota publ ic  schoo l system, we refused to accept the answers we had been given. 

We have spent thousands of do l lars out-of-pocket on testing, evaluation, and any private serv ices we can 
find to help Kaurie advance ever-so-sl ightly toward the level p laying field on which h"er peers operate . 
By the end of preschool (20 1 7-20 1 8  school year), Kaurie attended preschool three (3) days a week, and 
received occupational therapy and Orton-Gi l l ingham-based intervention with an emphasi s  on improv ing 



her l iteracy five (5) days a week. She continued Orton-Gi l l ingham-based intervention al l  of last summer 
in preparation for Kindergarten (20 1 8-20 1 9  school year) ; and in June 20 1 8 , we submitted an official 
request for evaluation for special education serv ices to the B ismarck Publ ic School D istrict under the 
federal Individuals with Disabi l ities Education Act (IDEA). We could not have been more prepared. We 
could not have (and cannot) do any more than we have already done for Kaurie .  Early intervention, 
screening, testing, and services for dyslexia do not exist in our current public school system for 
children through 2 nd grade. We underwent the arduous and long evaluation process required by lDEA 
and advanced through it as quickly as we possibly could have (which is not very quick at al l ) .  We 
repeatedly explained our concerns about dyslexia. We have shared al l  of Kaurie ' s  testing and results 
from the Inspiring Minds Center for Literacy and Dyslexia. We have explained the Orton-Gil l ingham­
based intervention serv ices she receives . The school and the special ists l i sten, but there is nothing they 
can do for our concerns regarding dyslexia specifical ly when Kaurie is sti l l  in Kindergarten. Our 
occupational therapists and special educators in the North Dakota public school systems are not trained 
in Orton-Gi l l ingham approaches. There are simply no early intervention strategies avai lable or in place 
to address the early warning s igns of dyslexia. 

Kaurie ' s  Indiv idual Education Plan ( IEP) was j ust final ly written in January 20 1 9, but it does not 
address dyslexia. [t did not include testing for dys lexia. It does not include serv ices for dyslexia. But her 
story is, in fact, sti l l  a success . Kaurie ' s  story is a success because we have found a private l iteracy 
center that is wi l l ing to intervene - to offer the serv ices she desperate ly needs. We have found a 
Kindergarten teacher who works with us and implements accommodations in the classroom according to 
what Kaurie needs even when it is not required by her TEP. We have found an OT, PT, and special 
education team in our public school system that are sympathetic to her struggles even when the word 
"dys lexia" cannot be uttered in our IEP meetings. Because of the early intervention we have paid dearly 
f2L out-of-pocket and because of our pushing and constant advocacy for Kaurie, her self-esteem and 
l iteracy ski l l s  have both improved . She has a long road ahead of her and a long way to go , and she is not 
yet on par with her peers (and she may never be) . But she is a lot c loser to that level p laying field than 
she ever would have been without the early intervention we have pushed for and paid for through private 
dyslexia serv ices .  

Kaurie ' s  story may be a success, but what about the stories of ALL of our chi ldren in North Dakota? 
What about those chi ldren who did not attend preschool or cross paths with someone who suspected 
early warning s igns of dyslexia? What about those parents who cannot afford private services? Who 
cannot leave work in the middle of the day l ike my husband and I do to transport those children to 
private serv ices? What about those children who live in rural areas and do not have access to early­
intervention dyslexia serv ices? I have no doubt what-so-ever that our schools ,  teachers, administrators, 
and special ists are doing everything they possibly can for our chi ldren within the ir capacity and training. 
But the state of North Dakota needs to do more. Our state needs to enact legis lation that al lows for early 
intervention screening for dyslexia, that gives our public school educators and special ists proper 
training, and funds those early intervention serv ices that so many of our chi ldren need. Our fami ly 
respectful ly asks that the Committee respond favorably in support of this  b i l l  to move this important 
legis lation toward enactment. 

S incerely, 
/ /cJt�� . 11 j?c-�c, 

KrisAnn Norby-Jahner 



Testimony for Dyslexia Bi l l  HB 146 1  
February 6 ,  20 1 9  

Li sa El ijah 
PO Box 433 

Mandan , ND 58554 

I am a parent of two children with dyslexia ,  and I 'm  writing my story to support HB 146 1 . 

"You ' re not reading enough with her and that 's  why her fluency isn ' t  where it needs to be ." 

My daughter ' s  Title  I reading teacher said thi s  to me during spring parent-teacher 

conferences of her kindergarten year. As the reading teacher continued to tell me about how she 

repeatedly confronted my oldest daughter in the hal lway to say that she needed to read to Harper, 

too , i t  felt l ike thi s  teacher blamed me -and my enti re family -for Harper 's lack of reading 

progress . 

After I got home and had time to process the meeting , I sti l l  couldn 't  figure out how 

Harper ' s  reading abil ity was purely due to a lack of more reading . I had two older kids who 

could read , the oldest of whom had also been in  this teacher 's Title I class and graduated out of 

it. 

I called the children's therapy center where one of my older children had speech therapy. 

Thankfully, Harper ' s  kindergarten teacher gave us very specific feedback during that spring 

parent-teacher conference . I passed that information to the screener, along with how our nightly 

reading went,  and she was the first to point me toward dyslexia .  

I had emailed Harper's kindergarten teacher and talked to the school psychologist . There 

was no help for Harper in  the school system . Her learning disabi l ity wasn 't  supported . 

Eventual ly, we ended up at Inspiring Minds and finally got answers and help .  Everything we did 



to figure out what Harper needed , and the help she received , was out of the school system. And 

since learning disabil ities aren 't covered by medical insurance , it was also out of pocket . 

Harper 's  kindergarten teacher supported us as much as possible , but she was l imited with 

what she could do beyond continuing to send Harper to Title I .  Summer school wouldn 't help a 

student l ike her, so we opted out and spent the summer getting her lessons through Inspiring 

Minds . 

We continued through first grade , but my attempts to work with her first grade teacher didn 't 

go beyond "Thanks for letting me know." The instructors at Inspiring Minds were wil l ing to 

coordinate their  lessons with Harper 's reading lessons at school . I repeatedly emailed the teacher 

to request that she touch base with Harper ' s  instructor from Inspiring Minds , but that was as far 

as i t  went . 

During fall parent-teacher conferences , I di scussed where we were with Harper 's  

supplemental education . When I brought up dyslexia ,  a l l  the teacher said was "I j ust don 't see i t ." 

When I outl ined the specific problems Harper had and how Inspiring Minds was approaching her 

education , the teacher said again ,  "I just don 't see it" and also asked , "Wouldn 't she be writing 

whole words backwards?" 

I discussed Harper 's  difficulties seeing the board despite passing her eye exam, and that she 

also suffered from occasional photosensitivity -both attributed to dyslexia .  Harper was able to 

sit closer to the board . Out of the entire year, thi s  was the only help Harper received for her 

learning disabil ity: 

By the time spring parent-teacher conferences arrived , we 'd  been bringing Harper twice 

weekly to lessons outside of the school system . Harper 's improvement was nearly up to standard 

for her age . The teacher in Title I wanted to graduate her from the program . However, because 



she started so far behind , her first grade teacher requested she stay in for the rest of the year. 

Harper was graduated from the program. She appeared to be a Title I success story when in 

reali ty, she was going to Inspiring Minds twice a week for a year. 

My youngest child also started with Inspiring Minds after struggl ing for two years to 

improve her speech . She's only five . Traditional speech therapy hasn 't been as effective as 

dyslexic specific education . The girl s are at a different school now. We have no access to school 

provided speech therapy, but it wouldn 't help my youngest any more than her other speech 

therapy. 

Even with supportive , engaged teachers I sti l l  have to address problems stemming from the 

lack of dyslexia awareness and how it affects children . For instance , when the girl s  take a long 

time to answer and stumble over words , the teacher says things l ike "Hurry up , or I have to move 

on ." This is done in front of the class .  She doesn 't real ize that these problems with speech are a 

common trait in  those with dyslexia .  

School s have the abi lity to create individual ized education plans for chi ldren - except for 

those with dyslexia .  We know dyslexia is the most common learning disabil ity. We know the 

percentages .  There are establ i shed and proven learning methods to teach children with dyslexia .  

After my experience with my daughters , and after learning what her father and her grandparents 

went through in school , I 'm  left with one question . Why has nothing changed? 

I tel l  you my story to provide examples of how the publ ic school system is  unable to provide 

education and services for children with dyslexia .  I support HB 146 1 . Thank you for your time . 

Sincerely, 
Lisa Elijah 



Q Test imony  for P u b l i c  Hear i ng  
E D U CATION COM MITTEE  
House  B i l l  # 1461 

Ha ley's Hope 

Good morn i ng  Cha i rman  Owens, a n d  members of t he  Educat ion Com m ittee .  

My  name i s  Kar i  Bucho lz ,  Fou nde r  and  Execut ive D i rector of  Ha l ey's Hope .  H a l ey's Hope i s  a 
com p rehens ive dys lex ia  l ea rn i ng  center located i n  West Fa rgo; however, we p rovid e  services to 
t he  en t i re state of No rth  Dakota . 

Tha n k  you for t he  opportun ity to add ress House B i l l  #146 1 . . .  

T o  sta rt, I h ave a few rhetorica l q u est ions  fo r you .  

1 .  H o w  m a ny o f  you work u p  th i s  morn i ng  t o  a n  a l a rm c lock you set l a st n ight, looked at 
you r  watch or phone  to te l l  the t ime .  

2 .  H ow  m a ny p i c ked u p  t h e  newspape r, looked a t  a web s ite, sent a n  ema i l  o r  text, o r  read 
the p i l e  of pape rs s im i l a r  to what stack  you h ave i n  front of you now. 

3 .  H o w  m a ny stopped t o  get gas, h a d  t o  read  t h e  i n st ruct ion s  o f  h o w  t o  do  it, p u sh the  
n u m be rs fo r you r  z i p  code, known to push  the  words "yes' o r  'no' ,  a re you pay ing  with 
cre d it ca rd ,  cash, deb it, do  you want a ca rwash  . . .  what type . . .  

4 .  How  m a ny b i l l boa rds, s igns for bus i ness, d i d  you d r ive by  fu l l  o r  words; a n d  s ome  with 
p ictu res .  

Tha n k  goodness fo r the p ictu res . . .  

5 .  F o r  t he  p a rents he re, how many d i d  a l l  o f  these th i ngs, a n d  then  d ropped off you r  cryi ng 
c h i l d  at schoo l  for another  day of read i ng, writ i ng  and a r it hmet ic? No, I mean another  
day  of emba rrassment, a nd  frustrat ion . Of  fee l i ng  d u m b  and  worth l ess .  

Over the past 13  yea rs, I h ave been tryi ng to figu re out th i s  educat io n a l  p h rase .  



"You a re taught to read  up to th i rd grad e, a n d  from th i rd grade  o n  you read to l ea rn . "  

I d on 't u n d e rsta n d  th i s, beca use if you a re dys lexic, and  a re not i dent ifi ed  ea r ly, mean i ng  
k i n d e rga rten  o r  fi rst grade, a nd  ca n 't rea d  at-grad e  l eve l by 3 rd or  4th grad e, h ow do you learn ? 

The  fact i s  . . .  l f  you ca n 't read  (o r  write )  t he  a b i l ity to LEARN i s  tota l ly w iped out .  

To br ief ly d emon st rate to you what I mean ,  I wou l d  l i ke to i ntrodu ce you to a few of the 
stu de nts in  o u r  ND Educat ion system .  The students we work with come  from over 62  d iffe rent 
com m u n it i es  in No rth  Dakota, not j u st the Fa rgo/West Fa rgo Area .  ( Refe r to l i st of count ies )  

F i rst, th is  sweet, t h i rd-grade  g i r l  who has been in p u l l -out read i n g  se rvices for two yea rs, 
is i n  t he  15th % for read i ng th i s  yea r and  does not q u a l ify for any  structu red  remed iat ion .  

o P lease  tu rn the  page to see how she  d i d  on  a recent spe l l i n g  test . 
o P lease  tu rn the  page aga i n  a n d  rea d  the story she  wrote a bout a n  acc i dent she  

h a d .  

T h i s  n ext you ng  ch i l d  i s  a second grade r, a n d  h a s  been  i n  Tit le  serv ices s i n ce l a st yea r. 

o Th i s  i s  a l ette r  she  wrote to h e r  mom at the  begi n n i ng  of th i s  schoo l  yea r . 

N ext i s  a stu dent i n  5th grade, who ha s  been receiv i n g  se rvices i n  Tit l e  1 s i nce 
k i n d e rga rten .  S i tt i ng  on  the 'be low average', 'on watch'  every yea r  on  NWEA/AIMS web 
test i ng .  

0 The fi rst spe l l i ng  test i s  from J a n  of 2018, 
0 The second  i s  the same words i n  M a rch of 2018 .  

The  l a st stu dent I want you to see i s  a j u n io r  in  H igh Schoo l .  

• IE P i n  SLD  s i nce k i nde rga rten for bas ic  read i ng  a nd  read i ng  fl u ency 
• FSIQ-99 
• IEP d ated 10/6/2018 

o In Corrective Read i ng P rogram i n st ruct io n a l  read i ng  l eve l  'C" 
o Th i s  i s  app rox. 5-7 grade  l eve l .  
o Stu dent has  been i n  severa l p rograms  over the  yea rs .  
o At h i s  l a st IEP meet ing, the p r i n c i pa l  asked h i s  p a re nts what they wanted 

t hem to focus on. Teach i ng  h im  how to accommodate a n d  mod ify h is work 
or j u st focus on  gett ing h im  to gra du ate .  

Aga i n ,  th i s  i s  a sma l l  s amp l e  of the stu dents I work with from across the state .  I wou l d  l i ke now 
to a d d ress each  po i n t  i n  House B i l l  #1461. 
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Sect ion 2 

1 )  Wh i l e  I a m  pass ionate about creat i n g  a dys lex ia screen i n g  p roced u re for ou r  ch i l d re n .  
I b e l i eve we  need t o  sta rt h i s  process p rio r  t o  second  g ra de .  

• I d o  not see the  need to screen  EVERY student a s  t h i s  wi l l  b e  tax i ng  on  staff a nd  
fi n anc i a l  resou rces .  

• I created a p rogram ca l l ed  Every Ch i l d  A Reader  about s ix yea rs ago, with 
spec ifics on who, when  a n d  how to screen  students .  

• I b e l i eve a more effect ive a n d  effi c ient  m ethod of screen i ng  shou l d  focus on  t he  
stu d e nts who  a re most a t  r i sk .  

• Incorporat i ng  l eve l s  of screen i n g  sta rt i ng  at k i n d e rga rten ,  fo l l owi ng  t h rough at 
fi rst grade, a nd  extend i ng i nto second  g ra de .  

• Areas to cons ide r  sta rt i ng  to i m p lement t hese screen i n gs a re for students who 
a re a l ready showing low scores on  test i ng  a l ready be i ng  com p l eted across the  
stat e :  DIBLES< GORT, AIMS WEB, NWEA/STAR test i n g, a n d/o r  teache rs see i ng  
extrao rd i n a ry st ruggles, students cu rrent ly o n  IEP 's  o r  SJ)As, i n  Tit l e  1, 
Amer iCo rps, resou rce read i n g  suppo rt, etc. 

3 )  I agree with : Dys lex ia  screen i ngs s hou l d  be  created with a sta n d a rd p rotoco l for each 
stage (yea r )  i t  i s  a dm i n i ste red .  As I referenced a bove . 

• However, dys lex ia screen i ng  can not be  based o n  fl uency a nd/o r  j u st 
d ecod ing .  (As the above test i ng  p l atfo rms  look a t . )  

• It i s  a bout aud itory d iscr im i n at ion a n d  phonem i c  awa reness so you can be 
successfu l w i th  phon ics and fl uency bu i l d i n g  p rograms .  ( see handout )  

• The  screen i ngs need to be  d i rected at t he  core a n d  causa l  facto rs that 
sepa rate a dys lex ic reade r  from a poor  reade r  d u e  to othe r  c i rc umstances .  

4 )  Somewhat agree .  
• Th i s  service maybe does not h ave to be  a dm i n istered on ly  t h rough spec i a l  

e du cation ,  o r  a n  IEP, depend i ng  on  t he  sever ity o f  the  dys l ex i a .  
• Remed iat ion with a n  Orton G i l l i ngham based program (th e re a re a bout 1 1  

fi d e l ity based p rograms)  i n  conj u n ct ion  with a 504 i s  t ru ly  what most of o u r  
stu dents need . 

:, 

• The OG p rogram must fit t he  n eed of the  pa rt icu l a r  student, as  p rograms  a re 
d eve loped with d ifferent a u d iences i n  m i n d .  

• As of 2017, the State of Lea rn i ng  D i sa b i l it ies  i n  N D  Snapshot revea l s  52 . 5  % 
of students with IE P i n  SLD o r  Speech/La nguage, ( see handout )  

• Of t hose, 15% a re most l i ke ly  j u st dyslexic. 
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Sect ion 3 

• They need d i rect remed iat ion a n d  the  accom modat ions/ mod i ficat ions  a 504 
b ri ngs .  

• Th i s  wi l l  free u p  IEP coord i n ators to focus  the i r  s ki l l s o n  the  stu dents who wi l l  
b enefit from p rograms  that a re d es igned for gro up  work. After  a l l , the goa l 
fo r ou r  students i s  to get them off IEP 's  by 6th gra de  a n d  i nto t he  ma i n­
stream c lassroom .  

1 )  I rea l i z e  teache rs, a n d  a dm i n i strators a re extreme ly  b usy a n d  a dd i n g  a nothe r  must to 
t h e i r  p l ate ca n be overwhe lm i ng .  

• I a m  t h an kfu l to be add i ng  at l east 1 h r. of p rofess i o n a l  d eve lopment on dys l ex ia  
i d ent if icat ion and i ntervent ion to the i r  year .  

• However, one  hou r  i s  i n adequate i f the  p l a n  i s  to teach a l l  a reas  l i sted i n  A-F .  
Th i s  l eve l  a nd  depth of i n struct ion shou l d  be  focused for those e i ther  i dentifyi ng  
a n d/o r  teach i ng  students w i th  dys lexi a .  

• Cons i de ri ng  the 1 hou r  time  frame,  a more effect ive goa l wou ld be  to focus on  
s ha r i ng  cons istent i n format ion a bout bas i c  dys lex ia wa rn i ng  s i gn s  i n  students 
a n d  then  how to d i scuss t h i s  with pa rents, othe r  teachers, a n d  a dm i n i strators to 
m a ke recommendat ions fo r students .  Now teachers a re afra i d  to say the word 
dys l ex i a  or  ta l k  a bout it as they h ave been told they may get fi red .  

• Th i s  wi l l  make a b roader  i mpact with the  l im ited a 1 h r . t ime  s lot, a l lowi ng 
teache rs and a dm i n i strators to actua l ly use what they l e a rn im med i ate ly .  

Tha n k  you for you r  t ime  a nd  pati ence i n  a l lowi ng  me  to s ha re my knowledge a bout dys lex ia a nd  
my pass ion  to h e l p  a l l  students i n  North Da kota . 

The N D  Depa rtment of pub l i c  i n struct ion est imates there a re over 108 thousa nd  students 
e n ro l l e d  i n  schoo l  t h i s  yea r .  That means  if we look at the  est imated 1 i n  5, the re a re over 2 1,000 
stud ents who  are  st rugg l i ng  with dys lexia across o u r  state .  At ALL grade  l eve ls ,  not j u st second  
gra d e  and  be low. 

As a mom of a p rofo u n d ly dys lex ic son, who has ded icated the past 13 yea rs t ry i n g  to he lp as  
many c h i l d re n  a s  I can ,  I am  tha n kfu l for the efforts of those who b rought th i s  b i l l  forwa rd . I 
h ave a lways hoped No rth Dakota cou l d  get to th i s  stage i n  ou r  educat ion system,  
acknowledg i n g  dys l ex i a  i s  rea l  and be ing  open to do ing someth i ng  a bout it . 



I know I h ave opened q uest ions  a bout severa l i tems i n  th i s  B i l l , n ot because I don't be l i eve i n  it, 
b ut beca use  when  we do th is, we need to do it r ight .  Th i s  is an i ncred i b l e  sta rt to he l p  ou r  state 
grow by a l l owi ng  a l l  students to l ea rn to read  a n d  write . 

Tha n k  you for you r  t ime  a nd  cons iderat ion .  I wou l d  be  h appy to stan d  fo r any  q uest ions .  

Kar i  Bucho l z  

Fou n de r  and  Execut ive D i rector of Ha l ey's Hope  



City 

Argusvi l l e  
Art h u r  
B i sma rck  
Bott i n e a u  
Bowma n  
Buxton 
Casse l ton 
Ch r ist i n e  
Coope rs.town 

Ed mo re 
E l l e n d a l e  

Gwi n n e r  
H a rwood  
H i l l s bo ro 
Ho race 
H u nte r  

La ngdon  
Leon a rd 
Li dgerwood  
Li sbon  
Mand a n  
M a nve l  
M a p l eton  
M ayvi l l e  
M e ki n ock  
M i l n o r  
M i n ot 

# of Students 

3 
3 

12 

1 
1 
1 
7 
1 
2 
4 
1 
3 
1 . 

3 
163 

1 
1 
4 
1 
5 
3 
8 
2 
4 
4 
1 
2 
2 
1 
1 
2 
1 
1 
4 

City 

New Sa l em 
N ew Town 
Nome  
Oxbow 
Page 
P a rk R iver  
Po rt l a n d  

Rugby 
Sheyenne  
Stra sb u rg 
Ta ppen  
Thom pson 
Tower City 
Va l l ey City 
Wah peton  
Wa l cott 
Wo l fo rd 
Wash b u rn 
Watfo rd City 

# of Students 

1 
2 
1 
1 
1 

1 1  
3 
2 
1 
2 
1 
1 
2 

. 5 
1 
1 
1 
1 
2 
2 

70 
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I n stru ct ions :  
I n  the  spaces be low, record each  word  your  teacher  provides you .  

Correct ly 
Spe l l ed  
Word 
(2 po ints) 

Correctly 
Spe l l ed  
Feature 
( 1  po i nt) 

I n correctly 
Spe l led 
Word 
& Feature 
(0 po i nts) 
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Tota l Points (20 poss ib le) 
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Correctly 
Spel led 
Word 
(2 po i nts) 

Correctly 
Spel led 
Featu re 
(1 po i nt) 
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Ha ley's Hope A Research -Based Look at Dys lex ia  

Dys lex ia i s  characterized by a lack of phonemic awareness and/or rap id  naming . 

Th ree crit ical  ski l ls for Learn i ng Success 
Phonemic awareness * The ab i l ity to ident ify and man ipu late i nd iv id ua l  sounds i n  a 
1 -syl lab le  word ;  menta l ly ,  no p ri nt 

./ Rapid naming * The ab i l ity to qu ick ly con nect with what you see (fl uency) 

Auditory processing and memory size * P rocess i ng  and mak ing mean ing  of 
sounds  i n  ou r  lang uage * The ab i l ity to reca l l  what you hear ,  e i ther immed iate ly ,  o r  
when you need i t  

7 Phonem ic  Awareness ski l ls 

1 .  Count or say each sound 2. Add a sound 3 .  Delete a sound 

san = three sounds 
s - /s/ 
a - !al 
n - /n/ 

san -+ sant sant • _ant 

4. Change a sound 

sant -+ si nt 

6 .  Blend sounds into a word 

Im/ + /e/ + Isl + /pl 

mesp 

5 .  Compare two words 

sent 
sant 

Which sound is different? 

7. Create words that rhyme 

can  
pan 

man 
tan  

ran  
san 



Building Reading Skills for Success 

Aud i tory D isc rim ination 

Distingu ish ing 
ind ividua l  
sou nds from 
one another. 

Auditory processing 

Ha ley's Hope � . . . ' . .  

Sounds of Speech 

Phonemic Awareness 
BEFORE Phon ics 

speech §;') ::
P

� 
Speech before Print 

�
,sound 

- - � tcs 
Auditory d iscrimination 

Bu i l d i ng Read i ng Ski l l s for Success 
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Nationwide, 

of publ ic school students 
received special education 

in 201 3-201 4. 

In  North Dakota, 

1 2 .4% 
ubl ic school students 

ed specia l  education 
that year. 

Rates of SLD & OH i  
among students receiving 

spec ia l  education in 
201 5-201 6 

% SLD % OHi  
50 

40 38.8% 

.,5 tte , '-l &t 

4,242 ch i ld ren :2.-b-\'1 

were i dent ifi ed in 20 1 5-20 1 6 with specific learn ing 
d isabi l it ies (SLD) in No rth  Dakota ,  where they 
accounted fo r the  l a rgest of the  1 3  d i sab i l i ty 

categor ies covered u nde r  spec i a l  educat i on  l aw. 

SLD 35 .4% --- �tism 7.8% 
peat-blindness < 1 %  

/Developmental delay 8. 6% 

__ Emotional disturbance 7. 3% 

_Hearing impairments < 1 %  

_1 ntel lectual  disabi l ities 6. 1 % 

'._.;Qrthopedic impairments < 1 %  
,"-Traumatic brain injury < 1 % 
Visual impairments < 1 % 

\/'Speech or language impairments 1 7. 1 %  
Multiple d isabi l ities: No data ava i lable 

Total may not equal 7 00% due to rounding. 

Chi ldren are often classified under the category of other health 
impairments (OHi)  when ADHD is the primary reason they qual ify for 

special education . OHi  can cover other health conditions but is used here 
as a rough proxy for students receiving special education who have ADHD. 

D�;�
i
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a
f�r For more i nformat ion about the cha l lenges and opportun i t ies for the l i n  5 students with learn i ng  and attent ion 
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9 The State of Learn i ng  D isab i l i t ies :  Understand ing  the 1 i n  5 - North Dakota State Snapshot 

'5 H- 6  .--------------------------........ -..;;;;..., 
2.-to - 1; 

ucational Envi ronment 

s d eta i led i n  t h i s  cha rt, many 
students rece iv i ng  spec i a l  educat i on  
spend 80% or  more of  the schoo l  d ay 
i n  genera l  educat ion  c l assrooms .  
I nc l us i on  ca n imp rove outcomes -
i f  teachers have the  ski l l s needed to 
he l p  d i verse learners .  

Discip l ine 

N at i onwide, stu dents with d i sab i l i t i es 
more t han  twice as  l i ke ly to be 

ended as  those without 
d i s ab i l i t i es,  and the loss of 
i nstruct iona l  t ime increases the risk of 
academ ic  fa i l u re and school avers ion .  

1 00 

80 

60 

40 

20 

0 

% SLD % OH i  

83.7% 

• Nat iona l  • North  Dakota 
Data from 201 5-201 6 

I n  North Dakota students 
identified with SLD or OH  I 

accounted for 

46.7% 
of students with d isab i l it ies 
who received out-of-school 
suspensions i n  201 4-201 5 

State Literacy Laws 
No rth  Da kota l aw req u i res 

st udents to be tested i n  

rea d i n g  i n  g rades K-3 a n d  

a l l  st rugg l i n g  st udents t o  

rece ive i nte rvent i o n .  

No rt h  Da kota does not 

h ave a l aw foc u s i n g  

spec i f i ca l ly o n  i dent i fy i n g  

o r  add ress i n g  dys l ex i a , 

t hough  26  states i n  t he  

coun t ry do .  

Leaving H igh School All special education 

Students wi th  l ea rn i n g  and  attent ion  i ssues 
a re as  smart as the i r  peers and ,  with the  ri g ht 
support ,  can  ach i eve at h i g h  leve l s .  But  too 
often stu dents with these i ssues l eave schoo l  
w i th  a cert ifi cate of comp let i o n - i n stead of a 
regu l a r  d i p l oma -or d rop  out  a ltogether. Here's a 
look at outcomes fo r students rece iv i ng  spec i a l  
educat ion  i n  No rth  Dakota,  where 86.6% o f  a l l  
stu dents g raduated i n  20 1 4-20 1 5 .  

D ip lomas 
Cert ifi cates :0% 

Dropouts 

SLD 
D ip lomas 

Cert ificates :0% 
Dropouts 

OHi  
D ip lomas 

Cert ificates 0% 
Dropouts 

0% 

Data from 201 4-201 5 

Sou rces : IDEA 618 data. Civil Bights Data Collection. and White House graduation data. 

76% 

24% 

;79% 

21 % 

74% 

26% 
20% 40% 60% 80% 1 00% 

Totals may not equal 1 00% due to rounding. 

D�!�it��aJor © 20 1 7 N at i o n a l  Cen te r  for Lea rn i n g  D i s a b i l 1 t 1 e s .  I n c .  Contact :  � 
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Refe rences retr ieved from : 

Yale Center for Dyslexia and Creativity; 



Dyslexia Learn ing Center 

OUR M I SS ION is to gu ide ind ividua l s  affected by dyslexia through a comprehensive approach of screen ing,  early i ntervention ,  
education and advocacy. 

JAKE'S JOURN EY 
J a ke M i l l e r  was never good with spe l l i n g .  H e  had  a ha rd t ime fo rmatti ng sentences .  Math 
was d aunti ng .  He needed repeated d i rections  a nd  was on l y  ab l e  to ta ke it one step at a 
t ime .  Ta l k i ng  to peop le  of a uthority was tough .  That i s  u nti l Joa n n ,  Ja ke's mom ,  ran i nto 
Ka ri ,  the Founder  and  Executive D i recto r of H a l ey's Hope.  She  was te l l i ng  Ka ri how Jake 
strugg l ed i n  schoo l  and  Ka ri adv ised he r  to br ing h i m  i n  to be tested . J a ke was 1 0-yea rs o l d  
then .  They d iscovered he  was  Dys l ex ic and  immed iate l y  created a p l a n .  

There was a t ime  when math became even more d ifficu lt for J a ke .  Ka ri often stayed after 
hou rs with h i m  and  set u p  a meeti ng with h i s  teacher  to ensu re she knew exact ly what he  
needed to  focus on .  Ka ri even went as  fa r to  take a 2-week tra i n i n g  out-of-state to  learn how 
to best he lp  Jake and eventua l l y  other  students . Jake was a mazed by her  ded ication .  Jake Miller 

He cont i nued tutori ng  at H a l ey's Hope unt i l  he was 1 4 . Wh i l e  work ing with Ka ri a nd  the amaz ing tea m  at H a l ey's H ope 
he  lea rned a l ife long lesson - N EVER G IVE U P ! Jake is  more confident ta l k i ng  i n  pub l ic now. He recent ly d id so for 

open house at La ke Reg ion State Co l l ege  i n  Devi l s  La ke , No rth Dakota , where he  attends  schoo l .  He  presented to 
nts a nd  new students i nterested i n  the Wind  Tu rbi ne  Tech n ic i an  ca reer path . 

Th i s  past su mmer, J a ke worked i n  S itka , A l aska as  a deckhand .  H e  was tested da i l y  i n  how he  commun i cated with h i s  
peers and  superio rs .  He  had  to  l ea rn the boati ng l a nguage ,  wh ich  a l so meant  expa nd i ng  h i s  vocabu l a ry. He  strong ly  
be l i eves that  if he  d i dn 't work with Ka ri a l l  those l ong  n ig hts a nd  push  h imse l f, there i s  no  way he  cou ld  have done it .  

The week before fly i ng up to work i n  A laska , J ake showed up unexpected ly  at H a ley's Hope .  He sa id that Ka ri began  
to  cry, because she was so  happy to  see h im .  They ta l ked for a few hou rs a bout l ife a nd  she showed h im  how much 
they had  g rown by add i ng  new emp loyees and  teach i ng  more students .  J ake knew th i s  new adventu re wou l d  be 
cha l l e ng i ng ,  and  a stop at H a l ey's Hope beforehand was exact ly what  he  needed . Ka ri reassu red h im he  was  ready, that 
he'd do amaz ing  worki ng up there a nd  to set fea r  as ide .  That dose of i nsp i rat ion and a l l  of the h a rd work he  had put i n  
before , set h i m  up  for success. 

J a ke fi n i shed worki ng on the ocean  and went back to La ke Reg ion State Co l lege .  After one week of be ing back, he was 
c l i m b i ng  w ind tu rb ines  a nd  worki ng with a l l  so rts of w i res .  Aga i n ,  a nother  cha l l enge was put befo re h i m ,  so he knew 
what  h e  n eeded to do .  H e  stayed u p  l ate study i ng  the l ayout of the tower, every deta i l .  H e  now knows he  needs to 

b rea k th i ngs  down to bette r u ndersta nd and  ask more questions .  

H e  put i n  the work to l ea rn it .  Ka ri a lways ta ught h im to be l i eve , to  push h imse l f  to 
l ea rn the i nfo rmat ion and  not to be l azy! J ake th i n ks of H a l ey's Hope as one  p l ace 
that he  ca n a lways count on if he  needs he lp .  H e  has  l e a rned g reat techn iques that 
wi l l  h e l p  h im g row we l l  i nto the futu re .  

Pictured left to nght Marcus (o lder brother), Jake, Hunter (younger brother), Joann 
(mom) and Terry (dad) Miller 



H U RRAY FOR HALEY'S HOPE ! 

"For your ears and eyes, we 
are forever grateful. The strides 
he is making and the progress 

continues to show both at home 
in his reading and in his academic 
work. I can 't wait to see how his 
growth and confidence changes 

over the next year. Diane is 
a gifted teacher and I am so 

thankful Haley's Hope found her. 
She is a blessing in Ben 's life. " 
- Terri, Parent of a 2nd g rader 

"Mason read to us last night, and I 
can 't believe it! He was confident, 
read clear, concise, and was able 
to sound out words I would have 
had to sound out to him months 
ago. We were blown away! First 
time ever he is requesting to go 

to the public library . . . .  Brenda has 
done a great job thus far and a 
big shout out to her. Seeing the 
confidence in him is priceless! 

- Stacey, Parent of a 7th g rader 

"You amaze me with your 
STRENGTH and POISE! You / 

clear headed, KNOWLEDGEAI:.__ 
straight shooting and bring the 

facts to the table. I am very 
emotional about our sweet girl 
and we will fight for her in ANY 

and every way. It was a GIFT 
to have you there and simple 
words will NEVER be enough. 

So THANK YOU! " 
- Received after attending 

an IEP meeting 

"This scholarship is greatly appreciated. Thank you so much. Haley's Hope has been wonderful 
for my children. I hope someday I will be able to give back to other families who need financial 

assistance with this wonderful program. " 

DO YOU KNOW? 

We have he l ped over 

98 far1il1es s i nce open i n g .  

Over 8,358 sess ions  were ta ught i n  20 1 8 .  Th i s  i s  r 1 ,385 sess ions  from 20 1 7 !  

Average Improvement after 6 months of 1 -on-1 Tutoring 
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North  Da kota State Congress test imon ia l  

Who a m  I a n d  why a m  I speak ing  he re today.  
My name is Haley Bucholz and I am here to speak on behalf and represent those who suffer from 

dyslexia In the state of North Dakota. Along with that I am a 12 grader at shanley high school in 

Fargo, ND .  

My ear l iest memories of doing things d ifferently. 

I .  I Remember The frustration I felt in  my  early chi ldhood. I t  was a feel ing of 
d isappointment, fear, anger, and sadness. 

I I .  The  signs a re noticeable in  preschool, kindergarten, and most o f  a l l  i t  h it me hard i n  
fi rst grade, bu t  nothing to  compare to  what we  going to  happen to  me in  th i rd grade. 

I l l .  Looking back a t  elementary school many nights I spent coming home crying and  i n  
fea r, frustration , and  the feel ing of utter disappointment to  my  fami ly. The worst 
feel i ng was noticing that I was different and the feel i ng of he lp lessness in school that I 
Had .  I have very vivid memories of how embarrassed I felt to read, Write and even 
speak sometimes. 

IV. I remember when I was a kid overhearing Conversations of teachers ta l king to my 
mom tel l ing her that I was never going to be a success, that I was Always going to be 
the last kid in the class and that I should give up on trying to fight to find success. This 
moment leading to the most important memory of my chi ldhood . This was the The 
day I truly felt I would never be a success and my educator gave up on me. 

V. That impactful event affected me and my self-confidence , ind ividua l ity, and in my 
ab i l ity to be who I am today. That even caused me to transfer schools in Th i rd grade. 

VI . Now I bel ieve it made it worse that I d idn't have an  individua l  who exempl ified the 
Mean ing of what is to be a teacher in  the education system. A teacher is an  individua l  
who finds passion in finding success with in a chi ld in  a given curricu lum.  Along with 
that they wi l l  do anything to help find a unique way to have a chi ld learn. 

What I need dai ly to be successful, and why I made it when others do not. 

I .  The fi rst reason I became successful whi le others don't it 's due to my 
fami ly .My fami ly is very hard-working and stand strong in the face of 
adversity. 

Company Name CONF IDENTIAL 



I I .  I th ink the  second reason is  my  ab i l ity except change in  that I was d ifferent. But 
th is  d id not come without struggles. It was very hard for me to except at a 
young age. 

I l l .  The la rgest impact in  my success was my  diagnosis and  treatment and  learn to 
l earn i n  Minneapol is. Reason why this was my largest moment of success 
because this spark my ent ire fami ly strive to help me learn (Drove weekly to 
cites for tutoring) 

IV. Continuing it was the perseverance my mother and father to strive to find 
myself success in  the school. 

V. Next biggest moment was landmark school in Beverly Massachusetts. The 
schools designed for chi ldren with learn ing d isabi l it ies. The curricu lum was 
based on individua l ity and key on qua l ity over quantity. Along with that it 
d idn't make me feel a lone because everyone was so understanding and 
knowledgeable about dyslexia 

VI .  After school in  Massachusetts my abi l ity to se lf  advocate open up to my peers 
about my disabi l ity and differences change my l ife. (Been looked at positively, 
i nspiration, even asked to he lp self-confidence with kids at the school . )  

VI I .  F ina l ly i t  was self advocat ing and  find ing success with in yourself and  in  sma l l  
victories which cou ld lead to larger victories. 

Bu i ld  strategies to help teachers be efficient and effective to he lp a student learn. 

Company Name CONFIDENTIAL 



My name  is J i l l  Kuster . I am  writ ing to u rge you r  su pport fo r Dys lexia House B i l l  1461 .  

I have a n  Educat io n degree with a m i no r  i n  read i ng educat io n .  I n  co l lege, I too k m a ny cou rses i n  read i ng 
i n st ruct io n a nd  used th i s  knowledge as a read i ng i n structo r a nd tuto r i n  the No rth Da kota Pub l ic School 
System .  At that t ime, it neve r occu rred to me that I wou ld  need a ny of th i s  i nfo rmat ion fo r my own ch i l d  
one day .  

I s u spected that  my da ughte r  Kate lyn had dyslexia i n  the fi rst g rade .  Dys lexia is known to most peop le 
a s  backwa rds lette rs, but it so m uch more than that .  Even with a l l  my ed ucat ion, the majo rity of the 
i n fo rmat ion  I know a bout dyslexia comes from my own study and my des i re to do and know eve ryth i ng I 
ca n fo r the benefit of my ch i l d .  

Even w i th  my backg ro u nd, gett ing someone to  l i sten to  my concerns a bout r isk fa cto rs she had ,  bu t  
wou ld not  be exh i b i t ing i n  schoo l, was dau nt ing to  say  the least .  On  more than  one  occas ion ,  I left 
meeti ngs i n  tea rs beca use I fe lt l i ke the crazy mom who they wished wou ld  just shut u p  a bout dyslexia .  
I t  t ook  me  ove r two yea rs o f  one referra l  t o  a nother refe rra l u nt i l  she rece ived t he  dys lexia d iagnos is .  
We were re l ieved to fi n a l ly be to ld what I knew i n  my gut fo r so long .  

U nfo rt unate ly, the fight  st i l l  cont i n ues eve ry day .  I fee l  that teachers need to be info rmed eve ry yea r 
a bo ut what dys lex ia is a nd what my ch i l d  needs, as  we l l  a s, c lea r ing up  m isconcept io ns  a bout what it 
a ct u a l ly is , such  as it i s  j u st a visua l  eye prob lem .  

As  an  ed ucato r, I fee l  No rth Da kota has one  of the best schoo l  systems  i n  the cou ntry, but  we ca n do so 
m uch  bette r as we a re do i ng 1 in 5 (that is l i ke 4 ch i l d ren  in each 20 student  c l assroom- just one  
c l ass roo m ! )  an  i nj u st ice by not  ed ucat ing our  teachers a nd not  hav ing a ny l aw rega rd ing dys lex ia . 

As I sat down to write th i s  lette r, my now 10-yea r-o ld  da ughter sa id ,  " I 'm  so g lad I have a mom who 
fights fo r me." P lease pass Dys lexia House B i l l  1461 so other  ch i l d ren  with dys lex ia and the ir  pa rents 
don't have to fight so h a rd .  

Tha n k  you .  

J i l l  Kuster 

Thom pson,  No rth Da kota 



House B i l l  #1 46 1  

M y  N a m e  is Rod ney Volk  and I have been a teacher for 2 6  years . I am presently 
emp loyed with the Fargo Pub l ic School D istr ict as a teacher in (Read i ng ,  Language 
Arts , Sc ience and Math . )  I have witnessed many of my students i n  school and my own 
ch i ld 's fi rst-hand strugg les with h is  dys lexia . I have attended thousands of I EP's over 
the yea rs ,  and see that often the root of learn i ng prob lems is read i ng .  Most students on 
I E P's/504/etc . p lans rare ly so lves the problem that exist . My son Evan ,  a 6th g rader at 
Centra l Cass Pub l ic School in Casselton , N D  is an  examp le of th is strugg le .  Evan has 
had learn i ng  issues from day one. As a person tra i ned to recogn ize learn ing d isab i l it ies 
in school  ch i ld ren , it was sti l l  very d ifficu lt for me to p in-poi nt what was actua l ly tak ing 
p lace with h i m .  H is I EP ,  accommodations ,  summer schoo l ,  and tutor ing sess ions d id 
not get to the root of h is problem . I t  was not u nti l one of the Fargo Pub l ic  Schools 
specia l ists suggested I have him tested for Dyslexia .  We took h im  to Ha ley's Hope in 
West Fargo and confi rmed with the screen ing resu lts . S i nce this t ime two years ago,  
Evan has had weekly ,  one-hour sess ions and h is l ife has changed forever. Evan so 
d i s l i ked schoo l ,  he d id everyth ing to avo id it pr ior to h is tra i n i ng .  With h is Dyslexia 
tra i n i n g ,  he loves the learn i ng process now and is very d isappointed when he is not able 
to attend . The techn iques he has lea rned to overcome the d isab i l ity is now manageable 
for h i m ,  and we have a new ch i ld/learner .  As an  ed ucator ,  I too have been more aware 
of Dys lexia i n  young  i nd ivid ua ls .  I have shared with many parents the turnaround for 
my own son and the l ife chang ing event . I often th i nk  of Evan and h is long strugg le and 
how it cou ld  have possib ly been exped ited with one s imp le screen i ng .  I encou rage and 
support any b i l l  o r  measure that could he lp ident ify the many students that fa l l  i nto th is 
s im i l a r  s ituat ion . 

Than ks 
Rod ney Vo l k  
Fargo  Pub l ic Schools Teacher and  Parent of Dyslexic Student 



Testimony for Pub l ic Hearing 
EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

Publ ic  Hearing  on House Bi l l  1461 
Februa ry 6th, 2019 

HB No .  1461 - An Act to amend sect ions of the North  Da kota Centu ry Code, re lat ing to dyslexia 

screen i ngs a nd t ra i n i ng fo r teachers and other  staff; i n c l ud i ng credent ia l s  fo r dys lexia speci a l ists; a nd to 

p rovide a re po rt to leg is lat ive management .  

My  name is  Ch ri s  Wa l sk i .  I am  a mother  of  th ree you ng boys, Luke a nd Brady a re 9-yea r-o ld twins  and  

Casey who is s i x  yea rs o l d .  I want  to  thank  Representat ive Owens  a nd fe l low mem bers of _the  Educat ion 

Com m ittee fo r the  oppo rtun ity to provide support fo r House B i l l  1461 .  

House B i l l  1461 d iscusses tra i n i ng a nd credent ia l s  fo r teachers a long  with screen ing  req u i rements fo r 

students with dys lex ia i n  North Da kota . As a mom of ch i l d ren  with lea rn i ng d i sa b i l it ies I know fi rsthand 

how d iffi cu l t  i t  h a s  been navigat ing the educat ion system to ensu re Luke d id  not fa l l  beh ind  meet ing 

expected g rade- leve l  test ing .  Luke was d iagnosed with dys lexia i n  2 nd  grade .  H is d iagnos is  was d riven by 

mother' s  i n tu it io n not the educators who were teach ing  h im each day .  Lu ke has  dys lexia and dysgra ph ia  

wh i ch  means he  writes many lette rs backwa rds and  is not a b le to spe l l  a ccu rate ly due  to the ga p i n  

con nect ing  the  correct letter with its sou nd .  I n  fi rst grade Luke's da i ly work  was st i l l  com i ng home with 

m a ny lette r reve rsa l s .  D u ring ou r  parent teacher  co nfe rences, we specifica l ly a sked if th i s  was a concern, 

re peated ly we were to ld ,  "don ' t  wo rry some k ids j ust ta ke longer to correct, g ive it more t ime . "  Second 

grade sta rted and Luke had not progressed l i ke h i s  c l a ssmates .  In the fa l l  of second grade as  pa rent's we 

reached out to have Luke screened fo r dys lexia at Ha ley's Hope i n  Fa rgo .  Due to the screen ing  resu lts we 

we re refe rred to a neu ropsycho logist fo r fo rma l  test ing and received h is offic ia l d iagnos is  of dyslex i a .  

Each  yea r  i n  schoo l  I fee l  we as  parents m ust ed ucate h i s  teacher  a bout dyslex ia . Too many t imes I have 

been to ld by teachers they a re not taught about dys lexia d u ri ng the i r  fo rma l  t ra i n i ng .  En su ri ng teachers 

rece ive o n-go ing  ed ucat ion  fo r dys lexia i n  ou r  schoo l  system is necessa ry so ch i l d ren  with dys lexia 

rece ive the i r  fa i r  accommodat ions i n  the c lassroom .  

The pu rpose o f  H B1461 i s  t o  create a sta ndard o f  req u i rements t o  educate dyslexic ch i l d ren  i n  t h e  state 

of No rth  Da kota . One  of the  foundat ions fo r read i ng is phon ics, a sk i l l  of connect ing lette r sou nds with 

wo rds, is d iffi cu l t  fo r dyslexic lea rners .  The Fa rgo pub l i c  schoo ls  where Luke was en ro l led d id n't have the 

resou rces to provide th i s  spec ia l m u lt i -se nsory structu re needed to fac i l itate teach ing  h im  to read .  After 

Luke was d iagnosed with dys lexia, we sta rted an Orton-G i l l i ngham tutor ing progra m at Ha l ey's Hope .  



When we dec ided to comm it to the p rogra m, we were to ld it ta kes a n  ave rage of t h ree yea rs to 

com p lete a l l  the lesso ns .  Lu ke has attended one-hou r  tutor ing sess ions twice a week fo r two a nd  a ha lf 

yea rs now. It has  been a com m itment of add it io na l  t ime and  fi na nc ia l s upport im pact ing o u r  who le  

fa m i ly .  When  Lu ke sta rted the 3 rd grade he tested a fu l l  g rade be low read i ng leve l .  When  we atte nded 

h i s  end  of the yea r  confe rences that same yea r, he was nea r 4th grade read i ng l eve l ,  h i s  teache r  sa id ,  " I  

co u l d n't be l ieve how we l l  Lu ke is  read i ng now. To th i nk  a bo ut where he was at the  begi n n i ng of the yea r 

and  now, he is one  of the top readers i n  o u r  c lass .  I tested h im twice just to m a ke s u re it was accurate.  I 

do n't t h i n k  I have seen a nyone make so m uch p rogress i n  such a short t ime . "  Spec i a l i zed i n st ruct ion l i ke 

Orto n-G i l l i ngham works fo r these k ids, im p lement i ng it i nto the school  systems  and  educat ing o u r  

teachers w i l l  benefit a l l  l ea rners, i n c l ud i ng those who weren't as fo rtunate t o  receive after  schoo l  

tutor ing .  

I be l i eve that House B i l l  1461 wi l l  sat i sfy the i nte rest of both students with dys lex ia and educators .  

Add i ng term i no logy to  the b i l l  req u i ri ng o n  go i ng  educat ion a nd report ing to state depa rtments 

gua ra ntees ed ucators w i l l  be g ive n opport un it ies to enha nce lesso n p l an s  to meet the needs fo r a l l  types 

of lea rners .  Teachers wou ld meet and ma i nta i n  the expectat ion to be educat io n a l ly p repa red and  

com petent fo r dys lexic l ea rners .  I u rge you to  support t he  b i l l  fo r co ns iderat ion by  the  House .  

Tha nk  you fo r you r  t ime .  

Ch ris Wa lsk i  
4395 45th Avenue  S .  
Fa rgo, N D  58104 
701-893-6223 



To whom it may concern : 

My name  is J ess ica Cassady and  I am  writ ing to you to encou rage you to vote YES fo r B i l l  #1461 .  

My daughter, Kh loe, 8, i s  a 3 rd grader who was recent ly d iagnosed with dys lexia .  After spend ing  yea rs 
with u na nswered q uest ions, no he lp  from the pub l i c  schoo l  system, a nd be i ng told noth ing was wrong 
with her ab i l it ies .  I q uest ioned my daughter's school  a nd  teachers a bout Dys lexia, however, they were 
u neducated a bout Dys lexia and  cou l d  not identify if a ny of her sym ptoms ident ified a s  Dys lexi a .  The 
staff kept i ns is t ing beca use her IQ  appea red to be norma l, she wou ld catch up and be fi ne .  I was to ld 
even if Kh loe was Dys lex ic, the school system ca n't concentrate o n  one ch i ld with Dys lexia, as they don 't 
have the staff or the  knowledge, the proper mater ia ls, a nd  Dys lexia was not recogn ized as a d isa bi l ity ! If 
she was m isbehaved or  ident ified as ADHD, she cou ld get the ass istance she needed, but not for mere ly 
be ing ident ified i n  her  ab i l it ies as H igh R isk for th ree cons i stent yea rs i n  Read i ng. I a sked every teacher I 
knew and  s peci a l  educat ion teachers what cou ld be done to he lp  my da ughter a nd a l l  they cou ld say was 
get her tutor i ng ! I was at a loss u nt i l  I heard about H a ley's Hope. 

I t u rned to H a l ey's Hope to have Kh loe tested for Dys lexia .  Kar i  met with me and my daughter met with 
a thera p ist . After some basic testi ng, they recommended that I have Kh loe seen by a Neu ro logist for 
confi rmat ion of Dys lexia, but they fe lt very strongly that Kh loe was Dys lexic and  recommended that I 
sta rt Kh loe o n  H a ley's Hope's tutor ing program .  I fo l lowed through with the neu ro logist a nd  Kh loe was 
d iagnosed with Dys l ex ia in December 2018. 

After receiv ing a med ica l d iagnosis, I i nformed the schoo l  a nd  demanded they fo l low through with the 
proper I E P  test i ng. I n  the meant ime, Kh loe sta rted H a ley's Hope's tutor ing program i n  Dece m ber  2018, 
wh ich is based on the Barton program .  For one-month Kh loe attended twice a week, a nd  from the 
second  month on  she  has been attend i ng once a week. The cha nge i n  Kh loe was a lmost immed iate ! I t  
was as  though the l ight bu lb  came on ! Kh loe fi n a l ly was u ndersta nd i ng what she  was be ing taught and 
she  was  u s i ng i t  to spe l l  a nd read on  her own ! What  the schoo l  had been try ing to teach  her  for three 
yea rs, the Ba rto n program had just managed to do in a few months ! Her confidence in sou nd i ng out 
words, her ab i l ity to read books on her own, a nd  her ab i l ity to write sentences that were legi b le  was 
fi n a l ly sta rt i ng to grow ! Not on ly was Kh loe affected by her i n ab i l ity to read or spe l l ,  it was tak ing a to l l  
o n  her  confi dence, att i tude, and  ab i l ity t o  concentrate. Once she  sta rted Ha ley's Hope, a nd  she  began 
to spe l l  a n d  read,  her  confidence came  back, a nd  her attitude cha nged ! 

The schoo l  fi n a l ly com pleted the i r  test i ng at the end  of J a nua ry and  conc l uded that from the l ast t ime 
Kh loe was tested i n  October 2018 she had dou b led her words per m i n ute, her  read i ng accu racy had 
i ncreased 23%, a nd  she  had j umped 3 book leve l s ! Her  l i teracy teacher  was keep i ng her at the same 
read i ng leve l s he  was at i n  2 nd grade, yet her a b i l ity was above that ! The res u lts spoke for themse lves ! 
He r  growth was com i ng from Ha ley's Hope !  

I beg you ,  as a lov ing pa rent, a nd a concerned c it i zen ,  that you vote YES t o  th i s  b i l l .  I t  h a s  been a n  
extreme ly long road,  o n e  of which shou ld not have taken th ree yea rs t o  get t h e  a nswers or  t h e  he lp  we 
needed .  My short story doesn't even touch on  the trou b les my da ughter has experi enced, the 
frust rat ions  we have had w i th  teachers or the schoo l  systems, or the prec ious t ime that was wasted i n  



teach i ng my da ughter so that  she  ca n grow academ ica l ly. Dys lexia is a d is ab i l ity, one  of wh i ch  is not 

d iagnosed because those that a re left i n  cha rge of teach i ng the very ch i l d re n  with Dys lex ia a re not 

educated in identify ing it ! Without the resou rces to ident ify Dys lexia or the  educat ion a l  too ls  to teach 

ch i l d ren  with Dys lexia i n  the pub l ic-schoo l  system, we a re cheat ing 1 out  of eve ry 5 k ids from an 

educat ion ! An educat ion that ca n make o r  brea k someone's fut u re !  

S incere ly, 

Jess ica Cassady 

A Dys lex ia pa rent  and proud ,  tha n kfu l c l i ent of H a ley's Hope 



Heathe r  B rya nt  (Wendorf)- West Fa rgo 

Wi l l i a m  Wendo rf- son in 4th grade  

Wi l l  sta rted with s peech a t  age 3 .  He  started schoo l  a n d  st rugg led with read i ng .  They put h im  
i n  a read i n g  grou p .  Th e schoo l  d i d  IQ  test i ng  a n d  s a i d  o k .  They to ld  m e  to read t o  h im  more .  
He  d id N DSU  s u m me r  read i ng  p rograms .  I h i red  a n a n ny who took h im to Sylva ns .  In  3 rd grade 
i t  sta rted to i m pact m ath scores d ue  to  the read i ng  math p rob l ems .  H i s  se lf-esteem was  low 
and  h e  fe lt d u m b .  H e  was sta rt i ng  to get teased . The schoo l  sa id  h e  h ad  max  serv ices for 
rea d i n g  a n d  on  a n  I E P .  The i r  recommendat ion  was Sylva n ' s .  

I took h im fo r n e u ropsych ic  test i ng  at Sanfo rd .  He  was  3% for read i ng  and g ifted i n  everyth i ng  
e l se .  The n e u rop sycho logist recom mended Ha l ey's Hope .  

H a l ey's Hope  h a s  been  amaz i ng .  My son, W i l l , can  read .  The  schoo l  now has  a n  a p p ropri ate I E P  
fo r h i s  l e a rn i n g  d i sa b i l i ty. He  is  now do ing  great i n  math . H i s  se l f-esteem i s  back  a n d  he  fee l s  
h e  i s  sma rt .  

Th ere  i s  a n eed for edu cat ion t ithe  schools on  dys l ex i a .  The re needs  to  be  more t ra i n i ng  on 
screen i ng .  We were n eve r po i nted to a d i agnos i s  of dys l ex i a .  Th e serv ices H a l ey Hope p rovides 
i s  not cove red by schoo l .  P l ease s up port o u r  k id dos with screen i n g  a n d  serv ices at schoo l .  

S i n cere ly  
Heat he r  B rya nt 



Dear Representative Striden & the education committee: 

The pending legislation addressing dyslexia, HB # 1 46 1  is of great interest to us because we are 
parents of a dyslexic son, Malachi. This bill could greatly help our son and other students 
currently struggling to learn to read due to dyslexia. 

I am primarily concerned about educators having the training to recognize the symptoms of 
dyslexia early and the resources to remediate the struggle to learn to read due to dyslexia. 

When Malachi started kindergarten he was apprehensive to go, by the end of the school year his 
anxiety was worse as he struggled to keep up with the other students in his class. We would 
spend many evenings going through flash cards and reading to him to recognize the basic sight 
words like if, to, the. He struggled to learn those. Another school year, 1 st grade started and 
again he fell further behind in his challenge to learn to read. We met with his teacher and 
requested educational testing done & the start of the I EP process began. The testing showed he 
had normal IQ ,  working memory was normal, but a low reading fluency & comprehension. He was 
started on an I EP in April of 201 5 with reading programs to aide in reading fluency & 
comprehension. Second grade, another school year, another year of struggling to learn to read & 
falling further behind in school. This resulted in the majority of our family time in the evenings 
working on catching up homework that he couldn't get done in school. During the school day, 
Malachi went to Special Ed, Title I program , & after school program with very minimal 
improvement. We were all exhausted. His anxiety worsened. We would encourage him if you 
work harder, we can overcome this and learn to read. 

The annual I EP meetings with the special education team told us ,  kids who struggle to read 
typically always struggle to read. We continued the same process of programs in special ed to 
improve reading fluency & reading comprehension with little improvement. We called our local 
special education unit and spoke with the program coordinator for our school. We asked about 
testing for dyslexia. She reported dyslexia is not a recognized reading disability in North Dakota. 
Malachi started 4th grade and was ready to give up completely. We independently took him for 
dyslexia testing by a certified dyslexia specialist in Fargo, N D. The testing showed he has 
dyslexia. We brought the testing results back to our school and the special education team. The 
special education team would not consider the test results and again replied dyslexia is not a 
recognized reading disability in North Dakota. We gave the recommendations from the dyslexia 
testing to implement an Orton Guillingham based program that is proven to help children with 
dyslexia learn to read and they denied our req uest. We then pursued an Orton Guillingham 
based program through a private tutor. We live in western North Dakota making it very difficult to 
travel the distance multiple times per week for tutoring. Haley's  Hope in Fargo offers an Orton 
Gullingham based program via Zoom to allow Malachi to have access to the resources he needs 
to learn to read. The school and teachers have been very accommodating of Malachi's  dyslexia & 
tutoring, but have not been able to get the support from the local Special Education Unit. 

Malachi is now ½ way in his 5th grade year of school. He has done the Orton Gullingham based 
program for a year now with much success. His testing shows he reads at a 5th grade reading 
level. Another bonus is Malachi's anxiety has decreased and his self- confidence has soared. 
Malachi told us "it is a relief to know there is something to help me." 

Thank you for your consideration on this matter. It is an important issue to Malachi and other kids 
who are currently struggling in school to learn to read. We would like to see the legislation pass to 
ensure effective educational services for the students involved. 

Sincerely, 
Andrew & Heidi Peltz (parents of Malachi Peltz, 5th grader at Glen Ullin Public School) 
5870 County Road 140 
New Salem, ND 58563 
701-843-73 12, hpeltz@westriv. com 



Testimony for Public Hearing 
House Bill #1461 

Having known Haley for 10 years I feel very privileged to cal l  him my friend, but what's possibly 
even a greater honor than that is to be able to witness the incredible transformation this young 
man has undergone. I sti l l  remember the first day I met him. It was recess and my other best 
friend, Joe Mickelson, came walking out with this tal l  lanky new kid with blonde hair and a bowl 
cut. Joe introduced me to this soon to be best friend as Haley and I remember questioning if 
that was real ly his first name. It wasn't long after that we al l  found out we could easily be each 
other's brothers , and shared almost every interest together. Since Joe was in the same 3rd 
grade class as Haley they initial ly became friends quicker than I did which meant he first learned 
about Haley's dyslexia. Another day at recess, Joe came over with Haley , and Joe asked Haley 
if he could tel l  me about "it". I distinctly remember Haley looking, for just a moment, scared and 
then I learned about his dyslexia. When I first heard that Haley was dyslexic , I had no idea 
whatsoever what that meant but considering how they talked about it , it was something to be 
kept private and handle with care. Over the next couple of years, I began to learn about his 
learning disability and the true reasons for him transferring schools. He was a struggling 
elementary student that was borderline abused for his lack of the ability to read and write as a 
young child from teachers, staff and students . No one had the vision to see the potential in him, 
and he was left being told that he was never going to amount to anything. He would simply not 
be able to read or write wel l  for the rest of his life. But boy were they wrong. I had the 
opportunity for plenty of hands on experience with Haley starting there in 3rd grade: Spel l ing out 
countless words , sounding out sentences , and trying my best to help in any way possible. Joe 
had more opportunities to help in those early years as those two were in the same class 
together for a few years without me, and I know that Joe as wel l  helped Haley on a dai ly basis 
with fundamental language "roadblocks" . 

Once we reached middle school many people started to learn more about his needs as a 
student and he opened up in a lot of ways about his struggles . Middle school can be rough 
because let's face it: teenagers are jerks . No amount of pestering, giggling, or joking could truly 
break his spirit , but for many of those that do struggle they are not so fortunate. Haley's 
continual and positive outlook helped him immensely, but sheer force of wil l alone is not enough 
to overcome a struggle like dyslexia. I began to witness a large change here with Haley as he 
was no longer scared to tel l  others of his disability , but rather was very receptive to questions 
and general curiosity about his way of life. Middle school is where a lot of academic growth 
began to show, as in English we began to read more in-depth literary works and write more 
papers. As writing and penmanship is a lso a chal lenge for him, I often had the pleasure of 
proofreading papers and assignments because I am able to competently read what he is writing. 
What I don't think many realized is that he is an absolute incredible writer and I think has a 
special way of conveying what he wants to say to the reader. Towards the end of middle school 
his need for help from Joe and I began to decline and we knew we were along for the ride on a 
very special journey. 



Once high school rolled around, he began to truly bloom despite adversity. Although still fighting 
the battle against dyslexia on a daily basis , Joe and I have had to help him less and less to the 
point now where it is rare that he asks me for help with small , simple tasks . He is succeeding 
due to three main factors that are outside of the control of himself and other students in need. 
First is that he was diagnosed at a young age and was able to get the help he needed in those 
critical early stages. Second is the phenomenal help by the astounding resources available to 
him both in and out of the classroom. Finally , and most importantly , is the incomprehensible 
amount of love, support , and care he has received from his family , and in particular his most 
wonderful mother. He is now a senior in high school with a near 4.0, involved with many 
activities and friends, and is next year going to college as well as playing Division 1 football. I 
could not possibly be prouder of Haley after watching every step and struggle along the way 
and I am blessed to call him my friend. 

Jack Pollard 
Fargo , North Dakota 



Feb rua ry 5th, 2019 

Dea r M rs .  Bucho l z, 

We a re writ i ng  you tod ay to l end  ou r  support fo r you r  i m pend i ng  test imony  to the  No rth  
Da kota state l eg i s l a tu re rega rd i ng  B i l l#1461 to create and enact new sect ions  of law re lat i ng  to 
dys l ex i a  screen i ngs and tra i n i n g  for teach e rs a nd  staff i n  No rth  Da kota . 

As you a re awa re, o u r  da ughter Camden Dene l l  Stafs l i e n-who i s  a 4th grade r  attend i ng  Au rora 
E l ement a ry Schoo l  in West Fa rgo, Nort h  Da kota -was d i agnosed with dys lex ia in 2017 upon an  
extens ive test i n g  a n d  screen i ng  exam i n at ion by a n eu ropsycho log ist .  P r i o r  to he r  d i agnos is, 
Ca mden  h a d  cons i stent ly st ruggled with read i n g  fl uency a n d  com p rehens ion  sk i l l s s i n ce sta rt i ng  
he r  e l ementa ry educat ion ,  wh i ch  was  recogn ized by he r  teache r(s )  and  resu lted i n  he r  
p l a cement i n  a remed i a l  read i ng  group .  Although th i s  was  a n  im portant  fi rst step of recogn it ion  
and i ntervent ion  by t he  schoo l  system, Ca mden ' s  read i n g  d efic i e n cies  pe rs i sted as  she  
p rogressed from gra de  1 to grade  3 .  Duri n g  th i s  t i me, we met pe riod ica l l y  with he r  p r imary 
c l a ss room a n d  remed i a l  read i ng  teachers to review a n d  assess he r  p rogress .  No  concerns o r  
com ments were ever ment ioned i n  terms o f  a potent i a l ,  u n der lyi ng  l e a r n i ng  d i sa b i l ity d u ri ng  
th ese d i scuss ions .  

I t  was at t he  reco m mendat ion  of  Camden 's  psycho log ist, who had  been cou nse l i ng  Ca mden  fo r 
a nx iety i ssues, t h at we eventua l ly had he r  eva l u ated by a neu ropsycho logist, l e ad i ng  to the 
d etect i on  and d i agnos i s  of  dysl exi a .  The teachers and staff at Au rora E l ementary were h igh ly 
recept ive a n d  q u i ck  to act once we i nformed them of Camden 's  d iagnos is, res u lt i ng  in the 
im med i ate i m p l ementat ion of  a 504 p l an  to a dd ress her  specif ic needs  and defic ienc ies  i n  the  
c l ass room .  Wh i l e  t h ey have p rovided adeq uate serv ices a n d  s uppo rt s i nce t hat t ime  i n  te rms  of 
co rrect ive a ct i on s, we be l i eve it wou l d  h ave been e normous ly benefic i a l  if Ca mden ' s  
e l ement a ry schoo l  teachers had been given the  p roper  resou rces and t ra i n i n g  to recogn ize the  
s igns  and  sym ptoms  of  dys l ex ia  at an  ear l i e r  stage i n  Ca mden 's  educat ion a l  d eve lopment .  
Aftera l l , i f  we had not made the  dec is ion to seek ass ist a n ce for Camden  outs i de  the West Fa rgo 
schoo l  system,  s he  m ay sti l l  be st rugg l ing as an u nd i agnosed dys l ex ic  today .  Th us, it is vita l ly 
i m po rtant  i n  o u r  o p i n ion a nd  exper ience t hat e l ementa ry schoo l  teachers i n  No rth  Da kota 
receive t he  p roper  t ra i n i ng  to recogn i ze t he  s igns of dys l ex ia  as ea r ly as  poss i b l e-and  perh a ps 
con d u ct some  p re l im i n a ry screen i ng  exerc ises-to avo i d  futu re, s im i l a r  s ituat ions  l i ke 
Cam den ' s .  

I n  conc l u s ion ,  it i s  o u r  hope that t he  Nort h  Da kota state l egi s l at u re wi l l  respond favorab ly to  
you r  test i mony  and  enact th ese new sect ions  of  laws to he l p  othe r  c h i l d ren  i n  No rth  Da kota l i ke 
Camden  receive t h e  p roper  resou rces, su ppo rt a nd  co rrective measu res t hey need i n  a t ime ly 
fash i on  to ove rcom e  the  cha l l enges of dys l ex ia  a nd  othe r  re l ated l e a rn i n g  d i sa b i l it i es .  

S i n ce re ly, 

S h a ne  Stafs l i e n  a n d  M i ssy Berry 
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House Bi l l  #1461  
Dyslexia screening and  training teachers and  staff in North Dakota 

Member of the North Dakota Legis lative Assembly 

North D akota Legi s lative Assembly 

Dear Member of the North Dakota Legis lative Assembly: 
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H i  I a m  Robyn Wilson and my son Payton now age 1 0  has been diagnosed with dyslexia. My 
di lemma started with the school at age 7 and due to his problems and not understanding 
teachers instructions and all the frustration that goes with not understanding what to do he 
developed major  behavior problems. This was so overwhelming for him and our family. He 
did not understand how to keep functioning without the proper intervention .  

Then it starts with lack of assistance and understanding the process of evaluation.  We 
spend a great deal of out of pocket money for a psychology evaluation.  Only after this and 
meeting with multiple teachers and other staff was Payton 's  case acknowledged. With the 
help with Haley's Hope we were able establish a 504 for Payton. Finally in  third grade he 
was also diagnosed with a learning disabil ity. To l iterally feel l ike you are fighting an uphil l 
battle to get help for your child is so disheartening. 

We are so pleased with the help Payton has received at Haley' s Hope.  They are so kind and 
understanding for these students which have nowhere to turn. It is  a very dark world when 
adults don 't  understand or would rather just bel ieve everyone should be main streamed. 

Finally in  fourth grade at Freedom Elementary in Fargo and multiple hurtful experiences 
we are finally getting more help. Without Haley's Hope I don't where my child would be 
today. 

S incerely 

Robyn Wilson 
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W E S T  F A R G O  H I G H  S C H O O L 

Feb rua ry 5, 2019 

To whom it may concern, 

I am writ i n g  th is l ette r i n  support of HB #1461 which wou l d  create a n d  e nact new 
sect i on s  of l aw re lat i ng  to dys lex ia screen i ngs a nd  tra i n i n g  fo r teach ers a n d  staff i n  
No rth  Da kota . Th i s  b i l l  i s  im portant  to me  beca use my 7-yea r  o l d  d a ughter, Megan,  
st rugg l es  with dys lex ia  and  without  the he l p  of H a l ey's Hope in  Fa rgo, N D, I don't know 
where s he  wou l d  be  academ ica l ly .  

My  h u s b a nd  st ruggled with read i ng  i n  schoo l  as  a n  e l ementa ry and seconda ry student .  
H e  was n ever d i agnosed with a l ea rn i ng  d i s ab i l ity bu t  after  h i s  teache rs came to know 
h i m, t h ey knew he  needed accommodat ions  to be successfu l .  I t  wasn't u nt i l  h e  sta rted 
schoo l  at N DSU that he  was d i agnosed with m i l d  dys lex ia and bega n  receiv i ng the 
a p p rop r iate too l s  to he lp h im d ecode words more effi c i ent ly .  Th i s  was i n  the  1990's and  
yet nea r ly  30 yea rs later, serv ices i n  p ub l i c  e l ementa ry a nd  seconda ry schoo ls  fo r 
ch i l d ren  with dys lex ia has  not evo lved .  

As  a p reschoo ler, I knew my da ughter wou ld l i ke ly st rugg le with read i ng .  Wh i l e  he r  twi n 
b rot he r  was eas i ly  i dentify ing l ette rs, sou nds  a nd  bas i c  s ight word s, M egan was on ly 
a b l e  to confident ly dec ipher  a n  "M" by ca l l i n g  it "my l ette r," a n d  "A," ca l l i ng  it a n  "up­
down-across ." It was c lear  that t h i s  was not a matte r  of n u rtu re, bu t  rathe r, natu re. 
M ega n ' s  st ruggle cont i n ued i nto k i nde rga rten .  She bega n receiv i n g  Tit l e  I services to 
give h e r  add it iona l  read i ng pract i ce both in a nd  out of schoo l .  H e r  l ack  of p rogress 
created not on ly frust ration, b ut a d ecrease in se lf-esteem and  a d i s i n terest in attend i ng 
schoo l .  Even though we, he r  pa rents, suspected she  was exper i enc i ng  dys lex ia ,  the 
West Fa rgo Pub l i c  School  system be l i eved it was too soon to te l l .  

We  cont i n ued with Tit le I serv ices h e r  ist grade  year .  He r  twi n b rothe r  was exce l l i n g  at 
read i n g, wh i l e  Megan l i ngered beh i n d  with s ki l l s l ess t h an  t hat of a k i n de rga rtener .  At 
m i d -yea r, my husband  and  I d ec ided to h ave Megan eva l u ated at H a l ey's Hope i n  Fa rgo . 
When  t h e  resu lts i n d icated t hat Mega n was i n  fact, st rugg l i ng  with dys l exia, we began 
serv ices with the o rga n i zat ion ,  pay i ng  out of pocket each week  to h e l p  ou r da ughte r 
s u cceed i n  schoo l and  bu i l d  he r  confi dence back .  He r  Tit le  I read i ng  teacher  at that 
t ime, was a l so very support ive b ut a dm itted ly d i d  not have the  knowledge, ski l l s  or  
t ra i n i n g  to mimic  the  too l s  M egan needed to a dd ress her  d i sab i l i ty . 

I f  i t  h a d  not been for the services of Ha l ey' s Hope, Megan 's  p rogress as  a second-grade  
reade r  wou l d  have h a lted .  Even  after severa l pa rent meet i ngs a nd  strategy suggest ions 
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from Ha l ey's H ope,  h e r  cu rrent Tit l e  I teach e r  does n ot u n d e rsta n d  dys l ex ia a n d  h a s  
expressed t h at s he  i s  at a loss fo r wh at t o  do  t o  he l p  M ega n i m p rove . Wh i l e  I a m  
d i s appo i nted a bo ut th i s, I a l so u nderstand .  As a h i gh schoo l  tea che r  myse lf, I h ave 
n eve r been  t ra i ned  to work with students with dys l ex i a .  I f  I don 't h ave the t ra i n i n g, 

knowledge a nd  sk i l l s , h ow can  I poss i b ly he l p  my stu d e nts s ucceed i n  t he  written  

l a nguage? There s imp l y  i s  n o  b r idge between the  p u b l i c  schoo l  system and  

o rga n i zat ions  t h at speci a l i ze  i n  dys l exi a .  

I t  i s  my be l i ef t h at H B  #1461 i s  a n  educat ion a l  n ecess ity . T h e  West Fa rgo P u b l i c  Schoo l  

system be l i eves i n  a n d  pu shes fo r "read i ng  i n  the  content  a rea"  and  academ i c  l i te racy .  

But  without knowledge of read i ng  d i so rde rs, it becomes  d iffi cu l t  to se rv ice students 
with m i ld ,  mode rate a n d  severe dys l exi a .  We receive t ra i n i ng on how to work with 

stu dents with AD H D, a ut i sm,  behaviora l  and conduct d i so rders, t ra u m a  and cu lt u ra l  
sens i t ivi t ies .  Yet w e  do  not know how t o  h e l p  dys lex ic  stu d e nts with t h e  #1  i n d i cato r of 

academ i c  su ccess; read i ng fl u ency and comprehens i o n .  Al l  teache rs, both e l em enta ry 

a n d  seconda ry, s hou l d  be  req u i red to h ave t ra i n i ng  i n  both bas i c  knowledge of dys l ex i a  
AN D i n  st rategi es fo r ass i st i ng  students .  

We a re fo rt u n ate to be  a b l e  to afford the services t hat H a l ey' s Hope  p rovides to h e l p  
M ega n l e a rn st rateg ies t o  n avigate a nd  i m p rove he r  read i n g  accu racy a n d  fl u ency. With 

1 in  5 peop l e  exper i enc i ng  dys lex ia ,  success i n  read i ng  s h o u l d  n ot be  d eterm i n ed by t he  

h aves a n d  t he  have-nots .  A l l  ch i l d ren s hou l d  h ave access to  l e a r n i ng  strategi es t h at 
d i rect ly  co rre l ate with t he i r  a b i l i t i es  OR  the i r  l e a rn i ng d i sa b i l it i e s .  I t  i s  my  fea r  t h at 

wit hout H B  #1461, c h i l d ren  l i ke M egan (20% of pub l i c  schoo l -ch i l d re n )  wi l l  exper i ence  a 
l i m ited read i ng  potent i a l  i n  t he  p u b l i c  schoo l  sett i ng .  

S i n cere ly, 

Lea h  Swedberg, M .  Ed. ,  NBCT 
2019 Centra l D i str ict SHAPE Hea lth TOY 
Health and Physical Education 
West Fa rgo H igh Schoo l  
(701}  356-2050 



Re : House B i l l  1 46 1  

Education Committee : 
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Please send to House with a 'Do Pass' Recommendation! 

Good morn ing !/afternoon! My name is Ju l i e  Ti l l berg and my husband's name is John 

Pederson .  We have two ch i ldren in e lementary schoo l in  Mayvi l le ,  North Dakota. John 
Luke is i n  4th Grade and L i l ie is in  ist Grade. Both have dys lexia. 

Last summer I read an art ic le  that mentioned a h igh percentage of ind iv iduals in pr ison 

have a form of dys l exia. And I thought to myse lf , " Not surpr is i ng at a l l .  That cou l d  eas i ly 

have been our  son ."  In ist Grade,  our son's grades were on grade leve l ,  but he was 

strugg l ing. Every schoo l  n ight he was anxious , tal ked about fee l i ng b l ue,  d id  not l i ke 

schoo l ,  had low se lf-esteem , had low-conf idence in  imag in ing what occupat ions he m ight 

have as an adu lt ,  and had behavior cha l lenges at schoo l and at home. We ment ioned our 

concerns with h is ist Grade teacher,  that he sti l l  had letter reversa ls ,  but noth ing was 

in it iated by the schoo l .  

On our  own , we had John Luke screened at Haley's Hope the  August before h is  2 nd Grade 

year.  We were then encouraged to do further d iagnost ic  eva l uat ion because of the 

sever ity of h is dys l exia and other poss ib le  d iagnos is .  We started h is tutor ing at Haley's 

Hope r ight away , because we knew the process to secure an IEP (Ind iv idua l i zed Education 

Program) through the schoo l system wou ld  take t ime. When we shared the d iagnost ic 

eva l uat ion resu l ts with John Luke's teachers and specia l ists from our local tr i-county 

Spec ia l  Educat ion Coop ,  we were to ld  he cou ld  not receive services d i rectly for h is 

dys l exia ,  even though the d iscrepancies on h is eval uat ion were cons istent with ch i ldren 

who have i nvo lved dys lexia. And so we d i rect ly asked , " How far beh ind wou ld John Luke 

have to be in read ing ,  to rece ive services for h is dys lexia?" Two years , we were to ld .  He 

was in 2 nd Grade.  (In 2nd Grade,  h is read ing group was with a Tit le  1 resource teacher , 

because h is read ing leve l d id go below grade leve l read ing. However ,  it d id  not specif ical ly 

address h is dys lexia .)  

S ince 2 nd Grade ,  we have had John Luke eva luated for Sensory Integration .  With the 
resu lts of that eva l uat ion,  a long with address ing John  Luke's A D HD-Inattentive, we have 

been ab le  to deve lop  an IEP that addresses these common co-morb id  d iagnoses of dys lexia. 

John  Luke's c lassroom teachers have been support ive. He has a specia l i zed l ist of spe l l ing 

words (from the Susan Barton Orton Gi l l ingham Curr icu lum)  that we provide to h is 

resource teacher to work on with h im.  And there are other accommodations made at 

schoo l due  to h is dys lexia. However , there cont inues to not be any d i rect instruction 

provided that addresses the dys lexia spec if ica l ly ( ie- instruction w ith a research-based 

dys l exia curr i cu l um).  

Now with our ist Grade daughter we are on a s im i lar journey of in it iat ing screen ings and 

d iagnost ic  eva l uat ions to secure support and services for her dys lexia. Th is past October , 

she started tutor ing at Hayley's Hope. In schoo l ,  she is in  the lower read ing group wh ich is 
l ed by a Tit le  1 teacher. Though , l i ke her brother , it does not spec if ical ly address her 
dys lexia.  



Re : House B i l l  146 1  

Education Committee : Please send to House with a 'Do Pass' Recommendation! 

Our son has b lossomed and is on a d ifferent trajectory,  then he wou ld  have been , if we 

had not acted to f igure out what was go ing on with h im .  A large part of h is success is due 

to the dys lexia tutor ing that he has received at Haley's Hope, a long with John and me 

taking the in it iative to address h is other learn ing chal lenges! 

Our daughter j ust read "Green Eggs and Ham" to us last week! She was so exc ited and 

proud of herse lf , that she took  the book to schoo l to share it with her read ing teacher! 

Ear ly on in this process of seeking he lp  for our son, it became apparent how getting 

support and resources for our ch i l dren with dys lexia is also a j ustice issue. It takes t ime,  

A LOT of emotional energy, determination , conf idence, money,  and f l exib i l ity of schedu le ,  

to  in it iate and provide he lp  for  our ch i ldren's dys lexia! What if you are a s ing le parent who 

works at Crysta l Sugar in H i l lsboro with a work schedu le  that changes every 3 weeks from 

day sh ift to even ing sh ift to n ight sh ift? What if you ,  as the parent , strugg led with 

read ing and retain ing information in schoo l ,  and did not have a good schoo l experience? 

What if  you are a two-parent househo ld  working fu l l -t ime at low hour ly wages? Th ink of 

what obstac les these parents face in in it iat ing and advocat ing and secur ing support for 

their ch i l d  with dys lexia! 

Having mandated dys lexia screen ings and Dys lexia Spec ial ists in each schoo l d istrict of 

North Dakota wou ld not on ly benef it the students with dys lexia, more ch i ldren wou ld  

exper ience success in read ing and the ir  overa l l  schoo l exper ience, a l l  ch i ldren cou ld  be 

strengthened in the ir  read ing ab i l ity ,  and , the teachers/resource teachers wou ld  be more 

empowered and better equ i pped to identify, support and work with a l l  their students! 



My name i s  Kat ie Zabe l ,  cu rrent ly my son Reese is i n  2nd grade at Centenn i a l  E lementary i n  

Fa rgo, North Dakota . Reese has struggled from the  get-go with read i ng. Dys lexia i s  so much more then 

read i ng for Reese, it 's h is perception  of how th i ngs look/sound .  He is a very b right and i nqu is i t ive boy 

and  a lways wants to figu re out how th ings work and  learn  about new th i ngs. He is  a very h a nds  on, 

v isua l  lea rner .  B ut when it comes to read ing, he has fou nd that because he can't figu re it out, he wou ld 

rather  not have to do i t .  

When in  Kinde rga rten he  was a lways beh ind the othe rs in  h i s  c lass, the teache r  stated he wi l l  

come a rou nd  if I was wi l l i ng to work with h im over the  su mmer. Which we d id ,  going to the l i bra ry, 

work ing on worksheets a nd  read ing every day. I t  was a strugg le for h im  and h e  wou ld get very 

frustrated at h imse l f  fo r not being ab le to do them as we l l  as he thought he shou l d .  

F i rst grade  was  hea rt break ing fo r both myself and  Reese . Th i s  is when  he lost confidence i n  

h imse lf. He  wanted to  stay home a l l  the t ime, he fought to do anyth ing  school re l ated and  he fe l l  way 

beh ind  on h is  read ing, even though we conti nued worki ng at home on trying to strengthen h is read ing 

sk i l l s .  Reese deve loped extreme anxiety when asked about school  or how the day went at school .  H i s  

demeanor  was a lways sa d or frustrated. The concerns were brought up count l ess t imes to the teacher 

a nd pri nc i pa l  and I kept getti ng to ld ,  "He is a boy and he is one of the younger  students i n  h i s  grade." or 

" If we make it past Ch ristmas k ids usua l l y  have someth i ng  j u st c l ick ." On various occasions I would ask 

for updates or check- i n  o n  Reese because I fe lt if i t 's  a strugg le at home, i t  must be a struggle at school 

as  we l l .  I wa s told that he i s  a very bright boy, he has a g reat att i tude and is a h a rd worker. I knew a l l  

t h is a n d  conti nua l ly watched h i s  read ing and wri t i ng leve ls stay a t  the same leve l .  Never getting better .  

Noth ing  was being done by the school beca use he  wasn't h aving outbu rsts or 'showi ng' them any rea l  

reason to be concerned .  I st i l l  addressed our  concerns about what was  go ing on  at home;  examples of 

my conce rns  were : Why spe l l i ng tests we so very h a rd fo r h im?  He wou ld  get maybe 1 or 2 words 

correct on t he  week ly test even though we had worked on them every day. How come, when read ing  to 

me, he  can  te l l  m e  th i s  word but on  the next l i ne  he  cannot recognize i t .  Our  da i l y  l ife got to the po int 

that ask ing Reese to pick out a book for me to read to h im caused h im so much anxiety he  would b reak 

down uncontro l l ab ly .  Towa rds the end of pt grade I cou l d  see there is someth i ng  with i n  Reese that was 

b ring ing h im  down and he just d i dn't know how to re lay those fee l i ngs to anyone .  In May after s ign ing 

h im up for summer  school I started d igging for fi nd ing some support fo r Reese because school shou ld 

not be as  d ifficu l t  as i t  was for h im .  Reese's 3 weeks in  summer school so l i d ifi ed  my concerns about h is  

read i ng  a nd rea l i zed I wasn't goi ng to be gett ing the he lp from the school that I fe lt was needed to make 



h im  successfu l i n  c l ass .  I n  August 2018, I asked had Reese assessed fo r dyslex ia th rough Ha l ey's Hope .  

They have been a l i fe saver fo r Reese .  When Kari was go i ng  th rough the p re l im i n a ry resu lts to touch  

base  w i th  me befo re we left, she cou ld  te l l  me  that  Reese i s  Dys lex ic a nd has  dysgra ph i a . I wi l l  never 

forget s itt ing i n  the room with Reese exp l a i n i ng to h im t h at he does h ave dys l exia a n d  what it was .  I l eft 

the room with a d i fferent ch i l d ,  he  was re l i eved to know that it was someth i ng  that  cou l d  be worked on 

and there was noth ing "wrong" with h im .  He smi led and looked l i ke the world h a d  been l ifted off h i s  

shou l d e rs .  Reese sta rted 2nd  gra d e  knowing that  he isn't stu p id  or  s low a nd that h i s  b ra i n  j u st processes 

th ings d ifferently. For h im  t h at i s  a l l  he needed to know to have a great sta rt to schoo l .  

Reese conti n ues to  a maze me on h i s  dete rminat ion .  The h a rdest pa rt h a s  been  s i nce fi nd ing out 

he has dys lex ia is expl a i n ing to othe rs what dyslexia act u a l ly is .  It i sn't t he  see ing th ings ba ckwa rds and  

u ps ide down . It's not spe l l i ng i n  reverse, it' s so much  more. I h ave to ld  Reese over and  over tha t  

dys l exia i s  not a horri b le  th ing  a n d  that we as teachers and  parents need  to  fig u re out how h is  bra in i s  

w i red  a nd  work with h im to  he l p  read i ng a nd  writi ng be  l ess d ifficu lt and  to catch u p  to  h i s  c lassmates . 

As fa r a s  my son's school  is concerned,  they have not been receptive to my concerns about 

getti ng  h im assessed for a read i ng d i sab i l ity. I asked at the begi nn i ng of fi rst grade  and was to ld to wa it 

unt i l  Chr istmas  break .  I a sked for him to get add it iona l  h e l p  with read ing and  was to l d  that he  was fi ne 

a n d  that he wou l d  catch up .  

I a g a i n  asked a t  the begi nn i ng of second  grade (befo re t he  sta rt of c l asses) t h a t  he be  assessed 

for a read i ng a nd wri t ing d i s ab i l ity a nd get an IEP i n  p l ace, because of what I had l ea rned  from his 

a ssessment at  Ha l ey's Hope .  They we re ve ry re l u ctant to move a h ead  with an I EP te l l i ng me that 

because students i n  the past h ave succeeded on a 504 p lan with m in ima l  to l itt l e  interve nt ions .  He 

cu rrent ly is on a 504 and  getti ng he lp  with read ing, but the  progra m they a re us i ng  is  i n  confl i ct with 

what he is be ing tutored on at  Ha l ey's Hope .  He  i s  u si ng the sk i l l s  he has ga ined from  Ha l ey's Hope and  

gett i ng a better resu lt tha n  with the read i ng i ntervent ion p rogram at schoo l .  I have asked a second t ime  

th i s  yea r  for h i m  to be assessed a nd  a m  sti l l  gett i ng re l uctance about p roceed ing  with gett i ng a n  I E P  

beca use the  adm i n i strat ion fee ls  he ca n accomp l i sh  enough to  get by on the 504  p l an  that is i n  p l ace. 

The ma i n  t h ing I am not i c ing i s  that s ince dys lexia isn't seen in  the state of North Da kota as  a 

Specifi e d  Lea rn ing D isab i l ity schoo ls  a re not equ i pped to he l p  those with the d isord e r. Students a re 

l u m ped togethe r  has those that have a read ing  d i sorder  and  those who don't .  Not a l l  rea d ing d isorders 

a re dys l ex ia  and t reat ing the dys l exic student t he  same as those with d iffe rent d i sa b i l it i es is 



counte rprod uct ive and  frust rat ing for a dyslexic student .  If dys lexia cou l d  be i dent ified a nd was 

u nderstood by more educators I fee l  l i ke more students who a re fa l l i ng th rough the cracks wou ld  be 

gett ing the he l p  they so desperately need to be a successfu l student .  I have been a n  advocate for my 

son s i nce the  begi nn i ng  and  wi l l  a lways be there to support h im, not a l l  ch i l d ren h ave that ki nd  of 

su pport. Pass ing this b i l l  i s  a w in -win for students a nd  the schoo ls .  The more a student fee ls  part of the 

l ea rn i ng p rocess and not someone who is  on the outsi de  looki ng i n, the better stu dent they wi l l  become. 

Al l aspects of l ea rn i ng  need a strong foun dat ion of rea d i ng a nd  writi ng .  Every subject requ i res rea d i ng 

a nd writi ng, gett ing he lp  with this at a n  ea r ly age wi l l  m a ke the student more recept ive to lea rn ing i n  a l l  

s ubjects and  i n  tu rn the schools mandato ry test sco res wou ld  most defi n itely improve . 

I n  c los i ng, I fu l ly  support HB#1461 .  I t' s  a g reat start to u ndersta nd i ng  that eve ry ch i l d  does not 

l ea rn the same and  teac h i ng the same way to a l l  students doesn't a lways work . We need to treat every 

ch i l d  as an  i n d iv id ua l .  Let's make North Da kota a great p l ace for k ids to l ea rn and  be ce lebrated for the i r  

d iffe rences, not pushed as i de. 

Kat ie Zabe l  
2918 36th Ave S, Fa rgo, ND  58104 
Kat ie . zabel @hotma i l .com 



To Whom it May Concern, 

Here is the experience we had with the school and and our daughter's j ourney. I noticed that 
when Parker would read to me that she would miss words, add in words, write her letters 
backwards, and add letters to words. I did some research on dyslexia and thought maybe this is 
what Parker may have. This was around the time that school conferences were so I mentioned 
this to her teacher and also her reading teacher. Neither one of them thought she had dyslexia. 
They thought she just needed a little extra help reading. They both thought this was kind of 
typical of kids in this 2nd grade. We took Parker to Haley' s Hope and had her tested. The results 
were that our daughter has severe dyslexia. We meet with Kari at Haley's Hope to see what 
would be the best plan to help Parker. She now sees a tutor at Haley's Hope twice a 
week. About a week after conferences her reading teacher emailed me and said she now sees the 
signs of dyslexia as she was watching Parker write a sentence . I emailed the school asking for a 
meeting to discuss any help they could offer for Parker since she was officially diagnosed with 
dyslexia. So  by the time we all meet it was March/April .  We meet with her teacher, reading 
teacher, school counselor, principal, and special ed teacher. We went over the Star testing Parker 
had taken and any other reading and writing samples she has done throughout the 2nd 
year. Everyone was in agreement that Parker needed some sort of help . We discussed doing an 
assessment on her to see if she would qualify for a 504 or IEP plan. By the time all the testing 
and observation would have been complete it would have been close to the end of the school 
year. So we decided to give Parker more one on one time with her teacher and reading teacher 
for the remainder of the year and to reevaluate Parker a few months into 3rd grade. We meet 
with her new teachers, reading teacher, school counselor, principal, and special ed teacher 
around mid-October of last year. We looked at some Star test scores from the current and 
previous school year. We were all in agreement that Parker needed extra help . So over the next 
2 months they evaluated her in class, she talked to the school counselor, and also did an 
assessment with the special ed teacher. It was determined that Parker did not qualify for an IEP, 
but a 504 .  So we have in place that Parker get extended time for timed tests, preferential seating, 
modified directions, and more teacher checks, etc . 

I was amazed when we started this that the teacher had not gone through any training on the 
signs of dyslexia. I wish there was more screening done on the students. We are lucky and 
discovered this while Parker was in 2nd grade, but what about those parents that don't discover it 
until their child is much older. 

Thanks, 

Wanda Terry 

Parker Terry - 8 years old and in 3rd grade 
Brooks Harbor Elementary, West Fargo, ND 



RE :  H B  #1461  

My son ,  Ryon ,  was d iagnosed with dyslexia at the age  of  9 wh i l e  homeschoo l i ng i n  3 rd grade .  He  sti l l  struggles 
today afte r be ing  t h ro ugh  m a ny treatment p l ans  by age 17. You w i l l  have many lette rs to read from loving 
pa rents that  have a m iss ion to he lp  the i r  ch i l d ren read bette r, but have to h u rd le the road stop of dyslexia 
which ca n slow read i ng a nd writing down fo r many at d iffe rent  leve ls .  

I wish to m a ke th i s  s imp l e  i n  a seq uent ia l matte r. 

1 .  Ryon was d iagnosed, afte r many concerns I had ,  t h ro ugh  o u r  loca l schoo l  d istr ict R i ch l and  44. They 
prepa red a remed ia l p l an  with an I E P, as I was not tra i ned to he l p  the b ra i n  ove rcome read ing "stuck" 
po i nts no  matte r how I tr ied . I fe lt I needed to re ly o n  someone with a l itt le more knowledge and 
t ra i n i ng i n  th i s  a rea ,  the loca l schoo l  system .  

2 .  The pub l i c  schoo l  cha nged the read i ng and  writ ing progra m many t imes a s  h e  cont i n ued t o  get stuck .  
3 .  Schoo led 3 rd g rade  aga i n  a t  home a long with t h e  pub l ic schoo l  read i ng c l ass with a n  I E P . 
4 .  Sta rted an eye the ra py progra m with an  o ptometrist i n  Fa rgo fo r eye t rack ing .  
5 .  Com p leted an  at  home bra i n  exercise and writ ing p rogra m .  
6 .  After  4 ½ yea rs o f  pub l ic school  read i ng c l a sses, I chose fo r h i m  t o  see a neu ro phyco logist .  There were 

no othe r  s igns of a nyth i ng other tha n dys lex ia ,  but p robab ly  at a p rofound  stage a long with some 
ADD/ADHD  issues .  
• She suggested occupat iona l  therapy and  The Read ing Center i n  Morehead ,  M N .  I a l so sea rched 

o ut a d iffe rent  eye therap ist fo r her recommendat io n .  The optometrist fe lt occupat iona l  thera py 
shou l d  cove r where she cou ld, so we fo l l owed th ro ugh with the occupat ion a l  thera py. We chose 
then  to stop the I E P  and pub l ic i nstruct ion fo r read i ng .  

7 .  Sta rted occu pat io na l  therapy at Beyond Bounda ries and  cont i n ued fo r ove r 3 yea rs . 
8 .  P u rsued Read i ng Therapy Cente r fo r 2 hou rs a d ay  fo r 9 months, a s  pe r  t he i r  recommendat ion after a n  

eva l uat ion .  BTW- a dyslexic ca nnot h and l e  2 hou rs o f  menta l work at one  s itt ing .  The  bra i n  gets t i red 
a nd  a bsorbs ve ry l itt le after 45 m in utes .  I fe lt wasted money there and  an exha usted son .  

9 .  I l ooked fo r a nother  avenue of  he lp, so I reached out  to  Ha ley' s Hope  to he l p  Ryon p rogress i n  read i ng.  
They d id an eva l uat ion and yes, we got to sta rt a nother p rogram .  

1 0 .  Ha l ey's Hope h a s  done wonderfu l with m y  s o n  a n d  a g reat encou ragement for the hope of read i ng 
we l l  o ne  day .  They ta ke t ime to work with h im at h i s  read i ng leve l with the r ight dyslexia read ing 
p rogra m i n  p l a ce a long with ve ry we l l  t ra i ned tutors . I j u st wish we had fo und  them sooner .  

As you ca n see, Ryon does strugg le more than most "1  i n  5 Dys lexics", but I fee l  Ha l ey's Hope has given 
h i m  the  best path to be on  fo r lea rn ing phon ics and  read i ng .  They offe r i nd iv id ua l ized teach ing specifica l ly 
fo r the dys lex ic, mo re than the norma l inst itut iona l  l earn ing sty le which focuses j ust o n  read i ng he lp .  
Dys lex ia needs to be catego rized d iffe rent ly a nd  as  i t s  own d i sab i l ity rather  t han  a read i ng prob lem/issue 
and the  i n st ructo rs fo r dyslexia need to be defi ned as  such .  

P lease pass  House B i l l  #1461 fo r the futu re of  those that  struggle a s  my son has .  I t  has  been a long road 
with thousa nds  of do l l a rs spent fi nd ing the r ight p rogra m .  I t  wou ld  have been benefic ia l to have specific 
read i ng he l p  fo r h im ,  the dyslexic, i n  a stre am l i ned d i rection sta rt i ng i n  3 rd grade when he was d iagnosed 
ove r 8 yea rs ago . 

Tha n k  you, 

Va l e rie  H utcherson,  

Ryon H utche rson,  

R ich l a nd  Schoo l  D i str ict 44, Colfax, ND 



#5 H- B /t/b f 
2- ...fo - ( ,  

I have attached a Snapshop you could print off and read possibly . .  it gives some insight into the 
severity of the NEED for this bill to pass ! 

Here is the post. . .  I would like people to understand how important it is that Dyslexia is taught to 
every educator in the Public Schools and that Dyslexic children need to have a different 
curriculum implemented. 

That Dyslexic children like my son was almost lost into the special education curriculum with no 
Dyslexic curriculum . . . .  my son and the whole family have suffered with the repercussions of this 
Neurological disorder . .  the memory loss ,  comprehension difficulties, math struggles, reading 
challenges and writing /spelling hardships. The depression , anxiety and financial hardship this 
Neurological disorder puts on a family is heartbreaking. 

Thi s .  

Tara E l i zabeth shared a post - with Amber • • •  

Lockwood and 3 others. 
Tuesday at  9 : 03  AM · 0 

Mike l  was d iagnosed 4 years ago with Dys lexia ;  

read ing/writ ing/comprehens ion/math !  

Then aga in  2 1 /2 yea rs later by  a 2nd Neuropsycholog ist 

with a defi n ite Dyslexia i n  Read ing/Writ ing/Comprehens ion/ 

Math .  

* * *By not 1 now but 2 Neuropsycho log ists and 1 CEO of a 

Dys l ex ia Coaching Center.* * *  



S ince 1 st grade ,  we sta rted the MTSS journey then on to the  
IEP  . .  labeled with LD i n Math i n Reading 

Even with the diagnos is ,  M ikel was st i l l  just in  regu lar specia l 
educat ion services wi th other ch i ld ren who had LD in  t hose 

areas NOT dys lex ia  . . .  

NOTHI N G  D IF FERENT FOR T H E  DYSLEXIA D iagnos is ? 

L i ke . How. Can.  This . Not. Be. Recogn i zed . 

I l i stened and a il'owed who I thought  new more then I d id on 
m>' ch i ld 's educat iona l needs . 

I have watc t,ecf my son grow MORE AND MORE Frustrated 
w i th his school work  and now h i s behav ior i s  in question ? 

The diagnos is  was ignored and damage is done.  Period . 

Now t t1ey wonder why t he  refusa l s? shutdowns? 
frustrat ions? behaviors? 

I Pray the Publ i c Schoo ls wi l l  Open Up a nd Understand that 
they a re NOT help i ng but hur t ing these MANY chi l' d ren in  
the schoo l  system . . .  tha t  they have th i s  Neurolog ica l 
D isorder, and it f s VERY prevalent  i n  ALL schoo ls !  By 
i gnor i ng th is Di sorder of Dys lex ia  they i n  turn a re mak ing  
schoo l  harder and harder  for A L students !  

The NEEDED cur r icu lum for Dys lexic chi l d ren is not 
questionab le f f  IS NEEDED FOR A SUCC ESSFUL 
EDUCATION FOR ALL CH ILDRE N ! 

Tara Lockwood 
SPED Support Staff 
Fargo Public Schools  

--Never get tired of doing good for the 
children with no voice--



� } jj, �� 
Coridon H uez I I  

When Coridon sta rted preschool  a t  the age o f  3 .5, I began t o  notice subt le d ifferences compared to h is peers. Coridon 

•cou ldn't recogn ize h i s  name for check- in because i t  took h im longer to  learn how to reca l l  letters, spe l l , and write h i s  
name.  H is teacher com mented on  how she cou ldn't understand h im,  so  h is speech was eva l uated . He spent a yea r and 
ha lf i n  speech thera py.  Then at the age of 4.5, pre-K was more structured with lessons to  be completed at their table 
spot, h is  behaviora l  issues became more apparent. Instead of wanting to sit and do the assignments, he acted out. 
Sea rch ing for he lp, I read  mommy biogs, varies parenting styles, and how to d iscip l ine a spi rited chi ld, but noth ing 
seemed to he lp .  The stricter I was, the more he rebel led . I wou ld  constantly ask myse lf, is th is developmental , is th is 
behavior normal ,  and can he even hear his teachers? Search ing for the cause of his behavior, I even had his hearing 
eva l uated, which came back no rma l .  I kept an  open dia logue with is teachers, trusting in  their professiona l opin ion .  

The phone ca l l s  from school  d i rectors, teachers, and the office secreta ries began in pre-K and continued through fi rst 
grade.  My son is b right, inqu isitive, and enjoys conversation; yet, I wou ld  receive ca l l s  a bout h is behavior, defiance, and 
be ing off-task. With each ca l l ,  I grew more frustrated. The l abe ls, such as  "bad" or  "naughty" qu ickly sta rted in pre-K and 
continued through K inderga rten, and I cou ld te l l  i t  affected h is se lf-esteem because he began to bel ieve those fa lse 
labe ls .  Each parent-teach conference went the same as the one before, Coridon  is bright, but he has troub le focusing, 
l i sten ing, and  he is beh ind on letters, numbers, and the l ist went on .  The on ly positive I wou ld  c l ing to is that every 
teacher a lways said how incred ib ly empathetic and helpfu l he was to h is  friends. He wou ld be the fi rst to console a 
friend.  After  h is  fi rst parent-teacher conference in kinderga rten, the ach ievement gap between Coridon  and the majority 
of his peers was evident .  He was beh ind on sight words, s low to recogn ize and reca l l  letters and some numbers too. I 
spent thousands of do l l a rs t rying to get h im caught up at Sylvan .  We practiced da i ly us ing flashcards. We read the take­
home books weekly. But read ing became a d readed battle, we a rgued and negotiated.  Sight words were cha l lenging 

•
because he wou ld  memorize the order of the words instead of learn ing how to recogn ize the spe l led words. My son was 
s imply not getting it ! 

I struggled for answers, I've read to h im since he was an  infant. I fe lt as  if we were both s ink ing, me with pa renting and 
h im academica l ly, and  by the end of kinderga rten, we were both exhausted.  He continued tutoring four  days per week 
through summer  vacation .  He made l ittle to no progress. Coridon started fi rst grade at a beginner k inderga rten reading 
leve l ,  it broke my hea rt .  I spent many n ights crying and worrying a bout my son's psychologica l deve lopment, socia l 
development and academic ach ievement. F ina l ly, a month i nto first grade, h is teacher recommended that I take h im to 
get tested at I nspir ing M i nds .  She to ld me it would be an out-of-pocket expense, but it wou ld  be a game changer for 
h im .  She was very cautious  to even mention the word "dyslexia" to me.  I immed iate ly contacted I nspiring Minds and the 
process fe lt l i ke an etern ity. We waited over a month for testing, another month for resu lts, and then another month for 
tutoring to begin .  

After 3 .5 yea rs of watch ing my son struggle, Coridon was  d iagnosed with dyslexia . I n it ia l ly, I cried for 3 days and was 
angry that it took th is  long. I fe lt l ike kindergarten was a wasted yea r because he was being forced to learn to read using 
an  inappropriate read i ng system that has been scientifica l ly proven not to work for ch i ldren with dyslexia . I fe lt l i ke I 
fa i led my son .  I fe lt h is teachers and the school system fa i led h im .  As I learned about dyslexia, I rea l ized that for 3 .5  
years, Coridon demonstrated c lassic ea rly warning signs for a student at risk for dyslexia .  I f  teachers were educated on 
dyslexia, perhaps Coridon's  struggles would have been a l leviated with early screening and identificat ion. If read ing was 
introduced to h im using the Orton-G i l l ingham approach, how d ifferent wou ld  k indergarten have been for him? We 
cannot d ispute the resea rch, the evidence based interventions, a nd the federa l  law that recogn izes dyslexia as a learning 

-disabi l ity. We must look at what other states have accomp l ished and recogn ize this as an  opportun ity to do what is right 
for our  ch i ldren  and  educators in  North Dakota by voting to pass House Bi l l-1461 .  



• 

• 

Testimony 
House B i l l  1 46 1  

February 6th , 20 1 9 

Chai rman Owens and committee members ,  my name is Natal ie Van Val kenburg 
and I am a resident of Fargo,  ND .  I would l i ke to thank you for the opportun ity to speak 
in support of House B i l l  1 461 . I bel ieve , both as an educator and as a mother to a ch i ld 
with dyslexia ,  that th is bi l l  is essential i n  help ing to meet the educational needs of a l l  
students with dyslexia i n  North Dakota. 

I am the mother to an incred ible ,  k ind , and inte l l igent 9 year old son ,  Wi l l iam , 
who has dyslexia .  I have my Bachelor 's degree i n  Education , with a minor i n  Specia l  
Education ,  along with a Master of Science i n  Elementary Education .  Pr ior to taking the 
opportun ity to be at home with my chi ld ren ,  I was a th i rd g rade teacher for 5 years .  
Throughout a l l  of  my schoo l ing and experience as a teacher, I was not educated about 
dyslexia .  I bel ieved that it was a d isorder in which students saw letters backwards-a 
common misconception many people sti l l  bel ieve today. I d id not know the warn ing 
s igns to look out for or  the specific way i n  which these ch i ld ren need to be taught i n  
order to learn to read , spe l l  and be successfu l  i n  schoo l .  I was not aware that i t  affects 1 
i n  5 people ,  or that most with dyslexia are of average to above average i nte l l igence .  I 
went i nto my career without the knowledge base to effective ly teach these students . 

I can look back on my years as a th i rd g rade teacher, and now identify students I 
taught who exh ibited signs of dyslexia. At the t ime, I d idn 't u nderstand why they seemed 
to have such d ifficulty read ing fl uently and spe l l i ng correctly. As the i r  parents came to 
me desperately looki ng for advice on how to help their ch i l d ren , I gave them a variety of 
strateg ies that I bel ieved would be he lpfu l ,  but which I now know were misguided and 
l i ke ly i neffective . S imply put, I d idn 't know what I d idn 't know. This is somethi ng that 
weighs heavy on my heart today. I regret that I was not prepared to teach these ch i ld ren 
in a research-based , mu lti-sensory, and systematic way that would have helped them to 

• 
become confident and proficient readers and spel lers. 

CD 



Throughout k indergarten ,  fi rst , and second g rade ,  my son ,  Wi l l ,  exh ib ited read ing 

d ifficu lt ies . He was unable to reca l l  letters and the associated sounds that they make , 

b reak words apart i nto sounds, or identify s imple s ight words .  Spe l l i ng also presented 

g reat d ifficu lty for h im .  My husband and I ,  along with Wi l l 's teachers, struggled to 

understand why Wi l l  was having these learn i ng chal lenges. The leg is lat ion that th i s  b i l l  

i s  i ntroducing-professional deve lopment for al l teachers re lating to dyslexia ,  screen ing 

of a l l  ch i ld ren  for dyslexia by the end of second g rade ,  and provid i ng students who have 

dyslexia with appropriate services, cou ld  al leviate the confusion that my husband and I ,  

a long with countless other  parents felt wh i le  strugg l ing to help our  ch i ld ren .  House B i l l  

1 46 1  wi l l  enable North Dakota fami l ies and teachers to  meet the needs of  ch i ldren with 

dyslexia in the futu re .  

As a parent and an educator, I knew that there was somethi ng d ifferent i n  how 

Wi l l  learned , and so I eventual ly researched the warn i ng signs of dyslexia-of which 

Wi l l i am exh i bited many. Gett ing him screened through Haley's Hope in  Fargo and then 

offic ia l ly d iagnosed with dys lexia provided h is  father and I with a sense of d i rect ion in 

how we cou ld  help him learn to read and spe l l .  S ince h is  d iagnosis in the m idd le of 

second g rade,  I have been tutor ing Wi l l  at home i n  an Orton-G i l l ingham based program . 

A month before he was offic ia l ly d iag nosed , h is  MAP Read ing score-which is a 

computer based standard ized test that many school d istr icts use to measure student 

progress and academic g rowth , was at the 26th percenti le .  After tutor ing h im  for one 

year and teach ing h im  to read i n  a way that works for  those with dys lexia ,  h is  MAP 

Read i ng score was at the 92nd percenti le .  H is tutor ing and that trend continue today, as 

he is currently i n  fourth g rade and scor ing above g rade leve l . However, the most 

important th i ng to h is  father and I is  that Wi l l  now loves to read and has confidence i n  

h imself and h is read i ng abi l i ty. 

Wi l l  was l ucky-he was d iag nosed i n  second g rade-before he was even aware of 

h is  learn i ng d ifferences . Because I have been a th i rd g rade teacher, I understand the 

educational sh ift that happens d uri ng the upper e lementary years-students must make 

the transit ion from learn ing to read , to read ing to learn . By that poi nt , strugg l i ng readers 



• beg in  to rea l ize they are beh ind ,  and as a teacher, I witnessed f i rst hand the damage 
that can create-the lack of confidence, the embarrassment, and the g iving up on 
oneself . Early identification and remediation of dyslexia is instrumental in avoid i ng these 
issues. 

• 

• 

House B i l l  1 46 1  is important to the future of education i n  North Dakota. It is 
important to fami l ies, to chi ld ren ,  and to teachers al i ke .  I bel ieve th is bi l l  wi l l  he lp our  
top-notch educators achieve what they al l  work so hard to do-meet the educational 
needs of every ch i ld and ensure the i r  success in  school and in l ife . Imag ine the impact it 
cou ld make if the 1 i n  5 students in our state who have dyslexia were identif ied early, 
and taught to read and spe l l  with proven methods that work. Th is bi l l  is  necessary and I 
respectfu l ly ask that you support it. 

Thank you ,  Chairman Owens, and committee members, for you r  consideration and I 
wou ld be happy to stand for any questions . 

Nata l ie Van Valkenburg 
2020 Rose Creek Blvd S 
Fargo ,  N D  58 1 04 
70 1 -729-4635 
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Test imony to t h e  

• 

• 

House Education Committee 

Prepared  Februa ry 1, 2019 

By Ava Ka ne, 5th grade student 

Regarding: HB 1461 

Than k  you Cha i rman  Owens and  Committee Members for the opportun ity to speak to you a bout House 
B i l l  1461 .  

My n a m e  i s  Ava K<'!ne .  I am  a fifth grader at Li berty E lementa ry Schoo l .  I was d iagnosed with Dyslexia at 
the begi n n i ng of second  grade .  Read i ng and spe l l i ng was ha rd for me .  I wou ld  often guess at words 
because I had a h a rd time sound i ng them out.  I t  wou l d  take me a long time to read a book. I a l so found  
i t  h a rd t o  read out l o ud  because I was u nsure o f  t he  words. 

I sta rted go ing to I nsp i r ing M i nds for tutoring. My tuto r, Pam, taught me spe l l i ng ru les to he l p  me 
remember  the words and how to spe l l  them correctly. Pam makes l ea rn i ng fun for me and I l ove how 
m uch better I am gett ing at readi ng. I can now read rea l ly we l l  and am proud  of how m uch my test 
scores have gone  up .  My read i ng fl uency is sti l l  a cha l lenge b ut it is  gett ing better tha n ks to Pam and my 
teachers .  

What I want you to know is that everyone is  un i que  and we a l l  l earn  diffe rent ly .  Dys lexia is a l earn ing 
d ifference. Schools shou ld  be supporting kids l i ke me i n  givi ng us the appropriate teach ing we need at 
schoo l .  I go to tutor ing twice a week. Some days I fee l  l i ke my b ra i n  is fried. It wou l d  be so great to 
have the he l p  I need i n  school so that I don't fee l  so t i red . 

Because of the he l p I have received, it has he l ped me to do great th i ngs. I rea l l y  want you to pass th is  
b i l l  so that other  k ids can  get the he lp  they need.  Everyone  shou ld have the chance to be successfu l in  
school and  fee l  good a bout who they tru ly a re .  

Thank  You 

CD 



- Testim o ny to the 
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House Education Committee 

Prepa red Februa ry 1, 2019 

By Rache l l e  Ka ne, Pa re nt 

Regarding: HB  1461 

Than k  you Cha i rm a n  Owens a nd  members of the com mittee .  It is a n  honor  to be he re th is  morn i ng and  
to  h ave the opportun ity to  provide testimony on  House B i l l  1461 .  I wou l d  a lso l i ke to  tha n k  
Representative Stri n den  for sponsor ing th is b i l l .  

My  n ame  is Rache l l e  K ane  a nd  I a m  a pa rent o f  a d aughter with dys lexi a .  My  daughter Ava i s  a perfect 
exa m pl e  of how i mportant ea r ly screen i ng a nd  proper Orton-G i l l i ngham i nstruct io n  is to these students .  

I began to see my  d aughter strugg le with read i ng i n  the midd le of fi rst g rade .  I went to her  teacher a nd  
s he  suggested we j ust work ha rder  a t  s ight words a n d  i ncrease ou r  read i n g  t ime .  We  d i d  t h i s  but my 
d a ughter cont i n ued  to strugg le .  I found  a tutor that j ust h appened to be OG tra i ned .  After a few weeks 
of workin g  with my d aughter, she had  conce rns a nd  suggested we get Ava screened for Dys lexia . 
Knowing th i s  was someth ing that ra n i n  my h usband's fam i ly, we opted to do the fu l l  eva l uat ion right 
away. I n  the fa l l  of her secon d  grade yea r, my daughter was found  to be dyslexic . 

The next pa rt of ou r  journey was to go to the schoo l a nd  seek he lp  with some a ccommodations my 
daughter m ight need in the c lassroom .  My fi rst meeting  was with the school  i ntervention tea m .  Some 
of the members on the team were not on  boa rd with what I was trying  to do for my daughter. They 
tried to d iscred it the eva l uat ion a nd  i nformation I was p rovid i ng  the team .  This was a very tough 
meeti ng .  The team to l d  me they wou l d  h ave to "wait  and see" a n d  perhaps ca l l  a nother  meeti ng i n  a 
few m o nths if m y  d aughter cont i nued to struggle .  Their  a pproach was to let my daughter fa l l  fu rther 
beh i n d  a n d  then  he l p  her. A few months later, her  teacher began to see that she was i n deed strugg l i ng  
to  keep up  and  rea d  at  grade leve l .  The  team  met for a second  t ime and  I was  met with less resista nce. 
The tea m  seemed more understand ing .  My daughter had a 504 p l a n set up for her  that day .  Every yea r 
we now meet with the schoo l staff at the begin n ing  of the year  a nd d iscuss my  daughter's progress a n d  
a ny n ew  concerns .  I have been very lucky that t h e  team a t  my daughter's school h a s  been s o  wonderfu l .  
M a ny other c h i l d re n  a re not so  l ucky. 

Every pa re nt of a dyslexic ch i l d, i n  th is  room, has  h ad  to fight for app ropri ate educat ion a n d  
accommodat ions  for the i r  ch i l d .  This shou ld  not have t o  happen .  M a ny pa rents fee l  overwhe lmed a nd  
don't know wha t  do  a n d  a re l eft fee l i ng  he lp less when  they a re to l d  there is noth i ng  t he  school ca n do  
for t he i r  c h i l d .  We  have been tol d  "dys lexia i s  not a rea l  th i ng" a n d  that ou r  k ids "a re n't do i n g  bad ly 
enough" to warrant a ny type of he lp i n  the schoo l .  

As of r ight now, t he  o n ly tutor ing ava i l ab l e  to a dys lexic c h i l d  is th ro ugh  p rivate tutor ing .  Th is has 
proven to be very effective but the financ ia l  bu rden  on  fam i l ies can somet imes be too great .  Extra 

CD 
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tutor ing can somet imes take away from the student's ab i l ity to partic i pate i n  extracurri cu lar  activities 
and  j ust fee l  l i ke a norma l  kid .  I th ink  putt ing the tutoring in the schoo l s  wou l d  a lso he l p  kids identify 
with k ids j ust l i ke them.  This wou ld  i ncrease the i r  confidence and  support a positive se lf-esteem . 

My daughter w i l l  be head ing off to m idd le  schoo l next fa l l .  Aga i n, I w i l l  fi nd myself advocati ng for her  
and gett ing t he  appropriate learn ing accommodations she  w i l l  need to be s uccessfu l .  I can on ly hope 
the school w i l l  be receptive to the i nformation I provide .  The one th i ng I am certa i n  of is  that Ava wi l l  be 
ab le  to tack le a nyth i ng that comes her way. Because we were ab l e  to identify her  prob lem ear ly, it has 
he lpe d  her become a very confident young lady. Dys lexia is  a part of who she is  and we embrace it. 

I hope you understand  how important House B i l l  1461 is to the future of ou r  ch i l d ren .  We need to 
identify ch i l d re n  with dys lexia early and offer the  resea rch based i nterventions that wi l l  he lp  them be 
successfu l .  Every ch i l d  deserves an  appropriate education .  House B i l l  1461 wou l d  he l p  make this a 
rea l ity. 

Than k  you for you r  t ime, 

Rache l l e  Kane,  Parent 

rache l le kane@hotma i l . com 

@ 



Parent Testirriony in Favor of House Bi l l  1 461  

Jamie Hauge 

Thank you Chairman Owens and members of the committee. My 

name is Jamie Hauge and I am testifying in  favor of House Bil l 1 461 . 

. I am an adult with dyslexia, and have two sons who are also dyslexic. 

I want to share our story in hopes that no other individual with dyslexia wi l l  

have to wait to fai l  in order to be helped . 

• My Story 

• Hayden and Grant's Stories 

- Neurospych 

- Vision Therapy 

- Audiology 

- Trips to Fargo 

- IEP and school services 

- Now beginning tutoring for dyslexia after al l  of these 

years 

Page 1 



- Had they been screened in  Kindergarten , we'd be over 

the hump by now 

• Concerns for other famil ies 

- Financial Means 

- How to Access Services 

• Kindergarten Screening 

- They already do a Kindergarten screen ,  why not add 

dyslexia screen ing onto that? If concerns arise later for a 

student,, do it again .  

Page 2 



Testimony of Nicole Leininger 

Sixty-sixth Legislative Assembly of North Dakota 

Testimony for the Legislative Assembly of North Dakota for House Bi l l  1461  

Thank you, Chairman Owens and  members of the committee. My name i s  
N icole Leininger I am more than happy to  testify in support of  House Bi l l  1461 .  I t  i s  
my  hope that through my testimony and the testimonies of others who are here to 
share their stories and expertise the committee will understand that dyslexia is  
unl ike any other l earning disabil ity and with the appropriate interventions a 
dyslexic student can have the most profound improvement in spel l ing, reading and 
writing. In turn, these interventions will raise self-esteem, confidence and provide a 
dyslexic student with a bright outlook to his future. I can say this with certainty 
because I have experienced this amazing transformation with my own son. My 
youngest son graduated from Century High School in 20 18 ,  I have no reason to be 
here except I don't want any other student to go through what he did .  Through my 
testimony, I will describe what school was l ike for an undiagnosed dyslexic child 
and the l i fe altering outcomes that could be prevented i f  we screened students for 
dyslexia and had resources for our teachers when the obvious signs of dyslexia 
surface. 

I feel our son had very caring teachers, from Kindergarten through 2nd grade 
each of his teachers made a point to inform us of his difficulties with learning his 
letters, the sounds of the letters and memorizing sight words. His  2nd grade teacher 
took the time to write an in-depth letter stressing her concerns with his speed of 
reading. He was reading 3 2 words/minute at a stage he should have been reading 
55 words/minute. I would personally spend time helping him every night. It always 
amazed me that the words he spelled correctly at home the night before a spell ing 
test were the same ones he spelt wrong on the test. He  would often spell words 
without vowels .  I remember routinely asking him, "does that even look l ike a word?" 
He would often use capital B and D in the middle of words or use small b and d 
incorrectly. He  had no rhyme or reason to which words in a sentence he would 
capital ize. Listening to him read was, to be honest, painful. He would often replace 
a difficult word with a simpler one that began with the same letter. For example, 
turtle would be read as tank. 

Due to his  misunderstood chal lenges and the large class sizes, we transferred 
him to a small private school with hopes he would "catch up" to students his same 
age. His math and science ski l ls were far superior to anyone his age, but anything 
related to spel l ing, writing and reading was a struggle .  

About two months into his first year at his new school his 3 rd grade teacher 
suggested we have him tested for ADHD .  Her reasoning for the testing was, ''fJJfll'Jfl 



,. 

i s  a bright boy but i s  having difficulty reading/decoding words and in written 
expression ."  Think through that . . .D ifficulty reading/decoding words and in written 
express ion, what part of that sounds l ike Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder? ! 
In  2 008 ,  thi s  caring and concerned teacher knew something wasn't quite right, his 
problems with spel l ing, reading and written expression didn't match his intell igence 
level seen in all other areas, yet there was no other options for help .  I was glad that 
she cared enough about my son to suggest testing and we felt it was worth a try 
since we were aware that these have been ongoing issues .  His  testing showed "mild 
ADHD" .  When I inquired about his poor spell ing results, I was told that spel l ing was 
not a disabi l ity. At the time I told the testing committee that I d idn't want him 
labeled with a d isabi l ity but I was concerned that his spel l ing was so horrendous it 
had to affect h is  writing, reading and reading comprehension if nothing else .  There 
were no suggestions offered accept to spend more time on spel l ing words. He was 
put on medication  for his ADHD diagnosis .  His grades did improve so we felt we 
were headed in the right direction at least. I have always been a "hands on" mother 
and have respected his teachers and appreciated their insight on my son since they 
were with h im seven hours a day. But, knowing what I know now, I would do 
anything to go back in time. A wrong diagnosis is  worse than no diagnosis and his 
ADHD diagnosis proved to nearly be a disastrous one. 

Fast forward to 9th grade. His grades began to drop; within a month into the 
school year he was failing Spanish miserably. He was no longer the outgoing, happy 
go lucky kid he used to be. Concerned, we started doctoring with the thought that 
maybe his  medication wasn't as effective due to puberty. He was put on multiple 
different meds,  al l  which made him sick in one way or another. We even doctored at 
the Mayo Cl inic in Rochester hoping the doctors there could provide some insight; 
we came home empty handed. Eventually he was withdrawn from Spanish and 
placed in CTRE, a tutor-centered study hall . He  took himself off his medication; he 
was fed up with the way it made him feel depressed and he was struggl ing 
academically on them so why take them. My son, who was an extremely intell igent 
kid, was spiral ing downwards. The same kid who built, programmed and flew 
drones via FPV goggles (first person view) , made a hydrogen generator for a class 
proj ect and assembled his own computer, couldn't get acceptable  grades in  many of 
his classes .  With my son's permission, I made contact with his counselor and all of 
his teachers. I let them know the struggles he was going through and asked if  there 
was any extra credit he could complete or if he could be given a second chance to 
turn in missed assignments. I asked if any of them had any suggestions, I offered to 
purchase study materials or extra resources that I would donate to the school for 
others to use .  Some of his teachers were very kind and understanding, others felt I 
was an over protective mother making excuses for my kid. A couple suggested he 
just needed to apply himself and try harder. None of them had any helpful 
suggestions .  I was truly at my wits end. I couldn't put my finger on it, but I wasn't 
going to l et my kid feel like a failure or think he wasn't smart. His self-esteem at this 
point was so  far gone; I didn't know what his future would hold .  



Near the beginning of my son's sophomore year his counselor spoke to him 
about various two-year programs and kindly expressed the fact that college isn't for 
everyone. What his counselor didn't know at the time is  that my son has wanted to 
be a pilot s ince he was six years old. To add insult to injury, six months after he quit 
his ADHD  medication he learned that the medication he was on was considered a 
"no fly" medication .  This meant that simply because he was once on the medication 
the FAA would not allow him to obtain his 1 st Class Airmen Medical Card, without 
completing a long list of requirements. Even after completing the requirements, 
issuance is not a guarantee. A 1 st class medical card is required for anyone who 
plans to become an Airl ine Transport Pilot (ATP) . It was just one more punch in the 
gut for a kid who was already barely hanging on. 

I spent hours researching without any idea of what I was really looking for. I 
j ust knew there had to be a piece of the puzzle I was miss ing. I knew how much my 
kid cared about his  grades and his intelligence level . At this point he felt as if his 
teachers l ooked down on him. He floundered and simply accepted his poor grades 
as being the best he could do. I felt helpless, I felt l ike a failure, it was so 
disheartening to watch my son continue to become an introvert and lose the 
excitement for the world around him that he once had. A very unexpected phone 
call from a good friend from Minnesota was the beginning to an amazing l ife­
changing turn around. She had just had her daughter screened for dyslexia. I asked a 
mil l ion questions and asked if  I could read the reports from the screener once she 
had them. I felt confident that I had finally found the missing piece to the puzzle !  I 
asked everyone I knew if they were aware of anyone who could screen for dyslexia 
in Bismarck. All responded with the same blank stare. By the grace of God, an 
internet search brought up Alysia Budd with Inspiring Minds Center. Within a week 
his screening was scheduled and shortly after that his results proved that all his 
academic struggles had most l ikely been due to him being dyslexic. His 
kindergarten through 2nd grade teachers concerns about letters and their sounds 
and sight words - all signs of dyslexia .  His  2nd grade teachers concern of  his slow 
reading - dyslexia !  H is  3 rd grade teachers concerns with reading/decoding words 
and written expression - dyslexia !  Horrendously fai l ing Spanish as a freshman -
class ic sign of  dyslexia !  A dyslexic student struggles with English, there's no chance 
he can succeed with a foreign language. Most recently and I quote, "it was noted 
that the student had a couple of "b/d" letter reversals within his writing, as well as 
printed capital and lower-case letters, used interchangeably, not necessarily 
appropriately" . All which are significant signs of dyslexia ! This most recent 
statement came from the examiner of the KTEA-3, otherwise known as The 
Kaufman Test of Educational Achievement, an assessment tool used by Bismarck 
Public School System to determine if a student qual ifies for special education 
services .  This assessment tool  was completed at the end of my son's sophomore 
year, just prior to us meeting to develop his 504 plan. All of  the these signs of 
dyslexia have fol lowed him his entire academic career, yet not one teacher has 
suggested he showed signs of dyslexia or even questioned that he may have a 
l earning disabi l ity. I have attached the actual KTEA-3 assessment tool report so that 
you can see that a typical dyslexic student does not register as needing special 



education services, but they do require dyslexic specific services as evidenced by the 
examiners report. 

I brought my son's dyslexia screening report from Inspiring M inds Center to 
the school and I was told that without a diagnosis there was not much they could do. 
It was suggested by them that we develop a 504  plan based on his ADHD diagnosis. I 
explained that h is  dyslexia screening pretty much proved that his ADHD was an 
incorrect diagnosis .  But, with no other options to obtain some kind of help, we 
agreed to use the ADHD diagnosis as a reason for a 504  plan. Whi le sitting in the 
planning meeting, it was very obvious how little the school system understood 
dyslexia. One of  the team members in place to help my son asked i f  he knew how to 
use a computer. She went on to ask if he would be able to make the corrections 
necessary to a paper if  someone wrote them in. She was confident that i f  he did that 
he would l earn how to make his own corrections eventual ly. A dyslexic person can 
copy anything, what they don't understand is "why" . Why is the comma where it is? 
Why is a period where it is? Why is phone not spelt f-o-n-e? Also, for someone l ike 
my son, taking notes while l istening i s  nearly impossible, so it was suggested by 
Alysia that he be  given printed off notes at the beginning of class so that he could 
add to the notes while mainly focusing on what the teacher was lecturing about. The 
schools answer to that was my son must ask for printed notes so that he learns to be 
his own advocate. My kid had already been through hell; he tried asking, and not 
one teacher had notes ready to give him. He was wel comed to get them after class­
this total ly defeated the purpose of printed-off notes. The school suggested he be 
placed in the front of the class to help with distractions (keep in mind his 504  plan 
was designed us ing his incorrect ADHD  diagnosis) . D istractions weren't an issue of 
his, having teachers quickly announce an assignment and when it was due as the 
bell rang was an issue. Part of his 504 plan was to receive printed assignments with 
due dates. This d idn't happen either. I am not saying he had bad teachers, many of 
them were very kind to him and once the 504  plan was in place several would ask 
him how things were going and if he had any questions .  It brought tears to my eyes 
the day he told  me that, " if nothing el se changes, I have realized that my teachers 
really do care about me." What the teachers and the school don't understand is  what 
dyslexia looks l ike, or how to help a dyslexic student, or the chal lenges that a 
dyslexic student faces everyday. Especially, one who is almost 17  and is  just learning 
about his own new reality. Thankfully, just knowing there was a reason for his 
academic struggles was enough to begin to see positive changes in my son. 

He began Orton-Gil l ingham based tutoring with Alysia Budd at the Inspiring 
Minds Center, twice a week for an hour each time in June of 2 0 1 6. I was slowly 
getting my son back. I will never forget when I received this text from him, "I love 
you too" .  It was the first time every word was spelt correctly. As his tutoring 
progressed he was showing signs of confidence in his abilities again and even 
though he would never say it, I could tell he was proud of himsel f. His grades went 
from C's and D ' s  to A's and B's his senior year. I have attached a copy of his grades 
so that you can see the dramatic improvement that can occur with appropriate 
dyslexia specific tutoring. I have al so included a progress report, which was 



completed j ust seven months into his tutoring. The improvements are nothing short 
of a miracle. He  tutored with Alysia for almost 2 years and I know today he would 
not hesitate to call her for advice or help from a distance. Approximately nine 
months after he began tutoring, he began the process put forth by the FAA to obtain 
his 1 st Class Airmen Medical Certificate. He spent two ful l  days testing with a neuro­
psychiatrist so  he  could prove to the FAA that he is cognitively and psychologically 
fit and he possesses the executive functioning skil ls  necessary to safely pilot a plane 
full of passengers. He was required to take a 7-panel drug test to prove his skil ls 
were assessed without any medications or drugs of any kind. Through his testing he 
learned his IQ is well above average at 1 14 and many of the multi-task based skil ls  
he scored as h igh or higher than Regional Commercial Pilots. On top of all of this, 
the Psychiatrist stated in his report to the FAA that my son did not possess the 
characteristics or testing patterns indicative of ADHD, and any scores that were 
"lower than expected" were all in areas that would correlate with dyslexia. I am 
thril led to announce he received his 1 st Class Airmen Medical Card on April 1 0, 
2 0 1 7 . I do  bel ieve everything happens for a reason, and although the l evel of stress 
he endured those two days of testing was more than a 1 7  year old should ever have 
to experience, the confidence and knowledge he gained through the process made it 
all worth it. Two months later he made his first solo flight. 

The final hurdle my son had to tackle was getting accepted into UND .  Due to 
his significant academic challenges; even though he received a 24 on his ACT, his 
cumulative GPA was not good enough to be accepted to the University of North 
Dakota. He had missed the minimum 2 .75  GPA needed by less than 2/l0th. His 
application  was automatically kicked out. Once again he was at r isk of his future 
plans of becoming a commercial pilot never becoming reality. After all he had gone 
through and all he had accomplished, this hurdle was not going to stop us. As a 
family, we met with the Dean of Admissions and my son had to explain why his 
grades were not the greatest and what he was doing to improve them. It was not 
easy for a senior i n  high school to admit he had a learning d isabil ity and that he had 
been receiving special ize tutoring, and due to the vast improvements he had already 
experienced he could say with confidence that he expected his grades to continue to 
improve. I am very proud to say my son earned the best grades of his l i fe his final 
semester of h igh school, he earned his Private Pilots License a week after high 
school graduation  and he most recently finished his first semester at UND with a 3 .8 
GP A. The same student who struggled to pass the easiest of high school classes, is 
now successfully double majoring in Commercial Aviation and Unmanned Aircraft 
Systems thanks to Alysia Budd and her amazing abil ity to connect with and properly 
tutor dyslexic students . 

What my son went through is not okay. What other students l ike him are 
going through everyday is not okay. Through my testimony, I hope I have proven 
that the signs of dyslexia shine l ike beacons. They don't improve with repetition. 
They don't "go away" nor does a young student simply "outgrow them". Reading out 
loud to classmates will never make a dyslexic student a fluent reader. But it will 
cause anxiety, low self-esteem and in some, behavioral issues as a way to avoid his 



or her turn. Dyslexia specific tutoring taught by a trained professional is  the only 
way a dyslexic student can begin to grow and flourish academically. Good teachers 
can easily sense there is something not quite right, but without the training or 
resources they are left with little they can offer for help. There is  no reason any 
student should suffer the way my son did .  I am so thankful that our situation turned 
out positive, but I know how easily it could have had a totally different outcome. I 
am here because my son nearly had his  l ifelong aspirations taken away from him 
and it wasn't due to any poor choices he  made or his lack of want and effort, it was 
s imply because no one understood what he was dealing with. I was never going to 
give up on him.  We were so fortunate that we found Alys ia, but the students who 
don't find their Alysia's deserve the same chance to experience success. The 
profound changes experienced by my son both academically and personally, 
through his  dyslexia specific tutoring from Alysia Budd at Inspiring M inds Center, is 
why I feel so  strongly about House Bil l 1461 .  Simply screening and offering 
appropriate dys lexia tutoring in our schools would make a world of difference to 
dyslexic students. Who knows how many dreams have already been ruined and 
futures wasted due to dyslexia not being discovered and remedied soon enough. It's 
time for North Dakota schools to step up and recognize this significant need. 

Thank you for your time and please feel free to ask any questions .  

r t0 {lf0( 
i-b- ! 9  

-¥- I I 

@ 



KTEA"' -3 
Kaufman Test of Educational  Ach ievement, Third Ed ition 
Standard Report 
Alan S. Kaufman, PhD, & Nadeen L. Kaufman, EdD 

Name: 
Examinee ID :  
Birth Date : 06/1 5/1 999 
Age: 1 6 : 1 1 

Gender: Male 

Reason for Referra l :  Learning �roblems 

G PsychCorP. 

Copyright © 201 4  NCS Pearson, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Test Date: 
Form: 
Examiner Name: 
Testing Site: 
Current Grade (or 
H ighest Grade 
Completed): 
Medication :  

05/25/201 6  
B 

2 
CHS 

1 0  

Pearson, the PSI logo, PyschCorp and KTEA are trademarks in the U .S .  and/or other countries of Pearson Education, Inc., or its affiliate(s). 

TRADE SECRET INFORMATION 
Not for release under HIPAA or other data disclosure laws that exempt trade secrets from disclosure .  

[ 1 .2 / RE1 / QG 1  J 

A LWAY S L E A R N I N G PEARSO N 



KTEA � -3 Standard Report, Age-Based Norms 
05/25/2016, Page 3 

l 
3'-to-t1 

Supplemental Composite Score Summary Table if I/ _.....,_ _ __ ___._.___ _______________ __ 
•·.· ,· · , • 

• , • ·. , 1  .. . . r ,  - � ·\  · ,. .,  • .. • ; . t • •r .. · • · ,� • : . · ,: • · ,,., .. .  ,. . ·: .... -,, , ,.- .. - ;, t-:-, . "-' ._ l "T :t \ f' C , r-1 .. .- -·\--.,, 
• · · =  S 

. · .  Sum of ... . · - · · · •  ,. 900/«
· ... : " • .  i ,· . • 1,! - �·-) t i · .. · "  .. •· : �- · � : · .. -..,, ... ,! �f , ; . ,  

l . . · ' ubteSf Subtest Standard . '  0 
• Percentile • . · : - · . ,, . ·- 1- - Age · •:.( ·. ,:i:", . "' . Composite/Subtest · . ·. Raw S d d S � · : Confidence R k . ' Dcscnptlvc, t ·[ • 1 · r' .- · 1 ,  GSV · 

, . · · tan :1r cores , , · , · · · an .. , , - , · ' . : QUI\'a en .. � .. \: ,, · 
:. · • , 1 Scores S 

. 1 , - lntcn·al , · , . �· . .  , · Catc�o,:y_ " , � .: , , . , , ,  , , .  · · 'I'. . ·. 
. . � 

. . - : . , . . ·... . cores . . 1 . . .. f .  • • • ' • •  :'"• • . .. ' '  : • , . • ,.. • • • •  � ,  r, � . ' ,... :- . " . .. . � ., ... 1 ) '\.,, ,i; • 
Supplemental Composites 

I. $,pun<f�]i'Q'IJ��- ,-r. � ,., ·. ·::;_;. 
- .. "t:;;11·,i�;:2�" - '"""" ... _ 

� .... .Ill". � . ' -, t· ,k .-. -- .,., ':'El.'tf�J 1;,;J;:;:.�:! -: .. . , .. i ... ,--'7·· .. ·,;;·· . a 
Phonological Processing . - . . 

Nonsense Word Decoding . . . . 

r .»mi1iiil<!lompoiite�0
�-�; � . :.:;.__, ·" 

"'· -
"' i -�.,K,. �.,. ... . � ·' � .� ..... �-_:::,,,. . ,:... - - -

Letter & Word Recognition 82 . 99 94 - 1 04 

Nonsense Word Decoding . . . . 

LiRe!id_iiig'iElµ�ncy,,e'.qmposfte'f";•;; · ·�it. ' I. r;·
,.111: 

· ., . . .  
� :: • - - � 

Silent Reading Fluency . . . . 

Word Recognition Fluency . . . . 
Decoding Fluency . . . . 

I R:e.3.d111gilifn.d'trs.ti1nill'iii,0ii"piolljf __ 
- �· -

.. _J 
- . - ., ... · - .;.l, . •• /i - -. - ·-

Reading Comprehension 20' . 120 1 12 - 128 

Reading Vocabulary 
. . . . 

[ <Ji:aJiEii'ngyi'lgit:composi1e . . . .t}-�. -�-;;;; �- ,,:,::.· -· ·· - i  ,r -� --; -� .. � . . . � 
Associational Fluency . . . . 

Listening Comprehension . . . . 

Oral Expression . . . . 

L 't>ii'fililFlu�Ciimpoil.rl • ,,"'.. jJ;;.,,. • h:;�:�',:':£':1 ; .. �::,-;!- .- �-\7 ,,.,:_, '"-'· 
Associational Fluency . . . . 

Object Naming Facility . . . . 
L;<1:ouipr.elle'ii�icimComp'6s!_'te ·: ·-� --�� " .. ,. - .;. 

,. - - � ·  � ,, ., ·-· 
Reading Comprehension 20' 120 1 1 2 • 128 

Listening Comprehension . . . . 
l :E'zjir,esaioµJtJfffuj>iisit�'.:· . ' ;.;_,,: :,. � .. " �:·· 'Ii" -� ' l C. ' . . .• •, .. . - -- ·,..,. 

Written Expression 46' . 96 85 - 1 07 

Oral Expression . . . . 

I t>rtli�Jiic PrO:CeiJiilgl�EPJr!lte1' , . .;;:·;,:- --� ., ,!i f'!' -'� 'i.Z: , -. . 
::1..2.·,_,J . ·-

Spelling 52 . 91 85 - 97 

Letter Naming Facility . . . . 
Word Recognition Fluency . . . . 

I �qa�Jn1§�1ttei"t$.€o'iQSittet<� .. w ���- -- - [' : _,:: .. .. . . �- - - . .  -..:. "' •i "' .;; -� 

Writing Fluency . . . . 

Math Fluency . . . . 
Decoding Fluency . . . . 

1 Indicates a raw score that is converted to a weighted raw score (not shown) . 
2 Indicates that a raw score is based on a below grade level item set. 

Copyright © 201 4  NCS Pearson, Inc. All rights reserved. 

. 

. 

llf..1.., � 
H 

47 

. 

� C - -�� - -
. 

. 

. 

' . I 
91, 

. 
.. 

_.<_· � . 
. 
. 
. 

.:.f----

. 

. 

Id - a 

9 1  

. . --. -
39 
. 

.:"!--.. •: � 
27 

. 

. 

. . , 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

t" .• t,.-c--,. 
,., _ .... 

Average 
. 

. " 
. 
. 
. 

_., 
Above 
average 

. 

• _tr,f __:, -:: �'. 
. 
. 

. 
·.i�: ., · 

. 

. 

_;..,. _ ·"'· 
Above 
average 

. 

- - - .• 
Average 

. 

I • · "t1�z;' ' 
Average 

. 

. -

,._ 

.. 

"' '"� - ..'....-
. 
. 
. 

. 

. 

, •.. 
16 :3 
. 

J " . .  
� 

. 

. 

. 

l :,• c-

>19:6 

. 
- . 

' l w � 
. 
. 
. 

i :: : ·...-,c= 
,t -. 
. , - :: ... - -

>1 9:6 

. 
,i -- .,,. , ., 

1 3 : 1 0  
. 

_#1 
12 :6 

. 

. - -� ·'· � -�- .., 

. 

. 

. 

.• 

-
. 

... -- �., -� 

. 

1, 

e 

-

564 
. 

. "'�· , 

. 

. 

. 

-
571 

. 
--
. 
. 
. - - , -. . 
. . 

. ., 

571  

. 

1 

_] 

] 

1 

-� l 
5 1 2  

. 

.1 
54 1 

. 

. 
' ,1 - j 

. 

. 

. 

@ 



KTEA • -3 Standard Report, Age-Based Norms 
05/25/201 6,  Page 5 

11 f5 flJ&I 
Supplemental Composite Score Summary Profile ��t,- lq ����;;.;...;....;;;�.....;.__�=-----------.# 

I
I 

Very Low Very High 

40 55 70 85 1 1 5  1 30 1 60 
Confidence 

145 Score Interval 

Sound-Symbol Composite ,l I I 
I I 

I I I 
I I I 

Phonological Processing � I I 
I I 

I I I 
I I I 
I I I 

Nonsense Word Decoding ·I I I 
! I 

I I I 
I I 

Decoding Composite � I 
I 

I I 
I I 

Letter & Word Recognition : rn ··.:rr:,i 99 94 - 1 04 
I I 
I I 

Nonsense Word Decoding ,I I 
I 

I I 

Reading Fluency l 
,r Composite : 
I 

Silent Reading Fluency 1 
I 
I 

Word Recognition Fluency i 
I 
I 

Decoding Fluency 1 
I 

I I I I I 

Reading Understanding : I I 
I I 

Composite 1 I I 
I I 

I I I 
Reading Comprehension l I I 1 20 1 1 2 - 1 28 I I 

I I I 
I I I I 

Reading Vocabulary {, I I I 
I I I 

I I I 
I I I I I I Oral Language Composite ,I I 

I I 
I I I 
I I I 

Associational Fluency 4 I I 
I I 

I I I 
I I I 

Listening Comprehension {' I I 
I I 

I I I 
I I I 

Oral Expression 1· I I 
I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I I I 
I I I I 

Copyright © 201 4  NCS Pearson, Inc. All rights reserved. 



t • j Nas admin istered the Kaufman Test of Educational Achievement, Third Edition (KTEA-3) over 
two days in May 201 6 . The KTEA-3 is a rel iable and valid assessment tool  approved by the Special 
Education Department of the Bismarck Publ ic School System. a••l academic skil ls were assessed 
in the areas of read ing and written expression . ••• was cooperative and engaged in the various 
tests. He appeared to put forth h is best effort and d id not appear to exh ibit any anxiety at any point 
during the testing .  The KTEA-3 was scored based on Isaac's chronolog ical age at the time of testing 
which was 1 6  years ,  1 1  months. These results appear to be a valid reflection vrd j I current 
academic achievement. Standard scores (SS) have an average range of 85- 1 1 5 , with anything below 85 
being in the Below Average range. The Above Average range consists of standard scores from 1 1 5-1 30. 

Reading:  
The subtest standard scores of 120 on Reading Comprehension and 99 on Letter-Word Recognition 
indicate thatt1•••comprehension skills are in  the Above Average range and h is basic reading 
(sounding out) words i n  isolation skills are in the Average Range. Together, these scores reflect an 
overall Reading Composite score of 1 1 0, within the (high) Average Range. When analyzing 
errors in  comprehension, though they were few, they were with the inferential, narrative, and expository 

• ... � question answers .  f 1ch ieved one-lilundred percent accuracy on h is  answers for the l iteral-type 
questions. 

Written Language: 
I standard score on the subtest of Written Expression was a 96. This test assessed various . a "categories" includ ing sentence structure , word form , capitalization ,  and punctuation. ••••errors 

were more significant in the areas of capitalization and punctuation .  H i s  standard score indicates that his 
performance ability fal ls at the h igh end of the Average range . The results of ••• Spelling subtest 
indicated a standard score of 9 1/Average range. The Written Language Composite standard score of 92 
was also with in  the Average Range. It was noted the C O 1ad a couple of " b/d" letter-reversals within  
h is  writing, as wel l  as printed capital and lower-case letters, used interchangeably, not necessarily 
appropriately. 

Overal l ,  the resu lts on the KTEA-3 indicate that achievement abi l ities in reading and writing are 
well with in  the Average range.  His lowest SS was in the area of spelling and h is h ighest SS was in the 
area of reading comprehension . 

Composite/Subtest Sta ndard Scores Percenti le Ra n k  

Read ing Comprehension Subtest 120 91 

Letter-Word Recogn iti o n  Subtest 99 47 

Reading Composite 110 75 

Written Express ion Subtest 96 39 

Spe l l i ng Subtest 91 27 

Written Language Composite 92 30 

Hr3 1 4� (  
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CENTURY H IGH SCHOOL TRANSCRIPT 

1 000 E. Century Ave. 
Bismarck, ND 58503 
(70 1 )  323-4900 

COURSE NAME 

1 7-18 Century High School 
AP Computer Science 
AP Psychology 
CTE-CTRE Serv Lrn 
Economics 
Engl ish 1 2  
Government 
PE 1 2  

1 6-17 Century High School 
Chemistry 
CTE-CTRE Serv Lrn 
English 1 1  /US History 
PE 1 1  
Pre-Calculus 
Psychology 
US History/English 1 1  

1 5-1 6 Century High School 
Algebra I I  
Biology 
Computer Prog I 
CTE Resource Education 
English 1 0  
Marketing 
Marketing 
PE 1 0  

H-1 5 Ccntur/ High Schoel 
GTE Resource Education 
English 9 
Foundations of Technology B lock 
Geometry 
Global Studies 
PE 9 
Personal Finance 
Physical Science 
Spanish I 

1 3-14 Horizon Midd le School  
Algebra I 

TEST SCORES ON BACK 

Accredited :· North Central Association 
0 8-001 -1 465 

Semester 1 Semester 2 Summer 1 

B- 0.500 A 0 .500 
A 0.500 B+ 0.500 
A+ 0.500 A 0 .500 

A- 0.500 
B- 0.500 B 0 .500 
B 0 .500 

A 0.500 

B- 0.500 C 0.500 
A- 0.500 A· 0 . 500  
8- 0.500 C+ 0.500 

A 0.500 
C 0 . 500 D 0 .500 
B 0 .500 
B- 0 .500 C+ 0 .500 

fl-Zfci' i l/j --. 3-: s (\1 \ 
I 

D 0 .500 C 0 .500 \c )JJ //,; 
C 0.500 C 0 .500 Tv_ 
D 0 .500 
B 0 .500 B 0,500 
C 0 . 500 C 0.500 
B 0 .500 

C 0.500 
8 0.500 

C 0.500 C 0 .500  
D Q. 500 D 0 . 500 
C 1 .000 
C 0.500 C 0 .500 
C 0.500 B 0 .500 

B 0.500 
D 0 .500 

D 0 .500 C 0 . 500 
w 0 .000 

B 0 .500 8 0 .500 

Enrollment Dale: 08/24/201 7 

Exit Date: 05/25/201 8 

Weighted GPA: 2 .6275 
Un-Weighted GPA: 2 .5490 

Total Credits Earned: 25.500 

Weighted Class Rank: 234 ou 
of 295 
Un-Weighted Class Rank: 24� 
out of 295 

Graduation Date: May 27, 201  

Civics Test Passed :  05/02/20' 

G RA D I N G  SYSTEM 

A =  Superior 
B = Above Average 
C = Average 
D = Below Average 
F = Failing 
S = Satisfactory 
U = Unsatisfactory 
FC = Failure Due lo Credit Lo, 
WF = Withdrawal Fail 
WP = Withdrawal Pass 
W = 'Nithdrawal 
• = Modified Curriculum 
" =  M din r:al 
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Name: 
School: 
Parents: 
Address : 

Background: 

Confidential Literacy Progress Report 

Date: 01 /24/20 1 7  
DOB: 6/1 5/99 
Age: 17 .7 
Grade: 1 1 th 

.._�is a 1 7  year old male who is in the 1 1th grade at Century High School in Bismarck, ND. He is 
active in hockey as well as with hobbies such as building and designing drones, computers, and has an 
overall interest in aviation. 

began tutoring at Inspiring Minds in June of 201 6  following a dyslexia screen he received in 
Aplil of 201 6  which identifie, 1 .._.,  as fitting the profile for dyslexia. He has been receiving Orton­
Gillingham based structured literacy instruction at a frequency of 2x/week for 1 hour sessions. 

Progress: 
has made excellent, consistent progress with tutoring. Interventions have been Orton-Gillingham 

based as recommended by the International Dyslexia Association. Sessions have focused on remediation 
of phonemic awareness, symbol-sound/sound-symbol associations, and simultaneous multisensmy 
instruction of reading and spelling. In addition,- has been working on skills of written expression. 

Throughout tutoring, __ has displayed a remarkable commitment to his own learning. He arrives on 
time and comes prepared with any matelials he may need specific to his schoolwork. He has been 
willing to come to tutoring sessions on days that he is off of school, and has attended extra sessions in 
order to work on writing assignments for his English class at school. 1111111 has also consistently 
displayed excellent attention and focus during each session that he has attended. 

In order to assess �progress, the Word Identification and Spelling Test (WIST) was 
administered. This assessment was also administered at the beginning of tutoring in June; therefore, 
results of both assessments have been reported in order to show IJlllllll progress. 

The WIST is a norm-referenced tool that assesses a student's basic literacy skills in three subtests areas 
which include : word identification, spelling, and sound-symbol knowledge. 



Results of the Word Identification and Spelling Test (WIST) for 

WORD !DENT!FIC/ff!ON 

FU! lDt.\M ENTA.L LITER A.CY 
AB ILITY INDEX 

SOU N D-SYM BOL 
KNOWLEDG E 

Results on 06-1 5-201 6 

87 

30 

1 1 7  

57 

27 

84 

201 

32 

52 

84 

21 % 

1 4% 

1 4% 

1 %  

88 

84 

84 

65 

are as follows: 

Results on 01 -1 2-201 7 

98 

30 

1 28 

75 

27 

1 02 

230 

48 

87 

1 35 

63% 

37% 

45% 

73% 

1 05 

95 

98 

1 09 

According to the results of the WIST, as made excellent gains since beginning tutoring 7 
months ago. His skills for decoding (reading) and encoding (spelling) are now within the average range. 

made an enormous jump from the 1 st percentile at the time of beginning intervention to the 73rd 
percentile at the current time. 

continues to work to apply the new strategies and skills he has learned, particularly with spellin 
and written expression, but also when decoding multisyllabic words that are not familiar to him. 
has an excellent visual memory which appears to have allowed him to memorize words. He also has an 
expansive vocabulary which aides him in comprehension of a variety of texts and genres. 

Continued areas of weakness for include: spelling and applying suffix rules, r-controlled 
syllables, vowel-team syllables, decoding unknown multisyllabic words, and organization, syntax and 
semantics for written expression. These identified areas are precisely wherellllll is about to begin 
within the systematic scope and sequence of instruction; therefore, it is apparent that explicit, 
systematic, multisensory instruction is highly effective for O d 



Recommendations: 
- is a bright student who has been actively engaged in tutoring while being able to retain what he 
has been taught from one session to another. 

It is recommended that - continue tutoring at a frequency of 2x/week in order to continue to 
increase his independence and success with all future academic and career ambitions. This approach to 
teaching is clearly working for 11111111, but ftuther instruction to ensure generalization of skills and 
automaticity is highly recommended. 

Tutoring sessions should continue to follow the Orton-Gillingham scope and sequence while being 
diagnostic and prescriptive to - individual needs. Tutoring should also continue to work on skills 
needed for successful written expression as this is an identified need for-

It is a pleasure to work with and teach �- If there ai-e any questions regarding this report, please 
feel free to contact me at (70 1 )  204-7 1 00 .  

Alysia udd, OTR/L 
Dyslexia Consultant and Screener 
Certified Handwriting Specialist 
Certified Barton Tutor 

---- ( 'ert[fied in ----

1Barton 
Reading & Spel ling System® 
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after H igh  School Graduation  
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1 st Grade 
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Good Morn ing members of the Education Com mittee. My name i s  Jenn ifer Dockter. I 'm here to show my 
support for HB 1461 rel ating to Dyslexia screenings and tra in ing to teachers and staff. 

Can you imag ine having a young ch i l d  who cries night ly because she says she feels  stup id  and wishes she 
was smarter and doesn't understand why her bra i n  doesn't learn l i ke al l  her c lassmates? I don't need to 
imagine th is ;  I l ived this for over 2 years with my daughter who wanted to l ove school but at the same 
time  hated school because it was so hard. As a parent, there i s  noth i ng harder than wanting to make 
thi ngs easier for your ch i ld  but not knowing how. When everyth ing that i s  tried to a ide i n  the learning 
process leads to m ore tears and frustration and noth ing seems to work, it takes a tol l  on  everyone i n  the 
fam i ly. U nt i l  you go through it , it doesn't hit home on how important th is b i l l  i s .  

I began to question  i n  her kindergarten and 1st grade year if she was Dyslexic to the professiona l s  at her 
school  and was tol d  no  and continua l ly  told she wi l l  catch up .  I knew very l i tt le of Dyslexia at the t ime 
with no known fam i l y  h istory and bel ieved what I was tol d  by the school profess iona ls to be true. After 
being encouraged by an  Occupational Therapist, who had been studyi ng and learn ing more of the signs 
of Dyslexia, I took my daughter to a screening at Insp i ring M inds .  On  that day in September, we were 
fina l ly  given an answer as to why she struggled the way she d id  da i ly  in school , why s imp le  sight words 
such as WAS, TH E, IT cou ldn't be put to memory, and why the effects of school led to tears most n ights; 
she was identified as having severe Dyslexia. That day added a p iece to the puzz le of who my daughter 
is, but a l so l eft me with so many questions as to what had been m i ssed in the last two years of school .  I 
question that if the teachers had the proper tra in ing i n  Dys lexia, where woul d  she be now. I then started 
to learn that North Dakota d idn't have laws i n  p lace to identify Dyslexia with i n  the pub l i c  school system. 
My now 9 year o ld  daughter was d iagnosed with Dyslexia i n  September of 2017 at the age of 8 and since 
that time  has been attend ing tutoring two hours a week in the even ings at I nsp i ring M inds in B ismarck. It 
requ i res a l ot of her menta l l y  to attend school for a fu l l  day and then give her best at tutoring i n  the 
even ings. My daughter i s  fortunate though that we have accessib i l ity to I nspir i ng M i nds  loca l l y. However, 
with on ly  a few fac i l it ies in the state that are tra ined in the Orton-G i l l i ngham method of tra in ing that 
leaves a l ot of students beh ind .  A screening, as i s  presented in th is b i l l ,  wou ld  he lp  identify at a much 
ear l ier age any warn i ng signs and to get the proper help a ch i ld  needs at an  earl ier age. Dyslexia is more 
common than most bel ieve impacting up to 20% of the population .  However, with proper tra in ing and 
instruct ion, these students can thrive when taught i n  the way that their bra in  processes l anguage ski l l s. 

My daughter understands she is Dyslexic and why she has to work that much harder. With her Dyslexia 
though she i s  extremely creative, an outside the box thi nker, i ntuitive, imaginative, and a rtistic. She 
strives to be a reader and has hopes of one day becom ing an e lementary education teacher. I hope to 
see that happen as she would  make an outstand ing teacher. With her consistent tutoring, she has 
progressed in ways I never d reamed possib le; she is  becoming more confident and learn ing to trust in her 
own ab i l i ties . Tutor ing and understand ing her Dys lexia i s  opening her view of the world from what was 
once a foreign l anguage to seeing the world around her in a way that she can understand .  I magine being 
ab le to read and understand thi ngs written around you for the fi rst time !  It's qu ite remarkab le to witness 
where she is today. She i s  less frustrated, the resistance to read is  less, and her school days are becoming 
less menta l l y  d ra i n i ng and  exhausting. What we see i nstead i s  her self-esteem is growing, she is fi na l ly 
putt ing trust i n  herse lf  and her ab i l it ies, and she is  find i ng joy i n  read ing.  I witnessed her read ing a Dr. 



H8 tlf(; I 
' - I '? 

-;;J • /I 

-tf /� 
Seuss book the other n ight with her tutor, with a fl uency that i s  sole ly the work of the proper tra in ing and 
learn i ng that she i s  receiving at I nsp iri ng M inds. I a l so heard giggles emerge from her as she read; the 
words a re tak ing on a mean ing and fina l ly  not just being words to read .  The tra i n i ng to teachers and staff 
that is presented in th i s  b i l l  wou ld only he lp and a l l ow my daughter and others l i ke her to grow and reach 
h igher goa l s  by learn i ng consistently at both I nspir i ng M i nds and her pub l i c  schoo l .  

Ear ly  i ntervent ion i s  so critica l i n  so many a reas of ch i l dhood development, Dyslexia shou ld  be no 
different. P lease he l p to make Dyslexia accommodations be as com mon as  speech, occupationa l  or 
physica l  therapy to he lp kids with Dyslexia soa r  as  h igh as  their  peers. I encourage you to vote yes on th is  
b i l l  and  he lp  our next generation of students become our future leaders. 

Thank  you for your  time  and I ' l l  stand for any questions .  



Good morning, Chairman Owens, and members of the Education Committee . My name 

is Ruth Bergstrom. I am a licensed K-6 elementary teacher and the mother of a son with 

dyslexia. I have taught kindergarten, first grade, and second grade in the Twin Cities; Willmar, 

MN; Dassel-Cokato, MN; and Columbia, MO. My husband is a medical doctor. We have five 

children. Our youngest child, Leif, who has dyslexia is currently a ninth grader in the West 

Fargo School District. 

*Leif' s History 

Comorbid Condition- High Functioning Autism and Dyslexia 

IEP prior to Kindergarten 

Speech and Language Therapy Private and Public 

Preschool for Two Years 

Paraprofessional Support 

*Journey of Diagnosis 

Long Timeline with various professionals involved - Parents, Pediatrician, Fargo 

Psychologists, Mayo Medical Doctors and Psychologists 

*Avoidance to Effectively Meet Leif's needs with Dyslexia 

IEP Meetings 

* Mental Health 

Low Self Esteem 

Statistics - suicide, prison percentage, addictions, etc. 

*Professional Development 

Teacher Training 



Thank you for your consideration. I would be happy to stand for any questions . 

Respectfully, 

Ruth Bergstrom 
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The Ta le  of Two Ch i l d ren  

My name  is  Krysta E rovick and  I have two ch i l d ren, Casey 13 a n d  Sta us l ey 10 .  

Casey i s  cu rre nt ly a 7th  grader  at Be n F ra n k l i n  M id d le Schoo l ,  i s  on  an I E P  a n d  has  

a n  adj u sted c l a s s  sched u le with a ccom modat ions .  Sta us l ey i s  cu rre nt ly a 5th 

grade r  at H a rwood E l ementa ry a n d  is  e nt i re ly ma i n  strea med,  with no I E P  a nd no  

accom modat ions  a nymore .  Casey d reads  read i ng a n d  mu st have h i s books o n  

a ud io, Sta us l ey on  t h e  other  h a n d  loves t o  read  a n d  h a s  eve n been i n  a book c l u b .  

Ch i l d ren  a re a l l  u n iq u e  i n  the i r own ways, b u t  both o f  my  c h i l d ren  have Dys l ex ia . 

Both have gone t h rough pr ivate test i ng, p r ivate tutor i ng, p r ivate speech,  a n d  

Ha ley' s Hope .  

Ea r ly detect ion ma kes a l l  the d iffe rence in  the  wor ld  when it comes to Dys l ex i a .  

Casey was i n  speech a nd ea rly c h i l d  hood spec ia l educat ion p reschoo l  a t  t h e  age 

of 4 .  We thought at the t ime he was j u st speech de l ayed . I n  a matte r of 9 

months he made  u p  ove r 18 months of p rogress, so he was d i sm issed from h i s  

I E P .  A yea r late r he  sta rted regu l a r  k i nde rga rten, b u t  by  Novembe r  t he  teache r  

was shocked at how fa r beh i n d  he had  fa l l e n .  I t  was not u nt i l May though  tha t  

the schoo l  fi n a l ly d ec ided to  test h im  to  see  how fa r beh i nd ,  he  was .  S umme r  

schoo l  was the i r  so l ut ion . F i rst grade  ca me a nd wh i l e  they a dded  speech a n d  

l a nguage to h i s  I E P, he  cont i n ued to fa l l  be h i n d .  S u m mer  schoo l  was aga i n  the  

so lut i on .  At the e nd  of  1st grade  i s  when we a s  pa rents sta rted eva l uat i ng ou r 

options .  We resea rched lea rn i ng d i sa b i l it ies, p r ivate tutor i ng, a n d  had  h i m  tested 

by a Neu ro psycho log ist .  Casey had 6 of the  wa rn i ng s igns of Dys l ex ia . Once we 

had  the d i agnos i s, we fou nd the too l s  a nd u nfo rtu nate ly, they we re not at schoo l .  

Wh i l e  Casey' s rea d i ng a nd speech teachers we re wonde rfu l ,  they we re l im ited by 

d istr ict po l i c ies, d i str ict fu nd i ng, a nd d i str ict red ta pe .  We were su rp r ised that  the  

teachers had  not hea rd of  Dys lex ia  when it i s  so com mon .  The schoo l ' s  so l ut ion  

was  th i s  p rogra m o r  that  progra m that Casey' s read i ng tea cher  ca me from 

Ar izona a n d  had  t ra i n i ng with Dys l ex ia ,  but  o u r  schoo l  d i str ict won't p rovide  the  

too l s  fo r he r  to  work with .  Casey went to  H a l ey' s Hope a n d  p r ivate tuto r i ng 3 to 4 

t fmes a week .  A l l he  wa nts to do  was be a no rma l k id ,  but even now afte r 5 yea rs 

we a re st i l l  t ry i ng to catch h im  u p  to grade  l eve l .  I f  Ca sey had  been eva l uated i n  

k i nde rga rten,  h i s  l ife cou ld have been ve ry d iffe re nt .  I f  Casey cou l d  rece ive O rton­

G i l l i ng ham se rv ices at school ,  it wou l d  a l l ow h im t ime  to be a no rma l  k id  afte r 

schoo l .  
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S i nce we knew a bout the wa rn i ng s igns from Casey' s  eva l u at ion ,  we knew 

Sta us l ey was fo l lowi ng i n  h i s footsteps .  Sta us l ey was i n  speech by the age of 2 

a nd  was a l so i n  ea r ly ch i l d hood spec i a l  ed ucation  p reschoo l .  We sta rted u s i ng 

H a l ey' s Hope with Sta us l ey at a ve ry you ng age, i n  a dd it ion  to p r ivate speech . We 

d i d  not wa it fo r the schoo l  to detect or  test. We ca me to fi rst grade  with the l i st 

of items we wa nted on he r  I E P .  We coord i nated he r  schoo l  speech services with 

Ha ley' s Hope a nd her outs ide  Speech the ra py, to ensu re they we re a l l  wo rk ing 

togethe r  and not contrad ict i ng each other .  The schoo l  d id not have an Orton­

G i l l i ng ham p rogra m a nd wou l d  not a l l ow us  to pu rchase one  fo r the rea d i ng 

teacher  to use .  We were even wi l l i ng to pay fo r the teacher  to have tra i n i ng, but  

that  was aga i n st schoo l  po l icy. 

Ou r  fa m i ly has spent we l l  ove r $25,000 in outs ide services to he l p  o u r  ch i l d ren  

succeed i n  schoo l .  We  have eva l uated p r ivate schoo l s, both i n  N D, MN a nd  othe r  

states .  We even tou red a p r ivate schoo l  i n  F L  fo r s um mer  schoo l  i n  o rde r  to 

p rovide  the best ed u cat ion fo r o u r  k ids .  Wh i l e  we have fe lt defeated at t imes 

dea l i ng w i th  the schoo l  d i str icts, a nd the batt le  i s  fa r from ove r, we a re 

dete rm i ned to fight fo r ou r c h i l d ren  a nd  the i r  fr i ends .  S i n ce my k ids  we re 

d i agnosed,  we have been advocates fo r detect ion a nd  h e l p i ng  othe r  fi nd  the r ight 

se rv ices .  

N D  i s  one of few states that does not have act ive Dys lex ia  leg is lat i on .  By pass i ng  

th i s  b i l l  you ca n cha nge the l ife of  a ch i l d .  I know fi rst hand  what  ea r ly detect ion 

and ea r ly i nte rvent io n  ca n do  fo r a ch i l d .  My da ughte r' s  out look on  schoo l  i s  

com p lete ly d iffe rent that  my sons .  I wou l d  encou rage you to p rovide the 

tea chers i n  the state of ND the knowledge a nd too l s  they need to successfu l ly 

detect, test, a nd teach  the 20% of the k ids  that have Dys lex ia . No rth Da kota i s  a 

great state a nd  a l l  ou r ch i l d re n  deserve a great educat ion .  

I f  you need a ny fu rthe r  i nfo rmat ion ,  p l ease contact me a t  Krysta E rovick  701-2 12-

9902 o r  by ema i l  at k rysta@d iscover lodgi ng. net . 

Tha n k  you fo r cons ide r i ng the futu re of o u r  kids  a nd the su ccess of ou r  state . 



Tha n k  you Ch a i rm a n  Owens  and  members of the  com m ittee .  My n ame  i s  Pam Krueger from 

B i sma rck, a n d  I a m  i n  favor of B i l l  146 1 .  

My  concern for students with dys lex ia  and my be l ief t h at teache r  t ra i n i n g  ca n provide  

bette r  o utco m es i s  a resu lt of  over a decade  of t ra i n i n g  and  exper i e n ce .  I a m  a n  i n structor i n  

t he  teache r  e d u cat ion  program at  D ick inson State U n ive rsity on  the  B i sma rck  campu s, and  I am 

cu rrent ly work i n g  on  my PhD i n  Teach ing and Lea rn i ng, spec ifi ca l ly Teache r  Ed ucat ion . My 

resea rch  top i c  i s  i n  t he  a rea of  tra i n i ng  teachers to work with students w i th  dys l exi a .  I am a l so a 

fe l l ow i n  t ra i n i n g  fo r t he  Academy of Orton-G i l l i n gham P rofess iona l s  a n d  Educators .  I have had 

t he  p riv i l ege of t utor i ng  many amaz i ng  and  ta l ented c h i l d re n  a nd  a d u lts w i th  dys l ex i a  fo r over 

12  yea rs, a n d  h ave witnessed how with p roper  i dent if icat ion  a n d  remed i at ion ,  st rugg l i ng  

reade rs get  t h e  he lp  t hey need to  become fl uent reade rs and  to imp rove the i r  se lf-esteem. I wi l l  

focus  on  teache r  t ra i n i ng  t o  h e l p  students with dys l exi a .  

Resea rch h a s  c lea r ly shown that if students a re not read i ng  p rofic ient ly  b y  t h e  e n d  of 

t h i rd grad e, t h ey a re m uch more l i ke ly to cont i n ue  to h ave d iffi cu lty in schoo l .  Ea r ly screen i ng  

as  suggested by th i s  b i l l  wou l d  he l p  to  catch students when i n struct ion  i s  c ruc i a l ,  a n d  t hen  

screen i n g  m ust be fo l l owed by  resea rch-based i n st ruct ion  by q u a l ifi ed teache rs .  Accord ing  to 

No rth  Da kota State test ing from 2017-18, 53% of grade  th ree students in No rth  Da kota a re not 

read i n g  at a p rofi c i ent l eve l .  We a re a l l  concerned a bout low read i ng  p rofi c i ency l eve ls  of ou r  

stu dents .  Of cou rse, not a l l  o f  these students a re dys lex ic, but  keep  i n  m i nd  t hat dys l ex ia  i s  t he  

most common  read i n g  d iffi cu lty. Most of  a l l  remember  tha t  good i n st ruct ion  i s  good i n struct ion 

for everyone .  



I t  i s  est imated that between 5-20% of peop l e  i n  the  U .S .  h ave some  degree of dys lex i a .  

Th i s  means  t hat i n  a c l assroom of  j u st 20  students, o n  average, 1-4 stu dents i n  the  c lassroom 

h ave dys lex i a .  Resea rch ers have shown that most c h i l d ren  who struggle to l ea rn  to read ca n be 

t aught if teache rs use evidence-based i n st ruct ion r ight from the begi n n i ng of schoo l .  Th i s  

re ite rates the great  n eed for ea rly screen i ng, ea r ly i ntervent ion ,  and tra i n i n g  a bout dysl exi a .  

A s  we  h ave hea rd tod ay, cu rrent ly there a re many myths  a nd  m i s unde rstan d i ngs a bout 

dys l ex i a .  Sad ly, t h ese myths- that it i s  t ied to i nte l l i ge n ce, t h at peop le see l ette rs backwa rds, 

t h at it i s  a vi s u a l  pe rceptua l  d i sab i l ity, that they a re j u st l azy- a re a l so he l d  by many teachers .  

Teache rs may n ot u n de rsta nd  how a h igh fu nct io n i n g  student cou l d  have so m uch d iffi cu lty 

with a task  t hat comes  easy to many. Th is causes a great dea l  of fru strat ion a nd  ta kes an  

emot i ona l  to l l  o n  stu d ents, teachers, and pa rents, as  othe rs wi l l  test ify. Teachers h ave 

exp ressed fru st rat ion  beca use of a lack of i n format ion a nd  t ra i n i ng  about dys lex ia  a nd  a l ack  of 

gu i d a nce from a d m i n i strat io n .  Most teach e rs want  to be a b l e  to he l p  the i r  stud ents be  

su ccessfu l .  D ue  to m is i nformat ion and  a l a c k  o f  i n format ion ,  dys l ex ia  often goes u nd i agnosed . 

Tra i n i n g  fo r worki ng  with students with dys l ex i a  va r ies across Teacher  Ed ucat ion  

P rogra ms and i s  often not i nc l uded .  Therefore, h avi n g  a d egree even i n  spec i a l  educat ion does  

gua ra ntee t hat t he  pe rson i s  t ra i ned to work w i th  students with dys l exi a .  Ou r teache rs need to 

be i nfo rmed a bout  dys l ex ia t h rough p rofess iona l  d eve lopment, wh i ch  i s  a cruci a l  p i ece of  what 

t h i s  b i l l  i s  a sk i ng  for .  

Stu dents with dys lex ia  benefit from mu lt i -sensory, d i rect, systemat ic, exp l ic it i n struct ion 

i n  t he  st ruct u re of the Eng l i sh  l anguage for decod i ng  and encod i ng  ( read i ng  and spe l l i ng )  as 

l i sted i n  th i s  b i l l .  N oth i ng  ca n be left to chance beca use th i s  st ruct u re is  not figu red out  



a utomat ica l ly. We now have v isu a l  p roof us i ng  fM R l ' s  that  n eu ra l  n etworks ca n be  imp roved for 

word recogn i t ion  i n  i n d ivi d u a l s with dys lex ia a nd  i n  a l l  ch i l d ren  if t hey a re g iven th i s  type of 

i n st ruct ion .  S i m p ly h av ing resea rch-based p rograms in schoo ls  i s  not enough . Exp l i c it teach i ng  

req u i res  exp l i c it knowledge. Teachers mu st be  t ra i ned  i n  the  st ructu re o f  l a ngu age i n  order to 

p rovi d e  i n st ruct i on  with confidence and  fide l ity. Th i s  type of i n struct ion  can be  used for 

i n d iv i d u a l s, sma l l  grou ps, a nd  who le  c lassrooms. A l l  students benefit from th is  type of 

instruct ion, but for students with dyslexia it is imperative. 

Orton-G i l l i ngham i n struct ion i s  often cited as  t he  best a pp roach for students with 

dys l ex i a  a n d  i s  ment ioned in th i s  b i l l . There i s  often confus ion a bout what Orton-G i l l i ngham is, 

a s  m a ny peop l e  advert i se p rograms and  systems as  Orton-G i l l i ngham.  It i s  i m po rta nt to know 

t h at O rton -G i l l i ngha m  i s  a n  app roach,  not a method ,  system, o r  p rogram. The a pp roach i s  

based o n  70 yea rs of p ract ice worki ng  with students with dys lex ia ,  a long with cu rrent resea rch 

on h ow peop l e  l e a rn to read  and  write. 

As t he  wr iters of the Nat iona l  Cou nc i l  on  Teacher  Qua l ity report about read i n g  

i n st ruct i on  stated ,  "Future teachers ( a n d  I wi l l  add  cu rrent teache rs )  n eed the  knowledge and  

sk i l l s  to u nde rsta n d  sound  read i ng  strateg ies fo r themse lves a nd  to be ab l e  to t ra n sm it th ese to 

t he i r  stu dents. With t he  sc ient if ic d i scove r ies that bega n over a h a lf-centu ry ago, we now have 

t h e  good fort u ne  of ho l d i ng  the  keys to the  locks t hat ba r  fa r too many ch i l d ren  from havi ng fu l l  

access to soci ety. It i s  t ime  t o  p u t  t h e  keys i n  t h e  locks a n d  sta rt t u r n i n g  them."  I be l i eve that B i l l  

146 1 wi l l  sta rt to open  t h e  locks fo r ou r  ch i l d ren  with dys lex ia .  
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SERVICES OF N D  

Creating 
Pathways 

We are a statewide non-Qrofit 
organization that offers resources 
to educate Qarents and famil ies, 

youth and young adults, 
professionals, and the community, 

focusing on individuals birth-26 with 
learning differences or challenges. 



We help North Dakotans to: 

• Understand r ig hts i n  educat ion  
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• Bu i l d i ng  br idges between fam i l ies and  schoo ls 
• Understand I n d iv i dua l i zed Educat ion  Progra

ll
m ), 

I n d iv idua l i zed Fam i l y  Serv ice P lan  ( I FSP) ,  o r  n 
components 

• F ind i nformat ion  on ava i l ab le statewide support 
services 

• Prepare youth and young  adu lts for important l i fe 
trans i t ions 

• Create pa rent/ch i l d  connect ions at home 
• Shar i ng  knowledge wi th other  organ izat ions 
• Understand a ch i ld 's d i sab i l ity 

We offer : 

• Confident i a l  gu idance from t ra i ned adv i sors 
• Free resou rces on a wide var iety of top ics 
• Lend i ng  l i brary of books and  DVDs 
• Workshops and web i nars to prov ide educat ion on 

complex i ssues 
• An electron i c  news letter conta i n i ng news and  

i nformat ion  fo r North  Dakota fam i l ies and  
profess iona l s  

• Website featu r i ng  on l i ne  resou rces, l i n ks to 
statewide services, and news re levant to 
No rth  Dakota 
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a Town & Country Center 
1 0 1 5  S .  Broadway, Su ite 42 
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" 70 1 .837 . 7500 
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Good Morning Cha i r  Owens and  Representat ives -

Tha n k  you fo r a l lowing me a few m i n utes of you r  t ime today. 

My  name  i s  M ist ie Bou l ly and I am  a Fam i ly Support Specia l ist at  Pathfi nde r  Services of N D. We a re the 
Pa ren t  Tra i n i ng  Center for the state . We work with fam i l ies t h ro ughout ND focus ing o n  i nd ivid ua l s  b i rth-
26  with lea rn i ng  d ifferences o r  cha l lenges .  I have the p rivi l ege of he l p i ng fa m i l ies navigate the IEP p rocess 
a n d  sha r ing resou rces with them .  I have hea rd from Pa rents rega rd ing the i r  c h i l d ren  who a re strugg l i ng 
i n  schoo l  a n d  those sa me fam i l ies havi ng to go o uts ide of the i r  schoo l  system for mo re test i ng to then fi nd  
o ut the i r  ch i l d  ha s  Dys lex ia . 

Even mo re im porta nt  than  my 8-5 job is I am  fi rst a n d  fo remost a Mom of a 12 yea r o l d  boy with 
Dys lex ia . My  son Ho l den  was o rig ina l ly tested fo r Speci a l  Ed ucat ion services in 1st g rade .  We moved to 
M i not from I d aho  where we knew Ho lden was strugg l i ng with someth i ng but I d aho  w i l l  not test u nt i l  
c h i l d re n  a re o lder  and h i s  K inderga rten teacher  at the t ime wou l d  not l isten to our  concerns .  Once he 
sta rted  schoo l  he re h is teacher  gent ly app roached us  to express her concerns a bout  Ho l den' s  struggles 
i n  the  c l a ssroom .  What a b less i ng .  

We ven tu red  t h rough  the wor ld of Specia l Ed ucat ion and I E P  meet ings .  Even though we were o n  a good 
roa d  to gett i ng  Ho l den  the services he needed we knew someth i ng was st i l l  m iss ing .  When we weren't 
gett i ng  a n swers from the  school  we dec ided to ta ke Ho lden  to an i ndependent  p rofess io n a l  in M inot to 
be tested .  M ost of the  resu lts matched unt i l  we were to ld  Ho l den  a l so has  Dys lex ia . We were shocked . It 
a l l  made  sense though .  That was ou r  m iss ing p iece fo r Ho l den .  We q uest ioned how the schoo l  m issed 
such  a h uge d iagnos is .  Knowing he had dys lexia on top of his other  l ea rn i ng  cha l le nges wou l d  have 
he l ped h i s  educat ion  p l a n ,  o r  so we thought. We were confused to l ea rn  that  the schoo l d id n't test fo r 
Dys lex ia a n d  t he re was a major  lack of knowledge a nd  t ra i n i ng  i n  rega rds to ch i l d re n  who struggle with 
Dys lex ia . 

We t ru ly fee l  b lessed to l ive i n  N D  and  have ou r  ch i l d re n  i n  the p ub l i c  schoo l  system i n  M i not .  My 
h usba nd  and  I fi n d  o u rselves often reflecting o n  how d iffe rent  Ho lden ' s  educat ion wou l d  be if we were 
st i l l  i n  I d a ho .  

Ho l den' s  dys l ex ia was d iagnosed nea rly 3 yea rs ago  and  i n  t h a t  t ime  we  sti l l  don't have the he l p  he  
needs  to t ru ly be successfu l .  H is c l assroom a nd Specia l Educat ion teachers have t r i ed  but  no  one  rea l ly 
u nde rsta nds  Dys lex ia a n d  the t ra i n i ng is not there .  

I t  m a kes  me  sad to t h i n k  of Ho l den  and the other ch i l d ren  who have been d iagnosed .  What  a bout  the 
ch i l d re n  who have not been d iagnosed yet .  Our ch i l d ren  a re not gett i ng  the he lp they a re e nt i t led to .  

Today a s  I sta nd  befo re you I am ask ing you to p lease support th i s  B i l l .  The t ime is l ong  ove rd ue fo r the 
ch i l d re n  i n  N D. I t 's  t ime to fight fo r th i s  B i l l  a nd  get it passed .  I hope that  you wi l l  fight .  F ight for the 
ch i l d re n  who strugg le eve ry day .  Our  ch i l d ren  who strugg le  to s im ply keep  u p  wh i l e  read i ng i n  c l a ss a n d  
hope t h a t  the  teache r  doesn 't  ca l l  o n  them t o  read o ut l o u d .  F ight for t h e  ch i l d ren  who  don't  know the 
joy of gett i ng  lost i n  a book beca use it's so m uch work  to read  that  sto ry. F ight  fo r the ch i l d re n  who get 
i nto J u n i o r  H igh  a n d  have to re ly on spe l l  check and g ramma r  p rogra ms  to j ust fi n i sh  an a ss ignment .  
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Fight fo r the ch i l d ren  that  a re made fu n of beca use the i r  spe l l i ng test a re "eas ie r" o r  the i r  words a re n't  
co r.rect . 

Most of a l l  I am  ask ing you to p lease fight fo r my Ho lden .  He is a n  amaz ing you ng m a n  who has  had  so 
many cha l l e nges p laced i n  front of h im and yet he keeps fight ing .  Ho lden  doesn't have to the cho ice to 
stop fight ing .  If  we wa nt to encou rage h im  to keep fight ing and working ha rd I hope that you w i l l  do the  
sa me a nd  show our  ch i l d ren  that they matte r a nd  that they a re worthy of  gett i ng the  he lp  they dese rve . 

I t ru ly  app reciate you r  t ime a nd  fight ing fo r o u r  ch i l d ren  in North Da kota . 

I w i l l  now sta nd  fo r questions .  

Mistie Boul ly 
Parent  of a chi ld with Dyslexia 
Fami ly Support Special ist 
70 1 -837-7500 
fami ly@pathfinder-nd .org 
http://psnd .co/ 

SERVICES OF N D  



Good Morn i ng Cha i r  Owens a nd Representatives -

My n ame  i s  Ho lden  Bou l ly and  I a m  i n  5th grade  at Ramstad M idd le  School  i n  M i not. 

I have Dys l ex i a .  Dys l exia does not defi ne who I a m .  I am a ha rd worker i n  schoo l .  
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I a m  a lso  i n  Student Counc i l  th i s  yea r because I want to m a ke a d ifference fo r the k ids i n  my schoo l .  

I strugg l e  i n  schoo l .  I h ave a ha rd t ime read ing  a nd spe l l i ng .  Letters don't look l i ke they shou l d  and  words 
a re h a rd to write a nd p ronounce .  I have to l eave my c l a ss rooms  a lot to get he l p j ust to fi n i sh  writi ng my 
ass ign me nts .  

Words a re ha rd !  Read i ng is i nvolved i n  everyth i ng we do .  When it' s ha rd to read i t ' s  ha rd to be 
successfu l .  

I n  the  past k i d s  have made  fun o f  me beca use my spe l l i ng test were what they ca l l ed  "ba by words" .  
don't let those k ids bother me .  

My teachers he l p  m e  a nd want me to  do better but they  don't understa nd how to fu l ly he l p  me with 
Dys lex ia . 

If Teachers don't unde rstand how to he l p  me and  other k ids with Dys lexia then  how a re we supposed to 
le a rn ? 

If th i s  B i l l  i s  passed it w i l l  give myse lf and  other ch i l d ren  i n  North  Da kota a better chance to learn .  We 
a re j ust a s  i mporta nt a s  the ch i l d ren  who don't have Dys lexia a nd we deserve a good educat ion .  

Tha n k  you  for lett i ng  m e  s pea k to  you today. 

Ho lden  D .  Bou l ly 
5th G rade  Student  at Ramstad M idd le  School 
M i not, N D  



Dear  Senators and  Representatives: 

My name is  Susa n Longwel l-G ietzen and I am a read i ng specia l ist i n  B ismarck Pub l ic Schoo ls .  During the 
past t h i rteen yea rs I h ave worked for BPS, I have had considerable experience working with ch i ldren 
who have read i ng d isab i l ities and dyslexia . Often the fi rst ind icator  for a chi ld with dyslexia is a very 
br ight ch i ld ,  exposed to a vast rich vocabu la ry, and  has had many ch i ld hood experiences, BUT cannot 
read .  Often times the second pred ictor of a dyslexic ch i ld is one who has a poor self- image, does not 
l i ke school, does not l i ke to read, a nd may have a schoo l  based a nxiety of school in genera l .  The th ird 
p red ictor of a dyslexic ch i ld  is a pa rent who is desperate ly seeking a nswers to what the p roblem cou l d  
be  a nd who is a lso look ing to  the  school, read ing specia l ist, and teacher to  give them the answers to  th is 
very comp l icated d isab i l ity. Severa l yea rs ago I found myse lf tota l ly consumed by th is issue a nd sought 
out the a nswers myse lf. I was confused and frustrated that many people inc l ud ing our LD ( learning 
d isab led )  teachers, were not convinced that dyslexia was even a true cond it ion .  Coming from a 
h i storica l background ,  I myself struggled with read i ng acqu isit ion .  I was ra ised i n  Co lorado, wh ich 
recogn izes dyslexia as a d isab i l ity, and  therefore rece ived the accommodat ions and mod ifications that 
a l lowed me to cope with my d isa b i l ity. Thus, I cou ld  not u ndersta nd how some people i n  the North 
Dakota educat ion system d id not understand how d isab l ing dyslexia cou ld  be. I immersed myself in  a 
tr ied and  true read ing intervention ca l led Orton G i l l i ngham a nd my q uestions received a nswers. Our  
educat ion system is flawed . The  basis of  the  system is gea red towa rds money. P lease stay with me, I 
understand that  we do  need to fo l low a budget and  we on ly have so much money, but as fa r as 
fo l lowing a swi ng ing door approach for remed i a l  read i ng, th is is not the model  that wi l l  he lp these 
ch i l d ren  overcome th is d isabi l ity . For example, both of the schoo ls that I work at a re fo l lowing the 
MTSS-A mode l .  With i n  this model a ch i ld  in  the lower grades is assessed using three data po ints: fl uency 
(AIM Sweb),  Trigge rs ( letter names, sounds, decod ing eve-consonant, vowe ls, consonant words) and 
H ig h  F requency Words .  I n  the upper grades MAP, the i r  read ing leve l, a nd A IMSweb accuracy a re 
the t h ree da ta po ints. Once the data is compi led it is put i n  the student se lect ion process and  from 
there a number  is generated and  th is number fits i nto a t ier p rocess. Tie r 1 (genera l  popu lat ion), Tie r 2 
(th is was the t ier  I used to serv ice, but unfortunately d ue to the lack of read i ng speci a l ists, we a re no 
l onger  ab le  to service these ind iv idua ls), a nd Tie r  3 (strugg lers ) .  Severa l issues that I struggle with 
concern ing th i s  t ier  p rocess a re :  fi rst, our  i nte rvent ions a re for on ly 6-8 weeks and if the ch i ld 's scores 
increase he  may be e l ig ib le  of d ism issa l .  Dyslexia is a l ife long d isab i l ity, a nd ca nnot be corrected in a n  6-
8 week t ime frame .  Second ly, the majority of our  specia l ists a re being to ld  that Gu ided Read i ng is the 
on ly inte rvent ion that  they can use . This is not a seq uent ia l a nd expl icit ly taught phon ics p rogram.  
Th i rd ly, m a ny of these ch i l d ren  a re under the imp ression that  once they a re d ism issed from read ing they 
th i n k  the i r  read i ng prob lem is ove r and unfortunately fi nd out that it continua l ly resurfaces, because 
they cannot memorize e nough or the amount of text intensifies. Dyslexia is a l ife long issue and  may 
requ i re accommodat ions to he lp the student rema i n  successfu l .  Fourth, many of the probes we use to 
measure students w i l l  cause them to fa i l  beca use a dyslexic ch i l d  often cannot generate sounds, letters 
or even read  fast enough to pass the assessment . Dyslexia is a neuro logica l cond it ion, often affecting 
aud itory o r  v isu a l  p rocess ing.  Parents and ch i ldren who have it need to be given hope that they a re not 
cognit ively i m pa i red  and that they ca n lead a productive and hea lthy l ife, with the correct 
i nterventio n .  I am  hopefu l that th is b i l l  wi l l  pass a nd we may be a b le to he lp  the many ch i l d ren whose 
pa rents ca n a fford add it iona l  tutoring and  a lso those who ca nnot. We must be a n  advocate for ALL 
ch i l d re n .  

Tha n k-you,  

cfa.f(V( Lo1f!«1elf-�etz{!,I( 
Sol he im & P ra i r ie Rose 
E l ementa ry Read i ng Spec ia l ist 
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My name  is Lea nne  Schm idt .  I a m  a state emp loyee here on  app roved a n n ua l  l eave . I a m  testify ing as a private 
c i t i zen a ppea ring on my own beha lf a nd that of my fa m i ly .  My you ngest son ,  Dyl a n, i s  in 4th grade in Manda n .  
He ' s  a ca ri ng, sma rt, a nd  fun ny 1 0  yea r  o l d  w h o  loves h u nt ing and  t h e  o utdoors, p l ay ing  with friends, he l p i ng h i s  
d ad  i n  the ga rage, and p l an n i ng su rviva l cha l le nges fo r the summer .  

I n  l a te  2015 i n  the m i d d le of 1st grade, we were to ld  by the teacher  that  h i s  rea d i ng was be low average as 
com pa red to others a n d  they we re concerned a bout .  However, the  schoo l  was not go ing  to test my son to see if 
he q u a l ified fo r extra he l p  from an I nd ivid ua l  Ed ucation  P l a n  ( I E P )  beca use they had  to wait  to co l lect 40 hours of 
data rega rd ing i ntervent ions they had  to try fi rst . We were a l so to ld  that  the  reve rs i ng  of letters and  n umbers 
fo u nd  i n  my son 's  writ i ng  may co rrect themse lves ove r t ime and  that  issues l i ke dys lex ia d id n't typica l l y  show u p  
u nt i l  3 rd o r  4th grade .  The  schoo l  staff a l so made references t o  my son 's  l a c k  o f  attent ion  i nfe rr ing that may  be 
pa rt of the  issue .  

We took  o u r  son to h i s  ped 1atr ic ia n who referred h im  to a psycho log ist .  Both  acknowledged,  my son has  a n  
attent io n spa n typ ica l o f  a c h i l d  h i s  age a n d  focus  i s  a facto r i n  l ea rn ing  t o  read  however, i t  w a s  not t h e  reason 
he  strugg les  to learn to read .  

Fro m  Ma rch  t o  May  2016, we  took my  son to Sylva n Lea rn i ng fo r tutori ng  a nd  he  com p leted 75 hou rs of 
sess ions .  It was a big i nvestment  fo r o u r  fam i ly .  It was a strugg le to get Dyl a n  to go m uch  of the t ime and  
i nvo lved tea rs a n d  frustrat ion ,  but he  made the best of  i t .  However, we rea l i zed the cost versus the progress 
made  wasn't  affo rda b l e .  

I n  the  fa l l  o f  2016 at  the  sta rt of 2nd  grade, the schoo l ' s  test ing determ ined  my son q u a l ified fo r an I E P  with a 
d i sa b i l i ty catego ry of Spec ific Lea rn i ng D isab i l it ies i n  a reas of read i ng fl uency, read i ng  com prehens ion  a nd bas ic 
read i ng sk i l l s .  My so n ' s  I E P  has been i n  p lace s ince that t ime and i nvolves a n u m be r  of i ntervent ion s  to add ress 
read i ng with h im  be ing p u l led  out of c lass 20-25% of time to get th i s  extra he l p .  My son has a l so spent time i n  
s ummer  schoo l  read i ng fo r t h ree summers .  Despite the last t h ree yea rs a n d  a l l  t he  hou rs my son has  spent do ing 
extra wo rk, he  is c u rre nt ly  read i ng text at a m idd le  of fi rst grade  leve l .  The schoo l  i n d icated that  test ing to assess 
his read i ng  leve l  we re done  eve ry th ree yea rs and the I E P  was u pdated each  yea r . There was no other type of 
test ing done or ava i l a b l e  by the  schoo l .  In Octobe r 2018 when the I E P  was reviewed, t ime was added to the p l an  
to i n c l ude  math a n d  writ i ng  s i n ce my son's sco res have d ropped i n  these a reas as  we l l .  

I n  November  2018, w e  were refe rred t o  I nsp i ri ng M i n d s  t o  exp lore whether  t he re w a s  someth i ng e l se occu rri ng 
fo r o u r  so n .  The assessment -wh i ch  my fam i ly paid fo r- was com p leted i n  Novembe r  determ ined my son's a reas 
of weakness a re cons i stent  wi th  dys lexia and  a re severe and profound .  Dyl a n  is ve ry awa re h i s  doesn't read l i ke 
h i s  friends  a nd  that  he  is d iffe re nt .  He  frequent ly asks me  if he' l l  pass h i s  grade .  He  l acks confidence and  doubts 
h imse lf  when  it comes to read i ng and  writ i ng .  I shared the assessment report with t he  schoo l  staff. And one of 
them sa id they'd suspected t he re was someth i ng l i ke dys lexia im pact ing my son ,  but t hey' re not "a l lowed" to 
say a nyth i ng .  I fi n d  that  so d is turb i ng, if educators don't vo ice t hese concerns - who w i l l ?  My son sta rted 
tutor ing with I n sp i ri ng M i n d s  in December 2018. There were no tutor ing open i ngs after  schoo l  hou rs ava i l ab le .  
S i nce the o n ly t ime open  was d u ri ng schoo l  hou rs, I asked the schoo l  to a l low the tutor  to be a b le to  come to  the  
schoo l .  They sa id space  cou l d  be p rovided i n  pub l ic a reas l i ke the cafeter ia o r  the  l i b ra ry befo re schoo l  sta rted . 
However, no  t ime o r  space wou ld be a l lowed d u ring the academic  day  fo r schoo l .  Cu rrent ly, tutor ing fo r my so n 
i s  be ing done  befo re the  schoo l  day  i n  o u r  home - which we pay fo r .  

I 've tr ied to imag ine  a day i n  Dy l an ' s  shoes .  I ca n on ly th i n k  it wou l d  be l i ke go ing  to wo rk i n  a p l ace where I may 
u ndersta nd  most t h i ngs sa id a ro u n d  me. However, I 'm not a b le to read  and unde rsta nd  and write t h i ngs fo r my 
work and I 'm su pposed to kee p  focused, do  the work, and not d rift off. I t  b reaks my hea rt when  I t h i n k  of the 



count less hou rs at school ,  Sylva n , a nd summer  school  my son has spent a nd spends wo rk i ng  o n  read i ng a nd 
writ ing a nd yet to cont i n ue  to strugg le  with l itt le success. I t  is not fo r l ack  of effo rt by my son a n d  t h rough it a l l , 

• my son st i l l  l i kes schoo l  a nd has  a pos it ive, ca ri ng att i tude and  I 'm ve ry g lad fo r that .  

Th is b i l l  wou ld  provide the schoo ls  the i nfo rmat ion a nd too ls  needed to be a b le to he lp  c h i l d re n  l i ke my son .  And 
req u i re a ssessment  ea r ly so they ca n be g ive n the too ls  needed to ach ieve academ i c  success .  I wou l d  ask  fo r 
you r  support i n  g iv i ng th i s  b i l l  a "d ue pass" recom mendat ion .  

Thank  you fo r you r  t ime .  I ' d  be ha ppy to  a nswer a ny quest ions .  

• 

• 
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Good Morn ing Representatives , 

The pu rpose of th is emai l is to contact the Representatives from the House 
Education Committee and share my enthusiasm for H B- 1 461 , which was introduced 
January 1 4th . 

My name is  Justi ne  G ibbon and I am the mother of 3 young ,  outdoor- loving kids. I 
am an e lementary read ing teacher i n  North Dakota with a lmost 1 O years of 
experience ,  and I have my Master 's Degree from NDSU in curr icu l um and 
instruction (with an emphasis in read ing) .  My oldest son is a second grader  and is 
severe ly dys lexic .  He is on an I EP for speech and language and rece ives special 
education services, where he gets an alternative read ing curr icu lum . Although ,  I 
have my Master 's deg ree in  read ing instruction , I had l i tt le to no exper ience/ 
knowledge about dys lexia at the t ime of h is d iagnosis .  

I had no idea my son was dyslexic (and possib ly many of  my students) unt i l I 
stumb led across a session at a teacher  conference g iven by a dyslexia/OG trained 
tutor in B ismarck . I fought back tears as she talked about the warn ing  s igns of 
dys lex ia in PK-K ch i l d ren because my son WAS a l l  of them .  He met EVERY 
crite rion . A l l  of my ch i ld ren had l istened to hou rs of stor ies and nu rsery rhymes 
before they were born . Our house has hundreds of vibrant p ictu re books and l i teracy 
has always been a p riority. My husband and I both have our Master 's degrees and 
are successfu l at our  jobs. So d iscover ing that ou r son was dys lexic, was a bit of a 
shock to say the least. 

My job is  to he l p  students learn to read and to support fam i l ies as they search for 
ways to encou rage thei r strugg l ing reader. Dyslexia can affect 20% of the popu lation 
and dys lex ia doesn't d iscriminate between race , gender, or  SES .  Dyslexic students 
have known neuro log i ca l  d ifferences, and i t  is t ime for North Dakota to take a step 
forward in identify ing and he lpi ng  students who are dyslexic .  P lease he lp  me 
support my students ,  parents, and my own dys lexic ch i ld ! Support H B- 1 461 . 

S incere ly, 

Justine G ibbon 



�rorn : Susa n Longwel l susa n_lo r  ,gwel l @b i smarckschool s . o rg 

S .  b ject :  House B i l l  1 461  
)a te : Jan  27, 201 9 at 4 : 36 :41  PM 

T1 : Davison ,  Kyl e  d av ison@nd .gov, Kreun ,  Curt E .  ckreun @nd .gov, 

Myrd a l ,  Janne  jmyrda l@ncl . gov, Mock,  Corey R .  c rmock@nd .gov, 

Schatz ,  M i ke A .  m ischatz@nd .gov, Anderson ,  Pame la  K .  

p ka nde r'So n@nd .gov, Stri nden ,  M iche l l e  mst 1· i nden@nd .gov 

Dear Senators and Representatives : 

My name is Susan Longwel l-G ietzen and I am a reading specialist i n  Bismarck Publ ic 
Schools. During the past thi rteen years I have worked for BPS, I have had considerable 
experience working  with chi ldren who have reading disabi l ities and dyslexia. Often the 
fi rst indicator for a chi ld with dyslexia is a very bright chi ld , exposed to a vast rich 
vocabulary, and has had many chi ldhood experiences, BUT cannot read . Often times 
the second predictor of a dyslexic chi ld is one who has a poor self- image,  does not l ike 
school ,  does not l ike to read , and may have a school based anxiety of school in  general . 
The th ird predictor of a dyslexic child is a parent who is desperately seeking answers to 
what the problem cou ld be and who is also looking to the school ,  reading special ist, and 
teacher to g ive them the answers to this very compl icated d isabi l ity. Several years ago I 
found myself total ly consumed by this issue and sought out the answers myself. I was 
confused and frustrated that many people including our LD ( learn ing disabled) teachers, 
were not convinced that dyslexia was even a true condition .  Coming from a h istorical 
background, I myself struggled with reading acqu isition .  I was raised in Colorado ,  which 
recogn izes dyslexia as a disabil ity, and therefore received the accommodations and 
modifications that al lowed me to cope with my disabil ity. Thus, I could not understand 
how some people in the North Dakota education system did not understand how 
disab l ing dyslexia cou ld be. I immersed myself in a tried and true reading intervention 
cal led Orton  G i l l ingham and my questions received answers . Our education  system is 
flawed . The basis of the system is geared towards money. Please stay with me, I 
understand that we do need to fol low a budget and we on ly have so much money, but as 
far as fol lowing a swing ing door approach for remedial reading , th is is not the model that 
wi l l  he lp these ch i ld ren overcome th is disabi l ity. For example, both of the schools that I 
work at are fol lowing the MTSS-A model . With in this model a chi ld i n  the lower grades is 
assessed us ing three data points :  f luency (AI MSweb) , Triggers ( letter names, sounds, 
decoding CVC-consonant, vowels, consonant words) and H igh Frequency Words. I n  the 
upper grades MAP, their  reading level ,  and A IMSweb accuracy are the three data 
points. Once the data is compi led it is put in the student selection process and from 
there a number is generated and this number fits i nto a tier process. Tier 1 (general 
population ) ,  Tier  2 (th is was the tier I used to service, but unfortunately due to the lack of 
reading special ists , we are no longer able to service these individuals) , and Tier 3 
(strugg lers) . Several issues that I struggle with concern ing this tier process are : fi rst, 
our  interventions are for on ly 6-8 weeks and if the chi ld's scores increase he may be 



el ig ib le of d ism issal . Dyslexia is a l ifelong d isab i l i ty, and cannot be corrected i n  an 6-8 
week t ime frame .  Secondly, the majority of our  special ists are be ing told that Gu ided 
Read ing  is  the on ly in tervention that they can use. This is not a sequential and expl icitly 
taught phonics program . Th i rd ly, many of these ch i ldren are under the impression that 
once they are d ism issed from reading they th ink  thei r  reading problem is over and 
u nfortunately f ind out that i t  continually resurfaces, because they cannot memorize 
enough or  the amount of text i ntensif ies. Dyslexia is a l ifelong issue and may requ i re 
accommodations to help the student remain successful .  Fourth , many of the probes we 
use to measure students wi l l  cause them to fai l  because a dyslexic ch i ld often cannot 
generate sou nds ,  l etters or even read fast enough  to pass the assessment. Dyslexia is 
a neurolog i cal cond it ion , often affecting auditory or visual processi ng .  Parents and 
ch i ldren who have it need to be g iven hope that they are not cogn i ti vely impaired and 
that they can lead a productive and healthy l ife, with the correct i ntervention .  I am 
hopefu l that th is b i l l  wi l l  pass and we may be able to he lp the many ch i ldren whose 

parents can afford add it ional tutoring and also those who cannot. We must be an 
advocate for ALL ch i ld ren .  

Thank-you ,  
Susan Longwell-Gietzen 
Solhe im & Prai r ie Rose 
Elementary Read i ng Special ist 
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To Whom it May Concern : 

I a m  wr it ing to express my support of H B  1461 and  a ny other b i l l s  that w i l l  resu l t  i n  more resou rces to add ress the 

prob lems students with dys lexia face i n  North Dakota's pub l i c  schools .  

Dys lexia i s  a lea rn ing  d isa b i l ity that impacts a nywhere from 10 to 20 percent of a l l  students. These percentages a re 

low, i n  pa rt, beca use many, perhaps most, students a ren't screened for dys lexi a .  And many ch i l d ren with learn ing 

cha l l enges h ide them as  best they ca n .  What we do know with certa i nty is  that dys lex ia i s  the most common 

learn ing d i sab i l i ty and the ca use of most read i ng and  wr i t ing prob lems that ch i l d ren struggle with .  

I knew noth ing  about  dys lex ia  - other  than the name - u nt i l  my adopted da ughter ( now 8)  was  ident ified with the 

p rob lem .  But getti ng  the d iagnos is and then treatment was a n  a rduous, t ime consum ing  and cost ly p rocess. It 

sta rted when my daughter's fi rst grade teache r  ca l l ed me in for a conference to tel l me that my daughter was 

s ign ifi ca nt ly u nderperform ing  her peers on statewide assessment tests. 

School adm i n istrators a cted q u ick ly to p lace my da ughter in a da i l y  one-on-one remed i a l  tutor ing program ca l led 

Read i ng Recovery. The tutor was a k ind, patient woman who I be l ieved wou l d  he lp  my daughter make great str ides 

in learn ing to read .  After a l l  she was spend i ng an  hou r  a day with my da ughter .  And we, her pa rents, were worki ng 

with her a lmost every even ing .  

At  one po in t  I a sked  the  tu tor  i f  she  had  any idea whether my daughter had  dyslexi a .  She sa id  she had no idea and 

no  way to d i agnose the  p rob lem .  But she  assu red me  that my da ughter wou ld be he l ped by the tutor ing. But her  

p rogress was m i n ima l , re lat ive to the  efforts so many of us, i nc l ud i ng her  teacher and  tutor were making on her 

beha l f. 

The on ly  way to get a d iagnos is  was to take her to a hospita l or neu ropsych iatr ic I n st i tute for a n  eva l uat ion .  We 

ended up paying rough ly $2400 out of pocket for a fu l l  day of test ing, wh ich  determ ined that she does have a 

severe case of dys lexi a .  We were gratefu l for the d iagnosis, beca use then we fi n a l ly had  a way to move forward 

with an educat ion treatment p l a n  that  goes beyond what cu rrent school tutor ing p rograms or  an I E P, wh ich my 

daughter has, can accomp l i s h .  

Dyslexia i s  not  a n  i ncu rab l e  d isease. Ch i l d ren w i th  dyslexi a ca n l ea rn  to  read .  Bu t  the evidence-based method of 

teach ing ch i l d ren with dys lex ia  i s  very specif ic . Once we had the dys lex ia d iagnosis, we knew we needed to fi nd a 
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read ing  and  wr it ing therapy program designed specifica l ly for peop le  with dyslexia .  The on ly way to access the 

he lp our da ughter needed was through a program outs ide of her  schoo l .  
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W e  now take o u r  daughter to the Read ing Therapy Center i n  Moorhead, M N, every weekday for 7 5  to 90 min utes. 

We do th i s  fi rst th i ng  in the morn ing and then take her to schoo l .  We a re fi n a l ly sta rt ing to see rea l progress i n  her 

read i ng and  wr it ing .  

But we shou ldn 't  h ave had to sp in  our  wheels for so long - fi rst tryi ng to ident ify the prob lem and then figu r ing out 

where to go for treatment. I 'm gratefu l to our daughter's teachers and school  adm i n istrators for their efforts. But 

they were grop ing around i n  the dark as we were - th rowing resou rces that were ava i l a b le  at our da ughter's 

prob lem without even knowi ng what the problem was. 

I 'm contr i but ing my testimony i n  support of of th is  b i l l  - both for my daughter' s  sake and on  behalf of the many, 

many ch i l d ren who do not have the benefit of test ing or the he lp  they need to th rive in schoo l .  No ch i l d  shou ld 

have to struggl e academ ica l ly  and  emotiona l ly with the cha l lenge of dys lex ia that  goes un treated . 

One of my proudest m o ments as a pa rent came a coup le  of weeks ago when my da ughter came home with the 

resu lts of a spe l l i ng  test she had taken with a l l  the other k ids i n  her c lass .  She spe l l ed most of the words correctly 

a nd  her teacher r ight ly po i nted out with smi ley faces and exclamat ion po ints that  Luc ia had  done an exce l l ent job .  

I t h i n k  North Da kota' s  Department of Pub l ic  I nstruction ca n and  shou ld do better by the many ch i l d ren th roughout 

the State who suffer from dyslexia .  I hope you wi l l  vote i n  support of this b i l l .  

Tha n k  you  for the opportun ity to  share my fami ly's experience and  my thoughts w i t h  you .  

S incerely, 

Meg Li ndho lm  

1610  S .  8th Street 
Fa rgo, ND 58103 
701-388-3 148 
megl uther l i ndho lm@gma i l . com 



HB 1 46 1  - Dyslexia 
NDCEL Testimony in Opposition 

Chairman Owens and members of the House Education Committee, I am here today 

representing NDCEL and our K 1 2  school leaders as we discuss concerns that we have with this 
bi l l .  This  bi l l  has some inherent issues in it .  Today I also have professionals from the field with 

me here today that will discuss this from a school -based standpoint and would be well equipped 

to answer questions you might have specific to how this is being handled in schools today. This 

neutral testimony comes after careful consideration and should not be confused with lack of 

identification of the seriousness of this learning disability for our students that struggle with 

this. Each and every educational professional I 've visited with about this has indicated that with 

dyslexia like with many of the disabilities our students struggle with - is not one to take lightly -

certainly deserves as much attention as possible to assure the success of students - should continue 

to be an ongoing conversation on how we can better serve our student populations that have this 
learning disabi l ity. However, experts from the field do not agree that the approach in this bill will 

solve the issue. 

As with other issues that relate to a student disabil ity, the best possible resolution comes from 

bringing experts together to learn from each other and find ways to best serve the students. We 

haven't  found that serv ing specific learning disabil ities has been effectively managed through 
century code. However, a legitimate task force to work on this issue would be very appropriate . 

Some concerns that we have with he bill include: 

Un-funded Mandate 

Screening: One of the key areas that brings concern to school leaders is the inherent unfunded 
mandate that comes from this bill . Mandated screening for all students in grades K-2 including 

the screening equipment & tests, and staff and student time. Screenings for all students would 
come at an extraordinary expense and time consumption. Further - regarding learning disabil ities, 
we do not require screening of all students for anything. Screenings take place when notable 

challenges are indicated. 

NDCEL is the strongest unifying voice representing and supporting administrators and educational leaders in pursuit of qual ity 
education for all students in North Dakota. 

Executive Director: Aimee Copas----Assistant Director: Russ Ziegler 



Professional Development: Requiring an additional hour of unfunded PD is an unfunded cost to 
the state of approximately $ 1  Mill ion Dollars - or an average of $90 per teacher. This does not 

include the recommended ancillary staff. 

Loss of Parental Right to Refuse 

Parents have the right to refuse any screening (which this bill would remove), and they currently 
also have the right to refuse service (which this bil l would remove). This bill indicates that a 
district must provide services to a child with dyslexia. It also eliminates criteria for services as 
there are some students with mild dyslexia who may not need services - however this bill demands 

services for al l .  

Again, we agree that there needs to be more district level and state level serious conversations and 

potential training in the area of dyslexia as it is an emerging area of education. 

NDCEL is the strongest unifying voice representing and supporting administrators and educational leaders in pursuit of qual ity 
education for all students in North Dakota. 

Executive Director: Aimee Copas----Assistant Director: Russ Ziegler 
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Chairperson Owens, Vice Chairperson Schreiber-Beck, and Members of the Education 
Committee, 

For the record my name is Tracy Klein, I am the Director of Special Education for Morton/Sioux 
Special Education Unit (MSSEU); which encompasses Mandan School District and six 
neighboring School Districts in Morton and Sioux Counties. 

I submit this bill is not necessary as services for Reading problems and sub component areas of 
reading such as; comprehension, decoding, dyslexia, etc . have been and are currently accounted 
for in the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). Both the assessment process and 
reading difficulties associated with dyslexia are encompassed by CFR: 300.304-300.3 1 1  and 
300 .8  (c) ( 1 0) within Specific Learning Disabilities. In addition, I maintain this bill does not 
acknowledge our state currently has highly trained "Reading Specialists" and Master Level 
Special Education staff assessing as needed and providing interventions for students having a 
plethora of Reading (and academic) disabilities. 

I encourage you to oppose this bill for the following reasons : 

-Mandating training and specialized endorsements for sub areas of reading is overly prescriptive 
and in turn limiting broader holistic interventions. 

-This bill erroneously implies one curriculum, or one multisensory approach fits all levels of 
reading issues and the corresponding interventions encompassed by the term dyslexia. 

-Local districts are better situated to determine training needs given the competing interests for 
professional development time and financial resources. 

-It is an overreach to initiate a system that may lead to the establishment of a unique or self­
standing disability category in excess of the current Specific Learning Disabilities category 
identified by the IDEA. 

I am happy to answer questions you may have for me ! 

Tracy Klein 
Student Services Director 
Morton-Sioux Special Education Unit 
90 1 Division St. NW 
Mandan ND 58554 Ph# (70 1 )75 1 -6500 



1 9 .0557.05004 
Tit le .06000 

Adopted by the Educat ion Committee 

February 1 2 , 201 9 

PROPOSED AM ENDM ENTS TO HOUSE B I LL  NO.  1 461 

Page 2, l ine 1 0 , after "shal l "  insert "offer to" 

Page 2, l ine 1 0 , replace "each" with "any" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 1 1 , replace the first ".b.y" with "through" 

Page 2, l ine 1 1 , after the underscored period insert "A parent or legal guard ian of a student may 
refuse a dyslexia screening offered by the school ." 

Page 2 ,  l ine 1 6, remove ", such as the" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 1 7 , remove "inst itute for multi-sensory education's comprehensive 
Orton-Gi l l ingham training" 

Page 2, line 22 , remove " A  school distr ict must provide a student identif ied as having dyslexia 
w ith education" 

Page 2 ,  remove l ines 23 through 27 

Page 2 ,  l ine 28 ,  remove "�" 

Page 3, l ine 1 ,  replace ".6.,." with "5." 

Page 3 ,  l ine 7 ,  after "staff' insert "- Intervention" 

Page 3 ,  remove l ines 8 through 20 

Page 3 ,  l ine 21 , remove "�" 

Page 3 ,  l ine 23 , after "schools" insert "regarding dyslexia identificat ion and intervention. If 
pub l ic  school personnel identify a student as having dyslexia, a trained teacher 
employed or contracted by the school may provide dyslexia intervent ion services to the 
student" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 9 .0557.05004 
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Good Morning Chairman Schaible and members of the Senate Education committee. For the 
record my name is Michelle Strinden, and I represent the people of South Fargo's District 41. 
I have the privi lege to introduce to you HB 1461 on behalf of thousands of students and 
famil ies who are affected by Dyslexia across our great state. Today you will have the 
opportunity to hear from amazing students, parents, dyslexia special ists and curriculum 
experts who have a been touched by th is  learning difference. Dyslexia affects twenty percent 
of the population and knows no socio economic, racial or ethnic boundary. It is defined as a 
specific learning disabi l ity that is neurologica l in origin and is characterized by d ifficu lties with 
accurate or fluent recognition of words, and poor spe l l ing and decoding abi l ities independent 
of an individual's genera l  intel l igence level .  Secondary consequences may include difficu lty in 
reading comprehension and vocabulary acquisition.  Research shows that Structured Literacy 
programs that are phonetica l ly based, multi sensory and systematic are not only effective for 
students with Dyslexia, but benefit a l l  early readers { International Dyslexia Association). 

Our family has been personal ly touched because our wonderfu l son Joseph has Dyslexia. As a 
resu lt of this I have developed a passion for l iteracy and finding answers and help for our son 
and other chi ldren and famil ies who suffer from Dyslexia. When Joseph was about three, I 
noticed there was something different about the way he learned. Joseph was a bright chi ld 
who socia l ly excel led, but was struggling with learning basic reading ski l ls . Even though I was 
a l icensed secondary education teacher with a Masters degree in school counsel ing, and was 
working in a public school at the time, I struggled to find him the appropriate tutoring and 
diagnosis. After years of tears, tutoring, praying and searching for answers, The Reading 
Therapy Center opened in Moorhead MN and changed our l ives. When he was in 2nd grade 
he was tested and d iagnosed for Dyslexia at the Reading Therapy Center. We a l l  were 
rel ieved to receive this d iagnosis and we began intensive reading therapy for two hours a day 
after his school day. The therapy was working and he was fina l ly making amazing gains ! 
However, going to school and fitting in two hours of reading therapy a day left Joseph 
emotiona l ly and menta l ly exhausted. If he missed school for therapy, he would have even 
more homework in the evenings to make up which created high anxiety for a l l  of us. We 
decided that in order for him to have a hea lthy and balanced chi ldhood, I needed to 
homeschool h im. After four years of intensive reading therapy and thousands of dol lars, our 
son wanted to go back to school .... and we knew he was ready because he could read ! Since 
7th grade, Joseph has been able to find success in private school with a 504 accommodation 
that a l lows for modifications in extra time, written notes and a scribe when needed for tests 
and quizzes. Today, he is a happy and wel l  adjusted junior at Oak Grove Lutheran School 
where he is thriving ! 
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·F'· During my campaign for the state legislature, I stated that my main policy goal was to 
strengthen education by improving l iteracy for students in D41 and across the state of ND. 
Our ND Department of Public Instruction's dashboard shows that less than ha lf of our 
students are reading proficiently, and research has found that one in five students 
experiences dyslexia. Early identification and remediation are essential to ensure success for 
these and other students with learning disabil ities. 

HB 1461 is a result of consu ltation with Dyslexic Special ists trained in Orton Gi l l ingham 
approaches and nationa l and state organizations l ike the International Dyslexia Association 
and Decoding Dyslexia . House Bill 1461 is a lso modeled after Minnesota legislation that has 
been passed in the last three years. 

This bi l l  contains three sections and a ims to accompl ish the fol lowing goa ls. It wi l l  provide for 
a Dyslexia Special ist Credentia l in ND Century Code. This credential must include 
phonologica l awareness, sound symbol recognition, alphabet knowledge, rapid naming ski l ls  
and encoding. Properly trained Dyslexia Special ists could then work in publ ic school districts 
and/or Regional Education Association's (REA's) to provide regional access to Dyslexia 
Special ists that cou ld be trained in researched based methodology l ike Orton Gi l l ingham.  
Training in Orton Gi l l ingham based methodology i s  essentia l  because i t  incorporates three 
learning pathways: visual, auditory and kinesthetic. Next, it provides for public elementary 
schools to administer screenings to each chi ld by the end of the 2nd grade and for a report by 
the superintendent of public schools to legislative management. This wil l  ensure early 
intervention and remediation education services are del ivered to students that are 
researched and phonetica l ly based, multi sensory and systemic. This is extremely important 
so that these students don't fa l l  many years behind their peers in reading. And fina l ly, HB 
1461 wi l l  empower educators by  provid ing professiona l development. This wi l l  a l low them to 
better identify students at risk for dyslexia and may also encourage them to obtain a Dyslexia 
Special ist credentia l .  

I urge your support of HB  1461 so that a l l  students can be successful readers and be provided 
with a high qual ity of education for a bright future. Thank you for you your consideration and 
I wi l l  answer any questions you may have. 
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Th a n k  you Cha i rman Scha i b l e  and  members of the  Senate Educat ion comm ittee .  My n ame  i s  

Pam Kru eger from B i smarck, and I a m  i n  favo r of B i l l  146 1 .  

My concern fo r students with dys lex ia a nd  i nterest i n  teacher  t ra i n i ng i s  a resu lt of over 

fou rteen yea rs of tra i n i ng a nd  experi ence .  I am  a n  i n st ructor  i n  t he  teacher  educat ion p rogram 

at D ick i nson State U n ivers ity on  the B i sma rck campu s, a nd  I am  cu rrent ly worki ng  on  my P hD  i n  

Teach i ng  and  Lea rn i ng, specif ica l ly Teacher  Educat i o n .  My resea rch  top ic  i s  i n  the  a rea of 

t ra i n i ng teachers to work with students with dys l exi a .  I am a l so a fe l low in tra i n i n g  fo r the  

Academy of  Orton-G i l l i ngham Profess iona l s  a nd  E d ucato rs, a ce rt ifyi ng  agency for a n  a pp roach 

fo r work i ng w i th  students w i th  dysl exi a .  I h ave had  the  p rivi l ege of  tutor i ng  many amaz ing a n d  

ta l ented ch i l d ren and  adu lts with dys lex ia fo r many yea rs, a n d  have witn essed how with p roper  

i dentif icat ion and  remed iat ion ,  st rugg l i ng  readers get the  he lp  they need to become fl uent  

reade rs and  su ccessfu l students with the i r  se lf-esteem i ntact .  

Resea rch has  c lea r ly shown t h at if students a re not read i ng  p rofic ient ly  by the  end of 

t h i rd grade, they a re much more l i ke ly  to cont i n ue  to h ave d iffi cu lty i n  schoo l .  Acco rd i ng  to 

No rth  Da kota State test ing from 2017- 18, 53% of grade  th ree students in North Da kota a re n ot 

read i n g  at a p rofic ient leve l .  U p  to now, we have not been meeti ng  the  needs of those who 

h ave d i ffi cu lty l ea rn i ng  to  read .  

Ea r ly screen ing  as suggested by th i s  b i l l  wou l d  he l p  to catch stu dents when  i n st ruct i on  i s  

c ruci a l , and  then screen ing  must be fo l l owed by resea rch-based i n st ruct ion by q u a l ifi ed 

teachers .  
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students with dys l exi a .  Most Teacher  Education P rogra ms, if they do add ress dys lex ia 

specifi ca l ly, a dd ress it a long with a l l  oth er  except iona l it ies i n  one cou rse that i s  a bas i c  ove rview 

of the  except ion a l it i es  they wi l l  see i n  the  c lassroom .  Usua l ly dys lex ia i s  b und led together  with 

a l l  other  l ea rn i n g  d i sa b i l it i es  if ment ioned at a l l .  The pu rpose of th i s  c l ass is to i ntroduce 

teachers to except iona l it ies a nd  to l ea rn how to accommodate fo r these d ifferences not how to 

remed i ate .  A dys lex ia spec i a l i st credent i a l  wi l l  a l low for the tra i n i ng  of speci a l i sts who 

unde rstand  what dys lex ia  i s  and best p ract i ces for teach i ng  1 i n  5 of ou r  students .  They can a l so 

p rovi de  cont i n u i ng p rofess iona l  deve lopment fo r genera l  c lassroom teachers who have not 

received t ra i n i n g  i n  the  past .  

I t  i s  est imated that between 5-20% of peop l e  i n  the U .S .  have some degree of dys l exi a .  

Th i s  mean s  t hat i n  a c l assroom o f  j u st 20  students, on average, 1-4 students i n  the  c l assroom 

have dys l exi a .  Another  way to look at the n umbers is ,  h a lf of a l l  c h i l d ren who receive spec i a l  

educat ion services have a l ea rn i ng  d i sa b i l ity and  85%  o f  those students have a read i ng  

d i sa b i l ity. Resea rchers have shown that most ch i l d ren who  st ruggle to  l earn to  read  ca n be 

ta ught if teach ers use evidence-based i n struct ion right from the begi n n i ng  of  schoo l .  Th is  

re ite rates the  great n eed for ea r ly screen i ng, ea r ly i n tervent ion ,  and  t ra i n i ng  a bout dys lex ia and 

p roper  remed i at i on .  

As  you wi l l  hea r  today, cu rrent ly there a re many myths  and  m i sundersta nd i ngs about 

dys lex ia- that it i s  t ied to i n te l l i gence, that peop le  see lette rs backwa rds, that it i s  a vi s u a l  

perceptua l  d i s ab i l i ty, that t hey  a re j u st l azy, or t ha t  it does not exist .  Sad ly, these myths  a re a l so 

he l d  by many  teachers .  Th is  ca uses a great dea l  of frustrat ion and  ta kes an emot iona l  to l l  on  
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students, teach ers, and  pa rents, as oth ers wi l l  test ify .  Teachers wa nt to be ab l e  to he l p  the i r  

students be su ccessfu l ,  yet due  to  m i s i nformat ion and  a l ack  of  i nformat ion ,  dys lex ia often goes 

u n d iagnosed . 

Students with dys lex ia benefit from m u lt i -sensory, d i rect, systemat ic, exp l ic it i n st ruct ion 

i n  the  st ructu re of  the  Eng l i sh  l a nguage for decod i ng  and encod i ng  ( read i ng  and spe l l i ng ) .  

Noth i ng can be left to chance beca use th i s  st ruct u re i s  not figu red out a utomat ica l ly .  Al l  

students benefit from this type of  instruct ion, but  for students with dyslexia i t  is imperative. 

S imp ly h av ing research-based p rograms  in schoo ls  is not enough .  Exp l i c it teach i ng  req u i res 

exp l i c it knowledge. 

One school  d istrict i n  Marysvi l l e  Oh io ,  Marysv i l l e  Exempted Vi l lage School D i strict , i s  known 

nationwide for the i r  i nnovative education .  In 201 5-1 6 ,  i t  earned a lette r g rade of D on the State 

Report Card ,  K-3 L iteracy Improvement Component .  Three years later , the d istrict' s g rade on the 

same component was a B .  Accord ing to the superi ntendent ,  the d ifference was due to the goa l  of 

reduc ing the r isk of a// k ids who strugg le with read i ng- including those with dyslexia. They focused 

on 3 things: early screening, individualized instruction, and making reading everyone 's business. 

We need three th ings in North Dakota to beg i n  to he lp  1 in 5 students : 

• Screen ing early to catch the warn ing s igns of dys lex i a ,  wh ich can be done with l itt le to no 

cost . 

• Dyslexia Specia l i sts to implement and t ra i n  on ear ly i ntervent ions of best p ractices p roven by 

research 

• Teacher  tra i n i ng to d ispel myths and imp rove i nstruct ion 

Although we currently have learn ing d i sab i l i t ies specia l i sts ,  and have had read ing specia l i sts 

in the past, they have not a l l  been cons istently tra i ned in he lp ing 1 in 5 ch i l d ren  with dyslexi a .  

Hav i ng a dyslexia specia l ist i s  a su re way to  meet t h i s  need . A dys lex ia specia l i st wou ld  need 
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many hours of tra i n i ng  i n  evidence-based practices for remed iat ing read ing d ifficu lt ies and 

address ing other issues that  those wi th dys lex ia face . As an  examp le ,  beg inn i ng dyslex ia 

specia l i sts through the Orton G i l l i ngham Academy rece ive a m in imum of 60 hours of tra i n i ng . 

The rest of the country i s  mov ing on without North Dakota with respect to dyslex ia .  F i rst 

there a re federa l  l aws . 

The Senate recently passed a crim i na l -just ice-reform b i l l  ca l led the F.i rst Step Act. Research has 

shown that pr ison popu lat ions have h igher-than-average rates of dyslexia ,  and dys lex ia is  a lead ing 

cause of i l l ite racy , wh ich i n  turn i s  a ri sk  factor fo r crim ina l  behavior .  I nmates who a re i l l ite rate a lso 

have d ifficu l ty fi n i sh ing the i r  GEDs and then fi nd ing emp loyment after they are re leased . Th is  Act 

i nc ludes prov is ions for screen ing i nmates for dyslex ia and provides the supports needed to earn a 

GED .  

State laws on dyslex ia a re a l so becoming common p lace. North Dakota i s  o ne  o f  the last 

three states to have a b i l l  about dys lex ia . Texas for examp le has had 33 s i nce 20 1 1 ,  Vi rg i n ia has 

had 31  s i nce 20 1 7 ,  and I nd iana has had 7 b i l l s  s i nce 20 1 4 . Usu a l ly No rth  Dakota ta kes pr ide in  

be i ng  on the  cutt i ng  edge and ahead  of our t ime, but we have sad ly  fa l l e n  beh i n d  i n  he l p i ng  1 i n  

5 o f  o u r  students .  

I am  proud that B i l l  1 46 1  passed the house wi th the overwhe lm ing vote of 87 to 2 ,  and I hope 

that the Senate w i l l  a l so pass the b i l l .  I hope that we don ' t  go back to bus i ness as usua l  for our  1 i n  5 

students with dys lex ia . 

As the  writers of the N at io n a l  Cou nc i l  on  Teacher Qua l ity repo rt about read i ng 

i n st ruct i on  stated,  "With the  sc ient ifi c  d i scove r ies that bega n over a h a lf-centu ry ago, we now 

h ave t he  good fo rt une  of ho l d i ng  the  keys to the locks that ba r  fa r too many ch i l d ren  from 

h avi ng  fu l l  access to soci ety. It i s  t ime  to put the  keys i n  the locks a nd  sta rt tu rn i ng them . "  I 

b e l i eve that  B i l l  146 1 wi l l  begi n to open  the locks fo r No rth Da kota's 1 i n  5 .  

• 
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The North Dakota Department of Publ ic I nstruct ion Guidelines for Serving Students with 
Specific Learning Disabilities in the Education Setting recogn izes that dyslexia is associated 
with a specific learn ing d isabil ity in the area of basic read ing skil ls .  Students with dyslexia may 
have d ifficulty not only with read ing ,  but also with spelli ng and performing other skills related to 
the use of pri nted language (National Center for Learning Disabilities). Many students with 
dyslexia have d ifficu lt ies identifyi ng separate speech sounds with in  a word and learn ing how 
ind ividual letters represent sounds. A student with dyslexia does not lack intell igence or the 
des i re to learn . (Adapted from /DA: Dyslexia Basics) 

The I nternational Dyslexia Associat ion ( I DA), along with the N at ional I nstitute of Ch i ld  Health , 
define  dyslexia as: 

" . . .  a specific learning disability that is neurobiologica/ in origin. It is characterized by 
difficulties with accurate and/or fluent word recognition and by poor spelling and 
decoding abilities. These difficulties typically result from a deficit in the phonological 
component of language that is often unexpected in relation to other cognitive abilities 
and the provision of effective classroom instruction. Secondary consequences may 
include problems in reading comprehension and reduced reading experience that can 
impede growth of vocabulary and background knowledge. "  

- I nternat ional Dyslexia Association  Board of D i rectors ,  November 1 2 , 2002. 

The exact causes of dyslexia are not complete ly clear. However, bra in-imag ing stud ies show 
s ign ificant d ifferences i n  the way the b ra i n  of a ch ild with dyslexia develops and funct ions 
(Shaywitz, et. Al , 200 1 ) .  The neurolog ic  d ifferences that are evident i n  a student with dyslexia 
are usua l ly  genetic ,  and because they are neuro log ical in natu re ,  a person with dyslexia wi l l  
probab ly exper ience d ifficult ies h is/her enti re l ife. 

The N at ional Center for Learn ing Disab il it ies (NCLD) projects that one in five , or 1 5-20% of the 
popu lation ,  has a specific learning d isab ility. Of those students, 70-80% have deficits in read i ng ,  
with symptoms rang ing from mild to  severe . Accord ing to  Dyslexia Help at the University of 
Michigan ,  the prevalence rate of dys lexia is comparable between boys and g i rls. The d ifference 
exists i n  the frequency of testi ng , wh ich is  h ig her for males . 

2 



Cha ra cte r i st i cs of Students w i th  Dys l ex i a  

Dys lexia a long with other read ing d isab i l i t ies seem to be strongly determined by genetic 
pred isposit ions .  Chances are that if a student is  exhib i t ing characteristics of dyslexia ,  he/she 
may have a fam i ly  member that has some of the same d ifficu lt ies . 
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Students with dyslexia may possess common areas of strength , which may inc lude ,  but are not 
l im ited to: 

• May have strong v isua l  abi l i t ies 
• May have talents i n  the areas of mechan ical sk i l l s ,  m usic ,  art , drama,  sports , and 

creative writ i ng 
• May be cur ious with great imag i nations 
• May have the ab i l ity to "fig ure th ings out" 
• May seem more mature than their same age peers 

Many students have one or even two of the fol lowing characterist ics associated with dyslexia , 
but a student with dyslexia typica l ly  has many of the character istics that present themselves 
over t ime and s ign ificantly impact learn ing in the academic environment. 

Some of the more common characterist ics of dys lexia inc lude:  

• D ifficu lty learn i ng  to speak 
• Difficu lty learn ing  letters and sounds (phonemic awareness) 
• Difficu lty remembering letters and sounds (phonolog ical memory) 
• Difficu lty organ iz ing written and spoken l anguage 
• Difficu lty memorizing  number facts 
• Difficu lty read ing  at a rate that enables comprehension 
• Difficu lty rap id ly reca l l i ng  the names of o bjects , colors or letters 
• Difficu lty i n  keep ing u p  with and u nderstand ing what was read when longer assign ments 

are g iven 
• Difficu lty with spe l l i ng  
• Difficu lty with handwrit ing  
• Difficu lty learn ing foreig n  languages 
• Difficu lty completi ng math operations correctly 
• D ifficu lty i n  understand ing  the d ifference between " left" and "r ig ht" 
• Difficu lty mak ing friends or learn ing socia l  ski l l s  

(Adapted from I nternat ional  Dyslexia Associat ion, Dyslexia in the Classroom What Every 
Teacher Needs to Know) 

3 
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Poss i b l e  I n d i cato rs of Dys l ex i a  a t  D i ffe rent  Ages : 

There are var ious ind icators exh ibited by students at d ifferent ages that may suggest a poss ib le 
read i ng  Specific Learn ing D isab i l ity (SLD) l i ke dyslexia .  ( I nformation adapted from the Un ivers i ty 
of M ich igan 's  Clues to Dyslexia and the Ya le Center for Dyslexia & Creativity's Signs of 
Dyslexia . )  

Preschool 

• Delay i n  ta lk ing  
• Speech may be d ifficu lt to understand and may sound l i ke "baby ta lk" 
• May not have a favorite book 
• May not s i t  a lone and look at books , may not turn the page one at a t ime,  and may not 

know how to open and hold books 
• D ifficu lty reca l l i ng  the r ight word (word retr ieval)  
• Difficu lty recogn iz ing letters i n  own name 
• D ifficu lty learn i ng and remember ing  names of letters 
• D ifficu lty learn i ng common n u rsery rhymes (aud i tory memory) 
• Difficu lty understand ing words are read from left to rig ht 
• Difficu lty l isten ing to someone else read for extended periods of t ime  
• D ifficu lty with remembering and fo l lowing  d irections 

Kindergarten and F i rst G rade 

• Rel ies on p ictures when read ing 
• Read ing errors show no connection  to the word written on the page (may substitute 

"kitten for the written word "cat") 
• May state he/she does not l i ke to read and compla ins about how d ifficu lt read ing is 
• Avoids read i ng  
• D ifficu lty associating  letters with sounds 
• D ifficu lty remembering basic s ight words 
• D ifficu lty sound ing out s imp le words 
• D ifficu lty separating  words i nto parts (butterfly is butter and fly) 

Second and Th i rd Grade 

• May omi t  end ings of words 
• May have ine l ig ib le  handwr i t ing 
• Extra t ime needed when speak ing to others 
• D ifficu lty remembering spel l i ng  words and ru les 
• D ifficu lty remember ing words ;  may su bmit words l i ke "th ings" for the proper term 
• D ifficu lty sound ing out words 
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• D ifficu lty with pronouncing long , compl icated words 
• D ifficu lty tel l i ng  a story i n  seq uent ia l  order 

Fou rth  th rough E ighth G rade 

• Pauses ,  hes itates or may frequent ly use words l ike "um" when speaking 
• Confuses words that sound al ike when speaking (tornado for volcano)  
• May need extra time to answer when asked a q uest ion 
• May i ncorrectly read common s ight  words 
• May have d ifficu lt ies with comprehension d ue to d ifficu lty with sound ing out words 
• May not be fl uent when read ing a loud and may avoid read ing  out loud 
• May not l ike to read for enjoyment 
• May perform better on ora l  tests 
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• When read ing  out loud ,  read ing may be monotone with no attent ion paid to punctuation 
• D ifficu lty remembering th ings l ike dates ,  n ames , te lephone numbers 
• D ifficu lty with spel l i ng  and learn i ng  new vocabulary 
• D ifficu lty organ iz ing ideas for writi ng 
• D ifficu lty read ing  words with mu lt i -syl lab les 
• D ifficu lty u nderstand ing word structure (prefix, root, suffix) 

H igh  School 

• Read ing  rate may be s lower than same age peers (may not keep up  with read ing  
demands of  m u lt ip le  courses) 

• D ifficu lty with automatic word recogn it ion , which i n  turn , impacts the acq u is i t ion of 
knowledge through  read ing  

• D ifficu lty with spe l l i ng  and writ i ng  
• D ifficu lty with vocabu lary ,  both written and verbal 
• D ifficu lty tak ing notes i n  class 
• D ifficu lty rememberi ng mathematical o r  scientific formulas 
• D ifficu lty organ izing  projects and may strugg le with complet ion of assignments on  time 
• D ifficu lty learn i ng  a fore ign language 

5 
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The provis ion of in tervent ions beg ins with i n  the student 's general ed ucation classroom . If the 
student is  successful and making adequate progress after the intervent ions are provided , no 
addi t ional changes may be needed . I f  the student is not successful, more i ntens ive in tervent ions 
may be suggested and/or implemented by the school team .  

When i nd ividual student data collected shows that a student is  unable to make satisfactory 
prog ress ,  in sp ite of i nd iv idualized , evidence-based classroom intervent ions implemented with 
fidelity, the school team may propose conduct ing an  evaluat ion to determine whether or  not the 
student may have a learn ing d isabil i ty l ike dyslexia .  In addit ion to the school making a proposal 
for testi ng ,  parents of the student may request an evaluat ion at any t ime.  

Dur ing the evaluation ,  add it ional data/i nformat ion is collected and used to determ ine if the 
student has a specific learn ing d isabil ity and whether the student is i n  need of specially 
des igned i nstruction .  The data collected must support both the presence of a d isab il ity and the 
need for specially des igned i nstruct ion in order for the student to be elig i ble for special 
education  services .  

Sometimes a student h as been evaluated outside o f  t he  school sett ing wh ich led to  a d iagnosis 
of dyslexia .  I nformation  from an outside evaluation(s)  should be cons idered by the school team 
as part of the evaluatio n  conducted through the assessment process with i n  the school setti ng . 
Aga in ,  i n  order for the student to qualify as a student with a specific learn ing  d isab ility, he/she 
must be i n  need of specially designed i nstruction .  If the student has been d iagnosed with 
dyslexia but the n eed for specially des igned i nstruct ion is not there ,  the student will not qualify 
for special educat ion services under the category of SLD .  

*Add it ional i nformat ion for Determi n i ng SLD and Elig ib ility for Special Education is  available 
i n  the Guidelines for Serving Students with Specific Learning Disabilities in Educational 
Settings on the NDDP I  website . 
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Exa m p l es of I nte rve nt i o n s  a n d  Accom modat i o n s  

Early i ntervent ion for students with learn ing challenges,  includ ing  dyslexia ,  can establ ish a 
foundation for learn ing and increase the probabil ity of later academic success .  For students who 
may be at r isk of having a specific learn ing d isab il i ty, l ike dyslexia ,  proactive and preventative 
practices can alter the course of their academic careers. 

The National Read ing  Panel (N RP) i n  i ts report , Teaching Children to Read: An Evidence­
Based Assessment of the Scientific Research Literature on Reading and Its Implications for 
Reading Instruction, identified a l ist of intervent ions u nder four major areas central to read i ng :  
Alphabetics , Fluency,  Comprehens ion ,  and Teacher Education and Read ing I nstruction . 
I nterventions  and/or accommodat ions u nder each area may include: 

Alphabetics :  

• Phonemic Awareness - the ab ility to ident ify and man ipulate phonemes (the smallest 
sound un its that make up language) in spoken words .  Phonemes are com bined to form 
syllables and words .  

• Phon ics I nstruct ion - contr ibutes to learn i ng to read by teach ing  readers to use the 
alphabet system,  which is  needed to decode words ,  to reta in  s ight words in memory, 
and to call on s ight  word memory to read words by analogy (access ing words that have 
been learned and us ing parts of the spell ing to read new words with s im ilar spelli ng ) .  
Word pred iction becomes more accurate when readers can comb ine context clues with 
letter-sound cues when figuring  out u nfam iliar words in text. 

F luency - read ing  with speed , accuracy, and proper expression : 

• Students benefit by read ing passages aloud  with gu idance and feedback. 
• May include: repeated read ing , paired read ing ,  shared read i ng ,  and assisted read ing . 

Comprehension  - "essence of read i ng , "  not only to academic learn ing , but lifelong l iv ing:  

• Vocabulary learn ing  and instruct ion - d irect instruct ion of vocabulary requ ired for specific 
texts . 

• Text comprehens ion - i ntent ional th ink ing of the reader engaged in  the text through 
wh ich  mean ing  is made.  

• Teacher preparat ion - assists i n  facilitati ng in the development of read ing 
comprehens ion .  

7 



Teacher Educat ion and Read ing  I nstruct ion :  
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• Evidence based core read ing prog ram - provides a scope and seq uence of skills to be 
taught and strateg ies to effectively teach read ing  skills to maxim ize student learn ing .  

• School wide implementation with a common understand ing  and cons istency i n  practice -
provid i ng explicit i nstruction i n  phonem ic awareness ,  phon ics ,  fluency, vocabulary, and 
comprehension . 

• MTSS - framework to provide all students with the best opportun it ies to succeed , wh ich 
focuses on high quality instruction and in tervent ions matched to student need , prog ress 
is mon itored frequently to make decis ions about changes in i nstruction or goals , and 
data is used to allocate resou rces to improve student learn i ng and to support staff 
implementation of effective p ract ices .  

* Add it ional i nformation on evidence based read ing prog rams and MTSS is  ava ilable in  
the Guidelines for Serving Students with Specific Learning Disabilities in Educational 
Settings on the NDDP I  website. 

School teams may choose accommodations to help students with learn i ng  d ifficult ies in  both 
the general education and special education classrooms.  The l ist of examples i s  not 
exhaustive, nor is every accommodation  l isted i ntended to be effective or  appropriate for 
every student. Accommodat ions chosen should be based u pon the needs of the i nd ividual 
student and determ ined by the school team .  Accommodat ions may i nclude :  

• Sample Accommodat ions Involving Materials :  

o Clarify or  s implify written d i rections 
o Present a small amount of work at a t ime 
o Block out extraneous st imuli 
o H ighl ight essential i nformation  
o Provide add it ional practice activit ies 
o Provide a glossary i n  content areas 
o Util ize aud io  record ing  devices 
o Util ize assistive technology (tablets , electron ic  readers/d ict ionaries/spellers , text 

to speech programs , aud io books ,  etc. ) 

• Sample Accommodations I nvolving Interactive I nstruction :  

o Repeat d i rect ions 
o Mainta in  da ily rout ines 
o Provide a copy of lesson notes 
o Use step-by-step i nstruction 
o Combine verbal and visual i nformation together 
o Write key points on wh iteboard 
o Pair  oral presentations with visual i nformation and partic ipatory activit ies 
o Review da ily 

8 
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o Ut i l ize expl ic it teach ing proced ures (advanced organ izers , gu ided practice , 
demonstrate the skill , offer corrective feedback, mon itor pract ice , review, set up  
i ndependent pract ice) 

o Ut i l ize mnemon ic  devices 

• Sample Accommodations Involvi ng Student Performance :  

o Change the student's response mode 
o Priority seat ing 
o Des ign  worksheets from easiest to hardest (h ierarchical) 
o Allow extra t ime 
o Provide an outl i ne  of the lesson 
o Provide  work samples 
o Provide add it ional practice 
o Utilize g raph ic  o rgan izers 
o Util ize ass ignment books or calendars 
o Util ize cues to denote important items 
o Ut i l ize peer med iated learn ing 

* I nformation was adapted from The I nternat ional Dyslexia Associat ion document 
entitled Dyslexia in the Classroom What Every Teacher Needs to Know (20 1 7 ) .  
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M isconcept i on s  of Dys l ex i a  

The Un iversity of Mich igan , Dyslexia He lp webs ite l i sts common myths re lat ing to dyslexia .  
Some of  the misconceptions regard i ng  dyslexia a re l i sted below. 

• Dyslexia can be outgrown. 

Dyslexia is l ife long. Yearly mon itori ng of phonolog ical sk i l l s  from first through twelfth 
g rade shows that the d isabi l i ty persists in to adu lthood . Although many students with 
dyslexia learn to read accu rate ly, they may conti nue to read s lowly and not 
automatical ly. 

• Dyslexia is i nnate, i ncurable ,  and permanent. 

While dyslexia is a l ifelong learn i ng  d isab i l ity, early, i ntensive ,  and systematic 
i ntervention can help a student keep up  and reta in  h is/her g rade level in school , as wel l  
as m in im ize the negative effects dyslexia can have , such as low self-esteem and poor 
self-concept as a learner. 

• Dyslexia cannot be diagnosed u nt i l  th i rd g rade. 

Professionals can make a defin itive d iagnos is as soon as the ch i ld  beg i ns  to struggle 
with learn ing to read ,  spel l ,  and write. The sooner a d iagnos is is made,  the q u icker the 
ch i ld can get he lp .  A combinat ion of a fam i ly h istory of dyslexia and symptoms of 
d ifficult ies in spoken language can he lp identify a ch i ld  with a specific d isab i l ity that 
incl udes dyslexia. 

• People with dys lexia cannot read. 

Most ch i ld ren and adu lts with  dys lexia are ab le to read , even if it i s  at a basic leve l .  
Spe l l i ng  is one of  the classic red flags a lerti ng parents and teachers of  a serious 
underlyi ng prob lem . The student may be unab le to understand  the bas ic code of the 
Eng l ish language and cannot break down or  reconstruct (with spel l i ng )  words  
us ing codes ( letters ) .  

• Ch i ldren with dys lexia wi ll never read wel l ,  so it 's best to teach them to 
compensate. 

I nd ividuals with dyslexia can become terrific readers with the appropriate in tervention . I t  
is important to test a student early i n  order to identify any problems and attempt to 
prevent major read ing d ifficu lt ies before they even start .  

• On ly ch i l dren with an IEP or 504 p lan can receive c lassroom accommodations.  

General education teachers can provide classroom accommodations to any student ,  
regard less of whether or not that student has an IEP or a 504 p lan .  

10  
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Read ing  a loud will not he lp  a ch ild sound out unknown words. I nstead , i nstruction that 
centers on u nderstand ing sounds of i nd ivid ual letters and how they blend to create 
words will ass ist the student to improve h is/her read ing abil it ies. When the student is 
expected to read u nknown words ,  he/she may try to memorize the shape of a word and 
use pictures and context clues to g uess the word , wh ich may lead to frustration. 

• Students with dys lex ia  see th ings backwards. 

Students with dyslexia do not see th ings backwards because dyslexia is  not a problem 
with the eyes. Wh ile new research has demonstrated that letter reversals of k indergarten 
ch ild ren pred icted spell ing at 2nd g rade,  typical learners may reverse letters when 
i n i t ia lly learn i ng.  

• C h i l d ren  with dys lexia a re just lazy; they shou ld  try harder. 

Research has shown , with the technology of functiona l  magnetic resonance imaging 
(MR I ) ,  that students with dyslexia use a d ifferent part of the i r  bra in  when read ing  and 
work ing with language.  Students with dyslexia show a d ifferent pattern of bra in  function 
when read ing ; underactivity in some reg ions ,  over activity i n  others wh ich , accord ing to 
research ,  accou nts for the d ifficulty students have in extract ing mean ing from the pri nted 
word. If students with dyslexia do not rece ive the r ight type of i ntervent ion and/or 
classroom accommodations ,  they often struggle i n  school, desp ite being brig ht, 
mot ivated , and spend ing hours on homework assignments. 

• Gifted ch i ld ren  cannot have dys lex ia  or a learn ing disabi l ity. 

Many people with dyslexia are also cons idered g ifted or ta lented and have gone on to 
accompl ish outstand ing th ings in the ir  l ives .  Many famous authors ,  researchers, actors 
and actresses, polit icians ,  athletes,  and others from d ifferent professions have dyslexia. 

• Retai n i ng  a ch i l d  w i l l  improve h is/her academic struggles .  

Accord i ng  to several i nstitut ions (U.S. Department of Education , American Federation of 
Teachers ,  National Associat ion of School Psycholog ists) ,  there is no benefit to retention 
because it may not improve a student's academic struggles. These students do not need 
another year of the same i nstruct ion - they need d ifferentiated intervention that is 
research-based , systematic ,  and explicit. 

1 1  
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• If a ch i ld  is not e l ig i ble for s pecia l  education  services,  that ch i l d  doesn' t  have 
dys lexia.  

Dyslexia comes i n  many degrees from mi ld to severe . Most ch i ld ren with dyslexia wi l l  not 
receive special education services u n less they score very poorly ( 1 0  percent i le or below) 
when comparing their level of performance to the i r  peers or  to the expected level of 
performance on g rade level standards .  

• There is a test to determine  i f  an i nd ividua l  has dyslex ia .  

There is no s ing le test for dyslexia .  A comprehensive eva luat ion m ust be admin istered to 
support the conclus ion of a SLD that can i nc lude dyslexia .  Areas of assessment ,  
determ ined by the mu ltid iscip l i nary team , may i nc lude phonolog ica l  process ing and oral 
language, a lphabet knowledge ,  decod i ng ,  word recogn i tion , read ing fluency, reading 
comprehension ,  spel l i ng ,  written express ion ,  and cogn it ive function ing .  

• Dyslex ia is a cond it ion that on ly  medical  profess iona ls  can d iagnose. 

Even though dyslexia may be d iagnosed by a physician , i t  becomes an educationa l  
issue when it s ig n ificantly affects the student 's performance i n  the school  setting . Even 
when dyslexia is  d iagnosed by someone outs ide the school system ,  the school d i strict is 
requ i red to conduct a comprehensive eval uation to determ ine  if the ch i ld  i s  e l ig ib le  for 
special education  and re lated services . 

A comprehensive eva luation may inc lude the i nformation obta ined from sources outs ide 
the school sett ing as part of the process ;  however, the majority of assessments and 
tests are admin istered by educators who are tra ined i n ,  and knowledgeable of ,  the 
i nstruments and procedures to successfu l ly identify SLD in the area of read ing , wh ich 
may i nclude dyslexia .  To be e l i g ib le for specia l  education  services u nder the I nd ividua ls 
wi th Disabi l it ies Education Act ( I DEA) , assessment resu lts m ust demonstrate that the 
d isabi l ity has a s ign ificant impact on the ch i ld 's  learn ing and the student is i n  need of 
specia l ly designed i nstruction .  

12 



Resou rces 

• Center for Parent I nformation and Resources (CP I R) 
• Counc i l  for Exception  Ch i l d ren  (CEC) ,  D ivis ion for Learn ing Disabi l it ies 
• I nternationa l  Dyslexia Associat ion ( I DA) 
• I nstitute of Education  Sciences ( I ES)  
• LO On l i ne  
• North Dakota Department of Pub l ic  I nstruction (NDDP I )  
• U n ivers ity of M ich igan ,  Dys lexia He lp  
• Learn ing D isab i l it ies Association  of America (LDAA) 
• Nationa l  Center for Learn ing  D isab i l i t ies (NCLD) 
• Teach ing LO 
• U nderstood for Learn i ng  and Attent ion Issues 
• What Works Cleari nghouse (WWC) 
• The Yale Center for Dys lexia and C reativity 
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Haley, Kindergarten 

Testimony for Public Hearing 

EDUCATION COMMITTEE 

Public Hearing on House Bill 1461  

March 20th, 201 9  

Good morning Chairman and members of the Education Committee . 
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Haley's Hope 

Haley, Senior 

My name is Kari Bucholz, Founder and Executive Director of Haley' s  Hope. Haley' s  

Hope i s  a comprehensive dyslexia learning center located in West Fargo ; however, we provide 

services to the entire state of North Dakota. We are dedicated to accurate assessment, researched 

based remediation, teaching academic study skills and advocacy for children and adults with 

dyslexia. 

My journey with dyslexia started with my son Haley, just one month into his 

kindergarten year back in 2005 . After being told he was not keeping up with the other kids in his 

class, our family started on a 2 ½ roller coaster trying to find an answer to our bright, young 

boy ' s  academic challenges .  After Title service interventions, reading 20 minutes a night, neuro 

appointments, eye doctors, hearing tests and private tutors, we ended up in St. Paul for the 

diagnosis that gave us the answer. Our son Haley is profoundly dyslexic and severely 

dysgraphic . I tell you this as a backdrop to why I support of House Bill 1 46 1 .  Had our education 

and medical systems known what to look for back then, we would have understood the reason 

Haley could not read or write and been able to intervene sooner. 

The phrase: "Kids are taught to read up to third grade, and from third grade on, they need 

to read to learn" is not how our educational system is working. 

Because if you are dyslexic, and not identified early, meaning kindergarten or first grade, the 

chance of reading at-grade level by 3 rd grade is simply impossible. 

The fact is . .  . If you can't  read (or write) the ability to LEARN is totally wiped out. 
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Haley's Hope 

To briefly demonstrate what I mean, I would like to introduce you to a few of the 

students in our ND Education system. The students we work with come from over 62 different 

communities in North Dakota, not just the Fargo/West Fargo Area. (Refer to list of counties) 

• A third-grade girl who has been in pull-out reading services for two years, is in 

the 1 5 th % for reading this year and does not qualify for any structured 

remediation. 

o Please turn the page to see how she did on a recent spelling test. 

o Please turn the page again and read the story she wrote about an accident she 

had. 

• This next young child is a second grader, and has been in Title services since last 

year. 

o This is a letter she wrote to her mom at the beginning of this school year. 

• Next, is a student in 5 th grade, who has been receiving services in Title 1 since 

kindergarten. Sitting at ' below average ' ,  or ' on watch' every year on 

NWEA/ AIMS web testing. 

0 The first spelling test is from Jan of 20 1 8 , 

0 The second is the same words in March of 20 1 8 . 

I will now share with you reasons for my support of House Bill 1 46 1 . 

Section 2 :  1 

I think we can all agree that early intervention is the key for any type of learning or medical 

issue . Dyslexia warning signs are noticeable as early as 1 year old and children can be accurately 

diagnosed at age 5 . 5  as long as the child has been in a structured learning environment for one 

year. The focus in this bill is early intervention, it states :  

"The school shall offer to administer dyslexia screenings to any enrolled student through the end 

of the second grade. " 



This means, children as early as kindergarten who are struggling with ''fluent recognition of 

words, poor spelling, and decoding abilities " (per the definition of dyslexia in item 5)  "shall be 

offered the administration of dyslexia screenings. " 

It would be in the best of the children in our North Dakota schools to eliminate the cut-off of 

second grade. I ask you to consider the fact, there are hundreds of students who have already 

been missed and will continue to be missed if we don't  open this up to ALL students, no matter 

their age or grade. 

Section 2 :  2 

Regarding a "school district may contract with, employ, and compensate dyslexia specialists . . . .  to 

educate and train for appropriate dyslexia screening methods, identification and intervention. " 

There are many fallacies out there regarding dyslexia, and there are many severity levels that 

require a trained specialist to properly identify in order to create the best intervention plan. This 

becomes even more critical with the extreme variety of intervention programs available to 

children who qualify for specific service plans. We need someone who understands dyslexia and 

the inherent strengths and weaknesses it brings to these children. Sometimes, less is more for 

them, so using a qualified outside source to train and guide our educational system is critical to 

making sure fidelity is used when identifying and remediating dyslexia. 

Section 2 :3  

" The superintendent of public instruction shall adopt rules in  consultation with teachers; 

school administers and other stake holders, setting forth criteria for dyslexia screenings . . .  " 

It would be prudent to include the guidance of the dyslexia specialist, as they are the ones who 

really know what it takes to accurately identify dyslexia. Dyslexia cannot be lumped into the 

typical IEP qualifications, because a lot of our kids don't  qualify for special education. And most 

of those who do, really don't need to be in Special Ed if they are identified correctly . 

As a mom of a profoundly dyslexic son, I have dedicated the past 1 4  years trying to help 

as many children as I can through our non-profit Haley' s Hope. When I started this journey, no 



one said the word dyslexia or believed it was a specific learning difference.  Fourteen years later, 

our son is a senior honor student and going to college next year. We did the work to get him 

there, or I should say HE did the work. It is sad I can't say the school did much to help him or us 

during this j oumey. I am thankful for the efforts of those who brought this bill forward. I have 

always hoped North Dakota could get to this stage in our education system, acknowledging 

dyslexia is real and being open to doing something about it. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. I would be happy to stand for any questions . 

Qualifications : 

• Certified in Orton Gillingham based Barton Reading and Spelling System- 2008 . 

• Certified in Screening for Dyslexia - 20 1 1 

• Structured Literacy Teacher -The Center for Effective Reading Instruction 

• Dyslexia Studies and Language-Based Leaming Disability- Graduate Certificate­

Southern New Hampshire University - 20 1 6  

• International Dyslexia Association- Upper Midwest Branch- Board Member 

• Atlantic Seaboard Dyslexia Leaming Center- Multisensory Math 1 



L i st  of No rth  Da kota C it i es H a l ey ' s  H o pe Se rv i ces  

City # of Students City # of Students 

Argusvi l l e  3 N ew Sa l em  1 

Arth u r  3 N ew Town 2 

B i s m a rck 12 Nome  1 

Bott i n e a u  1 Oxbow 1 

Bowm a n  1 Page 1 

Buxton 1 Pa r k  R ive r 1 1  

Casse l ton 7 Port l a nd  3 

Ch r i st i n e  1 Re i l e ' s  Acres 2 

Coope rs.town 2 Rugby 1 

D i ck i n son  4 S h eye n n e  2 

Ea st G ra nd  Forks 1 Stra sb u rg 1 

Edmore 3 Tappen  1 

E l l e n d a l e  1 Tho m pson  2 

Ende r l i n  3 Tower  City ' 5  

Fa rgo 163 Va l l ey C i ty 1 

F i n l ey 1 Wa h p eto n 1 

G rafton 1 Wa l cott 1 

G ra nd  Fo rks 4 Wolfo rd 1 

Gwi n n e r 1 Was h b u rn 2 

H a rwood 5 Watfo rd City 2 

H i l l s boro 3 West Fa rgo 70 

Horace 8 Wi l l i ston 2 

H u nter  2 

J a mestown 4 

K i n d red 4 

Ku l m  1 

La ngdon 2 

Leon a rd 2 

Li dgerwood 1 

Li sbon  1 

M a ndan  2 

M a nve l  1 

M a p leton 1 

M ayvi l l e  4 

M e ki nock 1 

M i l nor  1 

M i n ot 6 
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Stat i st i cs 
Tota l pop u l at ion  of North Da kota 755, 393 

Tota l dys l ex i c  popu l a t ion  of No rt h  Da kota 15 1,078 
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Tota l pop u l at ion  of schoo l -age k i d s  i n  No rth  Da kota 108,943 

Tota l dys l ex i c  popu l a t i on  of students 21,788 

Refe re n ces ret r ieved from : 

NO Department of Public Instruction; 2018-19 Schoo l  Yea r  

Yale Center for Dyslexia and Creativity; 

20% of the popu lat i o n  ha s  some fo rm of Dys lex i a  

National Institute of Health ; 

one  i n  five peop le  a c ross the  nat ion  h a s  dys l ex i a  
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I n structi ons :  
I n  the spaces bel ow, record each word your teacher  provid es yo u .  
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I nstru cti ons :  ' 

I n  th e spaces below, record each word you r  teach er  provid es you .  
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Nationwide, 

of public school students 
received special education 

in 201 3-201 4. 

In North Dakota, 

of public school students 
received special education 

that year. 

Rates of SLD & OH i 
among students receiving 

specia l  educat ion in 
20 1 5-201 6 

% SLD % OHi 
50 

40 38.8% 

30 

20 

1 0  

• Nationa l • North Dakota 

11-8 /1/6 /  

4,242 ch i ldren 9�5 

were i dent ifi ed i n  20 1 5-20 1 6 wi th specific learn ing 
d isabi l it ies {SLD) i n  No rth Dakota, where they 
accounted fo r the  l a rgest of t he  1 3  d i sab i l i ty 

categor ies covered unde r  spec i a l  ed ucat i on  l aw. 

SLD 35 .4% ---- �tism 7. 8% 
peaf-blindness < 1 %  

/Developmenta l delay 8.6% 

__ Emotional disturbance 7. 3% 

_Hearing impairments < 1 %  

_I ntellectua l  disabi l ities 6. 1 % 

........-orthopedic impairments < 1 % 
,'Traumatic brain injury < 1  % 
Visual impairments < 1 %  

\.,,"""Speech or language impairments 1 7. 1 %  
Multiple disabi l it ies: N o  data avai lable 

Total may not equal 7 00% due to rounding. 

Children are often classified under the category of other hea lth 

impairments {OH i) when ADHD is the primary reason they qual ify for 

special education. OHi can cover other health conditions but is used here 

as a rough proxy for students receiving specia l  education who have ADHD. 

�;����1�r For more i nformation about the cha l lenges and  opportun it ies for the 1 i n  5 students with learn i ng  and attent ion 
L�arm�Q · · · 



9 The State of Learn ing D isab i l i t ies : Understand i ng the 1 i n  5 - North Dakota State Snapshot 

Educational Environment 

As deta i l ed i n  t h i s  chart, many 
students rece iv i ng  spec ia l  educat ion  
spend 80% or  more of  the schoo l  day 
i n  genera l educat ion c l assrooms .  
I nc l us i on  can i m prove outcomes-
if  teachers have the  ski l ls needed to 
he lp d iverse learners . 

Discip l ine 

Nat ionw ide, students with d i sab i l it i es 
a re more than  tw ice as l i ke ly to be 
suspended as those without 
d i s ab i l i t i es, and the loss of 
i n struct iona l t ime increases the r isk of 
academic fa i l u re and school avers ion .  

1 00 

80 

60 

40 

20 

0 

% SLD % OH i  

83 .7% 

• Nat iona l  • North Dakota 
Data from 201 5-20 1 6 

I n North Dakota students 
ident ified with SLD or OH i  

accounted for 

46.7% 
of students with d i sabi l it ies 
who received out-of-schoo l 
suspens ions i n  20 1 4-201 5 

- 6:: ,, ,  

State Literacy Laws 
No rth Dakota l aw req u i res 

students to be tested i n  

rea d i ng i n  g rades K-3 a n d  

a l l  st rugg l i ng stu dents  to 

rece ive i nte rvent i o n .  

No rth Dakota does  not 

have a l aw focus i ng  

spec i f ica l ly o n  i dent i fy i n g  

o r  add res s i n g  dys l ex i a ,  

t hough  26 states i n  the  

count ry do .  

-• 
Leaving H igh School All special education 

D ip lomas 76% 
Cert ificates :0% 

Students with l ea rn i ng  and attent ion  i ssues Dropouts 24% : 
: : 

a re as  smart a s  the i r  peers and ,  with the  r ight 
SLD 

s upport, can ach i eve at h i gh  l eve l s .  But too : : 

often students with these i ssues leave schoo l Dip lomas : !79% 
Cert ificates :<)% : 

with a cert ificate of complet i on- i nstead of a : 
Dropouts 21 % : 

regu la r  d i p l oma-or  d rop  out a ltogether. Here's a : : : : 

OHi : : 
l ook  at outcomes for students rece iv i ng  specia l  : 

educat i on  i n  No rth  Dakota, where 86.6% of a l l  Dip lomas 74% 
Cert ificates :0% 

students g raduated in 201 4-20 1 5 .  Dropouts 26% 
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 1 00% 

Data from 201 4-201 5 Totals may not equal 1 00% due to rounding. 

Sources : IDEA 61 8 data, Civil R ights Data Collection. and White House graduation data. 

cent�r for © 2 0 1 7 N at 1 o n a  Center  o r  ea rn i n g  1 s a  1 1 t 1 es .  I nc . Con tact :  � D National 
I f L o· b I . . f I d  

L�arn!�9 



Dy5!exia Learning Cente, 

OUR MISS ION is to gu ide ind ividua ls  affected by dyslexia through a comprehensive a pproach of screening, early i ntervention, 
education and advocacy. 

JAKE'S JOURNEY 
J a ke M i l l e r  was n ever good with spe l l i n g .  He  had a ha rd t ime formatti n g  sentences .  M ath 
was daunti ng .  He needed repeated d i rections and was on l y  a b l e  to take it one step at a 
time .  Ta l king  to peop l e  of a uthority was tough .  That is u nti l J oa n n ,  J ake's mom,  ran i nto 
Ka ri , the Founder  and  Executive D i rector of H a l ey's Hope .  She  was te l l i ng  Ka ri how Jake 
strugg led i n  schoo l  and  Kari  advised her  to bring  h im  i n  to be  tested . J a ke was 1 0-years o l d  
then .  They discovered he was Dys l exic and  immed iate ly created a p l a n .  

There was a time when math beca me even more d ifficu lt fo r J a ke .  Ka ri often stayed after 
hours with h im  and  set up  a meeti ng  with h i s  teacher to ensure she knew exact ly what h e  
n eeded t o  focus o n .  Ka ri even went as fa r to take a 2-week tra i n i ng  out-of-state to lea rn how 
to best he lp  Jake and eventu a l ly other students . Jake was amazed by her  dedication .  Jake Miller 

H e  contin ued tutori ng  at H a l ey's H ope unti l he was 1 4 . Wh i l e  worki ng  with Ka ri a n d  the amaz ing tea m at H a l ey's H ope 
h e  lea rned a l ife long  l esson - N EVER G IVE U P !  Jake i s  more confident ta l k i ng  i n  pub l i c  now. He  recent ly d id so for 
a n  open house at Lake Reg ion  State Co l l ege i n  Devi l s  La ke , N o rth Da kota , where h e  attends  schoo l .  H e  p resented to 
pa rents and  new students i nterested in the Wind Tu rb ine  Tech n ic ian  ca reer path . 

Th i s  past summer, J ake worked i n  S itka , A laska as a deckh a n d .  He  was tested da i l y  i n  how he  com mun i cated with h i s  
peers and  superio rs .  H e  had  to  l ea rn t he  boati ng  l a nguage ,  wh ich a l so meant expa nd i ng  h is voca bu l a ry. H e  strong l y  
be l ieves that i f  h e  d idn 't work with Ka ri a l l  those long  n ig hts and  push  h imse l f, there is n o  way h e  cou l d  h ave done it. 

The week before fly ing up to work in Alaska ,  J ake showed up unexpected ly at H a l ey's H ope.  He said that Ka ri bega n  
t o  cry, beca use she w a s  s o  happy t o  see h im .  They ta l ked for a few hou rs a bout l ife a n d  s h e  showed h i m  h ow m u ch 
they had g rown by add ing  new emp loyees and  teach i ng  more students. J a ke knew th i s  new adventu re wou l d  be 
cha l l eng i ng ,  and a stop at H a l ey's Hope beforehand was exact ly what h e  needed . Ka ri reassu red h im he  was rea dy, that 
he'd do a mazi ng  working  u p  there and to set fea r  as ide. That dose of i nsp i rat ion and a l l  of the h a rd work h e  had put i n  
before , set h i m  u p  for success. 

J a ke fi n i shed worki ng  on the ocean and went back to La ke Reg ion State Co l lege .  After one week of be i ng  back, he was 
c l i m b ing  wind turb ines and worki ng  with a l l  sorts of wi res .  Aga i n ,  a nother  cha l l enge  was put before h i m ,  so h e  knew 
what h e  n eeded to d o .  H e  stayed u p  l ate studyi ng  the l ayout of the tower, every d eta i l .  H e  n ow knows h e  n eeds to 

b reak  th i ngs down to better understand  and  ask  more q u estions .  

He put i n  the work to lea rn i t .  Ka ri a l ways ta u g ht h im to be l i eve, to push h i m se l f  to 
l ea rn the info rmat ion a n d  not to be l a zy !  J a ke th i n ks of H a l ey's Hope as o n e  p l ace 
that he  can a lways count on  if he  needs he lp .  He has lea rned g reat techn i ques  that 
wi l l  he lp  h im  g row we l l  i nto the futu re . 

Pictured lef t to right:  Marcus (older brother), Jake, Hunter (younger brother), Joann 
I ( I 

J 
I '  
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HURRAY FOR HALEY'S HOPE ! 
3 ,2.o...-1 CJ 
M -ii=,5 
f l5o :F IS 

"For your ears and eyes, we 
are forever grateful. The strides 
he is making and the progress 

continues to show both at home 
in h is reading and in h is academic 
work. I can 't wait to see how his 
growth and confidence changes 

over the next year. Diane is 
a gifted teacher and I am so 

thankful Haley's Hope found her. 
She is a blessing in Ben 's life. " 
- Terri ,  Parent of a 2nd g rader 

"You amaze me with your 
STRENGTH and POISE! You are 

clear headed, KNOWLEDGEABLE, 
straight shooting and bring the 

facts to the table. I am very 
emotional about our sweet girl 
and we will fight for her in ANY 

and every way. I t  was a GIFT 
to have you there and simple 
words will NEVER be enough. 

So THANK YOU! " 
- Received after attending 

an IEP meeting 

• 
• - �r 

� "This scholarship is greatly appreciated. Thank you so much. Haley's Hope has been wonderful Ji 
; for my children. I hope someday I w�II be �ble to give b�ck fo other families who need financial ,' .. 
: assistance with this wonderful program: If • 

' 

• ; 
1• ! ' l � • • ' • , • ' 

, 
• j ; ,· � ' ... ' • • :' 

DO YOU KNOW? 

We have he l ped over Act ive students tutori n g  with u s  

8M1 1 S s i n ce open i n g .  
• 

represent 38 towns and  72 schools . --=---
Over 8,358 sess ions  were ta ug ht i n  20 1 8 .  Th i s  i s  r 1 ,385 sess ions  from 20 1 7 !  

Average Improvement after 6 months of 1 -on-1 Tutoring 

� 
0 u 

I n co m i n g  
• 6 months 

1 40 ------------------
1 20 ---------------; ;Ji,1----

1 00 ---------------1 

80 ---�=----------t 
60 --------

Wo rd 
Identifi cat ion  Spe l l i n g  

"' .  ' ' ,.,. . . ., 

F u n d a m enta l 
Literacy 

Sound 
Sym bol  

haleyshope.org Like us on Facebook 701 .373.0397 kari@haleyshope.org 

. . t 



Test imony i n  support of H B-1461 

Sa ra h Rob i nson, P h . D, CCC-SLP 
Associate C l i n ica l P rofesso r 
Com m u n icat ion Sc iences and  Disorders 
U n ive rsity of North Da kota 

I .  Dys l ex i a  d efi n i t i on  a n d  m i s u n d e rsta n d i ngs 

A. Dys l ex i a  i s  a n e u ro l og i ca l l y based d i s o rd e r  c h a ra cte r i zed by d iffi c u l ty with 
wo rd decod i ng,  wo rd recogn i t i on ,  s pe l l i n g a nd wr i t i ng .  I t  affects a p p rox i mate ly  
1 1 .8% of schoo l -a ged c h i l d re n .  
B .  76% o f  t h e  p u b l i c a n d  59% o f  tea c he rs u nde rsta n d  dys l ex i a  t o  b e  see i ng 
l ette rs backwa rds acco rd i ng  to a 2017  study .  
C .  Th i s  vague u nde rsta n d i ng i s  a l so ev i d e nt i n  the  No rth  Da kota Depa rtment  
of  P u b l i c  I n st ruct i o n ' s  G u ide l i nes  M a n u a l , wh i c h  d oes i nc l u d e  a co m me nt u nde r  
the  descr i pt i o n  o f  a s pec if ic l ea rn i ng d i sa b i l i ty . "Note : Dys lex i a  i s  a ssoc i a ted with a 
s pec i fi c  l e a rn i ng d i sa b i l i ty i n  the  a rea of ba s i c  rea d i ng s k i l l s . "  The re i s  no  rea l 
defi n i t i o n  of dys l ex ia  p rovi ded . 

Lyon, G . R .  (2003 ) .  Defi n i ng dyslexia, comorb id ity, teache rs' knowledge la nguage and  read i ng :  A 
defi n it ion of dyslexia .  Annals of Dyslexia, 53 : 1-14. 

Macdona ld ,  K. ,  Germine ,  L . ,  Anderson, A . ,  Ch ristodo u lou ,  J . , & McG rath,  L. (2017) .  D i spe l l i ng the myth :  
Tra i n i ng i n  ed ucat ion  o r  neurosc ience decreases bu t  does  not  e l im i nate be l ief i n  neu romyths .  
Frontiers in  Psychology, 8 {1314}, 1-16 .  do i :  10 .3389/fpsyg .2017.013 14 

Moats, L. C., & Dak in ,  K .  E. (2008) .  Basic facts about dyslexia and other reading problems. Ba lt imore :  
The I nternat iona l  Dyslexia Associat ion .  

I I .  U n d e rsta n d i ng t he  N D  i m pact 

A. I n  N o rt h  Da kota rea d i ng i s  assessed u nde r  t he  u m bre l l a  of E LA o r  E ng l i s h  
La nguage Arts . T he  res u l ts a re i l l ustrated i n  t he  gra ph s  be l ow ta ke n d i rect ly  fro m 
N D  D P I .  



2017 Resu lts :  

G rade 3 

State 

. - ; , ·  

ELA Achievement 

• Proficient • A.,J ,anced 

f{ B J!b/ 
3,--£<J �ff 
/9-1,L :il-6 
r, z ,,f.f 

• Th is graph  shows that 27% of a l l  3 rd grade students i n  N D  schoo l s  ca n not read at bas ic leve l s .  
Th is mea ns that  over 29,000 3rd graders i n  ND  ca n not read .  

• Another 36% of a l l  3 rd grade students i n  N D  schoo l s  can not read at leve l s  that a re on ly pa rt ia l ly 
p rofic ient = 58,093 students. 

1 1th G rade 

State 

30 . 

ELA Achievement 

20 1 0  0 1 0  

· • Proficient • ;avanceo 

20 30 

• Th is graph  shows that 20% of a l l  l l rd grade students i n  N D  schoo ls  ca n not read at bas ic leve l s  
a nd  a nother 36% a re on ly part ia l ly p rofic ient .  By  1 1th grade, 53% of  ND  students have not 
reached a profic ient leve l .  This i s  ove r ½ of a l l  students in ou r  pub l ic schoo ls .  



• A second sou rce is data from the Nat iona l  Assessment of Ed ucat i ona l  Progress ( NAEP ) .  A l l  
students i n  ND  ta ke th i s  test in read i ng i n  4th a nd  8th grade .  As  you ca n see  from th i s  nat ion a l  
d ata, ou r  sco res a re even worse t h an  t h e  state d ata reflects . S ixty-s ix percent of 4th grade  
students i n  ND  a re read i ng be low profic ient leve ls .  

• 4th grade scores a re s ign ificant ly (-3 pts) lower t h an  the nat ion a l  ave rage . 

GRADE 4 READING 

Per cent.1g1t below &$IC. p,?1c1tntdg� at B�:.i::. percenwge �t Pror,c,�nt J:l'l"f(ent.ig.c <1l AdVdr>t.•!d. pe,�.,wge .ii or obO'it' !'rohc Cnt Jn(J d�t'rdge 
�ca1e scores or gr�de a readrrtg. try Al l S! wdems [ IOIALI ana Jur rsd1r on i 99l. 9911. 1 9%. 2o:>:l. 2001. 2003, zoos. 1001. 2009, )D . 10 , 3, IO l S. 
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• Not a l l  66% o r  73,734 students read i ng be low profic ient leve l s  h ave dys lexia . Acco rd ing to 
known i nc idence rates, however, a bo ut 13,500 of them l i ke ly do  have dyslexia a nd  they a re not 
being ident ified and  therefo re not ta ught correct ly .  

U .S . Depa rtment of Ed ucat ion, I n stitute of Ed ucat ion  Sc iences, Nat iona l  Center for Ed ucat ion Statist ics, 
N at iona l  Assessment of Ed ucat ion a l  Progress (NAEP), 2017 Read i ng Assessment .  
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A.  Worthwh i l e  to po i nt ou t  tha t  we a re o ne  of o n ly 8 states w i th  no  dys l ex i a  
l eg i s l a t i on  

B .  Crede nt i a l fo r dys lex i a  - as  of J a n ua ry 1 ,  2019  a tea c h e r  ca n become  a 
s pec i a l  ed ucat i o n  teache r  w i th  1 cou rse  i n  a ssess m e nt of rea d i ng d i ff i c u l t i es  a n d  1 
cou rse i n  treat i ng  rea d i ng d iffi c u l t i e s . 

C .  "Offe r i ng  sc ree n i ng" a n d  n ot i fy pa re nts of  t he  res u l ts 
1 .  The pu rpose of a scree n i ng i s  to sepa rate students that need add it i o n a l  
assessment from those that do  not 
2 .  As the b i l l  is cu rre nt ly wr itten ,  schoo l s  wi l l  screen  fo r dys l ex i a  a n d  s im p ly 
not ify pa rents . Then what? Are we not then req u i red to p rovide  assessment? H ow 
wi l l  we assess? And after the  assessment, what serv i ces wi l l  be p rovi ded ? 
3 .  2 2  othe r  states cu rrent ly mandate dys l ex ia  screen i ng a n d  a n other  13  
states a re cu rrently cons i de ri ng l aws. 

D .  Approp r i ate ev i de nce-based i ns t ruct i on  m ust b e  i n c l u d ed  i n  t he  b i l l .  
1 .  We know that c h i l d ren  with dys l ex i a  n eed systemat i c, m u lt i -sensory, 
phonem i c  based i n struct io n .  I t  works a n d  othe r  a p p roaches do not .  
2 .  The re a re a n u m ber  of p rogra ms that meet these req u i rements . 

Pokorn i ,  J . , Worth ington, C. ,  & J a mison,  P .  (2004) .  Phono logica l awa ren ess i ntervention :  
Com p a rison of Fast ForWord, Ea rob ics a n d  U PS .  Journal of Educational Research, 97  
{3 ) : 147-158 .  

S imos, P . G . , F letcher, J . , Bergman, E . ,  Bre ier,J . ,  Foorman ,  B . ,  Cast i l l o, E . ,  Dav is ,  R . ,  F itzgera ld ,  M . , 
& Papan ico laou,  A. ( 2002 ) .  Dys lex ia-specif ic b ra i n  act ivat ion p rofi l e  becomes norma l  
fo l lowi ng  successfu l remedia l t ra i n i ng .  Neurology, 58  {8 ) : 1 203-1212 .  

Torgesen, J . , Alexa nder, A. , Wagner, R. ,  Rashotte, C . ,  Voe l l e r, K . ,& Conway, T .  (2001 ) .  I ntens ive remed i a l  
i nstruction  for ch i l d ren  with severe read i ng d isab i l it ies : Immed iate a nd long-te rm outcomes 
from two instructiona l approaches .  Journal of Learning Disabilities, 34( 1 ) :  33-58.  

E . Tra i n i ng 
1 .  It i s  evi dent that i n  N D, there i s  l ack  of u nde rsta nd i n g  o n  the  natu re a n d  
et i o l ogy of dys lexi a .  Ev i dence a l so suggests that tra i n i ng a l l  tea che rs i n  dys lex ia  
he l ps red uce the n umber  of students need i ng spec i a l i zed i n st ruct i o n .  
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A. I t  i s  d i ffi c u l t  to u n de rsta nd  why a nyone  i nvested i n  ed u cat i ng  c h i l d re n  i n  N D  

wou l d  oppose t h i s  b i l l .  I d o  be l i eve, howeve r, t h a t  t he  l a c k  of u n de rsta n d i ng l e a d s  

ed ucat i ona l l ea d e rs a n d  tea che rs t o  th i n k  t ha t  t hey a re a l rea dy do i ng  what  t h e  b i l l  

s u ggests . 

1 .  Screen i ng - Many schoo l s  a l ready screen ea r ly l i te ra cy .  These screen i ng 
too l s  a re not spec ifi c  a nd i n c l u de  tasks such  as  n am i ng uppe r  a n d  l ower case 
l ette rs .  N e i the r  of these tasks a re a pp rop riate o r  cons i de red evi dence-based fo r 
screen i ng dys l ex i a .  I cha l l enge a nyone oppos i ng  the  screen i ng mandate to n ame  
even o n e  evi dence-based dys l ex i a  screen i ng too l .  
2 .  The s ame  poi n t  ca n b e  made  a bout a ssessment .  Schoo l s  do  not cu rre nt ly  
engage in  d iffe rent i a l  d i agnos i s  of rea d i ng d i so rde rs .  Students st rugg l e  with 
read i ng fo r d iffe rent reasons .  I ntervent ion  s hou l d  be des igned to meet those 
i dent ifi ed defi c i ts .  The Comp rehens i ve Test of P hono l og ica l P rocess i ng  (CTOPP }  is 
a com mon ly used assessment too l to d i agnose dys l ex i a .  I do  not know of a s i ng l e  
schoo l  d i str ict that owns th i s  assessment  too l .  
3 .  Accord i ng to t h e  Every Student  Succeeds Act, schoo l s  a re req u i red to 
provide  evi dence-based i n struct i on  to i m p rove student  outcomes .  Schoo l s  a re not 
provi d i ng evi dence-based i n struct ion  fo r c h i l d ren  with dys l ex i a .  
Some exam ples o f  progra ms that a re be ing used as  evidence-based read i ng i nstruct ion :  

1 .  Read ing Recove ry - th i s  progra m was not des igned for students with read i ng 
d i sa b i l it ies or  dyslexia accord ing to M a rie C lay, the deve loper  of Read i ng Recovery 

2 .  Read 180- no evidence tha t  it l eads  to i m p roved read i ng i n  students with read i ng 
d isa b i l ity or  dys lexia 

3 .  Fast ForWord- a study shows that students made the  sa me amount of ga i n s  i n  
l i teracy afte r us ing Fast Fo rWord as  students w h o  p layed v ideo ga mes fo r t h e  same 
a mount of t ime .  

4. La ngauge ! - students showed no ga ins  after a yea r  of instruct io n  

4.  The  M u lt i -t iered Support System ( MTSS} des i gn  i s  h u rt i ng, not h e l p i ng 
these c h i l d ren  because we a re not spend i ng the  t ime  to d i agnose dys l ex i a .  



Testimony to the 

Senate Education Committee 

P repa red Ma rch 18, 2019 

By Rache l l e  Ka ne, Pa rent 

Regarding: SB 1461 

Than k  you Cha i rman Scha ib le  and members of the committee. It is an honor to be here this morn i ng 
a nd to have the opportun ity to provide test imony on  Senate B i l l  1461 .  

My  name i s  Rache l l e  Kane and  I a m  a pa rent o f  a da ughter with dyslexia .  My daughter Ava i s  a perfect 
exampl e  of how important ea rly screen i ng a nd  proper  Orton-G i l l i ngh am instruct ion is to these students. 

I began to see my daughter strugg le with read i ng in the m idd le  of fi rst g rade .  I went to her teache r and  
she  suggested we just work ha rder  a t  s ight words and  i ncrease ou r  read i ng t ime .  We d id  th is b ut my 
da ughter continued to  strugg le .  I found a t utor that j ust happened to  be OG tra i ned and  knew the s igns 
of dyslexia .  After a few weeks of worki ng with Ava, she had concerns and suggested we have her 
screened for dyslexia .  Knowing th is was someth ing that ra n i n  our fam i ly, we o pted to do the fu l l  
eva l uation right away. I n  the fa l l  of her second  grade yea r, m y  da ughter was found  t o  b e  dys lexic . 

The next part of our jou rney was to go to the school and seek he l p  with some accommodations Ava 
m ight need in the classroom. My fi rst meeting  was with the schoo l i ntervention team .  Some of the  
membe rs on  the  team were not on  boa rd w i th  what  I was  try ing to  do for my daughter .  They tr ied to 
d iscredit the eva l uation and i nformation I was p rovid ing  the team .  This was a very tough meeting. The 
team to l d  me they wou l d  have to "wait a nd  see" and perhaps ca l l  a nother  meeting  in a few months if 
Ava conti nued to struggle .  Thei r  a pproach was to let my daughter fa l l  fu rther  beh ind  and  then 
imp lement a p l an  to he lp  her .  A few months late r, Ava's teacher  began to see that  she was i ndeed 
strugg l i ng to keep u p  and  read  at grade leve l .  The teacher was ab le to convince the team to meet aga i n  
fo r a second t ime. At th is meeting, I was met with l ess resistance. The  team seemed more 
u nderstand ing .  Ava had a 504 p l an  set u p  for her  that day. Every yea r we now meet with the schoo l  
staff at the beginn ing of  the yea r  a nd discuss Ava's p rogress and  any new concerns. We have been l ucky 
that the team at my daughter's school has been so wonderfu l .  Many other ch i l d ren  in ou r  d i str ict a re 
not so l ucky. 

Every pa rent of a dyslexic ch i l d, i n  th is room,  has had to fight for a ppro priate educat ion and  
accommodations for the i r  ch i l d .  This shou l d  not  have to  happen .  Many parents fee l  overwhe lmed and  
don't know what to  do and  a re left fee l i ng he l p l ess when  they a re to l d  there is noth i ng the  school can 
do for the i r  ch i ld .  We have been to ld "dys lex ia is not a rea l th i ng" and ou r  k ids "a ren't do ing bad ly 
enough" to wa rrant a ny type of he l p  in schoo l .  

As o f  right now, the on ly tutor ing ava i l ab le  t o  a dys lex ia ch i l d  i s  through p rivate tutor ing .  This has 
p roven to be very effective but the fina nc ia l bu rden on fam i l ies can sometimes be too great .  Extra 
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tutor ing ca n sometimes take away from the student's a b i l ity to partici pate i n  extracu rricu l a r  activit ies 
a nd just fee l  l i ke a norma l kid . I th ink  putti ng the tuto ri ng in the schoo ls  wou ld  a lso he l p  kids identify 
with k ids j ust l i ke them. This wou ld  i ncrease the i r  confidence a nd  support a pos itive se lf-esteem .  

My daughter wi l l  be  head ing off to  midd le  schoo l  t h i s  fa l l .  Aga i n, I w i l l  fi nd  myself a dvocating for he r  
a nd  gett ing the  appropriate learn ing accommodat ions she w i l l  need  to  be  successfu l .  I ca n o n ly hope 
the schoo l  wi l l  be receptive to the i nfo rmat ion I p rovide .  The one  th ing I am certa i n  of is that Ava w i l l  be 
ab le  to tack le anyth i ng that comes her way. Because we were a b le  to identify her  p rob lem ea rly, it has 
he l ped Ava become a very confident you ng l ady. Dyslexia i s  a part of who she is and we emb race it . 

I hope you u nderstand how impo rtant Senate B i l l  1461 i s  to the futu re of our ch i l d ren .  We need to 
identify ch i l d ren with dys lexia ea rly and offer the research based i nterventions that w i l l  h e l p  them be 
successfu l .  Every chi ld deserves an appropriate educati on .  Senate B i l l  1461 wou l d  he l p  make th i s  a 
rea l ity. 

Than k  you fo r your  time, 

Rache l l e  Kane, Parent 

rache l l e ka ne@hotma i l .com 
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Regarding: SB 1461 

Thank  you Cha i rman  Scha ib le  and Committee Members for the opport u n ity to speak to you a bout  
Senate B i l l  1461. 

My name is Ava Ka ne .  I am a fifth grader at L iberty E lementa ry Schoo l .  I was d iagnosed with Dys lex ia at 
the begi n n ing of second grade .  Read ing a nd  spe l l i ng  was ha rd for me. I wou ld  often guess at words 
because I had a hard t ime sound ing them o ut .  I t  wou l d  ta ke me a long t ime to read a book. I a l so found  
it ha rd to  read  ou t  l o ud  beca use I wasn't su re o f  t he  words. 

I sta rted go ing to I nsp i r ing M i nds for tutor i ng .  My tutor, Pam, ta ught me  spe l l i ng ru les to he l p  me 
remembe r  the words and how to spe l l  them correct ly . Pam makes l ea rn ing  fun for me and I l ove how 
m uch  better I am gett ing at read ing. I can now read rea l ly we l l  a nd am proud  of how much  my test 
scores have gone up. My read ing fl uency i s  sti l l  a cha l l enge but it i s  gett ing better tha nks to Pam a nd my 
teachers .  

What  I want  you to know is that  everyone i s  u n i q ue and  we a l l  lea rn d iffe rent ly .  Dys lexia is a l ea rn ing  
d i ffe rence .  Schoo ls  shou ld  be supporti ng k ids  l i ke me i n  givi ng  us the a ppropr iate teach ing we need at  
schoo l .  I go to tutor ing twice a week. Some  days I fee l  l i ke my bra i n  is fried .  I t  wou l d  be so great to 
have the help I need i n  school  so that I don't fee l  so t i red .  

Because of the he lp I have received, i t  has he l ped  me to do great th i ngs. I rea l lywa nt you to pass th is  
b i l l  so that other k ids can get the he lp t hey need .  Everyone shou ld have the  chance to be successfu l in  
schoo l  and fee l  good about  who they t ru ly a re .  

Thank  You 

Ava Ka ne, 5th grader 
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When Coridon sta rted preschool at the age of 3 .5, I began to notice subt le d ifferences com pa red to his peers. Coridon 

ou ldn't recogn ize his name for check- in because i t  took h im longer to learn how to reca l l  letters, spe l l, and write h i s  

me .  H is  teacher commented on how she cou ldn't understand h im, so h is  speech was eva l uated . He spent a yea r a nd 

a lf i n  speech therapy. Then at the age of 4.5, p re-K was more structu red with lessons to be com pleted at the ir  ta b le 

spot, h is behavioral issues became more apparent. I nstead of wanting to s it  a nd do the assignments, he acted out .  

Sea rch ing for he lp, I read mommy biogs, va ries pa renting styles, and how to d iscip l i ne a spi rited ch i ld ,  but nothing 

seemed to he lp .  The stricter I was, the more he rebe l led . I wou ld constantly ask myself, is th is deve lopmenta l, is th is 

behavior norma l, a nd can he even hear h is teachers? Sea rch ing for the cause of his behavior, I even had h i s  hear ing 

eva luated, which came back norma l .  I kept a n  open dia logue with is teachers, trusting i n  the ir professiona l  op in ion .  

The phone ca l l s  from school d i rectors, teachers, a nd the office secreta ries began in  pre-K a nd contin ued through fi rst 

grade .  My son is bright, inquisitive, and enjoys conversation; yet, I wou ld rece ive ca l l s  a bout h is behavior, defiance, and 

being off-task. With each ca l l, I grew more frustrated .  The labels, such as  "bad" or "naughty" qu ick ly started i n  pre-K and 

contin ued through Kinderga rten, and I cou ld te l l  it affected h is  self-esteem because he began to bel ieve those fa lse 

l abe ls .  Each pa rent-teach conference went the same as the one before, Coridon  is bright, but he has troub le  focusing, 

l i sten ing, and he is behind on letters, numbers, and  the l i st went on .  The on ly positive I wou ld c l i ng to is that every 

teacher a lways said how incred ib ly empathetic a nd he lpfu l he was to h i s  friends. He wou ld be the fi rst to conso le  a 

friend .  After h is fi rst parent-teacher conference i n  k inderga rten, the ach ievement gap between Coridon a nd the majority 

of h is peers was evident. He was beh ind on sight words, s low to recognize a nd reca l l  letters a nd some n umbers too .  I 

spent thousa nds of do l lars trying to get h im caught up  at Sylvan .  We practiced da i ly us ing flashcards .  We read the take­

home books weekly. But read ing became a dreaded battle, we a rgued a nd negotiated .  Sight words were cha l lenging 

because he wou ld memorize the order of the words i nstead of lea rn ing how to recogn ize the spel led words.  My son was 
· 

p ly not getting it ! 

I struggled for answers, I 've read to h im since he was a n  infa nt .  I fe lt as  if we were both sin king, me with pa renting a nd 

h im academica l ly, and by the end of k indergarten, we were both exhausted .  He continued tutor ing fou r  days per week 

through summer vacation .  He made l itt le to no progress. Coridon sta rted fi rst grade at a beginner k inderga rten read ing 

leve l, it broke my hea rt. I spent many n ights crying a nd worrying a bout my son's psycho logica l deve lopment, socia l  

deve lopment a nd academic ach ievement. F ina l ly, a month i nto fi rst grade, h is teacher recommended that  I take h im to 

get tested at I nsp iring Minds. She told me i t  wou ld be a n  out-of-pocket expense, but i t  wou ld be a game changer for 

h im .  She was very cautious to even mention the word "dyslexia" to me .  I immed iately contacted I nsp i ring M i nds a nd the 

process fe lt l i ke an etern ity. We wa ited over a month for test ing, a nother month for resu lts, a nd then a nother month for 

tutoring to begin .  

After 3 . 5  yea rs o f  watch ing my  son struggle, Coridon was d iagnosed with dyslexia . I n it ia l ly, I cried for 3 days a nd was 

angry that it took this long. I fe lt l i ke k inderga rten was a wasted yea r because he was being forced to learn to read using 

an  inappropriate read ing system that has been scientifica l ly proven not to work for ch i ldre n  with dyslexia .  I fe lt l i ke I 

fa i led my son .  I fe lt his teachers a nd the school system fa i led h im .  As I learned about dyslexia, I rea l ized that for 3 . 5  

yea rs, Coridon demonstrated classic ea rly wa rn ing signs for a student a t  risk for dyslexia .  I f  teachers were educated on  

dyslexia, perhaps Coridon's struggles wou ld have been a l l eviated with ea rly screen ing a nd identification .  I f  read ing was 

i ntroduced to him using the Orton-G i l l i ngham a pproach, how d ifferent wou ld k inderga rten have been for h im? We 

cannot dispute the resea rch, the evidence based i nterventions, and the federa l  law that recognizes dyslexia as  a learn ing 

·sab i l ity. We m ust look at what other states have accompl ished and recogn ize this as a n  opportunity to do what is right 

r our ch i ldren a nd educators in  North Dakota by vot ing to pass Senate B i l l-1461 .  
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M y  name i s  Chante l l e  Ha nsen a n d  I am the d i recto r o f  the Read i ng Thera py Center, I nc . ,  l ocated i n  the 
Fa rgo/Moorhead a rea . Our  students rep resent va r ious school  d i stri cts i n  North Da kota , a s  we l l  a s  
va ryi ng ages from k inderga rten through ea rly-a d u lt .  

I want to pose a q uest ion to you th i s  morn ing .  Do you know someone who strugg les  to read ?  Chances 
a re you do- it cou ld  be a son o r  da ughte r, mother  or  fa ther, cous in, a u nt or  u n c le,  frie nd,  or  co l l eague .  

However, it i s  not someth ing we often ta l k  a bout, beca use there seems  to be a stigma  attached to it .  A 
st igm a  attached to the word dys lex ia .  

Med ica l resea rch, i n  the a rea of l ite racy, h a s  probed i nto the ca use a nd the i nc ide nce of dys lex ia .  We,  in  
educat ion,  need to be knowledgeab le  i n  these truths a nd cogn i za nt of the fact that dys lex ia  ca n be 
treated . We i n  ed ucat ion ca n not be re l u cta nt to emb race the resea rch that has  been conducted .  House 
B i l l  1461 i s  a sta rt i n  the r ight d i rection to add ress this with a so l ut ion .  

Ove r the past sixteen yea rs, I have had the opportun ity to witness fi rst-ha nd ,  both the strugg les  a n d  
tri u m phs of students with dys lexia . I have h a d  the opportun ity to wa l k  bes ide fam i l ies a s  they strive to 
do a l l  they ca n to he l p  the i r  ch i l d . I have a l so sat with c l a ssroom teachers who see the i r  students 
strugg l i ng, wonderi ng how to best suppo rt t he m .  Pe rsona l ly, I h ave wa l ked th i s  path a s  a pa rent, 
st riv ing for advocacy for my ch i l d ren  and  opport un it ies for true remed ia ti on .  

Si nce the 1970's  there has  been s ign ifi ca nt g rowth i n  the u ndersta nd i ng o f  l ite ra cy .  Decades  o f  resea rch 
have led to specific ski l l s  being identified,  such as phono log ica l awa reness, a n d  te rms redefi ned,  such a s  
dyslexi a .  I n  t he  l a te 20th  century, neurosc ient ists bega n to  determ ine  t he  neu ra l  pathways a nd  cogn it ive 
fu nctions  that i nfl uence read i ng deve lopment .  Dys lexia, by defi n it ion ,  i s  a d i sa b i l i ty that i s  
neu rob io log ica l  i n  nature .  At i ts  very core, ch i l d ren  a nd a d u lts with dys lex ia  a re un ab l e  to u nde rsta nd  
a nd perce ive syl l a b les a nd phonemes i n  spoken  words  with ease, wh i c h  i s  te rmed wea k  phono log ica l 
awa reness ski l l .  Th is leads  to d ifficu lty with read i ng and  spe l l i ng .  

Wh i l e  decades of resea rch have l ed  to g reater awa reness o f  dys lex ia ,  a nd  deeper u nde rsta nd i ng o f  its 
ca use, socia l myths conti nue to be preva l ent even with i n  ou r  schoo l s .  The need for teacher  a n d  
adm i n istrative tra i n i ngs i s  i m perative . Without p roper awa reness, a strugg l i ng fi rst-g rader  ca n become a 
n i nth-grader  who has  given up  on school  a nd themse lves .  I hea r  stor ies of teachers a nd  a dm i n istrat ion 
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i nte l l igence a nd l a ck of ab i l ity. The need fo r u ndersta nd i ng i s  v ita l ,  the need for awa reness is great .  

Study after study confi rms  that students "at-r i sk" in K inderga rten cont i n ue to be in the lower ra n ks of 
read i ng ach ievement a s  they move through th i rd g rade .  Dys lex ia does not go away on  its own .  
Accu rate i nformat ion m ust be faci l itated th roughout  ND schoo l s  a nd  g iven to pa rents . Th i s  does n ot 
mean  a h a lf-day tra i n i ng on dys lexia, but rather  a cont i nued effort to focus o n  th i s  i s sue th roughout 
each schoo l  yea r. Tra i n ing to identify ea r ly warn ing  s igns, l i sten i ng to pa renta l concerns ,  a nd 
understa nd ing  what dys lexia i s  - from both a n  ed ucati o n a l  a nd med ica l sta ndpo in t  - a ppea rs to be vita l .  

Wh i l e  ea rly identificat ion i s  key, as  noted i n  House B i l l  1461, act ions  taken afte r a student i s  identified 
ca n be cr it ica l .  Accord i ng to Dr. Sa l ly Shaywitz, a l ea d i ng resea rche r i n  the a rea of dys lex ia ,  neu ra l  
system s  fo r read i ng a re ma l l ea b le a nd respond to effective i nte rventi o n .  P re a nd post b ra i n  imag ing  
sca ns  after specific  i nte rvent ion, us ing fM R I  techno logy, conti n ue to demonstrate i nc reased a ctivat ion  i n  
the neu ra l  systems  for read i ng .  Th i s  s im p ly states what  we see eve ry day  i n  ou r  office, hope .  The re i s  
hope  beca use with t he  correct i ntervent ion,  dys lex ia ca n be  remed iated . The re i s  hope  beca use 
cogn i t ive cha nges ca n occur, students ca n lea rn  to read  with g reate r ea se, a nd students ca n tu rn  the i r  
frustrati ons  i nto confidence.  However, th i s  hope and  confidence ca n on l y  come from awa reness a nd 
proper tra i n i ng .  

The type of  i nte rvent ion, a s  we l l  a s  the  i ntens i ty, i s  impe rative i n  add ress ing dys lexi a .  Howeve r, even a 
resea rch-based progra m ca n be taught i n co rrect ly .  Even with the best of i ntent ions, teachers ca n 
provide  i nadeq uate i n struct ion .  That i s  why tra i n i ng and  knowledge a re so importa nt .  House B i l l  1461 
str ives to address th is issue. I t  strives to beg i n  prov id ing both students a nd teachers with the 
i nformat ion they need. 

Dys lex ia ca n be seen th rough d ifferent l en ses, whether it be ed ucati ona l ,  med ica l ,  o r  person a l .  The 
term itse lf ca n br ing a bout a fee l i ng of defeat .  I t  ca n b ri ng ch i l d ren  to tea rs a nd  pa rents to despa i r . I 
have seen th i s  ove r and  over  s i nce beg i n n i ng my work i n  2004. Howeve r, I have a l so seen  immense joy 
when the r ight i ntervent ion i s  im p lemented, a nd students fee l a ccom p l i sh ment .  I have seen  confidence 
soa r a nd d reams become rea l ity. This i s  what House B i l l  1461 i s  t ry i ng to ach ieve . I t  i s  t ryi ng to ta ke 
away the fea r  and  st igma of dyslexia, a nd  in turn rep l ace it with understa nd i ng, t ra i n i ng, a nd educati o n .  

Chonte l l e  Han sen  

Di rector/ I n structor, Read ing  Therapy Center, I nc .  
B .S . ,  Speci a l  Educat ion, Specific Lea rn ing D i sa b i l it ies; M i nnesota State U n ive rsity Moorhead 
M .S . ,  Speci a l  Ed ucat ion;  M i n nesota Sta te U n iversity Moorhead 
Expe r ience :  Teach i ng i n  the fie ld  of dys lex ia  s i nce 2004 
Thes i s  top ic :  Early Identification and Intervention within a Kindergarten Setting 
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Thank you, Chairman Schaible and members o f  the committee. My name is 
Nicole Leininger I am more than happy to testify in support of House Bill 1461 .  It is 
my hope that through my testimony and the testimonies of others who are here to 
share their stories and expertise that the committee will understand that dyslexia is 
unlike any other learning disability and with the appropriate interventions a 
dyslexic student can have the most profound improvement in spelling, reading and 
writing. In turn, these interventions will raise self-esteem, confidence and provide a 
dyslexic student with a bright outlook to his future. I can say this with certainty 
because I have experienced this amazing transformation with my own son. My 
youngest son graduated from Century High School in 2 0 18 ,  I have no reason to be 
here except I don't want any other student to go through what he did. Through my 
testimony, I will describe what school was like for an undiagnosed dyslexic child 
and the life altering outcomes that could be prevented if we screened students for 
dyslexia and had resources for our teachers when the obvious signs of  dyslexia 
surface. 

I feel our son had very caring teachers, from Kindergarten through 2nd grade 
each of his teachers made a point to inform us of his difficulties with learning his 
letters, the sounds of the letters and memorizing sight words. His 2nd grade teacher 
took the time to write an in-depth letter stressing her concerns with his speed of 
reading. He was reading 32 words/minute at a stage he should have been reading 
55 words/minute. I would personally spend time helping him every night. It always 
amazed me that the words he spelled correctly at home the night before a spelling 
test were the same ones he spelt wrong on the test. He would often spell words 
without vowels. I remember routinely asking him, "does that even look like a word?" 
He would often use capital B and D in the middle of words or use small b and d 
incorrectly. He had no rhyme or reason to which words in a sentence he would 
capitalize. Listening to him read was, to be honest, painful. He would often replace 
a difficult word with a simpler one that began with the same letter. For example, 
turtle would be read as tank. 

Due to his misunderstood challenges and the large class sizes, we transferred 
him to a small private school with hopes he would "catch up" to students his same 
age. His math and science skills were far superior to anyone his age, but anything 
related to spelling, writing and reading was a struggle . 

About two months into his first year at his new school his 3 rd grade teacher 
suggested we have him tested for ADHD. Her reasoning for the testing was, --+ 
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is a bright boy but is having difficulty reading/ decoding words and in written 
expression." Think through that . . .  Difficulty reading/ decoding words and in written 
expression, what part of that sounds like Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder? ! 
In 2 008, this caring and concerned teacher knew something wasn't quite right, his 
problems with spelling, reading and written expression didn't match his intelligence 
level seen in all other areas, yet there was no other options for help. I was glad that 
she cared enough about my son to suggest testing and we felt it was worth a try 
since we were aware that these have been ongoing issues. His testing showed "mild 
ADHD" .  When I inquired about his poor spelling results, I was told that spelling was 
not a disability. At the time I told the testing committee that I didn't want him 
labeled with a disability but I was concerned that his spelling was so horrendous it 
had to affect his writing, reading and reading comprehension if nothing else. There 
were no suggestions offered accept to spend more time on spelling words. He was 
put on medication for his ADHD diagnosis . H is grades did improve so we felt we 
were headed in the right direction at least. I have always been a "hands on" mother 
and have respected his teachers and appreciated their insight on my son since they 
were with him seven hours a day. But, knowing what I know now, I would do 
anything to go back in time. A wrong diagnosis is worse than no diagnosis and his 
ADHD diagnosis proved to nearly be a disastrous one.  

Fast forward to 9th grade .  His grades began to drop; within a month into the 
school year he was failing Spanish miserably. He was no longer the outgoing, happy 
go lucky kid he used to be. Concerned, we started doctoring with the thought that 
maybe his medication wasn't as effective due to puberty. He was put on multiple 
different meds, all which made him sick in one way or another. We even doctored at 
the Mayo Clinic in Rochester hoping the doctors there could provide some insight; 
we came home empty handed. Eventually he was withdrawn from Spanish and 
placed in CTRE, a tutor-centered study hall. He took himself off his medication; he 
was fed up with the way it made him feel depressed and he was struggling 
academically on his medication so why take it. My son, who was an extremely 
intelligent kid, was spiraling downwards. The same kid who built, programmed and 
flew drones via FPV goggles (first person view) , made a hydrogen generator for a 
class proj ect and assembled his own computer, couldn't get acceptable grades in 
many of his classes. With my son's permission, I made contact with his counselor 
and all of his teachers. I let them know the struggles he was going through and 
asked if there was any extra credit he could complete or if he could be given a 
second chance to turn in missed assignments. I asked if any of them had any 
suggestions, I offered to purchase study materials or extra resources that I would 
donate to the school for others to use. Some of his teachers were very kind and 
understanding, others felt I was an overprotective mother making excuses for my 
kid .  A couple suggested he j ust needed to apply himself and try harder. None of 
them had any helpful suggestions. I was truly at my wits end. I couldn't put my 
finger on it, but I wasn't going to let my kid feel like a failure or think he wasn't 
smart. His self-esteem at this point was so far gone; I didn't know what his future 
would hold. 
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Near the beginning of my son's sophomore year his counselor spoke to him 
about various two-year programs and kindly expressed the fact that college isn't for 
everyone. What his counselor didn't know at the time is that my son has wanted to 
be a pilot since he was six years old. To add insult to injury, six months after he quit 
his ADHD medication he learned that the medication he was on was considered a 
"no fly" medication. This meant that simply because he was once on the medication 
the FAA would not allow him to obtain his pt Class Airmen Medical Card, without 
completing a long list of requirements. Even after completing the requirements, 
issuance is not a guarantee. A 1 st class medical card is required for anyone who 
plans to become an Airline Transport Pilot (ATP) . It was j ust one more punch in the 
gut for a kid who was already barely hanging on. 

I spent hours researching without any idea of what I was really looking for. I 
just knew there had to be a piece of the puzzle I was missing. I knew how much my 
kid cared about his grades and I was well aware of his intelligence level . At this 
point he felt as if his teachers looked down on him. He floundered and simply 
accepted his poor grades as being the best he could do .  I felt helpless, I felt like a 
failure, it was so disheartening to watch my son continue to become an introvert 
and lose the excitement for the world around him that he once had. A very 
unexpected phone call from a good friend from Minnesota was the beginning to an 
amazing life-changing turn around. She had just had her daughter screened for 
dyslexia. I asked a million questions and asked if I could read the reports from the 
screener once she had them. I felt confident that I had finally found the missing 
piece to the puzzle !  I asked everyone I knew if they were aware of anyone who could 
screen for dyslexia in Bismarck. All responded with the same blank stare. By the 
grace of God, an internet search brought up Alysia Budd with Inspiring Minds 
Center. Within a week his screening was scheduled and shortly after that his results 
proved that all his academic struggles had most l ikely been due to him being 
dyslexic. His kindergarten through 2nd grade teachers concerns about letters and 
their sounds and sight words - all signs of dyslexia. His 2nd grade teachers concern of 
his slow reading - dyslexia! His 3 rd grade teachers concerns with reading/decoding 
words and written expression - dyslexia !  Horrendously failing Spanish as a 
freshman - classic sign of dyslexia !  A dyslexic student struggles with English, there's 
no chance he can succeed with a foreign language. Most recently and I quote, "it was 
noted that the student had a couple of "b/d" letter reversals within his writing, as 
well as printed capital and lower-case letters, used interchangeably, not necessarily 
appropriately" . All which are significant signs of dyslexia !  This most recent 
statement came from the examiner of  the KTEA-3, otherwise known as The 
Kaufman Test of Educational Achievement, an assessment tool used by Bismarck 
Public School System to determine if a student qualifies for special education 
services. This assessment tool was completed at the end of my son's sophomore 
year, just prior to us meeting to develop his 504 plan. All of the these signs of 
dyslexia have followed him his entire academic career, yet not one teacher has 
suggested he showed signs of dyslexia or even questioned that he may have a 
learning disability. I have attached the actual KTEA-3 assessment tool report so that 
you can see that a typical dyslexic student does not register as needing special 
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education services, but they do require dyslexic specific services as evidenced by the 
examiners report. 

I brought my son's dyslexia screening report from Inspiring Minds Center to 
the school and I was told that without a diagnosis there was not much they could do. 
It was suggested by them that we develop a 504 plan based on his ADHD diagnosis . I 
explained that his dyslexia screening pretty much proved that his ADHD was an 
incorrect diagnosis .  But, with no other options to obtain some kind of help, we 
agreed to use the ADHD diagnosis as a reason for a 504 plan. While sitting in the 
planning meeting, it was very obvious how little the school system understood 
dyslexia. One of the team members in place to help my son asked if he knew how to 
use a computer. She went on to ask if he would be able to make the corrections 
necessary to a paper if someone wrote them in. She was confident that if he did that 
he would learn how to make his own corrections eventually. A dyslexic person can 
copy anything, what they don't understand is "why". Why is the comma where it is? 
Why is a period where it is? Why is phone not spelt f-o-n-e? Also, for someone like 
my son, taking notes while listening is nearly impossible, so it was suggested by 
Alysia that he be  given printed off notes at the beginning of class so that he could 
add to the notes while mainly focusing on what the teacher was lecturing about. The 
schools answer to that was my son must ask for printed notes so that he learns to 
"be his own advocate" .  My kid had already been through hell; he tried asking, and 
not one teacher had notes ready to give him. He was welcomed to get them after 
class- this totally defeated the purpose of printed-off notes. The school suggested he 
be placed in the front of the class to help with distractions (keep in mind his 504 
plan was designed using h is  incorrect ADHD diagnosis) . Distractions weren't an 
issue of his, having teachers quickly announce an assignment and when it was due 
as the bell rang was an issue. Part of his 504 plan was to receive printed 
assignments with due dates. This didn't happen either. I am not saying he had bad 
teachers, many of them were very kind to him and once the 504 plan was in place 
several would ask him how things were going and if he had any questions.  It brought 
tears to my eyes the day he told me that, "if nothing else changes, I have realized 
that my teachers really do care about me." What the teachers and the school don't 
understand is what dyslexia looks like, or how to help a dyslexic student, or the 
challenges that a dyslexic student faces everyday. Especially, one who is almost 17  
and i s  just learning about his own new reality. Thankfully, j ust knowing there was a 
reason for his academic struggles was enough to begin to see positive changes in my 
son. 

He began Orton-Gillingham based tutoring with Alysia Budd at the Inspiring 
Minds Center, twice a week for an hour each time in June of 2 0 16 .  I was slowly 
getting my son back. I will never forget when I received this text from him, "I love 
you too". It was the first time every word was spelt correctly. As his tutoring 
progressed he was showing signs of confidence in his abilities again and even 
though he would never say it, I could tell he was proud of himself. His grades went 
from C's and D's  to A's and B's his senior year. I have attached a copy of his grades 
so that you can see the dramatic improvement that can occur with appropriate 
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dyslexia specific tutoring. I have also included a progress report, which was 
completed j ust seven months into his tutoring. The improvements are nothing short 
of a miracle. He  tutored with Alysia for almost 2 years and I know today he would 
not hesitate to call her for advice or help from a distance. Approximately nine 
months after he began tutoring, he began the process put forth by the FAA to obtain 
his 1 st Class Airmen Medical Certificate. He spent two full days testing with a 
neuro-psychiatrist so  he could prove to the FAA that he is cognitively and 
psychologically fit and he possesses the executive functioning skills necessary to 
safely pilot a plane full of passengers. He was required to take a 7-panel drug test to 
prove his skills were assessed without any medications or  drugs of any kind. 
Through his testing he learned his IQ is well above average at 1 14 and many of the 
multi-task based skills he scored as high or higher than Regional Commercial Pilots. 
On top of all of  this, the Psychiatrist stated in his report to the FAA that my son did 
not possess the characteristics or  testing patterns indicative of ADHD, and any 
scores that were "lower than expected" were all in areas that would correlate with 
dyslexia. I am thrilled to announce he received his pt Class Airmen Medical Card on 
April 10 ,  2 0 1 7 . I do believe everything happens for a reason, and although the level 
of stress he endured those two days of testing was more than a 1 7  year old should 
ever have to experience, the confidence and knowledge he gained through the 
process made it all worth it. Two months later he made his first solo flight. 

The final hurdle my son had to tackle was getting accepted into UND.  Due to 
his significant academic challenges; even though he received a 24 on his ACT, his 
cumulative GPA was not good enough to be accepted to the University of North 
Dakota. He had missed the minimum 2 .75  GPA needed by less than 2/l0th. His 
application was automatically kicked out. Once again he was at risk of his future 
plans of becoming a commercial pilot never becoming reality. After all he had gone 
through and all he had accomplished, this hurdle was not going to stop us. As a 
family, we met with the Dean of Admissions and my son had to explain why his 
grades were not the greatest and what he was doing to improve them. It was not 
easy for a senior in high school to admit he had a learning disability and that he had 
been receiving specialize tutoring, and due to the vast improvements he had already 
experienced he could say with confidence that he expected his grades to continue to 
improve. I am very proud to say my son earned the best grades of his life his final 
semester of high school, he earned his Private Pilots License a week after high 
school graduation and he most recently finished his first semester at UNO with a 3 .8  
GP A .  The same student who struggled to  pass the easiest of high school classes, is 
now successfully double majoring in Commercial Aviation and Unmanned Aircraft 
Systems thanks to Alysia Budd and her amazing ability to connect with and properly 
tutor dyslexic students. 

What my son went through is not okay. What other students like him are 
going through everyday is not okay. Through my testimony, I hope I have proven 
that the signs of dyslexia shine like beacons. They don't improve with repetition . 
They don't "go away" nor does a young student simply "outgrow them". Reading out 
loud to classmates will never make a dyslexic student a fluent reader. But it will 
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cause anxiety, low self-esteem and in some; behavioral issues as a way to avoid his 
or her turn. Dyslexia specific tutoring taught by a trained professional is the only 
way a dyslexic student can begin to grow and flourish academically. Good teachers 
can easily sense there is something not quite right, but without the training or 
resources they are left with little they can offer for help. There is no reason any 
student should suffer the way my son did. I am so thankful that our situation turned 
out positive, but I know how easily it could have had a totally different outcome. I 
am here because my son nearly had his lifelong aspirations taken away from him 
and it wasn't due to any poor choices he made or his lack of want and effort, it was 
simply because no one understood what he was dealing with. I was never going to 
give up on him. We were so fortunate that we found Alysia, but the students who 
don't find their Alysia's deserve the same chance to experience success. The 
profound changes experienced by my son both academically and personally, 
through his dyslexia specific tutoring from Alysia Budd at Inspiring Minds Center, is 
why I feel so strongly about House Bill 1461 .  Simply screening and offering 
appropriate dyslexia tutoring in our schools would make a world of difference to 
dyslexic students. Who knows how many dreams have already been ruined and 
futures wasted due to dyslexia not being discovered and remedied soon enough. It's 
time for North Dakota schools to step up and recognize this significant need. 

Thank you for your time and please feel free to ask any questions . 
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Kaufman Test of Educational Ach ievement, Third Ed ition 

Standard Report 

Alan S. Kaufman, PhD, & Nadeen L. Kaufman, EdD 
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Examinee ID :  
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Male 

Learning problems 
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Supplemental Composite Score Summary Profile 

Very Low 

40 

Sound-Symbol Composite ,l I I 
Phonological Processing �. 1 I I 

Nonsense Word Decoding ,: 
I I 

Decoding Composite 4 
I I 

Letter & Word Recognition l 
I I 

Nonsense Word Decoding J I 
Reading Fluency J, 

Composite : 
I 

Silent Reading Fluency 1 
I I 

Word Recognition Fluency { 
I I 

Decoding Fluency t 
I 

Reading Understanding l 
Composite l 

I 
Reading Comprehension l 

I I 
Reading Vocabulary { 

I 
I 

Oral Language Composite � 
I 
I 

Associational Fluency { 
I 
I 

Listening Comprehension { 
I 
I 

Oral Expression 1· 
I 
I 

55 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

I I I I I I I I I I 
l 
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Very High 

1 60 
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I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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I 
I 
I 
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Confidence 
Score Interval 

99 94 - 1 04 

1 20 1 1 2 - 1 28 

- - - -
- - - -

- - - -
- - -
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' . ( was administered the Kaufman Test of Educational Achievement, Third Edition (KTEA-3) over 
tvvo days in May 201 6. The KTEA-3 is a rel iable and val id assessment tool approved by the Special 
Education Department of the Bismarck Publ ic School System . ••• l academic ski l ls were assessed 
in the areas of reading and written expression .  ••• was cooperative and engaged in the various 
tests. He appeared to put forth his best effort and did not appear to exh ibit any anxiety at any point 
during the testing. The KTEA-3 was scored based on Isaac's chronological age at the time of testing 
which was 1 6  years , 1 1  months. These results appear to be a valid reflection 1./ J j I current 
academic achievement. Standard scores (SS) have an average range of 85- 1 1 5, with anything below 85 
being in the Below Average range. The Above Average range consists of standard scores from 1 1 5-1 30. 

Read ing: 
The subtest standard scores of 120 on Reading Comprehension and 99 on Letter-Word Recognition 
indicate thattl •• l comprehension skills are in  the Above Average range and his basic reading 
(sounding out) words in  isolation skills are in the Average Range. Together, these scores reflect an 
overal l  Reading Composite score of 1 10, with in  the (h igh) Average Range. When analyzing 0 
errors in comprehension, though they were few, they were with the inferential , narrative, and expository 

· ··· � question answers. f ach ieved one-mundred percent accuracy on h is  answers for the l iteral-type 
questions. 

Written Language:  
L I I standard score on the subtest of Written Expression was a 96. This test assessed lirious 
"categories" including sentence structure, word form, capital ization ,  and punctuation. ••••errors 
were more significant in the areas of capital ization and punctuation. H is  standard score indicates that his 
performance abi l ity fal ls at the high end of the Average range. The results of ••• Spelling subtest 
indicated a standard score of 91/Average range. The Written Language Composite standard score of 92 
was also within  the Average Range. It was noted that C I had a couple of "bid" letter-reversals within 
his writ ing ,  as wel l  as printed capital and lower-case letters , used interchangeably, not necessarily 
appropriately. 

Overall , the resu lts on the KTEA-3 indicate that achievement abi lities in  read ing and writing are 
well with in the Average range. His lowest SS was in the area of spell ing and h is  h ighest SS was in the 
area of reading comprehension. 

Composite/Subtest Sta ndard Scores Percenti le Ra nk  

Read ing Comprehension Subtest 120 91 

Letter-Word Recognition Subtest 99 47 

Reading Composite 1 10 75 

Written Expression S ubtest 96 39 

Spel l ing Subtest 91 27 

Written language Composite 92 30 
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Name: 
School: 
Parents: 
Address: 
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Cente r fo r Dys l ex ia and L i te racy 

Confidential Literacy Progress Report 

Date: 0 1 /24/20 1 7  
DOB: 6/1 5/99 
Age: 1 7 .7 
Grade: 1 1 th 

is a 1 7  year old male who is in the 1 1 th grade at Century High School in Bismarck, ND. He is 
active in hockey as wel l  as with hobbies such as building and designing drones, computers, and has an 
overall interest in aviation. 

Minds in June of 20 1 6  following a dyslexia screen he received in 
pril of 20 1 6  which identified as fitting the profile for dyslexia. He has been receiving Orton-

Gillingham based structured literacy instruction at a frequency of 2:x/week for 1 hour sessions. 

Progress: 
- has made excellent, consistent progress with tutoring. Interventions have been Orton-Gil lingham 

based as recommended by the International Dyslexia Association. Sessions have focused on remediation 
of phonemic awareness, symbol-sound/sound-symbol associations, and simultaneous multisensory 
instruction of reading and spelling. In addition, - has been working on skills of written expression. 

• 

Throughout tutoring, - has displayed a remarkable commitment to his own learning. He arrives on 
time and comes prepared with any materials he may need specific to his schoolwork. He has been 
willing to come to tutoring sessions on days that he is off of school, and has attended extra sessions in 
order to work on writing assignments for his English class at school .  -has also consistently 
displayed excellent attention and focus during each session that he has attended.  

In order to assess - progress, the Word Identification and Spelling Test (WIST) was 
administered. This assessment was also administered at the beginning of tutoring in June; therefore, 
results of both assessments have been reported in order to show -progress. 

The WIST is a norm-referenced tool that assesses a student's basic literacy skills in three subtests areas 
which include: word identification, spelling, and sound-symbol knowledge. 
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Results of the Word Identification and Spelling Test (WIST) for Cooper are as follows : 

Head Regu lar  Wo rcl s 

k,.oad l rregu ,a '  Words  

WOR D  IDE NTI FICATION 

Spo i l  Regu lar Wo rds 

Spe l l  l r r-egu lar Words  

SP ELLING 

FU NDAMENTAL LITERACY 
AB ILITY I N DEX 

Pseudo Words 

Letter Sounds 

SOUND-SYMBOL 
KNOWLEDGE 

Results on 06-1 5-201 6 

87 

30 

1 1 7  

57 

27 

84 

201 

32 

52 

84 

21 % 

1 4% 

1 4% 

1 %  

88 

84 

84 

65 

Results on 01 - 1 2-201 7 

98 

30 

1 28 

75 

27 

1 02 

230 

48 

87 

1 35 

63% 

37% 

45% 

73% 

1 05 

95 

98 

1 09 
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According to the results of the WIST, - has made excellent gains since beginning tutoring 7 
months ago. His skills for decoding (read�d encoding (spelling) are now within the average range. 

- made an enormous jump from the 1 st percentile at the time of beginning intervention to the 73rd 
percentile at the current time. 

- continues to work to apply the new strategies and skills he has learned, particularly with
-

ellin 
and written expression, but also when decoding multisyllabic words that are not familiar to him 
has an excellent visual memory which appears to have allowed him to memorize words. He also as an 
expansive vocabulary which aides him in comprehension of a variety of texts and genres .  

Continued areas of weakness for - include: spelling and applying suffix rules, r-controlled 
syllables, vowel-team syllables, decoding unknown multisyllabic words, and organization, syntax and 
semantics for written expression. These identified areas are precisely where - is about to begin 
within the systematic scope and sequence of instruction; therefore, it is apparent that explicit, 
systematic, multisensory instruction is highly effective for -
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is a bright student who has been actively engaged in tutoring while being able to retain what he 
has been taught from one session to another. 

It is recommended that - continue tutoring at a frequency of 2:x/week in order to continue to 
increase his independence and success with all future academic and career ambitions. This approach to 
teaching is clearly working for- but further instruction to ensure generalization of skills and 
automaticity is highly recommended. 

Tutoring sessions should continue to follow the Orton-Gillingham scope and sequence while being 
diagnostic and prescriptive to - individual needs. Tutoring should also continue to work on skills 
needed for successful written expression as this is an identified need for -

It is a pleasure to work with and teach-. If there are any questions regarding this report, please 
feel free to contact me at (70 1 )  204-7 1 00 .  

Alysia :udd,{)TRJL 
' 

Dyslexia Consultant and Screener 
Certified Handwriting Specialist 
Certified Barton Tutor 

---- ( 'ertifled in ----



CENTURY H !GH  SCHOOL TRANSCRIPT 
1 000 E .  Century Ave. Accred i t�d :, North Centra l Association 

08-001 -1 465 Bismarck, ND 58503 
(70 1 )  323-4900 

COU RSE NAME Semester 1 Semester 2 Summer 1 
17-18 Century High School 

AP Compuler Science B- 0.500 A 0.500 
AP Psychology A 0 .500 B+ 0 .500 
CTE-CTRE Serv Lrn A+ 0,500 A 0.500 
Economics A- 0 . 500 
English 1 2  8- 0.500 B 0.500 
Government 8 0.500 
PE 1 2  A 0.500 

1 6-17 Century High School 
Chemistry B- 0.500 C 0 .500 
CTE·CTRE Serv Lrn A- 0.500 A- 0.500 
English 1 1 /US History B- 0 .500 C+ 0 .500 
PE 1 1  A 0.500 
Pre-Calculus C 0.500 D 0.500 
Psychology B 0 .500 
US History/English 1 1  8- 0 .500 C+ 0.500 

1 5-1 6 Century High School 
Algebra I I  D 0 .500 C 
Biology C 0 .500 C 0.500 
Computer Prog I D 0 .500 
GTE Resource Education 8 0.500 B 0.500 
English 1 0  C 0 .500 C 0.500 
Marketing 8 Q.500 

• Markellng C 0.500 
PE 1 0  B 0.500 

H-1 5 Ccntur/ High �chocl 
CTE Resource Education C 0 .500 C 0 . 500  
English 9 D 0. 500 D 0 . 500 
Foundations of Technology B lock C 1 .000 
Geometry C 0 .500 C 0 .500 
Global Studies C 0.500 B 0 .500 
PE 9 B 0.500 
Personal Finance D 0.500 
Physical Science D 0.500 C 0.500 
Spanish I w 0.000 

1 3-14 Horizon Middle School  
Algebra I B o .soo B 0.500 

TEST SCO RES ON BACK 

lfB 1 t.,161 
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Enrollment Date: 08/241201 7  

Exit Date: 05/25/201 8 

Weighted GPA: 2.6275 
Un-Weighted GPA: 2 .5490 

Total Credits Earned: 25.500 

Weighted Class Rank: 234 ou 
of 295 
Un-Weighted Class Rank: 24< 
out of 295 

Graduation Date: May 27, 201 

Civics Test Passed:  05/02/20' 

GRADING SYSTEM 
A =  Superior 
B = Above Average  
C = Average 
D = Below Average 
F = Failing 
S = Satisfactory 
U = Unsatisfactory 
FC = Failure Due to Credit Lo: 
WF = Withdrawal Fail 
WP = Withdrawal Pass 
W = Withdrawal 
• = Modified Curriculum " =  M difi r.al 
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Kindergarten 

Private P i lot License -1 month 
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Testimony in Favor of House B ill 1 461 
Sixty-sixth Leg islative Assembly of North Dakota 

Submitted By : Alysia Budd 
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Thank you ,  Chai rman Schaible and members of the committee. It is an honor to be 
present th is morn ing .  My name is Alys ia Budd and I am in  favor of House B i l l  1 46 1 . I am 
provid ing a double testimony and am testifying both professional ly and personal ly. 

My professional background is that I am a ped iatric occupational therapist with a 
graduate certificate in  Dyslexia and Language-Based Learn ing Disab i l i t ies. I am a certif ied 
handwriti ng special ist, a certified Barton tutor, a dyslexia screener, and I currently have over 
1 00 hours of formal Orton-G i l l i ngham trai n ing and add it ional practicums with the Academy of 
Orton-G i l l i ngham Practit ioners and Educators. I have 20 years of experience working with , and 
evaluat ing ch i ldren with various developmental and learn i ng concerns. I am also the founder 
and d i rector of a center for dyslexia i n  Bismarck where we offer specia l ized assessment and 
tutor ing for dyslexia and l iteracy concerns for ind ividuals rang ing in  age from preschool th rough 
adu lthood . 

Most importantly, I am an i ncred ib ly proud mother of th ree sons with dyslexia and a wife 
of a husband who also has dyslexia. They are al l present here th is morn ing in support of 
House Bi l l  1 46 1 . 

As you l isten to testimonies th is  morn ing , you wi l l  l i kely hear a common thread of the 
emotional aspects that come with having th is learn ing d ifference when it is not understood 
correctly. Dyslexia is not someth ing that you see , as it is a neurolog ical d ifference , a d ifference 
in  the way the bra in processes information .  Because of it bei ng neurolog ical rather than 
phys ical , often the signs and symptoms are missed and students are thought of as lazy, less 
i nte l l igent than they real ly are , and parents are often blamed for not read ing to thei r  ch i ld ren 
enough .  We go through a lot of kleenex at our center because parents are frustrated , ang ry, 
and sad that no one l istened to them as they asked if it cou ld be dyslexia ,  as wel l  as for 
students who are emotional ly broken by the t ime they come to us .  It does not need to be l i ke 
th is .  

Research is ongoing ,  but developmental dyslexia has been proven to be genetic ,  and i n  
our  fami ly we are 3 for 3 with 1 00% of  our sons having th is wonderfu l  brai n d ifference that 
makes language tasks, read ing ,  written expression , and spe l l i ng d iff icu lt .  I am able to say 
wonderfu l  brai n d ifference because dyslexia is not a bad th ing unless i t  is not correctly 
identified , cal led what it is, and if correct supports and interventions/instruction are not 
provided . In those cases , dyslexia can be incred ib ly cr ippl i ng .  Although dyslexia is reported to 
be the most common learn ing d isab i l ity, it is widely misunderstood . 

Dyslexia most often occurs in ind iv iduals with average to above average IQs. There are 
amazing strength areas that are also often present with dyslexia .  Th is is a brai n that I truly 
be l ieve was created on purpose , and our world is more beautifu l  because of dyslex ia .  Just look 
around you , and you wi l l  d iscover al l of the inventions,  art ,  music, l iteratu re , and 
entrepreneurial ventures that are al l in existence because of someone with dyslexia. 

However, scientif ic research using functional M A i 's has proven just how d ifficu lt it is for 
those with dyslexia to activate the areas i n  the brain needed for profic iency i n  read ing and 
spe l l i ng .  Dr. Sal ly Shaywitz ,  from the Yale Center of Dyslexia and Creativity, has shown that 
there are d ifferences in which areas of the brai n activate i n  a dyslexic brai n dur ing read ing 
versus a non-dyslexic brai n dur ing read ing .  Th is research has shown that areas i n  the left 
hemisphere needed for read ing are not properly activati ng i n  a dyslexic brai n .  Research has 
also shown that with intensive , expl icit ,  systematic ,  and mu lt isensory instruction (also known 
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as the Orton-G i l l i ng ham approach) , these areas do beg i n  to activate over t ime al lowing for 
i ncreased read ing profic iency (Shaywitz, 2003) .  Dyslexia is  not a v is ion prob lem.  Ind iv idua ls 
with dyslexia do not see th i ngs backward as many of us were to ld throughout the years . 
Although v is ion issues can co-exist with dyslexia,  those issues are separate . Dyslexia exists 
along a spectrum as other neurolog ical d ifferences often do .  We see students with a wide 
variety of symptoms and severity at our  center, but al l with the common underly ing features of 
d ifficult ies i n  the foundat ions of phonemic and phonolog ical awareness u ltimate ly result ing i n  
d ifficu lt ies with read i ng ,  spel l i ng ,  and written express ion .  The good news is  th is - we  know what 
dyslexia is ,  we know what to do about it ,  and it can be identif ied early. 

I have a un ique perspective in  that I have seen what happens when an ind iv idual  does 
not receive supports and i nterventions du r ing school years with my husband , what happens 
when it is identif ied late ( in th i rd grade with our twins) , and when it is identif ied early ( i n  
preschool with our  youngest) . What I can te l l  you is  that the importance of early identif icat ion 
and i ntervention cannot be stressed enough .  

By the t ime our  twins were ident if ied , they were i n  th i rd g rade .  We had gone through a 
couple of years of supp lemental read i ng i nterventions at thei r  pub l ic  school without any real 
resu lts . I was to ld th ings such as "he's the smartest k id I 've worked with in a long t ime,  the day 
he decides to read , he wi l l  read" .  I remember th i nking "they th ink  my sweet boy is  lazy?" 
Teachers wou ld ask me if my boys were go ing to bed early enough because they seemed so 
ti red and worked so s lowly that they were sett ing t imers on the i r  desks to make them work 
faster. The creative , Lego bu i ld ing protege boys of ours started to have frequent accidents at 
school due  to anxiety, but no one not iced . They began withdrawing , th rowing books across the 
room at home, and cryi ng every s ing le  day after school from pure exhaust ion from working so 
hard a l l  day. They also began to notice that they weren 't able to read l i ke the i r  fr iends,  and no 
matter how hard we stud ied for spel l i ng tests , the tests wou ld come back marked up  in red 
saying "study harder, I know you can do it" .  I t  was a devastat ing t ime for us ,  yet a l l  I was to ld 
was to keep read ing with them,  that i t  wou ld come on i ts own . 

As a therapist ,  that d idn 't make sense to me.  I wanted to know why our  smart boys were 
unexpected ly strugg l i ng ,  and what to do about. The teachers who loved my boys , and did a l l  
they knew to do ,  d id  not  know and understand dyslexia, and i f  any of  them d id ,  they d id not  tel l  
u s .  And besides,  i t  wasn 't that they cou ldn 't read at al l ,  they cou ld . But why cou ldn 't they sound 
out unknown words ,  why d id thei r  words get j umbled when they spoke , why cou ldn 't they spe l l  
with hours and  hours of practice , and why d id  my boys , who had been read to  s i nce the  day 
they were born , sudden ly hate books and read i ng ?  I d idn 't know the s igns ,  our  teachers d id n 't ,  
no one cou ld he lp me.  I had to seek out he lp separate from the schoo ls whom I had put my 
trust in ,  and fo l l ow my i nst inct as a mother and as an occupational therapist .  I had them 
screened for dyslexia,  and after spend ing a day cry ing that I hadn 't caught it sooner, I pu l led 
myself together and began learn ing how to he lp them and teach them myself .  

The day dyslexia was confirmed with the twins was a day that was so freeing for al l  of 
us .  Now we knew WHYour twins were strugg l i ng ,  and THEY knew why as wel l .  Now we had 
clear d i rect ion of what to do to he lp them .  I ' l l  never forget the day I cal led my mom,  a former 
educator who had questioned dyslexia when the twins were in k indergarten ,  who said to me, 
"now, Alys ia ,  you aren 't go i ng to tel l  anyone about the i r  dys lex ia ,  are you?" Wel l ,  we can al l see 
how wel l  I l istened to that .  I understand why she asked that as for many years dys lexia has not 
been talked about, people have been made to feel shamefu l and looked down upon .  Because 
of widely be l ieved m isconceptions about dyslexia ,  people have h id the i r  learn i ng d ifferences , 
and we have not moved forward . Since that day of learn ing it was dyslex ia ,  I have never 
stopped tal k ing about dyslexia, read ing and learn i ng the science of read i ng ,  trai n i ng ,  
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dyslexia and language-based learning d isabi l it ies . I knew that if my boys were dyslexic, there 
were many others who also were , and that someth ing needed to change.  

S ince 20 1 5 , I have had the honor and privi lege of working with several North Dakota 
pub l ic and private schools .  Our North Dakota teachers are some of the best there are . What I 
have learned is that there is a g reat deg ree of variance i n  how our  schools are respond ing to 
dyslexia. Some have welcomed our outs ide expertise in  dys lexia ,  a l lowing us to supplement 
instruct ion when parents have requested us to do Orton-G i l l i ngham based instruction du ri ng 
the school day, and co l laborated with us as outs ide professionals creat ing an atmosphere of 
learn ing and support that has resu lted i n  students f lour ish ing .  Some school professionals ,  
i ncl ud ing classroom teachers ,  reading special i sts , speech language patholog ists , occupational 
therapists , school psycholog ists , and pri ncipals have even recommended our center for further 
evaluat ion and tutor ing ,  col laborating together to do what is  i n  the best interest of the student. 
Unfortunately th is has not been the response from al l  schoo ls .  

Many teachers are eager to learn al l  they can about dyslexia. Some schools support 
th is and wi l l  say dyslexia, others do not. I have experienced s ign if icant d ifferences even with in  
a school such as from a teacher one year to a teacher the next year, from a change in  
leadersh ip  with in a school from one year to  another, as wel l  as from one school to  another 
schoo l ,  or  from one d istrict to another d istr ict .  Th is is  not fai r to our  students, to our teachers, 
or to our parents . Being a parent of a dyslexic ch i ld is exhausting i n  our  North Dakota schoo ls .  

There are many teachers who want to learn about how they can best support students 
with dyslexia, but they are not always supported in do ing so. Just in the short t ime s i nce we 
last testif ied at the house committee hearing , there have been th ree separate situations of 
teachers referr ing students to our center in hopes of receiving he lp for the ir  students ,  on ly to 
have their  efforts shut down by someone in either special education ,  adm in istration ,  or school 
psychology. There were also several educators who wanted to be here today to testify i n  
support of HB  1 461  who shared with me that they cou ld not, for fear of ramif icat ions from their  
school d i str icts . I be l ieve that shows what an issue th is is ,  and why after a l l  of these years , we 
are sti l l  not consistently and effectively addressing dyslexia in our  school systems. It does not 
need to be l i ke th is .  

From my experience ,  resistance has been based on personal op in ions about dyslexia 
and read i ng interventions rather than on what is  best for students and fami l ies ,  and on what 
science has taught us .  I m issed the warn i ng s igns of dys lexia not on ly in  my twins i n it ia l ly, but 
i n  so many students I had worked with as an OT i n  the publ ic school systems. I d id not know 
what I d id not know. When teachers and admin istrators don 't have the correct informat ion 
about dyslexia, they can 't change the trajectory of instruction .  There is a d iscord that exists 
between the science of dyslexia and educational theories about dyslexia. House B i l l  1 46 1  a ims 
to improve that d iscord in North Dakota. 

Schools have been increasing the i r  efforts in addressing the social-emotional learn i ng 
needs of their students and I applaud these efforts . I would also l i ke to touch on the fact that 
dyslexia is  one of the reasons why some of our  students are experiencing social-emotional  
d ifficu lt ies ,  yet in  most cases , dyslexia isn 't even be ing recogn ized . If we don 't identify why a 
student i s  acting out, depressed , exper iencing anxiety, or  exh i b it ing symptoms of ADHD which 
may be wrong ly d iagnosed , our efforts with social-emotional prog ramming are futi le .  The 
emotional damage that resu lts when dyslexia is  not identif ied , supported , and correctly 
remed iated is staggering . 
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• 1 i n  6 ch i ld ren who are not read i ng profic iently i n  th i rd g rade do not g raduate from 
high school on time, four  t imes the rate for ch i ld ren  with prof ic ient th i rd g rade 
read ing ski l ls (Hernadez, 20 1 1 )  

• Approximately 80% of pr ison inmates are functiona l ly i l l iterate , 48% of them being 
dyslexic (Moody, et .al . ,  2000) 

• U .S .  Senator B i l l  Cassidy included a provis ion for screen ing i nmates for dys lexia i n  
the new vers ion of the Fi rst Step Act (S .3649) 

• Accord ing to Dr. Nad ine Gaab, PhD ,  a " late d iagnosis of dys lexia often leads to 
low self-esteem , depress ion , and antisocial behavior" (F l ies ler, 20 1 7) .  

I t  i s  a myth that dyslexia can 't be  identif ied early, as  i t  is poss ib le to identify early 
warn ing signs as young as ages 3-4, particu larly when there is  a fami ly h istory of language­
based learn ing d isab i l i t ies. Dr. Nad ine Gaab, PhD of Boston Ch i ld ren 's ,  a long with her 
col leagues ,  stud ied the brai ns of i nfants with and without a fami ly h istory of dys lex ia .  They 
d iscovered the fo l lowing : 

• "Atypical bra in development associated with Developmental Dyslexia is  al ready 
present with i n  the f i rst 1 8  months of l ife" (Gaab, et. al , 201 5) 

• Dyslexia is genetic, and those brain d ifferences are present i n  i nfancy. 

• Ch i ld ren are enter ing Ki ndergarten with a bra in  " less optim ized to learn to 
read" (Gaab , 20 1 7) .  

• A wait-to-fai l  approach resu lts i n  "cons iderable psycholog ical damage and 
stigma" (Fl ies ler, 201 7) 

I am so thankfu l that I was able to identify the early warn i ng s igns in our  youngest son 
as he does not have the emotional damage that we had to work very hard to repai r in our o lder 
boys . He has been receiv ing Orton-G i l l i ngham based i nstruction s ince he was 4 years o ld and 
although he wi l l  always be dyslexic, he has not exper ienced the emotional  damage and self­
esteem and self-efficacy d ifficult ies that our o lder boys had to endure .  I t  has been the g reatest 
joy of my l ife to see my boys now exce l l i ng i n  schoo l .  We are thankfu l  for a school that has 
a l lowed them to be tutored dur ing the school day, and for the i ncred ib ly supportive and lovi ng 
teachers who have provided them with recommended accommodations and support without 
any hesitation .  They now attend a private school that has been open to learn i ng about 
dyslexia. The preschool at the i r  school has also been trai ned in the early warn i ng s igns  of 
dyslexia ,  and has begun  identifying and referr ing preschoolers for early i ntervention who are at 
r isk ,  s imp ly through thei r  dai ly observat ions and use of prog ress mon itor ing too ls that were 
al ready i n  p lace . Th is is able to be done in a// schools .  

Sect ion 2 ,  number 1 of HB  1 46 1  a l lows for schools  to offer screen ing students through 
the end of  second grade .  The language of  "through" the end of  second g rade cou ld  be left to 
i nterpretat ion that un intentiona l ly l im its services . What happens if a ch i ld  is identif ied beyond 
second g rade?  A screen by defi n it ion should be  qu ick,  yet effective . It does not need to  be t ime 
i ntensive as the sole i ntent of a screen is  identify ing warn i ng s igns of dyslexia early. A screen 
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i n  th is matter is very d ifferent from a fu l l  dyslexia screen ing eval uat ion which is 2-3 hours of 
test ing that is completed after warn ing s igns have al ready been f lagged , or dyslexia test ing 
from a qual if ied psycholog ist or neuropsycholog ist specif ical ly tra ined in  test ing for dyslexia . 
Teachers are very overwhelmed with demands placed upon them in  the classroom ,  but it i s  
possib le that too ls that are al ready in  p lace and be ing used in  our  schools cou ld be identify ing 
warn ing s igns of dyslexia if teachers knew how to i nterpret the data specifical ly with regards to 
dyslexia. If not, i t may be worthy of consideration to exam ine whether or not the tools bei ng 
used by our schools are the best for identify ing at r isk students , or  if there is an alternative . 

HB  1 46 1  supports early screen ing which is ach ievable and necessary for our  students . 
Some educators al ready do see warn ing s igns i n  students i n  the i r  classrooms, but I have been 
to ld by teachers that they are not al lowed to voice their concerns, or to say dyslexia. Why is  it 
okay for dyslexia to be h idden and not be brought to the surface? Parents have the r ight to 
know if the i r  chi ld cou ld have dyslexia ,  and parents re ly on the expertise of those in education 
to catch it and to tel l  them early. 

With regards to the credential i ng of dyslexia special ists , it wi l l  be vital to defi ne the 
qual ifications carefu l ly in order to ensure proper train i ng and expertise are both ach ieved , and 
that schools are g iven t ime to develop these resources as it is not a qu ick process . The 
Department of Pub l ic Instruction has stated that they wi l l  work on  and provide the 
credentia l ing . 

There has been d iscussion that a l l  that is needed for our  schoo ls are read ing 
specia l ists , that we don 't need dyslexia specia l ists . However, we have had read ing special ists 
in a l l  of our  schools .  Read ing special ists are an essential part of the team to address dyslexia,  
but thei r case loads are huge ,  and there is  so much more to dyslexia than sole ly the read i ng 
piece .  We need a team approach , with schools having access to specif ical ly tra ined dyslexia 
special ists i n  order to he lp coord inate student i nterventions ,  support teachers , and to 
effectively make changes i n  how we add ress dyslexia i n  the right d i rection .  

Be ing a read ing special ist, o r  having a masters i n  education ,  does not  mean that there 
is the specif ic train i ng and education regard ing dyslexia. My boys worked with read ing 
specia l ists , yet not one of them identif ied dyslexia i n  them.  Thei r  teachers were trai ned in 
whole language and balanced l iteracy approaches that are not the same th i ng as the Orton­
G i l l ingham/Structu red Literacy approach that is essential for dyslexia. So as much as they d id 
al l they could to he lp my boys , it was i neffective instruction that d id not remed iate the i r  
d ifficu lties .  

To effectively address dyslexia i n  our  North Dakota schools ,  we should want to aim to 
have a mu ltid iscip l i nary team approach . Dyslexia specia l ists come from a variety of 
professional backgrounds which enhances the overal l approach , and i ncreases col laborat ion 
amongst varied professionals .  Those who are certif ied and tra ined to remed iate dyslexia are 
also from varied professional backgrounds.  I h ighly recommend that the word i ng in the last 
sentence of section  3 be changed from a tra ined "teacher" to a tra ined "special i st or 
professional"  in order to ensure that schools are able to access all who are properly trai ned to 
work with and support ind ividuals with dyslexia. 

It is also important that as a commun ity, we real ize that the respons ib i l ity of fu l l  
remed iation of  dyslexia does not fal l sole ly on our schools who are also educating hundreds of 
students with various learni ng and emotional d i ff icu lties. What is the respons ib i l i ty of the 
schools is  to acknowledge dyslexia, provide a learn i ng environment, emotional support ,  and 
curricu lum that is  effective for al l  learners, and to be knowledgeable rather than resistant to 
learn about up to 20% of the i r  student popu lat ion .  HB 1 461  provides the steps necessary to 
ach ieve th is  in a l l  schoo ls .  I personal ly love working with schools and teachers ,  it is a passion 

Page 5 of  7 



• 

JtB> 1 '{d 
3 �µ-}  � 
R fl tt-1 1---

of mine as I have a profound respect for a l l  that our  educators do day in  and day out .  With th is 
b i l l ,  we need to provide schools with the resources and support that they need in  order to be 
successful . 

There has also been some discussion stat ing that we al ready identify dyslexia, that 
schools j ust cal l it a read ing d isabi l ity under the Specific Learn ing Disabi l ity category. Let me 
try to help to explain why th is alone isn 't cu rrently working wel l  for our  students ,  parents , and 
teachers .  

There is a poem cal led E lephant i n  the Dark, by Rumi .  The book I 'm shari ng today is 
based on that poem . I wi l l  summarize th is  story for you . . . . . .  ( refer to the book E lephant i n  the 
Dark by M ina Javaherb in ) .  

Dyslexia is often referred to as "the elephant i n  the room" and simply cal l i ng it a read ing 
d isabi l ity is  i ron ical ly very unspecific as a specif ic learn ing d isabi l ity category. When parents 
and teachers hear dyslexia, then they have someth ing they recogn ize and someth ing 
specifical ly can be done.  

The problem facing our schoo ls is that everyone knows just a l ittle b i t  of the truth , 
resu lt ing i n  miss ing the beautifu l ,  majestic human being right i n  front of them who deserves to 
be recogn ized and to be fu l ly known and understood by al l .  To be identif ied and taught 
correctly. 

No longer can we sit back and conti nue to ignore the fact that as many as 1 i n  5 ,  up  to 
20% of each and every classroom is dys lexic. As a therapist and as a mother, I apo log ize to 
every ind ividual and fami ly who has been treated poorly, who has been told dyslexia isn 't real , 
who bel ieves they are less than they are because of our  ignorance .  We d id not know, and I am 
so sorry for a l l  you have been th rough .  But now we do know. We have read the science , we 
have seen the incred ible effectiveness of correct instruction ,  and we can do better. North 
Dakota has an opportun ity to what is right for our students with dyslexia, and I ask that you 
vote yes on House Bi l l  1 461 . Vote yes and say dyslexia for the 1 i n  5 . 
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I n  support of H B  1461, I am  writ ing with, a nd  o n  beha lf of, my d a ughter Maggie Kra lj ic who was 
identified a s  dys lexic 17 months ago . 

As a Boa rd-Cert ified Neurosurgeon, I have spent the past 20 yea rs ded icated to studying, 
d iagnos ing a nd  treat ing neuro logic d isorde rs of the bra i n  a nd  sp ine .  Pat ients w i l l  p resent with a va riety 
of sym ptoms re lated to specific i nj u ries or d isease .  

I nj u ries to the bra i n, whether they be congen ita l ,  t ra u mat ic, vascu l a r, neop last ic o r  i nfect ious, 
ca n lead to perma nent impa i rment specific to the i r  locat ion, even with successfu l t reatment .  Th is may 
resu lt i n  pa ra lysis, l oss  of v i s ion  o r  heari ng, sensory impa i rment, o r  impa i rment i n  speech .  When such  
defic its occu r, it i s  u nfortu nate, but is a l so a rem i nder  of how b lessed the pat ient was to have recove red 
from a potenti a l  l i fe-t h reaten i ng s ituation .  Physica l impa i rments a re eas i ly  identified,  measured,  a nd 
can be co rrected ,  o r  a d aptat ions made, to he l p  the pat ient overcome .  Other defic its a re not a s  eas i ly 
i dent ified . 

H igher  l eve l ca l cu lat ions, p l ann i ng, dec is ion mak i ng, speech a nd read i ng com prehens ion a re a l l  
potent ia l defic its .  When these occur, the pat ient i s  seem i ng ly norma l ,  hav ing made  a fu l l  recove ry 
beca use they " look back to norma l " .  These a re often more deb i l itat ing for pat ients than  loss of use of a 
l imb, loss of s ight, o r  loss of hea r ing. Pat ients wi l l  st rugg le  with commun icat ion a nd dec is ion ma k ing 
wh ich was prev ious ly done without thought o r  worry, and on ly the i r  c lose fam i ly members may know 
the strugg le  they a re fight ing beca use they a ppear  norma l  to the casua l  observer . Th is  i s  s im i l a r  to the 
d ifficu lt ies those with dys lex ia ,  such a s  Maggie, face .  

Maggie lea rns and pe rce ives her wor ld d iffe rent ly than those without dys lexia . This does not 
make her  less  ca pab le  i n  a ny way .  She s imp ly needs to be g iven the opportun ity to lea rn i n  a manne r  
t h a t  best benefits her. H B  1461 a l lows fo r ea rly screen ing t o  i dent ify those who  wou l d  benefit from 
accommodat ions needed to a l low them a fa i r  opportun ity to succeed academ ica l ly a nd  i n  a d u lthood . 
Li ke exam ples ment ioned previous ly, i nd iv id ua l s  a ppea r a nd  a re "norma l", a nd  may even use self-ta ught 
strategies to get by o r  b lend i n  with the ir  c l a ssmates .  This may work for some, but it is not the best 
strategy for success when there a re proven lea rn ing methods, n ame ly, the O rton-G i l l i ngham system, 
ava i l ab l e  to ensu re success. 

Denying o u r  ch i l d ren  the opportun ity to be identified a nd rece ive necessa ry accommodat ions  
wou ld  be a great d i sse rvice. Dys lexic ch i l d ren ,  l i ke Maggie, a re not be ing l a be led wi th  a negat ive 
connotat ion by be ing identified as  dyslexic .  They a re be ing given the opportun ity to begin the i r  



specia l i zed lea rn ing at the begi nn i ng of the i r  a cadem ic ca ree rs, rather  tha n fa l l i ng beh i nd .  Those who 
ca n not see a re not  l a be led b l i nd ,  they a re ident ified a s  such a nd  accommodat ions ca n be met .  Those 
who ca n not hea r a re not l a be led deaf, they a re ident ified i n  the same way so accommodat ions ca n be 
met.  Maggie, and those who a re dyslexic, deserve the  oppo rt un ity to be ident ified so proven 
accommodat ions ca n be met to foster the i r  a b i l ity to lea rn a nd  th rive t h roughout  the i r  academ ic a n d  
profess io n a l  ca reers .  

We were fo rtunate to pursue test ing wh ich  ident ified Maggie a t  a you ng age .  Desp ite cu rrent 
specia l i zed read i ng progra ms cu rrently used by schoo ls, she cont i n ued to strugg le .  Through the  
persistence of my wife, Becky, we were a b le  to rece ive fo rma l  test ing wh ich  esta b l ished the d iagnos is  
and have begun the process of tutor ing a nd c l a ss room accommodat ions wh ich  a re he l p ing he r  ma i nta i n  
a nd  imp rove h e r  lea rn ing .  Maggie was b lessed t o  have Becky spea k ing a s  a n  advocate for he r  a nd 
i n si st ing test ing be done a nd cha nges made .  Others a re not so fort unate .  If educators a re not g iven 
proper  tra i n i ng, o r  screen i ng is not made ava i l a b le, n umerous  ch i l d ren  w i l l  be left to the  d iffi cu lt 
cha l l enge of try ing to figu re out how to a d apt o n  the i r  own, o r  they wi l l  be left beh i nd  a nd be l a be led a s  
u nteachab l e  o r  u n inte l l igent .  

M aggie wi l l  cont i nue  to work ha rd t h rough th is p rocess. She is just begi n n ing .  Du ri ng the sho rt 
t ime she has  been receiving tutor ing and accommodat ions she has  made  i nc red ib l e  p rogress . She  d id 
not have a great dea l  to say i n  add it ion to what  I have written, but  wanted a l l  to know th i s :  

" I t  is n ice to fi n a l ly be understood" . So s im p le ,  yet  so  powerfu l .  

P lease h e l p  others l i ke Maggie b y  pass ing th i s  b i l l .  Tha n k  you .  

Respectfu l ly, 

Steven Kra lj ic, MD  

Fe l low America n Co l l ege o f  Neuro logica l Su rgeons 
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To : Chairperson Schaible 

Submitted By: KrisAnn Norby-Jahner 

Dyslexia does not know sex, race, nationality, socioeconomics, or any other factor. It does not have "one 
face ." It is not recognizable or unique to a specific class . It does not care how educated your parents are 
or how good of a reader your siblings are . It is silent, it is prevalent, and it goes largely undetected 
before 3 rd grade in the State of North Dakota. I am a lawyer and an adjunct English professor. I have a 
Juris Doctorate ; I have a Ph.D. in English and American Literature; I have an M.A. in English; I have a 
B .A. in English and Mass Communications . . .  and I have a 6-year-old daughter who is showing early 
warning signs of dyslexia and struggles to receive services in North Dakota's public school system. 

We are attentive parents. We read to our children, we enroll them in preschool, and we want to make 
sure they are ready for the ever-increasing demands of Kindergarten before they even step foot in our 
state 's  public school system. But all of our attentiveness and all of our preparation cannot change who 
our daughter Kaurie is and what Kaurie needs in order to learn to read and write . She was born this way. 
She is smart, kind, and empathetic and was eager to race out the door to preschool and learn like her 
older brother who began reading before he even entered those same preschool doors . But his path is not 
her path. Within a month of starting preschool, Kaurie became withdrawn, wouldn't  talk about 
preschool, and feigned numerous stomachaches in attempts to avoid attendance .  This was not the same 
little girl, eager to learn her letters and bring home early-reader books like her brother before her had 
done. She wouldn't  speak in class. She froze when called on to answer questions about letters or 
numbers . She couldn't draw a straight line in her handwriting book, let alone form any of the letters that 
her peers were working on. While she watched peers around her excel, recite letter sounds, and, some, 
begin to read, Kaurie felt left behind. By October, shortly before her 5 th birthday, her preschool teachers 
expressed concern that Kaurie needed to be tested for what they perceived may be cognitive and 
sensory-related delays as compared to her peers . While we knew Kaurie could sing the alphabet and 
count out loud to ten, we were hoping that preschool would help her finally start to visually recognize 
letters, identify letter sounds, and write her letters and numbers. But despite repeated teaching three days 
a week in preschool and numerous one-on-one lessons at home, she could not perform these tasks. We 
would show Kaurie the letter "A" and tell her this letter is called "A." We would put it down and pull it 
out 1 0  seconds later, and she still could not recognize that the shape before her was a letter, let alone the 
letter "A." 

Upon the recommendation of her preschool teachers, we began our own early intervention and sought 
out any and all services we could find. Unfortunately, we learned very quickly (and were repeatedly told 
by professionals in education) that "dyslexia" cannot be diagnosed or tested before 3 rd grade. Nothing 
could be done . Give it time . She would come around. Had we thought about simply "holding her back?" 
These answers were unacceptable . We were appalled. What does it accomplish to wait for a child 
showing early warning signs of dyslexia to advance into Kindergarten, 1 st , and 2nd grades all the while 
struggling to keep up with peers? What does it accomplish to let a child fail before finally giving her 
help? What does it accomplish to let a child's self-esteem deteriorate to the point that she believes she 's  
a failure before she ever even has a fair chance to advance? Before our child, our Kaurie, even set foot in 
the North Dakota public school system, we refused to accept the answers we had been given. 
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iJ 3  We have spent thousands of dollars out-of-pocket on testing, evaluation, and any private services Je can 
find to help Kaurie advance ever-so-slightly toward the level playing field on which her peers operate . 
By the end of preschool (20 1 7-20 1 8  school year), Kaurie attended preschool three (3) days a week, and 
received occupational therapy and Orton-Gillingham-based intervention with an emphasis on improving 
her l iteracy five (5) days a week. She continued Orton-Gillingham-based intervention all of last summer 
in preparation for Kindergarten (20 1 8-20 1 9  school year) ; and in June 20 1 8 , we submitted an official 
request for evaluation for special education services to the Bismarck Public School District under the 
federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) . We could not have been more prepared. We 
could not have (and cannot) do any more than we have already done for Kaurie .  Early intervention, 
screening, testing, and services for dyslexia do not exist in our current public school system for 
children through 2nd grade. We underwent the arduous and long evaluation process required by IDEA 
and advanced through it as quickly as we possibly could have (which is not very quick at all) . We 
repeatedly explained our concerns about dyslexia. We have shared all of Kaurie's testing and results 
from the Inspiring Minds Center for Literacy and Dyslexia. We have explained the Orton-Gillingham­
based intervention services she receives. The school and the specialists l isten, but there is nothing they 
can do for our concerns regarding dyslexia specifically when Kaurie is stil l  in Kindergarten. Our 
occupational therapists and special educators in the North Dakota public school systems are not trained 
in Orton-Gill ingham approaches. There are simply no early intervention strategies available or in place 
to address the early warning signs of dyslexia. 

Kaurie 's  Individual Education Plan (IEP) was just finally written in January 20 1 9, but it does not 
address dyslexia. It did not include testing for dyslexia. It does not include services for dyslexia. But her 
story is. in fact. stil l  a success. Kaurie's story is a success because we have found a private l iteracy 
center that is willing to intervene - to offer the services she desperately needs. We have found a 
Kindergarten teacher who works with us and implements accommodations in the classroom according to 
what Kaurie needs even when it is not required by her IEP. We have found an OT, PT, and special 
education team in our public school system that are sympathetic to her struggles even when the word 
"dyslexia" cannot be uttered in our IEP meetings .  Because of the early intervention we have paid dearly 
[Qr_ out-of-pocket and because of our pushing and constant advocacy for Kaurie, her self-esteem and 
literacy skills have both improved. She has a long road ahead of her and a long way to go, and she is not 
yet on par with her peers (and she may never be) . But she is a lot closer to that level playing field than 
she ever would have been without the early intervention we have pushed for and paid for through private 
dyslexia services. 

Kaurie 's  story may be a success, but what about the stories of ALL of our children in North Dakota? 
What about those children who did not attend preschool or cross paths with someone who suspected 
early warning signs of dyslexia? What about those parents who cannot afford private services? Who 
cannot leave work in the middle of the day l ike my husband and I do to transport those children to 
private services? What about those children who live in rural areas and do not have access to early­
intervention dyslexia services? I have no doubt what-so-ever that our schools, teachers, administrators, 
and specialists are doing everything they possibly can for our children within their capacity and training. 
But the state of North Dakota needs to do more .  Our state needs to enact legislation that allows for early 
intervention screening for dyslexia, that gives our public school educators and specialists proper 
training, and funds those early intervention services that so many of our children need. Our family 

2 
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respectfully asks that the Committee respond favorably in support of this bill to move this im/Jrt:nt 
legislation toward enactment. 

Sincerely, 

/,Jlc /I cj? /4_ 

KrisAnn Norby-Jahner 

3 
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I am a parent of two chi ldren with dyslexia ,  and I 'm  writing my story to support HB 146 1 . 

"You ' re not reading enough w ith her and that 's why her fluency isn ' t  where it needs to be ." 
My daughter 's Title I reading teacher said thi s to me during spring parent-teacher 

conferences of her kindergarten year. As the reading teacher continued to tel l  me about how she 
repeatedly confronted my oldest daughter in the hal lway to say that she needed to read to Harper, 
too , it felt l ike thi s  teacher blamed me - and my enti re fami ly -for Harper 's lack of reading 
progress . 

After I got home and had time to process the meeting , I sti l l  couldn 't  figure out how 
Harper 's reading abi l ity was purely due to a lack of more reading . I had two older kids who 
could read , the oldest of whom had also been in  this teacher 's  Title I class and graduated out of 
it . 

I cal led the children's therapy center where one of my older chi ldren had speech therapy. 
Thankfully, Harper's kindergarten teacher gave us very specific feedback during that spring 
parent-teacher conference . I passed that information to the screener, along with how our nightly 
reading went , and she was the first to point me toward dyslexia .  

I had emai led Harper 's kindergarten teacher and talked to  the school psychologist .  There 
was no help for Harper in the school system . Her learning disabi l i ty wasn 't supported . 
Eventual ly, we ended up at Inspiring Minds and finally got answers and help .  Everything we did 
to figure out what Harper needed , and the help she received , was out of the school system . And 
since learning disabilities aren 't covered by medical insurance , it was al so out of pocket . 

Harper 's kindergarten teacher supported us as much as possible , but she was l imited with 
what she could do beyond continuing to send Harper to Title I .  Summer school wouldn't help a 
student l ike her, so we opted out and spent the summer getting her lessons through Inspiring 
Minds . 

We continued through first grade , but my attempts to work with her first grade teacher didn 't 
go beyond "Thanks for letting me know ." The instructors at Inspiring Minds were wi l l ing to 
coordinate their lessons with Harper 's reading lessons at school . I repeatedly emai led the teacher 
to request that she touch base with Harper 's instructor from Inspiring Minds , but that was as far 
as it went. 

During fal l parent-teacher conferences , I di scussed where we were with Harper's 
supplemental education . When I brought up dyslexia ,  al l the teacher said was "I just don 't see i t ." 
When I outl ined the specific problems Harper had and how Inspiring Minds was approaching her 
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education , the teacher said again ,  "I just don 't see it" and also asked , "Wouldn 't she be writing 

whole words backwards?" 

I di scussed Harper 's  difficulties seeing the board despite passing her eye exam , and that she 

al so suffered from occasional photosensitivity - both attributed to dyslexia .  Harper was able to 

sit closer to the board . Out of the enti re year, thi s was the only help Harper received for her 

learning disabi l i ty. 

II ti- #  J5 
f 2 o f2--

By the time spring parent-teacher conferences arrived , we ' d  been bringing Harper twice 

weekly to lessons outside of the school system . Harper's improvement was nearly up to standard 

for her age . The teacher in Title I wanted to graduate her from the program . However, because 

she started so far behind , her first grade teacher requested she stay in for the rest of the year. 

Harper was graduated from the program . She appeared to be a Title I success story when in 

reality, she was going to Inspiring Minds twice a week for a year. 

My youngest chi ld also started with Inspiring Minds after struggling for two years to 

improve her speech . She ' s  only five .  Traditional speech therapy hasn't  been as effective as 

dyslexic specific education . The girls are at a different school now. We have no access to school 

provided speech therapy, but it wouldn't help my youngest any more than her other speech 

therapy. 

Even with supportive , engaged teachers I sti l l  have to address problems stemming from the 

lack of dyslexia awareness and how it affects children . For instance , when the girl s  take a long 

time to answer and stumble over words , the teacher says things l ike "Hurry up , or I have to move 

on ." This is done in front of the class . She doesn ' t  realize that these problems with speech are a 

common trait in those with dyslexia. 

Schools have the abil ity to create individual ized education plans for chi ldren - except for 

those with dyslexia .  We know dyslexia i s  the most common learning disabil ity .  We know the 

percentages . There are establi shed and proven learning methods to teach children with dyslexia .  

After my experience with my daughters , and after learning what her father and her grandparents 

went through in school , I 'm  left with one question . Why has nothing changed? 

I tell you my story to provide examples of how the public school system is  unable to provide 

education and services for children with dyslexia .  I support HB 1461 . Thank you for your time . 

Sincerely, 

Lisa Elijah 



Chairman Schaible and committee members, 

My name is Krisanna Peterson. I am a mother of a special needs child and an educator who 
works with special needs students. I live in Bismarck ND. I am asking for a DO PASS for SB 
1 46 1 . 

I found out seven years ago that my child has phonetic dyslexia. It is not the common dyslexia 
where people have trouble reading and learning because their brains tum the letters around. My 
son was tested by a pediatric neuropsychologist, Dr Amy Meidinger, at the Neuropsychic 
Associates in Fargo, ND. Bismarck does not have any pediatric neuropsychologists . My son, 
Nie, has phonetic dyslexia which means he sounds out each part of the word when he spells it. 
Nie was tested in kindergarten but the schools only solution was for Nie to use a computer' s 
spell check.This just does not work as he can not choose the right word. This disability affects 
every school subj ect he takes. Dr Meidinger recommended Nie get special training called 
Orton-Gillingham. No teachers in the Bismarck school system have this training. The people 
who do have the training charge a fee of 60 dollars an hour. I am unable to afford to pay for this 
training . I have tried to get funding from many sources. I asked Gaber which generally gives 
donations for things that insurance will not cover. I was denied. I have met many other families 
who have children with disabilities like my son. They too struggle to make ends meet and are 
unable to pay for special training. 
I would like to urge you to talk to Dr. Meidinger and allow her to testify to the difficulties some 
children have and how training would improve their chances of achieving success in school .  
There are no certifications for phonetic dyslexia and to get the training costs over $500 .  
Please help to lower these costs so students like my child can get the training and grow to their 
full potential . Please help teachers with the cost of the training. Please pass HB 1 46 1 . This is 
vitally important for our children's  future . 

I would like to thank you for your time . If you have questions please give me a call or email me . 
please go to this website for more information 
http://www.neuropsychnd .com/doctor/amy-meidinger. 

Krisanna Peterson 
3 1 24 Dortmund Dr 
Bismarck ND 58504 
70 1 -26 1 -9574 
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My name is Kerry Mosset from Bismarck and I am writing this letter to tell you why I support and think it vital that you 
support HB 146 1 . I have been an elementary educator for 21 years, most of which have been teaching third g rade. I 
received all my educational training through North Dakota Universities which include a BS in Elementary Education 
through U of Mary and a Masters in Elementary Education through UND.  I am also the mother of a dyslexic son who 
is currently a 4th grader. Our frustrating journey in getting the diagnosis, support, accommodations and interventions 
needed are very similar to all the stories shared at the House Education Committee hearing that I attended in 
February. 

As a Kindergartner, my son did well with memorizing sight words in isolation and loved to be read to, but the ability to 
recognize letter sounds, to write , to recognize sight words in a sentence and to read on his own was a struggle. I n  
first grade, the gap  between where he  should be  as a fluent reader and where he  was grew, but it wasn't enough to 
qualify for extra district reading help. I n  2nd g rade his reading scores were finally low enough to qualify to get district 
reading services . 

This brings me to the first vital component of HB 146 1  - SCREEN ING ALL STUDENTS BEFORE THE END OF 2nd 

GRADE. The warning signs and red flags of dyslexia were there in Kindergarten for my son, yet he was unable to 
get extra district reading help until he was failing reading in 2nd grade! With the proper screening , students wouldn't 
have to fail before receiving the help they need . Early intervention is key! In 3rd grade, I was blessed to have my son 
as a student in my 3rd grade classroom as I was the only 3rd grade teacher at our building .  I was able to see my child 
not only through my parental lens but also through my teaching lens. After our beginning of year assessments, it was 
clear that something was interfering with my son's ability to read fluently. Despite his strengths in all other subjects 
and his unbelievable ability to problem solve, he was the slowest and most inaccurate reader in the class and I felt 
like such an unbelievable failure as a parent. 

Thankfully, my son's District Reading teacher had the courage to approach me after school one day and had a heart 
to heart conversation with me. After working closely with my son for many months, she very cautiously explained 
that she thought my son might have dyslexia . I immediately thought she was crazy. Dyslexia (I naively thought at 
the time) was when kids reversed letters and numbers and read and said words backwards. She then explained how 
she was dyslexic and she recognized many of the reading behaviors my son displayed . Then I began to listen .  And 
so my journey of reading about dyslexia and learning everything I could about it began . 

This brings me to the second vital part of HB 146 1  - TEACHER TRAIN ING ON I DENTIF ICATION AND 
INTERVENTION.  I am so embarrassed to admit that I was an elementary teacher of 20 years and had no idea what 
the red flags were for dyslexia . We know that dyslexia affects 1 in 5 students .  If 20% of our student population is 
affected by dyslexia, shouldn't those working most closely with the students be trained on how to identify the red 
flags of this learning difference? Why have we been relying on a medical diagnosis when the medical world is not 
the place that can give these children the interventions and tools they need to learn? Shouldn't ALL teachers be 
trained on what the warning signs are and given next steps when recognized? 

I am also embarrassed and think it's a shame that there was only 1 undergraduate class that was part of my teaching 
requirement that taught about learning disabilities. This class was an overview about all exceptionalities, from 
extremely gifted to intellectually disabled and offered little to nothing in terms of how to identify or specifically teach 
children with these exceptionalities . 

I began inquiring about how to find out or who to call to get my son screened or diagnosed for dyslexia. The more I 
asked about dyslexia with colleagues, the more confused I became. The word Dyslexia alone seemed to be taboo 



at school and nobody wanted to touch it within our school district. I heard repeatedly by colleagues and other 
parents that dyslexia was a medical diagnosis and therefore wasn't allowed as an IEP category in the state of ND. I 
heard there was only one doctor in Fargo that would give this medical diagnosis of dyslexia. I then heard about 
Inspiring Minds in Bismarck. I found out I could get my son screened for dyslexia but it was expensive and there was 
no guarantee that our school district would consider the testing results as it was an outside agency. Despite all the 
confusion and uncertainties, I needed to know specifically if my son was dyslexic so I took him to Inspiring Minds to 
be screened. They assessed my son's reading, phonological awareness, his writing , his ability or inability to decode 
words etc . . . .  and after compiling all of his data, they determined he was indeed dyslexic. This private testing cost 
$450 from my own pocket. I knew that if my son were to get the accommodations he needed in school, he would 
need an IEP. At the end of Jfd grade, my son was put on an IEP with the label of a reading disability. 

This next part of our journey brings me to the importance of number 4 under Section 2 of HB 146 1 . It states; "A 
school district must provide a student identified as having dyslexia with education services pursuant to this chapter. 
The education services must include instruction that is: Research and phonetically based , Multisensory and 
systematic." 

The ND special education category of reading disability is extremely broad . Dyslexia is a specific learning difference 
underneath this big umbrella . There are a wide variety of different interventions that can be used for students with 
reading disabilities . I, myself, wasted time as a parent and educator with my son on interventions that did not work. 
Research shows that phonetically based, multisensory, systematic interventions are the teaching difference that can 
work for students with a dyslexic learning difference .  We need to ensure that students with dyslexia receive the 
proven intervention that works and helps them learn . 

I implore you to please pass HB 146 1 . Our students and children need it today! If you have any questions, please 
contact me at kerrymosset@bektel.com or 701 -32 1 -0284. 

Respectfully, 

Kerry Mosset 
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I 'm here to show my su pport fo r H B  1461 re lat i ng  to Dys lex ia  screen i ngs a nd  tra i n i ng  to teachers 
and  staff. 

Can you imagi ne hav ing a you ng ch i l d  who cr ies n ight ly because she  says s he  fee l s  stup id ,  wishes 
she was smarter and  doesn't understa nd  why she doesn't lea rn l i ke a l l  her c lassmates? I don 't 
need to imag ine th is ;  I l ived th i s  fo r over 2 yea rs with my daughter who wanted to love schoo l  
but at  t he  same t ime hated school because it was  so h a rd .  As  a pa rent, t he re i s  noth ing h a rde r  
than  want ing to  make th i ngs eas ier  fo r you r ch i l d  but  not knowi ng  how. When everyth ing that i s  
tr ied to a i de  i n  the learn i ng p rocess l eads  to  more tears and  frustrat ion a n d  noth i ng  seems to 
work, it ta kes a to l l  on everyone in th e fam i ly .  U nt i l  you go t h rough it a nd  witness the impact it 
h as on you r  fam i ly, it doesn't h it home on  how important th i s  b i l l  i s .  

I began to quest ion i n  her  k i ndergarten and  pt grade year if sh e was Dys lex ic to the p rofess iona l s  
a t  her  school  and  was  told no and  cont i n u a l l y  to l d  she  wi l l  catch up .  I knew very l itt l e  of Dys l ex ia 
at the t ime with no known fam i ly h i sto ry and be l i eved what I was to ld  by the schoo l  p rofess iona l s  
to  be t r ue .  After be i ng  encou raged by an  Occupat iona l  Thera p i st, who had  been  studying and  
l ea rn i ng  more o f  the s igns o f  Dys lexia, I took my daughter to  a screen i ng  a t  I nsp i r i ng  M inds .  On 
that day i n  September, we were fi n a l l y  given an  answer as to why she  st ruggled the way she  d i d  
da i ly i n  school ,  why  s imp le  s ight words such as WAS, TH E, IT cou ld n't be p ut to memory, and why  
the  effects of  school led to tears most n ights and  every day before schoo l ;  s h e  was  identified as  
hav ing severe Dys lexi a .  That day added  a p i ece to  the  puzz l e  of who my da ughter i s ,  but  a lso left 
me with so many quest ions as to what had been missed i n  the l a st two yea rs of schoo l .  I quest ion 
that if the  teachers had  the p roper tra i n i ng, where wou l d  she  be  now. I t hen  sta rted to learn  t h at 
North Da kota d i dn 't h ave l aws i n  p lace to i dent ify Dys lex ia wit h i n  the  pub l i c  schoo l  system .  My 
now 9 yea r o ld daughter was  d iagnosed with Dys lex ia i n  September  of  2017  at t he  age of  8 by 
I n sp i r i ng  M inds  and  s ince that t ime has  been attend i ng  tutor ing two hou rs a week  i n  the  even i ngs 
at I n sp i ri ng  M inds  in B isma rck. I t  req u i res a lot of he r  menta l ly to attend sch oo l  fo r a fu l l  day a nd  
t hen  give he r  best a t  tutori ng  i n  t h e  even i ngs. My daughter i s  fo rt unate that we  h ave access i b i l ity 
to I n sp i r i ng  M inds  loca l ly. However, with on ly a few faci l it ies  in the  state t h at a re tra i ned in the 
Orton-G i l l i ngham method of tra i n ing that leaves a l ot of  students beh i n d .  A screen ing, as  i s  
p resented i n  th i s  b i l l , wou ld  he lp  ident ify at a much ear l i e r  age a ny warn i ng  s igns and  to get the  
p roper he l p  a ch i l d  needs a t  an  ear l i e r  age .  The  screen i ng  p rocess i s  i ntended to  be a sho rt 
screen i ng, I env is ion s im i l a r  to what i s  a l ready be i ng  done for v is ion a n d  hear i ng  screen i ngs . 
Dys lex ia i s  more common than most be l i eve impact i ng  up  to 20% of the popu lat io n .  However, 
with p roper  tra i n i ng  and  i n struct ion, these students can th rive when taught i n  t he  way that t he i r  
b ra i n  p rocesses l anguage sk i l l s .  
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My daughter unde rsta nds she  is Dys lex ic a nd  why she has  to work that  much h a rder .  However, 
with h e r  Dys lex ia ,  she is extremely creat ive, a n  outs ide the  box th i n ker, i n tu it ive, imaginat ive, 
a nd  a rt i st ic .  She strives to be a reade r  and  has hopes of one  day becom ing  an e l ementa ry 
educat ion teach er. I hope to see that h a ppen as she  wou l d  make an  outstand i ng  teacher. With 
her cons i stent tutor i ng, she has  p rogressed i n  ways I neve r d reamed poss i b l e ;  she i s  becom ing  
more confid ent and  learn i ng to  trust i n  he r  own ab i l it i es .  Tutor ing and  understa nd ing  he r  
Dys lex ia  i s  open i ng  he r  view of  the wor ld from what was once  a fo re ign l anguage to  see ing t he  
wor ld a round  her  i n  a way that she ca n unde rstand .  Imagi n e  be i ng  ab l e  to  read and  u nderstand  
t h i ngs written a round you for the fi rst t ime ! It' s  q u ite rema rka b l e  to  witn ess where she  i s  today, 
a l l  t h a n ks to Insp i ri ng  M inds .  She is l ess frustrated, the  res i stance to read  i s  l ess, and  he r  schoo l  
days a re becoming  l ess menta l ly d ra i n i n g  and exh aust ing .  What we see i n stead i s  her se lf-esteem 
is  growi ng, she i s  fi n a l ly putt i ng trust in h e rse lf and her  ab i l i t i es, and she is fi n d i ng  joy in read i ng. 
I witnessed her read ing  a book the othe r  n ight with her younger  s i ste r, with a fl uency that i s  
so l e ly t he  work of the p roper tra i n i ng and  l ea rn i ng that she i s  receiv i ng  at Insp i r i ng  M i nds. I a l so 
hea rd giggles emerge from her as she read ;  t he  words a re tak i ng  on a mean i ng  and  fi na l l y  not 
j u st be i ng  words to read .  The tra i n ing to teache rs a nd  adm i n ist rato rs t hat i s  p resented i n  th i s  b i l l  
wou l d  o n ly he l p  and  a l low my da ughter and  othe rs l i ke he r  t o  grow a nd  reach h igher  goa l s  b y  
l ea rn i n g  cons istent ly a t  both In sp i r ing M i nds  and  he r  pub l i c  schoo l .  

Ea r ly i ntervent ion i s  so  crit i ca l  i n  so  many a reas of  ch i l d hood deve lopment, Dys lex ia  s hou l d  be  no 
d ifferent .  P lease he lp  to make Dys lex ia  a ccommodat ions be  as common as  speech, occupat iona l  
o r  p hys i ca l  therapy to  he l p  k i d s  with Dys lex ia soa r as h igh as t he i r  peers .  I encou rage you to  vote 
yes on th i s  b i l l  a nd  he l p  ou r  next generat ion of students become our  futu re l eaders .  

Th a n k  you  for you r  t ime, 

J e n n ife r Dockter 

r' Z o  fz--
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HB 1 46 1 -0pposed 

Chairperson Schaible, Vice Chairperson Fors, and Members of the Education 
Committee : 

For the record my name is Tracy Klein, I am the Director of Special Education for 
Morton/Sioux Special Education Unit (MSSEU); which encompasses Mandan 
School District and six neighboring School Districts in Morton and Sioux 
Counties .  

In an effort to be an information source, I wish to share my testimony to aid in 
perspective as you contemplate a magnanimous system change. 

I contend this bill is overly dogmatic, services for Reading problems and sub 
component areas of reading such as ; comprehension, decoding, dyslexia, etc . have 
been and are currently accounted for in the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (IDEA). Both the assessment process and reading difficulties associated with 
dyslexia are encompassed by CFR: 3 00 .304-300.3 1 1  and 300 .8 (c) ( 1 0) within 
Specific Leaming Disabilities. In addition, I maintain this bill does not 
acknowledge our state currently has highly trained "Reading Specialists" and 
Master Level Special Education staff who assess and provide interventions for 
students having a plethora of Reading (and multiple academic) disabilities .  

I encourage you to oppose this bill as  written for the following reasons : 

-While important, mandating training and specialized endorsements for sub areas 
of reading or any subject area is overly prescriptive and in tum limits broader 
holistic interventions .  

-This bill erroneously implies a specialized reading methodology, or multi sensory 
approach addresses the corresponding interventions encompassed by the term 
dyslexia; while simultaneously disregarding the need for broader reading 
programing to address all levels of reading. 

..._ 
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-Local districts are better situated to determine training needs given the competing 
interests for professional development priorities and limited financial resources . 

-It is an overreach to initiate a State Code/system that may lead to the 
establishment of a unique or self-standing disability category in excess of the 
current Specific Leaming Disabilities category identified by the Federal IDEA. 
This precedence may lead to a greater demand for establishing Multiple State 
Codes for the numerous areas of exceptionality. 

-Fiscal support has yet to be established but will be necessary to implement with 
fidelity the prescribed screenings, training for credentials, developing additional 
physical small group or classroom space and employment of additional staff with 
the specified endorsement (i .e . an unfunded mandate with the fiscal burden being 
placed on individual school districts). 

-I propose it would be more effective and cost efficient to study and identify 
training encompassing broader research-based Reading Methodology as we 
attempt to support all struggling readers . 

I am happy to answer questions you may have for me ! 

Tracy Klein 
Student Services Director 
Morton-Sioux Special Education Unit 
90 1 Division St. NW 
Mandan ND 58554 
Ph# (70 1 )75 1 -6500 
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1 .  P l a ns shou ld be m u ltisensory: Are yo u ta p p i n g  i nto the  
va r ious  lea rn i ng  path ways (v i su a l ,  a ud ito ry, 
k i nesthet ic/tact i l e )  w h e n  tea ch i ng you r  stude nts?  Are they 
a b l e  to  "see , " " hea r" & "fee l "  what you  a re teach i n g ?  

2 .  P la ns should  be phonetic & a lpha betic : Are you teac h i n g  
you r  students that  the re i s  a l og i ca l  co n nectio n  between 
sou nds  a n d  sym bo ls  i n  the  E n g l i s h  l a n g uage?  

3 .  P l a ns shou ld  be  synthetic/a na lytic : Are you  teach i n g  
you r students the phonemes ( sma l l est u n i t of sou n d )  & the i r  
co rrespon d i n g  g ra phemes (w ritten sym bo l ) ?  Are you 
teach i n g  you r  students that  a w h o l e  word ca n be b roke n  
d ow n  i nto its sma l l est pa rts by d ecod i n g ?  

4 .  P l a ns shou ld be structu red : D o  t h e  m ate r i a l s/co ncepts i n  
yo u r  lesso n con nect w ith  p rev io u s l y  ta u g ht  i nfo rm a t ion ? Are 
you r l esso ns  structu red i n  s u ch a way that  you r  stu dents 
know what  to expect th ro u g h o u t  the  l esso n ?  

s .  Plans  shou ld  be sequentia l :  Are you r  l essons  mov i n g  
from s i m p le co ncepts to t h e  m o re co m p lex ideas  & 
co ncepts?  

6 .  Plans  should be repetit ive : Are you cons i stent ly  c i rc l i ng 
back  fo r rev iew? Th is  p ro motes wo rd recog n it i o n ,  read i ng 
fl u e n cy & read i ng com p re h e n s io n .  

7.  P l a ns shou ld  be cu m u lative : As s k i l l s a re mastered , n ew 
s k i l l s a re i ntrod uced . Each  step se rves as  a b u i l d i n g  b l ock  to 
l e a rn i ng the Eng l i s h  l a n g u a g e .  

s .  P lans shou ld  be cogn itive : D o  you r l essons  teach  you r  
studen ts the  va r ious  ru l es of o u r l a n g u a g e  & how to a p p ly 
th ose ru les  to read i n g , w ri t i n g  & s pe l l i ng ?  

9 .  Plans  shou ld  be d iagnostic :  Are you co ns iste nt ly p rog ress 
m o n ito r i ng  you r  stu d e n ts '  pe rfo rm a n ce to assess a reas of 
n eed & respons iveness to i n te rve nt i o n ?  

10 . Plans shou ld  b e  prescriptive : Are y o u  then ta k i n g  the  
d i ag n ost ic i nfo rmat io n to  d r i ve su bseq uent  lesso ns  to  best 
ta rg et i n d iv id u a l  needs .  
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Please consider the fol lowing on why teachers need more than one method to reach striving f lo/ I 
reading students . 

I became reading specia l ist at a local elementary in Bismarck after serving as instructional 
coach and classroom teacher. When I took the position ,  there was a young man that had been 
struggl ing in read ing s ince kindergarten .  He was now a second g rader. 

The term Dyslexia had been thrown around based on some of his d isp layed patterns .  The year 
prior, the reading specia l ist decided to put him on a program using Orton Gi l l i ngham methods. 
Not yet knowing the student wel l ,  I continued the prog ram .  I t  was painfu l ,  and I regret that I 
continued as long as I d id .  He wasn't engaged . He wou ld often lay h is  head on the table. It was 
a struggle to get h im motivated to do it. Not only was he miserab le ,  he wasn 't g rowing ! 

I fina l ly decided that I cou ldn't do it to h im anymore .  I del ivered reading instruction that incl uded 
phonics ,  strateg ic th ink ing,  reading practice with coach ing ,  fluency work, and comprehension 
support. We also incorporated some eye exercises to make h is eyes work together to see print 
on a page. Shortly after these changes, he began to engage and GROW! With in  rough ly a year, 
not only was he considered proficient, not needing reading services any longer, but he was at 
grade level in reading ! With a strong foundation in place, he sti l l  does not need reading services. 

At the end of the year, I showed h im the books he had been reading when we fi rst started 
working together compared to what he cquld read at the end.  He was surprised and extremely 
proud ! Let's offer a l l  students the chance at th is kind of success. I hate to th ink  what h is journey 
would have looked l ike if I continued to push the program of Orton Gi l l i ngham methods. I fear 
that this ch i ld wou ld have been m isdiagnosed as dyslexic because he demonstrated some of 
the same characteristics . 

Subm itted by: 

Deanna  Dockter Krueger 
Reading Specia l ist 
B isma rck, N D  
Deanna . krueger7@gmai l .com 
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My name  i s  Ti na  P letan and  I am the B i smarck Pub l i c  Schools L iteracy Staff Deve loper .  Wh i l e  I 

agree with the i ntent of th i s  b i l l  i n  terms of imp rovi ng  read i ng  outcomes for a l l  students, I am 

he re to  p rovide  test imony i n  opposit ion to H B  1461 for the  fo l lowi ng  reasons :  

1 .  BPS  a l ready has  a st ructu re i n  p lace tha t  meets the  i ntent of  th i s  b i l l .  Cu rrent ly i n  

B i smarck Pub l ic Schools, a l l  students i n  grades K-5 a re a dm i n i stered screen i ng  

assessments to  ident ify those students who  a re a t  r isk o f  read i ng  fa i l u re .  To p rovid e  

add it iona l  screen i ng for a l l  students fo r dys lex ia  wou l d  be redu ndant  a n d  cost ly .  

2 .  Our structure a l so i n cl udes teams of ed ucators who d eterm i n e  evi dence-based 

i nterventions that c lose ly match the  un i q ue  needs of students .  Students' p rogress i s  

c lose ly  mon itored . 

3 . There a re a l ready tra i n ing requ i rements for teache rs to p rovide  read i ng  i n st ruct ion ;  

t he refore, it i s  not necessa ry t o  create another  credent i a l  i n  t h e  a rea of dys lexia .  Th i s  

ha s  the potent i a l  to  ca use confus ion about wh ich teachers can  work with wh ich 

stu dents . Th i s  a l so has  imp l icat ions  for add it ion a l  costs for d i st r i cts with no fisca l note 

attached to the b i l l .  
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4 .  I t  seems that the re i s  a need for base l i n e  d ata i n  terms of the l eve l of n eed for dys lex i a 

screen i ng  and  i ntervent ion before schoo l s  sta rt report i ng  on efforts to screen and  

i d ent ify students with dys lex ia .  I t  i s  u nc lear  what data is  be ing used to  estab l i s h  th is 

need .  

Wh i l e  I am  i n  opposit ion to  t he  b i l l , i t  i s  important to  note that we  a l l  agree that imp roving  

the  read i ng  outcomes  for each  a nd  every student i s  very important .  However, p rofess ion a l  

d eve lopment shou ld  be l ead ,  d es igned and  imp lemented at t h e  d i str ict a nd  bu i l d i ng  l eve l s  

i n  a l l  a reas  of read i ng  i n struct ion .  Th is a l l ows staff the  ab i l ity to respond to the specifi c  

read i ng  n eeds  of  the i r  stu dent  body .  

Tha n k  you very much for you r  t ime .  • 
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My name is Jaylia Prussing. I am testifying on behalf of the North Dakota Colleges for Teacher Education 
(NDACTE), Special Education Ad-Hoc. I want to thank Chairman Schaible, and fellow members of the Senate 
Education Committee for the opportunity to share our thoughts regarding House Bi l l  1 46 1 .  

Our ad-hoc members represent public and private universities across the state of North Dakota. Our group 
is comprised of former special education teachers, administrators, higher education accreditation directors and 
professors in special education. We understand the concern for individuals with dyslexia and appreciate the 
conversation this bill has produced. However, as a collective group we oppose House Bill 1461 as written. There 
is potential to support the bil l with the following amendments: (a) require specialists trained in comprehensive 
reading intervention rather than dyslexia specific and (b) keep identification within IDEA 2004 federal law and 
not base serving on medical diagnosis .  

Special education accreditation standards require study and application in learning differences, evidence­
based reading instruction and intervention (Council for Exceptional Children (CEC), 20 1 5 1 ) .  Grounded in 
research, the International Dyslexia Association (20 1 9) does not call for a prescribed package of program 
instruction but rather calls for structured literacy instruction. Structured l iteracy instruction is evidence-based and 
therefore falls under one of the required areas of study at all accredited universities offering special education 
l icensure programs. 

Further, accreditation standards require knowledge and application of special education laws (CEC, 20 1 5) .  
As mandated by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), school districts are required to identify 

d provide instructionally appropriate services to students with dyslexia that result in el igibility under specific 
arning disability. Students found ineligible under special education are able to receive intervention through 

multi-tiered systems of support and/or building intervention. Pre-service special education teachers are instructed 
in the basic tenants of IDEA 2004 which include util ization of evidence-based practices and building level 
supports. 

From the teacher preparation perspective, we anticipate the passing of this bil l  wil l  require universities to 
train members of their programs in dyslexia specific programs or purchase training services. Further, rather than 
keeping dyslexia coursework integrated into current reading instruction and intervention coursework, additional 
courses would l ikely need to be added. Thus, not only wil l  the passing of the bil l increase the costs of the 
l icensure programs, but an increase in coursework completion time wil l  also be noted. 

As of January 1 ,  20 1 8, the reading interventionists were no longer required to hold a reading credential or 
advanced coursework in reading development and intervention (North Dakota Department of Public Instruction 
(DPI), 20 1 8) .  Prior to the elimination of the reading credential, reading interventionists were required to complete 
advanced level coursework in reading strategies and intervention. This bill not only contradicts the state' s  
decision made just over a year ago, but also creates an even more narrowly defined specialty teaching position 
that would only require training in the area of dyslexia intervention. As noted before, we understand the unique 

1 I n  order to offer educator preparations programs that lead to l i censure, North Dakota's Educat ion Standards and Practices Board 
requ i res adherence to CEC's preparation standards for both in it ia l and  advanced programs. The Cou nci l  for the Accreditat ion of 
ducator Preparat ion (CAEP )  a l so references CEC. 
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challenges of dyslexia, however, we also understand that each individual with dyslexia has unique learning needs . 

• 
Therefore, we believe interventionists with comprehensive knowledge in evidence-based reading intervention i s  
the best option for al l students . 

In summary, our group acknowledges individual s with dyslexia face unique challenges, however, these 
unique challenges are able to be met through evidence-based reading practices . If the concern is related to 
underqualified personnel ,  the NDACTE special education ad-hoc committee recommends consideration of 
reversing the elimination of the reading credential and reinstating a high standard of qualification2 for our special 
education teachers . 

S incerely, 

�� Jaylia Prussing 
North Dakota Association for Teacher Education 
Special Education Ad-Hoc 
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NDCEL Testimony in Opposition (Copas) 

Chairman Schaible and members of the Senate Education Committee, I am here today representing 

NDCEL and our K l 2  school leaders as we di scuss concerns that we have with thi s bil l . Thi s bil l  
has some inherent i ssues in i t .  I al so have professional s from the field with me here today that wil l  

di scuss thi s from a school-based standpoint and would be wel l equipped to answer questions you 

might have specific to how thi s is being handled in school s today . Additional ly, I have a signed 
letter which you've all received in my testimony from our Special Education Directors in the state 

indicating their professional opinion on this matter. 

This testimony comes after careful consideration and should not be confused with lack of 
identification of the seriousness of this learning disabil ity for our students that struggle with 

this. Each and every educational professional I 've vi sited with about thi s has i ndicated that 

dyslexia, l ike with many of the disabi l i ties our students struggle with, i s  not one to take l ightly -

certainly deserving as much school based attention as possible to assure the success of students. 
At the educational level thi s should continue to be an ongoing conversation on how we can better 

serve our student populations that have thi s l earning di sabi l i ty as well as other learning di sab ilities 

our students struggle with . However, experts from the field do not agree that the approach in  thi s 
bi l l  wi l l  solve the i ssue. Additionally a key and inherent i ssue with the bill i n  general i s  the basic 

question that if we are going to carve out an area of century code for a specific di sabil ity - do we 

then need to do the same with each other disabi l i ty such as Auditory Processing Disorder (APD), 
Visual Processing Di sorder, Dyscalculia, Dysgraphia, Language Processing Disorder, Non-Verbal 

Learning Di sabi l ities, Visual/Perceptual - Visual/Motor Deficit, ADHD, Dyspraxia, Executive 

Functioning, Dysphasia, Auti sm, Tourette ' s? I would imagine the door would be open to that in 

future legis lative sessions, and we've not typical ly known thi s body to enj oy l egi slating the "how­
to" when it comes to educating our students - that j ob has best been left to the highly qual ified 
professional s in the field .  The legislator' s  role has traditionally been to provide for a uniform 

system of publ ic education and for providing the guidel ine regarding general qual ifications for the 

NDCEL is the strongest un ifying voice representing and supporting admin istrators and educational leaders i n  pursuit of qua l ity ed ucation for al l  students in North Dakota . 
Executive Di rector: Aimee Copas------------ ·------Assistant Di rectoc R uss Ziegler 
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"highly qual ified individual" I referenced, so that as state l eaders your j ob doesn 't have to be 

managing the detai l of the "how-to" . 

As with other i ssues that relate to a student di sabil ity, the best possible  resolution comes from 
bringing experts together to l earn from each other and find ways to best serve the students. C learly 

those in support have a compel l ing argument for focus on thi s  di sabi l ity ,  however, in our humble 

opinion, a better and more research based approach would be a legitimate task force to put focused 

intent on providing the best possibl e  services to students who deal dai ly with dysl exia. 

Un-funded Mandate 

Screening: One of the key areas that brings concern to school leaders is the inherent unfunded 

mandate that comes from thi s b i l l . Mandated offering of screening for al l students in grades K-2 

including the screening equipment & tests, and staff and student time .  Screenings for al l students 

would come at an extraordinary expense and time consumption . Further - regarding l earning 

di sabi l i ties, we do not require screening of al l students for anything. Screenings take place when 

notable chal l enges are indicated. In addition, as noted in the research article attached which i s  a 

meta analys is  performed by the International Literacy Association indicated that " Some have 

advocated for an assessment process that determines who should and should not be classified as 

dysl exic, but thi s process has been widely shown to be highly variable across states and di stricts 

in the United States, of questionable val idity, and too often resulting in empiri cally unsupported, 

one-size fits all program recommendations ." On the basi s of thi s inherent variabi l ity, what our 
educators have been doing i s  ongoing analysi s of all kinds of learning and reading di sabi l ities 

performing a full battery of screenings when a student shows indications of struggl ing rather than 

offering a bl anket screening to al l .  

The reporting requirement in thi s  section additional ly adds to the already overwhelming l i st of data 

that schools report on . Again - I mentioned earl i er the chall enges of future l egi slation coming our 

way if thi s passes for other l earning disabi l ities, it would seem that there might be a ti dal wave of 

additi onal reporting in the future . 

NDCEL is the strongest un ifying voice representing and supporting admin istrators and educational leaders in pursuit of qual�y education for all students in North Dakota. 2 Executive Di rector: Aimee Copas---···············-Assistant Di rector: Russ Ziegler 

• 



Professional Development/Training: Whi le uti l ization of REA' s i s one of our optimal processes 

for training, we must question whether or not all 8 REA' s have individual s trained with at l east an 

l\1ED in Special ized Learning Disabi l ities or the equivalent to be abl e  to support di stricts with 
requested training - thi s thereby becomes a mandate that REA' s do not currently have the funding 
to perform . Additionally, when our Special Education Directors from Special Education Study 

Counci l - directors from around the state do not recommend thi s  b i l l  - that makes thi s request 
chal lenging. I ' d  ask that you please refer to the letter written from the ND Speci al Education Study 

Council .  

Again, we agree that there needs to b e  more di stri ct level and state level serious conversations .  
We' d l ike to instead recommend that a task force be considered to study and collaborate in  the 

area of dyslexia and early intervention in  disabi l i ties that impact reading as it, along with other 

l earning disabi l i ti es, deserves our continued attenti on and ongoing improvement on how we 
support the students who have these disabi l i ties .  Perhaps thi s would be an ideal subcommittee 

study of the K 12 Coordination Council if SB22 l 5 passes. © 

We respectfully recommend a DO NOT PASS On thi s bi l l  and rather recommend a task force 

approach to address thi s learning disabi l i ty .  

NDCEL 1s the strongest unifying voice representing and supporting admin istrators and educational leaders i n  pursuit of qual ity ed ucation for al l students i n  North Dakota. 3 Executive Director: Aimee Copas---················Assistant Director: Russ Zieg ler 



• 

14-B J Ll ' I  
3 - Z,o -! � 

UPPER VALLEY SPECIAL EDUCATION 

Phone: (701 ) 352-2574 

51 6 Cooper Ave.STE 1 02 
Grafton, ND 58237 

Senate Chairperson Scha ible and Educat ion Committee Members :  

Fax: (70 1 )  352-01 88 
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On beha lf of the North Dakota Specia l  Education Di rector's Study Counci l, we applaud the 
efforts of concerned parents and legislators who support House Bi l l  1461, relating to dys lexia 
screen ings and tra in ing for teachers. Whi le  we strive da i ly to ensure every student in North 
Dakota l earns to read, we have sign ificant concerns regard ing the language and impl ications of 
HB 1461 and oppose it as it is written .  

We encourage you to oppose HB 1461 as written for the fol lowing reasons: 

1) The short and long-term financ ia l  impl ications of this b i l l  are not addressed . 
a .  Districts a re unable to immediately budget for required dyslexia tra in ing and  

coursework for staff to  become certified as the bi l l  does not identify how a 
teacher becomes a 'dyslexia specia l ist .' 

2 )  The defin ition of 'dys lexia' in  th is bi l l  needs to be reviewed and redefined . If a student 
has an i ntellectual d isab i l ity, he/she will struggle with reading; that does not mean 
he/she has dyslexia .  

3) Regional Educat ion Associat ions (REAs) a re identified in  th is b i l l  to tra in  school d istr icts 
in dyslexia identificat ion and interventions. Whi le some REAs across North Dakota a re 
strong and provide extensive tra ining to d istricts, some others a re not. REAs need to be 
u nified i n  thei r  knowledge of dyslexia and ro le of provid ing tra in ing to d istricts before it 
becomes a state law. 

4) It is an  overreach to in it iate a State Code/system that may lead to the estab l ishment of a 
un ique or self-standing d isabi l ity category i n  excess of the current Specific Learn i ng 
Disab i l it ies category identified by the Federal IDEA. This precedence may lead to a 
greater demand for establ ish ing Mu ltiple State Codes for the n umerous a reas of 
exceptiona l ity. 

As spec ia l  education d i rectors, we share i n  a common goa l of wanting every student in North 
Dakota to lea rn to read .  We agree that more tra in i ng needs to be given to school d i stricts on 
read ing i nterventions in our state. We do not believe HB 1461 would appropriately accompl ish 
that goa l .  G iven our concerns with HB 1461, we propose the fol lowing: 
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1)  We request a study committee be formed at the state leve l .  Th is study committee 
would include stake holders to p repare for the 2021 legislative session. Th is committee 
would . . .  

a .  col lect data to  identify how many ND  students have read ing difficu lties but are 
not rece iving read ing i nterventions 

b .  col laborate to specifica l ly d efine dyslexia (what it is and what it i s  not) 
c. identify, research, and recommend dyslexia screen ing tools and interventions 
d. compare and contrast the requirements of a dyslexia specia l ist and current NO 

Education Standards and Practices Board Specia l  Education Endorsements 

F ind i ngs of the above items would be compi led to make any necessary recommendations for 
the 2021 legislative session . 

Thank  you for your  attention to our  concerns and recommendations. 

Sincerely, 

Dan Juve 
Pres ident North Dakota Stu dy Counci l 
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B
oth informal and professional discussions about dysf ?o f JD 
lexia often reflect emotional, conceptual, and eco-
nomic commitments, and they are often not well • 
informed by research. Our beliefs and practices should 

be grounded by what emerges from the available evidence 
(Elliott & Grigorenko, 2014; Vellutino, 1979; Washburn, Joshi, 
& Binks-Cantrell, 2011). Although there are contradictions and 
uncertainties in the research on dyslexia, there are also im­
portant convergences. 

First, some children, both boys and girls, have more diffi­
culty than others in learning to read and write regardless of 
their levels of intelligence or creativity. When beginning liter­
acy instruction is engaging and responsive to children's needs, 
however, the percentage of school children having continuing 
difficulty is small (Vellutino et al., 1996; Vellutino, Scanlon, & 
Lyon, 2000). 

Second, the nature and causes of dyslexia, and even the util­
ity of the concept, are still under investigation. Although genet­
ics and neurology appear to play a role in reading difficulties, 
environment and instruction moderate that role. Evidence does 
not support what many take to be indicators or predictors of 
dyslexia, including clumsiness, fine motor problems, attention 
deficits, creativity, or handedness (Barth et al., 2010; Elliott & 
Grigorenko, 2014; Fletcher et al., 2011; Ritchie, Luciano, Hansell, 
Wright, & Bates, 2013) . 

Third, dyslexia, or severe reading difficulties, do not result 
from visual problems producing letter and word reversals 
(Vellutino, 1979) . Most children confuse similar-looking letters 
and words while learning to read. This is partly because some 
letters are similar in appearance and partly because most ob­
jects children learn about are called by the same name no mat­
ter how they are oriented in space-a chair is a chair even when 
it is turned upside down. Letters and words are not like that-a 
p is a p in one orientation only. Children need to learn that ori­
entation matters when it comes to print . Children sometimes 
confuse whole words (such as was and saw) because they look 
alike except for the order of the letters. In their early learning, 
children often do not use the sequence of letter-sounds in the 
word to help them settle to the word's identity. 

Many researchers accept the idea that dyslexia/severe read-
ing difficulties results from difficulties in analyzing and ma- • 
nipulating sounds in words (Vellutino, Fletcher, Snowling, & 

2 
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Scanlon, 2004). These difficulties, however, do not of therrf- f ot- ID 
selves allow us to distinguish readers with dyslexia from other 
readers encountering difficulties, or from younger readers with 
the same level of reading proficiency. Errors in reading and 
spelling made by children classified as dyslexic are not reliably 
different from those of younger children who are not classified 
as dyslexic. Rather, evidence suggests that readers with similar 
levels of competence make similar kinds of errors. This does 
not suggest a greater incidence of dyslexia, but instead that 
some difficulties in learning to work with sounds are normal. 

One disconcerting outcome of the challenges involved in 
making distinctions is that estimates of the incidence of dys­
lexia vary widely. In spite of that, research indicates that most 
students who experience literacy problems in their early years 
do not ultimately have long-term difficulties when appropriate 
instruction and intervention are provided. In fact, interven­
tions that are appropriately responsive to individual needs have 
been shown to reduce the number of children with continuing 
difficulties in reading to below 2% of the population (Vellutino 
et al. , 2000) .  

As yet, there is no certifiably best method for teaching chil­
dren who experience reading difficulty (Mathes et al. , 2005). 
For instance, research does not support the common belief 
that Orton-Gillingham-based approaches are necessary for 
students classified as dyslexic (Ritchey & Goeke, 2007; Turner, 
2008; Vaughn & Linan-Thompson, 2003). Reviews of research 
focusing solely on decoding interventions have shown either 
small to moderate or variable effects that rarely persist over 
time, and little to no effects on more global reading skills . 
Rather, students classified as dyslexic have varying strengths 
and challenges, and teaching them is too complex a task for a 
scripted, one-size-fits-all program (Coyne et al., 2013; Phillips 
& Smith, 1997; Simmons, 2015). Optimal instruction calls for 
teachers' professional expertise and responsiveness, and for 
the freedom to act on the basis of that professionalism. 

Some have advocated for an assessment process that deter­
mines who should and should not be classified as dyslexic, but 
this process has been shown to be highly variable across states 
and districts in the United States, of questionable validity, 
and too often resulting in empirically unsupported, one-size­
fits-all program recommendations. Assessment that gives us 
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h . . . .JJJ , 111P/O a a on ow to support mstruct10n t at 1s responsive to m�-
viduals' needs and comprehensive in scope is more useful in 
meeting students' needs (Vellutino et al. , 200,t). So it may be 
that not using the term dyslexia would, on balance, benefit the 
teaching/learning process: Professionals' attention would be 
turned away from an arbitrary cut-off point for making deci-
sions about a learner and toward a focus on what that learner is 
ready to learn and, from there, on to how to provide beneficial 
instruction. 
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Cha i rman  Scha i b l e  and  members of the  Senate Educat ion Com mittee, my name is A lexis 

Baxl ey. I serve as  the executive d i rector of the No rth Dakota School  Boards Assoc iat ion .  N DSBA 

represents a l l  178 pub l i c  schoo l  d istr icts i n  the state of No rth  Dakota and the i r  boards .  We a re 

here today i n  opposit io n  to HB  1461 .  

We have a n u m ber  of concerns a bout the  b i l l , b ut fi rst and  foremost i s  what seems to be  

a focus on fi nd i ng  a one s ize fits a l l  approach identify ing and  teach i ng students with dyslexi a .  

Research has  cons istent ly shown that there i s  not one cons istent ly effective app roach,  but 

rather, i n struct ion shou l d  be mod ified to su it each i nd iv idu a l  student's strengths and  

weaknesses. I p rovided the  c lerk with a pub l icat ion from the  I nternat iona l  Lite racy Associ at ion 

regard i ng  dys l ex ia  research . 

Second,  we are concerned that the b i l l  s i ng les out dys lex ia from other learn ing 

cha l l enges.  Th is  cou l d  resu lt i n  schoo ls  focus ing on identify ing students w ith  dys lexia and 

miss ing stu dents w ith  other  cha l lenges as  a resu lt .  

F i n a l ly, we a re concerned that the b i l l  i nc l udes requ i rements for p ub l i c  schoo l d i str icts 

and the  super intendent of pub l ic instruction ,  but does not i n c l ude  any fund i ng for those tasks .  

For these reasons, we encourage the com mittee to give HB 1461 a do  not pass 

recommendation .  Thank  you for you r  t ime, and I wou l d  be  happy to answer any questions .  
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Senator Schaible 4-lf JI { March 25, 201 9 

/ r I f � ,+-

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE B ILL NO. 1 461 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "enact" insert "a" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  replace "sections" with "section" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  replace "chapters" with "chapter" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  remove "and 1 5 . 1 -34" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, replace "dyslexia" with "read ing" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2 ,  remove "and training for teachers and other staff'' 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  after the semicolon insert "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4 ,  replace "dyslexia" with "read ing" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4,  remove "; and to provide for a report to the leg islative management" 

Page 2, l i ne 4, replace "dyslexia" with "read ing" 

Page 2, remove l ines 9 through 31  

Page 3, replace l ines 1 through 6 with : 

"Reading screening . 

.:L. Each publ ic elementary school shal l  include in the developing and 
processing of assessments and screen ing of reading, the core 
components of phonetic awareness, decoding, and spel l ing. The screening 
also must be offered if requested by a parent, legal guardian, or teacher. 

2. The board of a school d istrict may contract with, employ, and compensate 
reading specia l ists, credentialed by the superintendent of publ ic instruction 
under section 1 5 . 1 -02-1 6, to educate and tra in district teachers in 
appropriate reading screening methods, identification, and intervention . A 
reading special ist hired by the board of a school district must be trained in 
proven reading remediation strategies. " 

Renumber accord ingly 
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

F IRST ENGROSSMENT 

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1 461 

Representatives Strinden, P. Anderson, Mock, Schatz 

Senators Davison, Kreun, Myrdal 

I/B l </� /  
L/-1-/9 
lfH- .#2-
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1 A B l  LL for an Act to create and enact £..new seotionssection to chapterschapter 15.1-32 aBe 

2 15.1 34 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to dyslexiareading screenings and training 

3 for teachers and other staff; and to amend and reenact section 1 5 . 1 -02- 1 6 of the North Dakota 

4 Century Code ,  relating to credentials for dyslexiareading specialists; and to provide for a report 

5 to the legislative management. 

6 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

7 SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 5.1 -02- 1 6  of the North Dakota Century Code is 

8 amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

9 1 5. 1 -02-1 6. Superintendent of public instruction - Issuance of credentials to teachers 

1 0  and administrators. 

1 1  The superintendent of public instruction may adopt rules governing the issuance of: 

1 2  1 .  Credentials for teachers of driver's education; 

1 3  2 .  Credentials for teachers of early childhood special education; 

1 4  3 .  Credentials for elementary school principals; 

1 5  4. Credentials for teachers of students who are emotional ly disturbed; 

1 6  5. Credentials for teachers of students who are gifted and talented; 

1 7  6 .  Credentials for secondary school principals; 

1 8  7 .  Credentials for library media ; 

1 9  8 .  Credentials for teachers of title I ;  

20 9. Credentials for teachers of students who have inte l lectual disabilities; 

2 1  1 0. Credentials for teachers of students who are physical ly disabled; 

22 1 1 .  Credentials for coordinators of programs for students with l imited English proficiency; 

23 1 2 . Credentials for school counselors; 

24 1 3 . Credentials for special education directors; 

Page No. 1 1 9.0557.0600 1 
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1 1 4. Credentials for special education strategists ; 

2 1 5 . Credentials for teachers of students who have specific learn ing disabil it ies ;  

3 1 6 . Credentials for superintendents ;  

4 1 7. Credentials for teachers of students who have vision impairments ;  

5 1 8 . Credentials for dyslexiareading specialists; 

6 1 9. Credentials for teachers of students who are deaf or hard of hearing; and 

7 4fh20.  Certificate of completion for paraprofessionals. 

8 SECTION 2.  A new section to chapter 1 5. 1 -32 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

9 and enacted as follows: 

1 0  Dyslexia screening Report to legislative management. 

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

.L Eaoh publio elementary sohool shall offer to administer dyslexia soreenings to any 

enrolled student through the end of the seoond grade. /\ parent or legal guardian of a 

student may refuse a dyslexia soreening offered by the sohool. 

� The board of a sohool distriot may oontract ·.vith, employ, and oompensate dyslexia 

speoialists, credentialed by the superintendent of publio instruotion under section 

15.1 02 16, to educate and train distriot teachers in appropriate dyslexia screening 

methods, identifioation, and intervention. /\ dyslexia specialist hired by the board of a 

school district must be trained in proven dyslexia remediation strategies. 

� The superintendent of public instruotion shall adopt rules, in consultation ·.vith 

teachers, sohool administrators, and other stakeholders, setting forth the oriteria for 

administering dyslexia soreenings and for notifying the student's parent or legal 

guardian of the results of the soreening. 

.i. The board of eaoh school distriot shall report annually to the superintendent of public 

instruction regarding the distriot's efforts to screen and identify students with dyslexia. 

Before June first of each even numbered year, the superintendent of public instruotion 

shall oompile the information and report to the legislative management. 

� For purposes of this section, "dyslexia" means a specific learning disability that is 

neurological in origin and charaoterized by difficulties •.vith accurate or fluent 

recognition of words and poor spelling and decoding abilities, independent of the 

individual's general intelligence level. 

Page No. 2 1 9.0557.0600 1 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

H- !3  / '-lb (  
l/ - I - IC/ Sixty-sixth 

Leg islative Assembly A#- # 2..  
� 3 o � 3 

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 15.1 34 of the North Dakota Century Gode is created 

and enacted as follows: 

Dyslexia Training to teachers, administrators, and ancillary staff Intervention. 

The superintendent of public instruction shall collaborate with regional education 

associations to disseminate information, training materials, and notice of training opportunities 

to school districts and nonpublic schools regarding dyslexia identification and intervention. If 

publio school personnel identify a student as having dyslexia. a trained teaoher employed or 

oontracted by the school may provide dyslexia intervention services to the student. 

Reading screen ing. 

1 .  Each public elementary school shall include in the developing and processing of 

assessments and screening of reading, the core components of phonetic awareness, 

decoding, and spell ing. The screening also must be offered if requested by a parent. 

legal guardian, or  teacher. 

2 .  The board of a school district may contract with, employ, and compensate reading 

specialists. credentialed by the superintendent of public instruction under section 

1 5. 1 -02-1 6, to educate and train district teachers in appropriate reading screening 

methods, identification. and intervention. A reading specialist h i red by the board of a 

school district must be trained in proven reading remediation strategies. 

Page No. 3 1 9.0557.0600 1 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Strinden 

April 1 5, 201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1 461 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1 459 of the House Journal 
and pages 1 2 1 7  and 1 2 1 8  of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1 461  be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "enact" insert "two" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "chapters" with "chapter" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  remove "and 1 5. 1 -34" 

Page 1 ,  line 2, replace "dyslexia" with "reading" 

Page 1 ,  line 2, replace "and training for teachers and other staff'' with "and a dyslexia screening 
pilot program" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, remove "dyslexia" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, after "specialists" insert "trained in dyslexia" 

Page 2, line 4, remove "dyslexia" 

Page 2, line 4, after "specialists" insert "trained in dyslexia" 

Page 2, remove lines 9 through 31 

Page 3, replace lines 1 through 6 with: 

"Reading screening . 

.1. Each public elementary school shall include in the developing and 
processing of assessments and screening of reading, the core 
components of phonetic awareness, decoding, and spelling. The screening 
also must be offered if requested by a parent, legal guardian, or teacher. 

2 .  The board of a school district may contract with, employ, and compensate 
specialists trained in dyslexia and reading, credentialed by the 
superintendent of public instruction under section 1 5. 1 -02- 1 6, to educate 
and train district teachers in appropriate reading screening methods, 
identification, and intervention. A specialist trained in dyslexia and reading 
hired by the board of a school district must be trained in proven reading 
remediation strategies. 

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 1 5. 1 -32 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Dyslexia screening - Pilot program - Report to legislative management -
Professional development. 

.1. For purposes of this section: 

a. "Dyslexia" means a specific learning disability that is neurological in 
origin and characterized by difficulties with accurate or fluent 

Page No. 1 1 9 .0557.06003 



recognition of words and poor spelling and decoding abilities, 
independent of the individual's general intelligence level. 

b. "Specialist trained in dyslexia" means an individual who: 

ill Has expertise providing training in phonological and phonemic 
awareness, sound and symbol relationships, alphabet 
knowledge, rapid naming skills, and encoding and decoding 
skills: 

@ Is fluent in the dyslexia intervention process: 

Ql Has training in identifying dyslexia: and 

ffi Has received or is working toward receiving a credential under 
subsection 18 of section 15.1-02-16. 

2.,. Beginning with the 2019-20 school year and continuing through the 
2024-25 school year, the superintendent of public instruction shall 
establish and operate a pilot program to provide early screening and 
intervention services for children with risk factors for dyslexia, including low 
phonemic awareness. 

� To be eligible to participate in the program, a school district must submit an 
application to the superintendent which: 

a. Identifies a method of screening children for low phonemic awareness 
and other risk factors for dyslexia: 

b. Provides for the enrollment of children identified as having risk factors 
for dyslexia in a reading program staffed by specialists trained in 
dyslexia and multisensory structured language programs: and 

c. Includes a methodology for evaluating the effects of the reading 
program on the identified risk factors of the child. 

4. Each school district selected to participate in the program shall: 

� Provide low phonemic awareness and other dyslexia risk factor 
screenings for children under seven years of age through a reading 
program established under subsection 3: 

.12:. Provide reading intervention services to students identified as having 
dyslexia: and 

c. Administer assessments, approved by the superintendent of public 
instruction. to determine the effectiveness of the program in improving 
the reading and learning skills of children enrolled in the program. 

5. The superintendent of public instruction shall develop a long-term 
sustainability plan for the program. and if determined necessary. continue 
the program for up to four additional years. If the program demonstrates 
the effectiveness of early reading assistance programs for children with 
risk factors for dyslexia and if the program reduces special education 
costs. the superintendent shall determine the long-term sustainability of the 
program is necessary. 
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§,_ The superintendent of public instruction shall adopt rules, in consultation 
with teachers, school administrators, and other stakeholders. to administer 
the pilot program under this section. The rules must provide criteria for 
notifying the parent or legal guardian of a child identified as having 
dyslexia and of the child's eligibility to participate in the program. 

L. The board of each participating school district shall report annually to the 
superintendent of public instruction regarding the operation. results, and 
effectiveness of the pilot program in a manner prescribed by the 
superintendent. Before July 1, 2024, the superintendent of public 
instruction shall compile the information and report to the legislative 
management with a recommendation whether to continue the pilot 
program beyond the 2024-25 school year. 

8. §.:. At least once a year, each participating school district must provide a 
minimum of one hour of professional development on dyslexia 
identification and intervention to teachers and administrators. Each 
participating school district shall encourage ancillary and support staff 
to participate in the professional development. The training must 
include: 

ill 
.(21 
.Ql 
ill 
.(fil 

@ 

Phonological awareness; 

Sound symbol recognition; 

Alphabet knowledge; 

Decoding skills; 

Rapid naming skills; and 

Encoding. 

b. Each school district shall report the professional development hours to 
the department of public instruction. 

c. The superintendent of public instruction shall collaborate with regional 
education associations to disseminate information, training materials, 
and notice of training opportunities to school districts and nonpublic 
schools." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

FIRST ENGROSSMENT 

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1461 

Introduced by 

Representatives Strinden, P. Anderson, Mock, Schatz 

Senators Davison, Kreun, Myrdal 

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to ohapterschapter 1 5.1 -32 and 15.1 34 

2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to dyslexiareading screenings and training for 

3 teachers and other staff and a dyslexia screening pilot program; to amend and reenact section 

4 1 5.1 -02-1 6 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to credentials for dyslexia specialists 

5 trained in dyslexia ; and to provide for a report to the legislative management. 

6 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

7 SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 1 5.1 -02-1 6 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

8 amended and reenacted as follows: 

9 15.1-02-16. Superintendent of public instruction - Issuance of credentials to teachers 

1 0  and administrators. 

1 1  The superintendent of public instruction may adopt rules governing the issuance of: 

1 2  1 .  Credentials for teachers of d river's education; 

1 3  2. Credentials for teachers of early chi ldhood special education; 

1 4  3. Credentials for elementary school principals; 

1 5  4. Credentials for teachers of students who are emotionally disturbed ; 

1 6  5. Credentials for teachers of students who are gifted and talented ; 

1 7  6. Credentials for secondary school principals; 

1 8  7. Credentials for library media; 

1 9  8. Credentials for teachers of tit le I; 

20 9. Credentials for teachers of students who have intellectual disabilities ; 

2 1  1 0. Credentials for teachers of students who are physically d isabled ; 

22 1 1 .  Credentials for coordinators of programs for students with limited English proficiency; 

23 1 2. Credentials for school counselors;  

24 1 3. Credentials for special education directors; 
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1 1 4. Credentials for special education strategists ; 

2 1 5. Credentials for teachers of students who have specific learning disabilities ; 

3 1 6. Credentials for superintendents ; 

4 1 7. Credentials for teachers of students who have vision impairments ; 

5 1 8. Credentials for dyslexia specialists trained in dyslexia: 

6 � Credentials for teachers of students who are deaf or hard of hearing; and 

7 49:-20. Certificate of completion for paraprofessionals. 

8 SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 1 5.1 -32 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

9 and enacted as follows: 

1 0  Dyslexia screening Report to legislati>1e management. 

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  
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1. Each public elementary school shall offer to administer dyslexia screenings to any 

enrolled student through the end of the second grade. A parent or legal guardian of a 

student may refuse a dyslexia screening offered by the school. 

.a_ The board of a school district may contract with, employ, and compensate dyslexia 

specialists, credentialed by the superintendent of public instruction under section 

15.1 02 16, to educate and train district teachers in appropriate dyslexia screening 

methods, identification, and intervention. A dyslexia specialist hired by the board of a 

school district must be trained in proven dyslexia remediation strategies. 

� The superintendent of public instruction shall adopt rules, in consultation ·Nith 

teachers, school administrators, and other stakeholders, setting forth the criteria for 

administering dyslexia screenings and for notifying the student's parent or legal 

guardian of the results of the screening. 

4. The board of each school district shall report annually to the superintendent of public 

instruction regarding the district's efforts to screen and identify students ·.vith dyslexia. 

Before June first of each e•,en numbered year, the superintendent of public instruction 

shall compile the information and report to the legislative management. 

§_.,_ For purposes of this section, "dyslexia" means a specifio learning disability that is 

neurological in origin and characterized by difficulties with accurate or fluent 

recognition of words and poor spelling and decoding abilities, independent of the 

individual's general intelligence level. 
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1 SECTION 3. /\ new section to chapter 15 .1  34 of the North Dakota Century Gode is created 

2 and enacted as folloi.'ls: 

3 Dyslexia Training to teachers, administrators, and ancillary staff Intervention. 

4 The superintendent of public instruction shall collaborate 1.vith regional education 

5 associations to disseminate information. training materials. and notice of training opportunities 

6 to school districts and nonpublic schools regarding dyslexia identification and intervention. If 

7 public school personnel identify a student as having dyslexia. a trained teacher employed or 

8 contracted by the school may provide dyslexia intervention services to the student. 

9 Reading screening. 

1 0  

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 .  Each public elementary school shall include in the developing and processing of 

assessments and screening of reading. the core components of phonetic awareness. 

decoding, and spelling . The screening also must be offered if requested by a parent. 

legal guardian. or teacher. 

2. The board of a school district may contract with. employ. and compensate specialists 

1 5  trained in dyslexia and reading. credentialed by the superintendent of public instruction 

1 6  under section 1 5. 1 -02- 1 6. to educate and train district teachers in appropriate reading 

1 7  screening methods. identification. and intervention .  A specialist trained in dyslexia and 

1 8  reading hired by the board of a school district must be trained in proven reading 

1 9  remediation strategies. 

20 SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 15.1-32 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

2 1  and enacted as follows: 

22 Dyslexia screening - Pilot program - Report to legislative management - Professional 

23 development. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

1. For purposes of this section : 

a .  "Dyslexia" means a specific learning disability that is neurological in origin and 

characterized by difficulties with accurate or fluent recognition of words and poor 

spelling and decoding abilities. independent of the individual's general 

intelligence level. 

b .  "Specialist trained in dyslexia" means an individual who: 
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(1 )  Has expertise providing training in phonological and phonemic awareness, 

sound and symbol relationships, alphabet knowledge, rapid naming skills, 

and encoding and decoding skills: 

(2) Is fluent in the dyslexia intervention process: 

(3) Has training in identifying dyslexia; and 

( 4) Has received or is working toward receiving a credential under 

subsection 1 8  of section 1 5. 1 -02-1 6 .  

2 .  Beginning with the 20 1 9-20 school year and continuing through the 2024-25 school 

year, the superintendent of public instruction shall establish and operate a pilot 

program to provide early screening and intervention services for children with risk 

factors for dyslexia, including low phonemic awareness. 

3 .  To be eligible to participate in the program, a school district must submit an application 

to the superintendent which: 

a .  Identifies a method of  screenin children for low honemic awareness and other 

risk factors for dyslexia: 

b. Provides for the enrollment of children identified as having risk factors for 

dyslexia in a reading program staffed by specialists trained in dyslexia and 

multisensory structured language programs: and 

c. Includes a methodology for evaluating the effects of the reading program on the 

identified risk factors of the child . 

4 .  Each school district selected to participate in the program shall : 

a .  Provide low phonemic awareness and other dyslexia risk factor screenings for 

children under seven years of age through a reading program established under 

subsection 3; 

b .  Provide reading intervention services to students identified as having dyslexia; 

and 

c. Administer assessments, approved by the superintendent of public instruction, to 

determine the effectiveness of the program in improving the reading and learning 

skills of children enrolled in the program. 

5. The superintendent of public instruction shall develop a long-term sustainability plan 

for the program, and if determined necessary, continue the program for up to four 
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additional years. If the program demonstrates the effectiveness of early reading 

assistance programs for children with risk factors for dyslexia and if the program 

reduces special education costs, the superintendent shall determine the long-term 

sustainability of the program is necessary. 

6 .  The superintendent of public instruction shall adopt rules, i n  consultation with 

teachers, school administrators, and other stakeholders, to administer the pilot 

program under this section .  The rules must provide criteria for notifying the parent or 

legal guardian of a child identified as having dyslexia and of the child's eligibility to 

participate in the program. 

7. The board of each participating school district shall report annually to the 

superintendent of public instruction regarding the operation, results, and effectiveness 

of the pilot program in a manner prescribed by the superintendent. Before 

July 1 ,  2024, the superintendent of public instruction shall compile the information and 

report to the legislative management with a recommendation whether to continue the 

pilot program beyond the 2024-25 school year. 

8. a. At least once a year, each participating school district must provide a minimum of 

one hour of professional development on dyslexia identification and intervention 

to teachers and administrators. Each participating school district shall encourage 

ancillary and support staff to participate in the professional development. The 

training must include: 

( 1 ) Phonological awareness: 

(2) Sound symbol recognition; 

(3) Alphabet knowledge: 

(4) Decoding skills: 

(5) Rapid naming skills: and 

(6) Encoding. 

b .  Each school district shall report the professional development hours to the 

department of public instruction .  

c. The superintendent of public instruction shall collaborate with regional education 

associations to disseminate information, training materials, and notice of training 

opportunities to school districts and nonpublic schools. 
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What is Orton­
Gillingham/ 
Structured Literacy 
Instruction? 
Jo i n  us for an  engag ing  20-hour 
workshop i ntroduci ng  teachers and specia l ists to the sci ence­
based, exp l i c it, systematic, and mu ltisensory approach to 
teach ing read i ng ,  spel l i ng ,  and  writi ng  with proven 
effectiveness for all. learners !  

WHEN: August 7, 8, 9 

WHERE: Inspiring Minds, Center for Dyslexia and Literacy 
1 43 1 Interstate Loop, Bismarck, ND 58503 

COST: $525 including materials (graduate credit is available for 
an additional fee) 

INSTRUCTOR: Pamela Krueger, M .Ed, Fellow In-Training with 
the Academy of Orton-Gill ingham Practitioners 
and Educators (AOGPE) 
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

FIRST ENGROSSMENT 

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1461 

Representatives Strinden, P. Anderson, Mock, Schatz 

Senators Davison, Kreun, Myrdal 

H B · /4{ I 
tJ - t B - , q  

f r  

1 A BILL for an Act to create and enact twQ_new sections to ehapterschapter 15.1-32 and 16.1 34 

2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to dyslexiareading screenings and training for 

3 teachers and other staff and a dyslexia screening pilot program; to amend and reenact section 

4 15 .1-02-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to credentials for dyslexia specialists 

5 trained in dyslexia:-aRe to provide for a report to the legislative management: and to provide for 

6 an exemption. 

7 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

8 SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 15 .1-02-16 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

9 amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 0  15.1-02-16. Superintendent of publ ic instruction - Issuance of credentials to teachers 

1 1  and administrators. 

1 2  The superintendent of public instruction may adopt ru les governing the issuance of: 

1 3  1. Credentials for teachers of driver's education; 

1 4  2 .  Credentials for teachers of early childhood special education; 

1 5  3. Credentials for elementary school principals; 

1 6  4. Credentials for teachers of students who are emotional ly disturbed ; 

1 7  5.  Credentials for teachers of students who are gifted and talented ; 

1 8  6. Credentials for secondary school principals; 

1 9  7. Credentials for library media; 

20 8 .  Credentials for teachers of title I ;  

21  9. Credentials for teachers of students who have intel lectual disabilities; 

22 10. Credentials for teachers of students who are physically disabled ; 

23 11. Credentials for coordinators of programs for students with limited English proficiency; 

24 12. Credentials for school counselors; 
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1 1 3 . Credentials for special education directors; 

2 1 4 . Credentials for special education strategists; 

3 1 5 . Credentials for teachers of students who have specific learning disabilities; 

4 1 6 . Credentials for superintendents;  

5 1 7 . Credentials for teachers of students who have vision impairments ;  

6 1 8. Credentials for dyslexia specialists trained in dyslexia: 

7 � Credentials for teachers of students who are deaf or hard of hearing ; and 

8 49:-20. Certificate of completion for paraprofessionals. 

9 SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 1 5. 1 -32 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is c reated 

1 0  and enacted as fol lows: 

1 1  Dyslexia screening Report to legislati¥e management. 

1 2  

1 3  
1 4  

1 5 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  
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1.  Each public elementary school shall offer to administer dyslexia screenings to any 

enrolled student through the end of the second grade. A parent or legal guardian of a 

student may refuse a dyslexia screening offered by the school. 

2. The board of a school district may contract with. employ. and compensate dyslexia 

specialists. credentialed by the superintendent of public instruction under section 

15.1 02 16. to educate and train district teachers in appropriate dyslexia screening 

methods. identification. and intervention. A dyslexia specialist hired by the board of a 

school district must be trained in pro•,en dyslexia remediation strategies. 

3. The superintendent of public instruction shall adopt rules. in consultation with 

teachers. school administrators. and other stal<'eholders. setting forth the criteria for 

administering dyslexia screenings and for notifying the student's parent or legal 

guardian of the results of the screening. 

4. The board of each school district shall report annually to the superintendent of public 

instruction regarding the district's efforts to screen and identify students -.·,ith dyslexia. 

Before June first of each even numbered year. the superintendent of public instruction 

shall compile the information and report to the legislative management. 

5. For purposes of this section. "dyslexia" means a specific learning disability that is 

neurological in origin and characterized by difficulties with accurate or fluent 

recognition of words and poor spelling and decoding abilities. independent of the 

individual's general intelligence le•,el. 
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1 SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 15. 1 34 of the North Dal(ota Century Gode is created 

2 and enaeted as follows: 

3 DysleJCia Training te teaeheFS, administrateFS, and ancillary staff lnter¥entien. 

4 The superintendent of public instruction shall eollaborate with regional education 

5 assoeiations to disseminate information, training materials. and notiee of training opportunities 

6 to school districts and nonpublie schools regarding dyslexia identification and intervention. If 

7 public school personnel identify a student as having dyslexia. a trained teacher employed or 

8 contracted b;· the school may provide dyslexia intervention services to the student. 

9 Reading screening. 

1 0 Each public elementary school shal l include in the developing and processing of 

1 1  assessments and screening of reading, the core components of phonetic awareness, decoding, 

1 2  and spel ling. The screening also must be offered if requested by a parent, legal guardian, or 

1 3  teacher. 

1 4  SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 15.1-32 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

1 5  and enacted as fol lows: 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

21 

22 

23 
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25 

26 
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30 

characterized by difficulties with accurate or fluent recognition of words and poor 

spelling and decoding abilities. independent of the individual's general 

intelligence level. 

sound and symbol relationships, alphabet knowledge, rapid naming skills, 

and encoding and decoding skills: 

subsection 18 of section 15,1 -02-16. 
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year, the superintendent of public instruction shal l  establ ish and operate a pilot 

program to provide early screen ing and intervention services for children with risk 

factors for dyslexia, including low phonemic awareness. 

risk factors for dyslexia; 

dyslexia i n  a reading program staffed by specialists trained in dyslexia and 

multisensory structured language programs; and 

identified risk factors of the ch ild. 

ch ildren under seven years of age through a read ing program established under 

subsection 3: 

skills of ch ildren enrolled in the program; and 

grant participants. 

for the program. and if determined necessary. continue the program for up to four 

additional years. tf the program demonstrates the effectiveness of early reading 

assistance programs for ch ildren with risk factors for dyslexia and if the program 

reduces special education costs. the superintendent shal l  determine the long-term 

sustainability of the program is necessary. 
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2 public instruction regarding the operation, results, and effectiveness of the pilot 

3 program in a manner prescribed by the superintendent, Before July 1, 2022, the 

4 superintendent of public instruction shall compile the information and report to the 

5 

6 beyond the 2022-23 school year, 

f-1 6  H0 1 
t-1 1 8- 1 9 

:!!' I  

7 SECTION 4. EXEMPTION - DYSLEXIA SCREENING PILOT PROGRAM. Up to $250,000 

8 of the unexpended amount remain ing from the appropriation for integrated formula payments, 

9 as authorized in  subd ivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 1 2  of the 201 7  Session Laws, is not 

1 0  subject to the provisions of section 54-44 . 1 - 1 1 at the end of the 20 1 7- 19  bienn ium, and may be 

1 1  continued into the 201 9-2 1 biennium for the purpose of provid ing a dyslexia screen ing pi lot 

1 2  program. 
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